CHamoru Land Trust Commission

Board Meeting Packet
September 18, 2025



Lourdes A. Leon Guerrero
Governor of Guam
I Maga’Haga Gudhan

Joshua F. Tenorio
Lt. Governor of Guam
1 Segundo Na Maga’Lahen
Guahan

Commission Members

Earl J. Garrido
Acting Chairperson

Joseph F. Artero-Cameron
Commissioner

Fabrienne Cruz Respicio
Commissioner

Jeremy J. Rojas
Commissioner

(Vacant)
Commissioner

(Vacant)
Administrative Director

Rev. 08/25/2025

Kumision Inangokkon Tano’ CHamoru

(CHamoru Land Trust Commission)

P.O. Box 2950 Hagatfia, Gudhan 96932 ¢ Phone: (671)300-3296 ¢ Fax: (671)300-3319 ¢ Email: cltc.admin@cltc.guam.gov

CHamoru Land Trust Commission Regular Board Meeting
Thursday, September 18, 2025 at 1:00PM

CHamoru Land Trust Conference Room, 590 S. Marine Corp Drive ITC Building, Suite 223, 2nd Floor
Tamuning, Guam. Public Comments may be made at cltc.admin@cltc.guam.gov To view the meeting
virtually, log on to GovGuam Live-YouTube or Google Meeting link: meet.google.com/mza-qbgm-dkr

AGENDA

l. Call to Order — Certification of Quorum Present
II.  Certification — Public Notice Requirements

A.
B.

lll.  Approval of Minutes:

Guam Daily Post (September 11, 2025 and September 16, 2025)
Guam Public Notice Website (https://notices.quam.gov)

July 17, 2025 (Regular Board Meeting)

IV.  Administrative Director’s Report

V. Old Business

A.

GMMmMoOO®

Constituent Matters

1. Roby Jean Quintanilla

2. Richard Blas Santiago

3. Leah Rojas

4. Karen Kasperbauer Perez
Department of Land Management MOA
Guam Waterworks Authority MOA

Bill N0.32-38(COR), Resolution 2025-001
Tract 10123, Yigo

Lot 7161-R1, Yigo

Administrative Director Position

VI. New Business

A.

nmoow

T @

VII.
VIII.

Constituent Matters

. Angela N.C. Santos

. Joleen Marie Almandres

. Mark Mendiola Almandres

. Daniel C. Lujan

. Emilia S.N. Palacios

. Pedro B. Blas

. Pedro B. Blas Jr.

. Ryan Muna

. Martina Cruz

Designation of Public Information Officer

Real Property Taxes Assessment

Switch/Transfer of Application Date/Time

Switch of Application Type

Letter from the Governor — Request for a Designated Staging Site for
Junk Vehicles

Portion of Lot 440, Merizo Transworld Radio

Bill N0.182-38 (COR)

OCoOoO~NOOUITPWNPE

Public Comment(s)
Next Meeting — Thursday, October 16, 2025 at 1:00PM, CLTC Conference Room,

Suite 223, ITC Building, Tamuning, Guam 96913

IX. Adjournment



https://notices.guam.gov/

Certification—Public Notice Requirements



CLTC Board of Commissioner Regular Meeting

CLTC Board of Commissioner Regular Meeting
MEETING

B4 Posted on: 09/11/2025 06:00 AM

Posted by: Dexter Tan

B3 Meeting Date: 09/18/2025 01:00 PM

Department(s):

CHAMORU LAND TRUST COMMISSION (/notices?department_id=23)
Division(s): CHAMORU LAND TRUST COMMISSION (/notices?division_id=174)

% Notice Topic(s): BOARD MEETING (/notices?topic_id=76)

i

“Lond Trust B

22 Types of Notice: MEETING (/notices?type_id=5)
i For Audience(s): PUBLIC (/notices?public=1)

~ Share this notice

AGENDA

1. Call to Order - Certification of Quorum Present

1. Certification - Public Notice Requirements

A. Guam Daily Post (September 11, 2025 and September 16, 2025)
B. Guam Public Notice Website (https://notices.guam.gov)
1. Approval of Minutes: July 17, 2025 (Regular Board Meeting)
IV. Administrative Director's Report

V. Old Business

A. Constituent Matters

1. Roby Jean Quintanilla

2. Richard Blas Santiago

3. Leah Rojas

4. Karen Kasperbauer Perez

B. Department of Land Management MOA

C. Guam Waterworks Authority MOA

D. Bill No.32-38(COR), Resolution 2025-001

E. Tract 10123, Yigo

F. Lot 7161-R1, Yigo

G. Administrative Director Position

VI. New Business

A. Constituent Matters

1. Angela N.C. Santos

2. Joleen Marie Almandres

3. Mark Mendiola Almandres

4. Daniel C. Lujan

5. Emilia S.N. Palacios

6. Pedro B. Blas

7. Pedro B. BlasJr.

8. Ryan Muna

9. Martina Cruz

B. Designation of Public Information Officer

C. Real Property Taxes Assessment

D. Switch/Transfer of Application Date/Time

E. Switch of Application Type

F. Letter from the Governor - Request for a Designated Staging Site for Junk Vehicles
G. Portion of Lot 440, Merizo Transworld Radio

H. Bill No.182-38 (COR)

VII. Public Comment(s)

VIIl. Next Meeting - Thursday, October 16, 2025 at 1:00PM, CLTC Conference Room, Suite 223, ITC Building,
Tamuning, Guam 96913

IX. Adjournment


https://notices.guam.gov/notices?department_id=23
https://notices.guam.gov/notices?division_id=174
https://notices.guam.gov/notices?topic_id=76
https://notices.guam.gov/notices?type_id=5
https://notices.guam.gov/notices?public=1




/
l i
i Bhy

i [(Ht A

AR DL
O Carevie {13 punis (vwbing:

VENDOR:

Overdrive, Inc.

Digital Media Platform

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION

DIPATTAMENTON ATMENESTRASION
GENIRAL SERVICES AGENCY DIVISIDN
(Rhansian Setkizion Hinlrat)
felephane (Telifen): &7V-475:1705/1704

SOLE SOURCE

Public Law 36-70
5GCAE5214

CONTRACTTERMS:

3 Years

DESCRIPTION:

INISIEL LENGIOAED
Goveari thh o g

B | WD
. s bysda M 411

TOTALAMOUNT:

|ncreased to
$250,000.00

THIS ADVERTISEMENT WAS PAID WITH GOVERNMENT FUNDS BY:

Guam Public Library System
Public Law 36-70

Sole Source awarded are posted on the Agency's website at

www.gsa.doa.guam.gov
/s/ Andriana Quitugua
Acting Chief Procurement Dfficer

CLASSIFIEDS 21

TEMPORARY JOB OPENINGS

15 CEMENT MASONS, 07 CARPENTERS, & 06 Reinforcing Metal Warkers with 1 year. Exp
05 FIELD SUPERVISORS, with 2 year, Exp.
Interest applicants, please apply at SERRANO CONST. & DEV., CORP.
At 632-8840 between 8:00 am to 5:00 pm.

Douglas B. Moyhn Douglas B. Moylan

ANGEL I AL AN

GUAM EDUCATION BOARD

501 Mannes hvenae, Bypigada, Guam S5973. 1408
Telaphona: (671} 300 W27 Fasimile: [671) 4715003
Wabsiie Addiuss: wwwgdotnetgih

i

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
Tuesday, September 23, 2025 4 PM
ul‘lery, Bldg. B, Tiyan

1. Meeting Call to Order
INFO Il Celebrate Success
INFO/ACTION 1N, Consent Calendar

1.
2

Minutes of August 19, 2025 Regular Meeting
Superintendent's Report August 19, 2025

MARTAY DRADA 1 O
# 0l

IV. Public Participation (Board Policy 125.6) Time Limit 3 minutes
INFD V. Communications
Correspondence received by the Board after August 19, 2025
INFO VI. Ex-Dfficio Member Reports
Islandwide Board of Governing Students (IBOGS| Report

1.

1.
2
L

Guam Federation of Teachers (GFT) Report
Mayor’s Council of Guam (MCOG) Report

VII. Unfinished Business/Committee Reports

Superintendent's Report

JFKHS/SSHS Double Session Status Report
FEMA Projects Status Report

FBLG Renovation Status Report

Mald Mitigation/Fencing Status Report
Dashboard Status Report

Management and Curriculum Audit Status Report

Status of Decommissioned Schools

xecutive Committee

National Association of State Boards of Education [NASBE)

i. NASBE Exchange
Search Commitiee Updates

3. Instructional & Academic Support Committee

September Head Start Report

4. Safe & Healthy Schools Commities

INFOUACTION 1,
a,
b,
4
d
e
f.
9
2, E
a
INFOMRCTION
INFOACTION b.
(NFOIACTION a
INFO) a
INFORETION

Facilities & Maintenance

5. PcI |qr Review & Strategic Planning Committes

Dr. Guthertz Proposal Re: Temporarily Place the Guam Department of

Education under the Administrative Purview of

the Guam Community

College in Order to Enhance GDOE Financial Management, Operational

Efficiency and Student Learning Outcomes

April, May, and June

Board Policy
aterlals
etings

b, Dr.Guthertz Proposal Re: Temparary Designation of Guam DOE Public
Schools as Charter Schools
6, Fistal Management Committee
3, GDOE Financial Report
INFD . Accounts Payable Aging Report
INFOIATTION ii. Dedlaration of Financial Status Designation-
INFE [li. Unaudited Statement of Appropriation, Expenditures, and
Encumbrances for Fiscal Year 2025
INFG iv. Grant Status Report for Fiscal Year 2025
INFO b US Department of Education Specific Conditions Repart
INFO ¢ FY 2024 Audit Progress
Viil. New Business
INFOIRETION 3. Ad Hoc Committee Update
INFO/RCTION b, SY26-27 Calendat
[NFOIACTION t.  Amended Board Policies
a 105 - Board Officers - Election
b, 105.10 - Duties of the Board Officars
(d 115 - Committees
i, 120.2 - Board Policy Disseminalion
e 120.4 - Administrafion in the Absence of
f. 125.3 - Distribution of Board MeellngM
F. 125,12 - Executive Sessions at Board Me
1 130 - Board Work Sessions
INFO S eechﬁwap:sts i_l(EI'ISI.IIG Requuemenls
INFO/ACTION 1K, Exe:umre Sessron (Board Po ?
8. Personnel matters (5 GCA 2811 1(a
b, Matters within scope of Pu

€
INFORTTION X, Announcements &

I:cEmplo ee Mana
including collective bargaining (5 G m
Superintendent's Evaluation

journment

F:}l]‘ln ent Relations Act,

. The public s welcome to view the mee'mg via live stream at mﬂm%;mmm&&tﬁm
Inelividuals requining spedal accommn or fion ar wish to submit pu ttesnmmy\ﬂa email may cantact

Kathleen Lamosenz by email: kilamomes,
This achvertise ment was paid l—l\[t GOOE uu. unris

Murna* General of Guam Attoiney General of Guam
Office of the Attorney General Offica of'the Attormney Genaral
rennsy Bivision Family Division
Marme Emgi Diive, ITC B1dg,, Ste, 706 590 5. Marine Car, ; Dﬂw I'IE Bldg., Ste. 704
mdnlng i 913 Tamuning, Guam 9
fhm_) 25‘?5 671) 475-3343 {fax) [6?1?&? ?59" '[-‘:?114?5 3343 (tax)
ilydivisionEoagguam org
Attorneys for the People of Guam Attorneys for rﬂe Hanp}em?ﬁuam
IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF GUAM IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF GUAM
IN THE INTEREST OF: ) Juvenile Case No. IN THE INTEREST OF:
GAD.(DOB: 1 1I01IZOO?J, ) JP0O0S7-22 L.C.(DOB: 09/28/201 7),and
EE.D.[DOB: 03/19/2010), ) D.C. (DOB: 08/27/2019),
EED.(DOB: 12/27/2015),and ) Minors.
SENERONOC | A JUVENILE CASE NO. JP0273-23
To: GLEN BABAUTR, Mimens

Father for GJALD, (DOB: 11/014007)
418 Malmai Road, Chalan Pago
(671)685-1141
You are hereby summoned to afﬁaear via

zoom, before the  HONORABLE
IHGLB a!theJudltlag of Guarm, Superior Count

Guam, 120 West (' Brien Dilve, Hagatna,
Guam for a court hearing on:

To: MARIA LYDIA CABRAL, Natural Mother
Homeless

You are hereby summoned to appear \na
zoom_hefore the  HONORABLE I-IJ
INGLES, at the Judiciary of Guam, SupenorCnurl
of Guam, 120 West O’ Brien Drive, Hagatna,
Guam, for a court hearing on:

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 07, 2025 AT 3:15 P.M.

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 7, 2025 AT 4:30 PM. :
Zoom meeting ID: 716 711 9213/ Password: 76504 Zoom meeting ID: 716-711-9213 Password: 76504

"YOUR PARENTAL AND CUSTODIAL DUTIES AND RIGHTS
CONCERNING THE CHILDREN WHO ARE THE SUBJECTOF
THE ABOVE MAY BE TERMINATED BY AWARD OF
PERMANENT CUSTODY IF YOU FAIL TO APPEAR ON THE
DATETHATIS SETFORTH IN THIS SUMMONS.” YOU MAY
BE HELD IN CONTEMPT IF YOU FAILTO APPEAR ON
THE DATE SET FORTH IN THIS SUMMONS.

Dated: AUG 29 2025,

CLERK, SUPERIOR COURT OF GUAM

BY: /s/ Sheila K. Castro
Deputy Clerk

“YOUR FRRENTAL AND CUSTODIAL DUTIES AND RIGHTS

CONCERNING THE CHILDREN WHO ARE THE SUBJECT OF THE

ABOVE MAY BE TERMINATED BY AWARD OF PERMANENT

CUSTODY [F YOU FAILTO APPEAR ON THE DATE THAT IS SET

FORTH IN THIS SUMMONS" YOU MAY BE HELD IN

CONTEMPTIFYQU FAILTO APPEAR ON THE DATE SETFORTH
INTHIS SUMMONS.

Dated: AUG 26 2025,

CLERK, SUPERIOR COURT OF GUAM
BY: /s/ Sheila K. Castro

Kumision Inangokkon Tano’ CHamoru o

Il. Certification - Public Notice Requirements

. Guam Pub
Il rmral of Minutes:
V. n ministrative Director's Report
V. 0ld Business
A Consbituent Matters

1. Roby Jean Quintanilla

2.Richard Blas Santiago

3. Leah Rojas

4. Karen Kasperbalier Perez

Guam Waterwarks Authority MOA

Tract 10123, Yigo
Lot 7161-R1, Yigo
Administrative
Vi New Business
Constituent Matters

1. Angela N.C. Santos

2. Joleen Marie Almandies
3. Mark Mendiola Almandres
4, Daniel €. Lujan

5, Emilia S.N. Palacios

4, Pedro B. Blas

7. Pedrn B Blas Jr,

8. Ryan Muna

9. Martina Cruz

ommonm

irector Position

Real Proper l} Tax Assessment

Switch of Apﬁh(atlon Type
Letter from o

oMM or®

H. Bill No.182-38 (COR)
VII. Public Comment{s)

IX. Adjournment

(CHamoru Land Trust Commission) S

CHamoru Land Trust Commission Regular Board Meeting

Thursday,September 18, 2025 at 1:00PM
CHamoru Land Trust Conference Room, 590 S. Marine Corp Drive ITC Building, Suite 223, Znd Floor
Tamuning, Guam. Public Comments may be made af cltc.admin@dte.guam.gov To view the meeting
virtually, log on to GovGuam Live-YouTube or Google Mesting link: meet.google.com/mza-qbgni-dkr

AGENDA
I. Call to Order - Certification of Quorum Present

Department of Land Management MOA
Bill No.32-3B(COR), Resolution 2025-001

Designation of Public information Offices

Switch/Transter of Application Date/Time

!—'t., Guam Dallr Post{September 11,2025 and SEp[embe! 16, 2025)
ic Notice Website lt;miLuot_LEiguam&
July 17,2025 (Regular Board Meeting)

e Governor - Request for a Designated Staging Site for Junk Vehicles
Fartion of Lot 440, Merizo Transworld Radio

VIII. Next Meeting - Thursday, October 16, 2025 at 1:00PM, CLIC Conference Room, Suite 223,
ITC Builcing, Tamuning, Guam 96913

In compliance with American with Disabilities Act, individuals requiring special accommeodations or services
should contact {671)300-3296 or email dlic.admin@ltc.guam.gov

This ad is paid for by CLTC funds

G202 91 ¥39IN31d3S 'AVASINL » 1SOd ATIVA INYND



Approval of Minutes



Lourdes A. Leon Guerrero
Governor of Guam
1 Maga’Haga Guahan

Joshua F. Tenorio
Lt. Governor of Guam
| Segundo Na Maga’Lahen
Guéhan

Commission Members

Arlene P. Bordallo
Chairperson

Earl J. Garrido
Commissioner

Joseph F. Artero-Cameron
Commissioner

Fabrienne Cruz Respicio
Commissioner

Jeremy J. Rojas
Commissioner

Joseph B. Cruz Jr.
Acting Administrative Director

Rev. 08/05/2025

Kumision Inangokkon Tano’ CHamoru
(CHamoru Land Trust Commission)

P.O. Box 2950 Hagatiia, Guahan 96932 ¢ Phone: (671)300-3296 * Fax: (671)300-3319 * Email: cltc.admin@cltc.guam.gov

CHamoru Land Trust Commission Regular Board Meeting
Thursday, June 19, 2025, from 1:20 PM to 6:43 PM

CHamoru Land Trust Conference Room, 590 S. Marine Corps Drive, ITC Building, Suite 223, 2" Floor,
Tamuning, Guam. Public Comments may be made at cltc.admin@cltc.guam.gov. To view the meeting
virtually, log in to the GovGuam Live-YouTube or Google Meet and join into Video call link: https://
meet.google.com/Xgx-jkys-saf

MEETING MINUTES

Public Notice: The Guam Daily POST on July 10, 2025, and July 15, 2025
PRESENT:

Commissioners

Arlene P. Bordallo, Chairperson

Earl J. Garrido, Commissioner

Fabrienne C. Respicio, Commissioner

Jeremy J. Rojas, Commissioner

Joseph F. Artero-Cameron, Commissioner (via Google Meet)

Management and Staff

Joseph B. Cruz Jr., Acting Administrative Director
Norman Lee Miller Jr., Deputy Attorney General
Glenn Eay, Acting Land Agent Supervisor

Eileen Chargualaf, Land Agent Il

Jhoana Casem, Land Agent Il

Jessica Dayday, Land Agent Il

Lydia Taleu, Land Agent |

Pierce Castro, Planner Il

Dexter Tan, Program Coordinator |

Guests

John Perez

Billy Cruz

Carlos Camacho

Yohei Koike

Jerry Tang

Doreen E. Borja

Mark Aquiningoc

Ray A. Cruz

Jessica Berisha (via Google Meet)
Author Paul Juanillo (via Google Meet)
Anthony Santos

John Iriarte

Doris Iriarte

Jonah Benavente

David Herrera

Page 1 of 12
CLTC Meeting Minutes — July 17, 2025


mailto:cltc.admin@cltc.guam.gov

Lourdes A. Leon Guerrero
Governor of Guam
1 Maga’Haga Guahan

Joshua F. Tenorio
Lt. Governor of Guam
| Segundo Na Maga’Lahen
Guéhan

Commission Members

Arlene P. Bordallo
Chairperson

Earl J. Garrido
Commissioner

Joseph F. Artero-Cameron
Commissioner

Fabrienne Cruz Respicio
Commissioner

Jeremy J. Rojas
Commissioner

Joseph B. Cruz Jr.
Acting Administrative Director

Rev. 08/05/2025

Kumision Inangokkon Tano’ CHamoru
(CHamoru Land Trust Commission)

P.O. Box 2950 Hagatiia, Guahan 96932 ¢ Phone: (671)300-3296 * Fax: (671)300-3319 * Email: cltc.admin@cltc.guam.gov

Summary
Commissioner Artero-Cameron raised concerns about restrictions on the CHamoru

Land Trust Commission's property use and revenue, advocating for the Commission's
autonomy in determining the highest and best use of property and suggesting a fee for
topsoil removal. AAD Cruz outlined recommendations for monitoring and invoicing
extracted materials, emphasizing professional ascertainment of aggregate removal and
a comprehensive plan from bidders for land reclamation. The Commission supported
Bill 7-38 by authorizing a competitive bidding process, with Commissioner Artero-
Cameron appointed as the messenger to the legislature.

Commissioner Artero-Cameron moved to support Bill 32-38 in its current form to
correct historical injustices related to land transfers, seconded by Commissioner
Garrido. Commissioner Artero-Cameron also moved to support Bill 41-38, with an
amendment accepted by Commissioner Respicio for landowners to satisfy non-
payment of taxes. Commissioner Respicio highlighted the complexities of property
taxes and unregistered properties, emphasizing that the Commission cannot legally
guarantee loans on unregistered land and that previous instances were assumptions of
existing guarantees.

The board discussed solutions for Mr. Billy Cruz's unregistered property, with
Commissioner Respicio suggesting direct work with CLTC staff for expedited
registration and Mr. Billy Cruz offering to pay for a survey. Discussions also included
extending a lease to 55 years, requiring an independent MAI appraiser, and proposing
amendments to Bill 135-38, which involved rent escalation and a performance bond for
GICC. The Commission also voted to sell the Bull Cart Trail based on two independent
appraisals and clarified conditions for a lease with GICC, including rent escalation and
a performance bond.

The board also discussed the legal validity of Antonio Aquiningoc’s two agricultural
leases, ultimately accepting the February 11, 2005, lease as official and terminating the
earlier one. Mark Allan Aguiningoc was named as the successor to his father's lease,
conditional on compliance with specific actions like recording the survey and clearing
fees. The board discussed land use regulations, clarifying that anything over a half-acre
for agricultural land requires two-thirds to be farmed and legislative approval for
commercial use.

The board also addressed Jessica Berisha's beneficiary application, with a motion
made to disqualify her due to discrepancies in her affidavit's stated location of land
taking, despite her verbal testimony. The board recommended approving Arthur Paul
Juanillo as an eligible beneficiary and Arthur Paul Juanillo Il as his successor. They
also approved leases for surveyed and registered parcels and granted a survey request
from MEC LLC for easement access.

Lastly, Artero-Cameron, as the newly appointed Public Information Officer, requested
parameters for their role, and the meeting concluded with a motion to table new
business items concerning constituent matters for Roby Jean Quintanilla, Richard Blas
Santiago, and Leah Rojas.

Page 2 of 12
CLTC Meeting Minutes — July 17, 2025




I. Meeting Called to Order
» Chairwoman Bordallo called the July 17, 2025, Board of Commissioners

meeting to order at around 1:20PM

Il. Approval of Minutes
» June 06, 2025 (Special Meeting)

ACTION: Motion to approve minutes with modification.
PASSED unanimously. 4-0.

» June 19, 2025 (Regular Board Meeting)

ACTION: Motion to approve minutes with modification; page 10, item 13,
change “motion made by Charlene Mayo to motion made by Commissioner
Respicio”.

PASSED unanimously. 4-0.

lll. Administrative Director’'s Report by AAD Cruz

A.AAD Cruz disclosed that initially, the Guam Daily Post did not publish the

approved print. AAD Cruz mentioned that to ensure the board complies with
the open government law, as they discuss the bills, the board can include
who could be the designated Public Information Officer (P1O) to represent the
board at public hearings. AAD Cruz will ensure that at the August board
meeting, all publication prints are correct.

. In discussing the housekeeping rules, board members, and public speakers,

there is a time limit of three (3) minutes per individual.

The procurement of the new CLTC official vehicles has been completed. A
purchase order has been awarded, and CLTC may be receiving the new
vehicles within ninety (90) days.

The procurement of a mail meter machine has been sent out. A mail meter
machine would be a more efficient and effective process in sending out
certified mail.

. The office space lease procurement will commence in October of 2025. CLTC

would have to issue a new IFB (Intent for Bid), depending on the successful
bid.

F. The FY2025 CLTC independent financial audit has commenced. There was a

G.

delay due to QuickBooks financial software.

An MOU between the USDA Rural Development and CLTC — the new
requirements of having an escrow account to receive loan funding from
USDA, water and wastewater disposal program, and SUTA. AAD Cruz
mentioned that there will be a meeting on August 11, 2025, at 10:00 AM with
Tomas Lynch.

On July 11, 2025, CLTC received a letter from Governor Lou Leon Guerrero
requesting assistance in identifying potentially suitable lots for the designated
staging site for junk vehicles before their disposal. For the August meeting, he
will ensure that it is a line item for discussion, and we will present possible
parcels for the board to consider in regards to the Governor’s request.

I. Report on residential and agricultural regarding the $9 million appropriations.

ltem One: Weekly Tuesday meeting with the Department of Land
Management (DLM). The 2nd MOA draft has been sent to DLM for some
edits. CLTC anticipates that the cost will increase, but it may not be drastic.
There is a timeline and expectation that the MOA will be finalized by the
August 2025meeting to be presented to the board for approval.

J. A meeting with GPA, and it was said that to install main feeder lines in the

various tracts that were presented, it will have to be triggered by an
application. We are working through the first tract, focusing on tract 15344 in
Mangilao. Any updates will be provided to the board by the August 2025
meeting.

Page 3 of 12
CLTC Meeting Minutes — July 17, 2025



K. The implementation plan for GWA was shared with all the commissioners. A
draft MOA is in progress. There is an increase in cost, which will be
presented to the board in August, with the hope of completing the MOA.

V. Old Business

A.Bill No. 7-38(COR)

» Restrictions on CHamoru Land Trust Commission Property Use
and Revenue: Commissioner Artero-Cameron expressed concerns
about restrictions placed on the CHamoru Land Trust Commission,
specifically regarding the requirement for at least one large pad for a
public service building in addition to homesteads, as well as the bill
stating the Commission will not receive revenue from the removal of
"unsuitable materials" like aggregate. He questioned whether the
Commission should be restricted from determining the highest and
best use of property and suggested a fee for topsoil removal,
considering its equivalent value to aggregate. AAD Cruz discussed the
potential use of topsoil for constituents and asked if there would be
monitoring during excavations, mentioning a draft SOP that includes
requirements for total surveys and professional ascertainment of
aggregate removal.

» Monitoring and Invoicing of Extracted Materials: AAD Cruz
outlined recommendations for monitoring and invoicing extracted
materials, suggesting that professionals ascertain the amount of
aggregate removed and that invoicing be based on reports stamped,
sealed, and signed by a company's engineer. They also proposed that
as part of the RFP process for mining the land, bidders include a plan
detailing the starting conditions, the stopping point, and what will be
left behind for the Commission's benefit and use. This approach aims
to have a plan in place from the beginning, rather than developing one
after extraction, to ensure the land is returned in a usable state.

» Support for Bill 7-38 and Messenger Identification: Commissioner
Artero-Cameron moved to support the intention of Bill 7-38 by
authorizing the CHamoru Land Trust Commission to engage in a
competitive bidding process (RFP), with the Commission determining
the RFP specifications and the terms and conditions of the
commercial lease. Attorney Miller clarified that the agenda item sought
the Commission's collective view on Bill 7-38 and the identification of a
messenger to the legislature. Commissioner Respicio motioned to
have Commissioner Artero-Cameron be the board’s representative for
the board’s decision on this bill. The motion was amended and
seconded by Commissioner Respicio. Commissioner Artero-
Cameron accepted an amendment to their motion to appoint
themself as the person to represent the board's direction on this
bill. Chairwoman Bordallo called for a vote. Motion passes 4-0.

B.Bill No. 32-38(COR)

Conflict of Interest Discussion (Bill 32-38) - Attorney Miller explained the
criteria for a conflict of interest related to Bill 32-38, which involves the
transfer of land to heirs, specifically mentioning a "three degrees of
relationship” test and a subjective test regarding personal benefit.
Commissioner Artero-Cameron confirmed they did not believe they had a
subjective conflict of interest, and Attorney Miller confirmed Commissioner
Garrido's eligibility to vote on the matter based on the outlined criteria.

Page 4 of 12
CLTC Meeting Minutes — July 17, 2025



Motion in Favor of Bill 32-38 — Commissioner Artero-Cameron formally
moved in favor of Bill 32-38 in its current form and intent, emphasizing
that supporting this bill is a crucial step toward correcting past
injustices and ensuring a better future for all parties involved.
Commissioner Garrido seconded the motion. Chairwoman Bordallo
called for a vote. Motion passes. 4-0. Commissioner Respicio then
commented on the bill, noting that the original transfer of the property
involved a sum of money and a promise of equipment worth $2 million, with
the equipment portion never executed.

C. Bill No. 131-37(COR)

Commissioner Artero-Cameron made a motion to support Bill 131-38 in
its current form and intention. Attorney Miller stated that the board has
a copy of the bill to review its contents. He then states that this bill is to
authorize the sale of property to the Kellys. We assume that fair market
value is the product of a couple of appraisals, and then we will average
and figure out a per-square-foot price. The bill itself doesn’t say what
the fair market value is. Commissioner Respicio seconded the motion,
with an amendment to the motion to include the definition of a fair
market value, inclusive of the responsibilities for the appraisals to
determine what the fair market value shall be generated or obtained by
the purchaser. To be obtained and paid by the buyer. Commissioner
Artero-Cameron seconded the amendment. Chairwoman Bordallo called
for a vote. Motion passes 4-0.

D. Bill No. 41-38(COR)

» Commissioner Artero-Cameron questioned the purpose of moving
away from Bill 41-38. Commissioner Respicio clarified that the motion
was to temporarily table the discussion until more documentation was
received, as only one page was available. Commissioner Artero-
Cameron then moved to support Bill 41-38 in its current form and
intention, stating that the primary objective of the Guam Ancestral
Lands Commission is to return land to ancestral owners or their
families. Commissioner Garrido suggested waiting for more accurate
information, noting that the land was taken due to non-payment of
taxes, not eminent domain or condemnation.

» Discussion on Land Conservation and Bill 41-38
Commissioner Artero-Cameron expressed concern that Bill 41-38,
dealing with land in the CHamoru Land Trust Commission's inventory,
might pass the legislature without the commission's full input.
Commissioner Respicio asked Commissioner Artero-Cameron to
consider an amendment to their motion to support the bill, with the
intention that the landowners satisfy the non-payment of taxes for
which the land was originally taken. Commissioner Artero-Cameron
accepted this amendment, and Commissioner Respicio seconded the
amended motion.

» Property Tax and Transfer Issues Commissioner Respicio
discussed the complexities of property taxes, penalties, and interest
on lots before transfer, emphasizing that the commission might not be
in a position to overturn decisions by other governmental bodies. She
raised concerns about the "look back period" for taxes, suggesting a
10-year limit as an example, and questioned the commission's
authority to dictate back taxes on a property taken 20 years ago.
Commissioner Artero-Cameron agreed that a vote was needed to
move forward, stating that the motion would either pass or fail.

Page 5 of 12
CLTC Meeting Minutes — July 17, 2025



» Commissioner’s Stance on Property Return
Commissioner Respicio clarified her understanding of the motion,
stating that the commission supports returning ancestral property with
the expectation that any legally due taxes, even if zero, are collected.
She also raised concerns about the implications if ancestral
landowners are unable to meet the burden of back taxes and
penalties, potentially leading to the loss of the property. Commissioner
Artero-Cameron questioned the existence of a statute of limitations for
back taxes, and Attorney Miller explained that while mainland laws
typically limit back taxes to three years, he was unsure how Guam
handles unpaid property taxes.
» Support and Motion

Commissioner Artero-Cameron moved to support Bill 41-38 in its
current form and intention, stating that the primary objective of
the Guam Ancestral Lands Commission is to return land to
ancestral owners or their families. Commissioner Respicio
suggested waiting for more accurate information, noting that the
land was taken due to non-payment of taxes, rather than through
eminent domain or condemnation. Commissioner Artero-
Cameron amended his motion to state that when property
transfers that, the families must satisfy the tax bill before.
Commissioner Respicio added to the motion to nominate
Commissioner Artero-Cameron, the unofficial PIO on this matter.
Chairwoman Bordallo called for a vote. Motion passes. 3-0.
Commissioner Garrido did not vote.

E.Bill No. 135-38(COR) Motion made by Commissioner Rojas to move to
item “G”, Number one, constituent matters, Mr. Billy Cruz, before
discussing item “E”, Bill Number 135-38. Seconded by Commissioner
Respicio. Chairwoman Bordallo called for a vote. Motion passes. 3-0.
Commissioner Garrido did not vote.

F.Constituent Matters
(1) Billy Cruz

» Addressing Unregistered Property Issues AAD Cruz detailed
the challenges posed by unregistered properties, highlighting that
CLTC has issued many leases on such properties, which is
contrary to the law. He noted that Public Law 37-131 provides an
avenue to address issues one and two, but items related to leases
on unregistered property can only be corrected by getting the
properties registered. He stressed that legally, without a law
amending or providing an avenue to reach unregistered property,
the commission cannot resolve or entertain requests like Mr.
Cruz's loan guarantee.

» Legal Risks and Commission's Responsibility Commissioner
Respicio, referencing Attorney Miller, discussed the legal risks
associated with allowing Mr. Cruz to proceed with developing his
unregistered property, particularly the possibility of another party
claiming ownership during the registration process. She
emphasized that the issue of unregistered property was largely
created by the commission, not Mr. Cruz, and reiterated that
deciding to take the risk is a "business choice" for the
commissioners, not a legal one. Commissioner Artero-Cameron
expressed offense at the characterization of the commission as a
business and stated that they are not in the business.

Page 6 of 12
CLTC Meeting Minutes — July 17, 2025



Proposed Solutions for Billy Cruz Commissioner Respicio
acknowledged Mr. Cruz's diligence in developing his property but
noted the commission's "legal crunch" due to the unregistered
status. She suggested a letter to the Attorney General's office to
request the administration of the property, but noted the timeline
would be beyond the commission's control. Commissioner Artero-
Cameron cited Guam code, confirming that the commission is
prohibited from leasing unregistered land and suggested tabling
the matter until official guidance from the Attorney General's office
is received.

Expediting Property Registration Commissioner Garrido
highlighted that obtaining surveys and maps is the most crucial
step for land registration and noted that the Attorney General's
office can take the matter to court, but the court system's pace
dictates the timeline. He commended Mr. Cruz's stewardship of
the land and expressed support for a motion to expedite the
survey and registration of his property. Mr. Cruz expressed
frustration at the lack of progress over the past year and offered to
pay for the survey and registration of his property with his attorney
to move the process forward.

Debate on Individual vs. Whole Lot Survey Commissioner
Artero-Cameron proposed a motion to accept Mr. Cruz's offer to
individually survey and sever his property to obtain a deed,
arguing it would set a precedent. Commissioner Garrido,
referencing Attorney Miller, explained that typically, all nine lots
believed to be owned by the commission would be surveyed
simultaneously to include necessary easements and development
parameters. He raised concerns about the practicality and
potential issues of surveying only a portion of a larger lot,
suggesting it would be more sensible to survey the entire lot and
divide it accordingly, even if it meant additional cost for CLTC.
Legal Implications of Loan Guarantee on Unregistered
Property Commissioner Respicio questioned whether the
commission could legally guarantee Mr. Cruz's loan for an
unregistered property. Attorney Miller affirmed that the commission
has previously guaranteed loans on unregistered properties,
though she noted this was before Typhoon Mawar. She also
highlighted that to guarantee a new loan on an unregistered
property would place significant risk on the current board, leading
Commissioner Artero-Cameron to state he would not vote on it
due to potential personal liability.

Past Precedents and Future Planning Commissioner Respicio
clarified that previous loan guarantees on unregistered land were
assumptions of existing guarantees, not new approvals, and
stressed the legal challenge of guaranteeing a new loan for an
unregistered property. She suggested that Mr. Cruz's case should
be prioritized and proposed that he work directly with the CLTC
team to develop a concrete plan to address his situation and that
of his neighbor’s, as the current discussions lacked a clear path
forward. Commissioner Artero-Cameron withdrew his motion to
table the matter, acknowledging the urgency of Mr. Cruz's loan
deadline.

Land Lease and Property Ownership Issues ALS Eay
discussed the complexities surrounding Mr. Cruz's agricultural
lease, noting that the fault originated with CLTC for awarding a
lease on unregistered property. The board acknowledged Mr. Cruz

Page 7 of 12
CLTC Meeting Minutes — July 17, 2025



as an "ideal tenant" who has invested significantly in the property,
despite building without proper consent and not fulfilling the two-
thirds farming requirement before construction. The discussion
aimed to find the fastest way to legalize Mr. Cruz's property, with
Mr. Cruz offering to pay for the necessary legal processes, which
might be quicker if focused solely on their lot rather than an entire
area survey.

» Challenges with Agricultural Leases and Construction AAD

Cruz highlighted an ongoing issue where agriculture leaseholders
construct homes or utility buildings, making it impossible to comply
with the two-thirds farming requirement. They mentioned that
similar cases would be brought before the board, indicating that
CLTC had previously given authorization for construction on
agricultural leases, leading to situations where farming
requirements cannot be met. Commissioner Garrido supported the
idea of prioritizing land registration, stating that once a property is
transferred to residential status, farming is no longer a
requirement.

» Proposed Solutions for Land Registration Commissioner

Respicio proposed that Mr. Cruz work directly with CLTC staff to
find an expeditious resolution for their land registration, as the
commission could not directly guarantee it. They also suggested
considering a legislative process to bypass registration and
automatically register the land in the name of CLTC, provided it is
the most efficient method.

» Motion to Table - Commissioner Respicio made a motion to

table the agenda item so that Mr. Billy Cruz can work directly
with the CLTC staff to develop a resolution and a suggestion
on how to move forward expeditiously to address his
concerns, as it doesn’t appear to address what he wants
legally. Seconded by Commissioner Garrido. Chairwoman
Bordallo called for a vote. Motion passes 4.0. AAD Cruz
mentioned to the board that, for one thing, the board may think
about possibly seeking legislative assistance; if the land has been
in CLTC's inventory for the last 20-30 years, consideration might
be given to bypassing the land registration proceedings and
creating a bill and automatically registering it in the name of CLTC.
Still, AAD Cruz will speak to the DLM Director.

G. Public Law 37-146 (Representative from Eclavea Family — Doreen E. Blas)

(1)

(2)

Sale of Bull Cart Trail Commissioner Respicio inquired about the
sale of the Bull Cart Trail to a specific family, noting that property
owners typically dedicate land for easements when subdividing large
parcels. Commissioner Rojas confirmed this was one option and
explained that the process for selling the trail would involve two
independent appraisals, with the average value establishing a fair
price, ensuring transparency and responsibility.

Bull Cart Trail Map and Impact Commissioner Respicio raised
concerns about the lack of a map for the Bull Cart Trail, which is
essential to understand the land being sold or exchanged and its
impact on other residents or properties. She suggested tabling the
discussion until a map could be obtained, highlighting that the entire
trail is only 1500 square meters, while 13,000 square meters are being
given up. A representative of the family, Doreen Borja, explained that

Page 8 of 12
CLTC Meeting Minutes — July 17, 2025



the family is subdividing their property, through which the Bull Cart
Trail runs, and the law allows for either selling or exchanging the trail.

(3) Preference for Selling the Bull Cart Trail Ms. Doreen Borja sought
clarification on why selling the Bull Cart Trail was preferred over
exchanging the property, especially since an easement would be
required anyway for subdivision. Commissioner Rojas stated that the
commission intended to sell the trail because it had not been used in
over 80 years, and selling it would be in the best interest of the trust's
beneficiaries. The proposed sale would follow a process where the
buyer would obtain two appraisals, and the average would determine
the sale price.

(4) Motion to Sell: Motion made by Commissioner Rojas to sell the
1,580 square meters in compliance with the law and seconded by
Commissioner Respicio. Chairwoman Bordallo called for a vote.
Motion passes. 4-0

H. Bill No. 135-38 (Representatives from GICC - C. Camacho, J. Tang, and Y.
Koike)

(1) AAD Cruz presented four (4) different analyses to the CLTC Board at
40%, 30%, 20% and 12% projection

(2) Motion made by Commissioner Artero-Cameron to accept that a
minimum of $9.5million and seconded by Commissioner
Respicio. Chairwoman Bordallo called for a vote. Motion
passes. 4-0.

(3) Commissioner Respicio motioned that Bill 135-38 offers
significant potential but also raises some very important
concerns, and after thorough review of documentation and
previous performance audits, those submitted by GICC as well,
and all the insights provided by both the staff and the
commission. It's crucial to ensure that the CLTC receives fair
compensation while maintaining reasonable expectations of this
property. The bill does concern, contain numerous conditions
and big suggestions that could introduce some uncertainty and
prioritize our interests as CLTC, and also eliminate any
ambiguity. | propose a motion to support the amendment of the
existing commercial lease between CLTC and GICC that will
facilitate the development of a solar farm and extend the lease
term until January 31, 2055, and include the following clear
essential conditions. One, the lease framework. All amendments
and extensions will be structured around the current lease,
initiating rent escalation on February 1, 2026, to 12%. Increase
the escalation from 10 to 12% starting the next five-year
increment, which is 2029 or 2028. February 2028. February 1,
2028. GICC has agreed to settle any outstanding rent and
property taxes in full by January 31, 2026. | wanted to clarify that
for the record. If the Bill passes, then there's a shorter trigger,
the thirty-day trigger. So, we will keep the current agreement.
Whichever comes first, either October or the trigger date of this
bill. The lease frameworks, all amendments, and then the upfront
commitment. Though upon executing the amendments, GICC
would pay half of the total value, or the full demonstrating its
commitment to partnership. Further, GICC must secure a
performance bond naming CLTC as a beneficiary and the amount
yet to be determined on the net present value. If GICC cannot
meet those conditions as proposed, then this will void the lease

Page 9 of 12
CLTC Meeting Minutes — July 17, 2025



and any extensions which is included in the Bill. The motion was
seconded by Commissioner Artero-Cameron. Chairwoman
Bordallo called for a vote. Motion passes. 4-0.

(4) Commissioner Respicio motioned that Bill 135-38 offers

significant potential but also raises some very important
concerns, and after thorough review of documentation and
previous performance audits, those submitted by GICC as well,
and all the insights provided by both the staff and the
commission. It's crucial to ensure that the CLTC receives fair
compensation while maintaining reasonable expectations of this
property. The bill does concern, contain numerous conditions
and big suggestions that could introduce some uncertainty and
prioritize our interests as CLTC, and also eliminate any
ambiguity. | propose a motion to support the amendment of the
existing commercial lease between CLTC and GICC that will
facilitate the development of a solar farm and extend the lease
term until January 31, 2055, and include the following clear
essential conditions. One, the lease framework. All amendments
and extensions will be structured around the current lease,
initiating rent escalation on February 1, 2026, to 12%. Increase
the escalation from 10 to 12% starting the next five-year
increment, which is 2029 or 2028. February 2028. February 1,
2028. GICC has agreed to settle any outstanding rent and
property taxes in full by January 31, 2026. | wanted to clarify that
for the record. If the bill passes, then there’'s a shorter trigger,
the thirty-day trigger. So, we will keep the current agreement.
Whichever comes first, either October or the trigger date of this
bill. The lease frameworks, all amendments, and then the upfront
commitment. Though upon executing the amendments, GICC
would pay half of the total value, or the full demonstrating its
commitment to partnership. Further, GICC must secure a
performance bond naming CLTC as a beneficiary and the amount
yet to be determined on the net present value. If GICC cannot
meet those conditions as proposed, then this will void the lease
and any extensions which is included in the Bill. The motion was
seconded by Commissioner Artero-Cameron. Chairwoman
Bordallo called for a vote. Motion passes. 4-0.

I. Commercial lease option to extend with United States Postal Service
(USPS)
(1) A portion of Lot 163, Hagat - AAD Cruz requested to remove this item

from the agenda and for the board not to discuss. Through a property
certification issued by the Department of Land Management, this
property is under the administrative jurisdiction of the Hagat Mayor’s
Office. The CLTC does not have any authority.

(2) Tract 3621, Lot 18, Inalahan — AAD Cruz requested to remove this

V. New Business

item from the agenda and for the board not to discuss. AAD Cruz
mentioned that initially, the USPS contractor did inquire about the
exercising option to extend, recent emails, they're withdrawing the
request. Remove from the agenda or further discussions until they
come back and request to extend their options, if it's legally allowable.

A.Constituent Matters

Page 10 of 12
CLTC Meeting Minutes — July 17, 2025



Commissioner Rojas made a motion to entertain the folks that are here now
before we move on to people who are not here. Second by Commissioner
Respicio. Chairwoman Bordallo called for a vote. Motion passes 4-0.

(1) Roby Jean Quintanilla — TABLED

(2) Richard Blas Santiago — TABLED

(3) Antonio Aguon and Ana Ignacio Aquiningoc

» Acting Land Agent Supervisor G. Eay presented the case as
requested by Mark Aquiningoc, who requested to succeed his
deceased father, Antonio Aquiningoc, in two agricultural leases
with different effective dates on the same lot. He noted that the
first lease from 1998 was issued administratively and not
recorded, while the second lease from 2005 was ratified by the
board and recorded. The board discussed the legal validity of
the leases and ultimately voted to accept the February 11,
2005, agricultural lease as the official legal lease and to
terminate the September 29, 1998, lease. Commissioner
Respicio made a motion to keep the February 11, 2005,
agriculture lease. Commissioner Rojas seconded the
motion. Chairwoman Bordallo called for a vote. Motion
passes 4-0.

» Successor Approval and Lease Conditions - Commissioner
Respicio made a motion to name Mark Allan Aquiningoc as the
successor to his father’'s lease, conditional upon his
compliance with specific actions, including recording the
survey, clearing non-lease fees and property taxes, and
participating in a site inspection to confirm agricultural lease
compliance. The board noted that if he did not come into full
compliance within a year, the lease would be terminated. They
also discussed the acreage, confirming that Mark Aquiningoc
wished to retain the full one acre, which would require farming
two-thirds of the land. Commissioner Respicio made a
motion to name Mark Allan Aquiningoc successor to his
father’s lease on the conditional approval of items listed
on items 6E, one to six. Seconded by Commissioner
Rojas. Chairwoman Bordallo called for a vote. Motion
passes 4-0.

» Commercial vs. Residential Land Use - AAD Cruz discussed
land use regulations, clarifying that anything over a half-acre is
considered commercial and requires legislative approval. They
explained that for agricultural land, two-thirds of an acre must
be farmed. AAD Cruz noted that a half-acre can still
accommodate a three to four-bedroom home with a lease of
one dollar, and it is possible to do both residential and
agriculture on a half-acre.

» Compliance and Farming Plan- AAD Cruz stated that a year
would be given for compliance with farming two-thirds of a
one-acre property, and guidance could be provided for other
requirements beyond farming. They also mentioned that a
farming plan is required for one acre, outlining the types of
trees to be planted. ALS Eay indicated that the staff would
need to check existing structures for compliance with setbacks
if the land is reduced to a half-acre, as some buildings might
be affected.

Page 11 of 12
CLTC Meeting Minutes — July 17, 2025



» Decision on Land Reduction Commissioner Rojas advised
the applicant to consider their options before making a drastic
decision on reducing land size, suggesting they wait for
updated information on payment rates after site visits. They
confirmed that a request to reduce land size would require the
applicant to return to the board.

(4) Arthur Paul Juanillo

» Beneficiary Application Acting Land Agent Supervisor G. Eay
presented Mr. Juanillo’s request to be an eligible beneficiary
alongside his son, Arthur Paul Juanillo Il. Juanillo’s affidavit
stated his maternal grandfather utilized property in Malia until
1948, and research confirmed that the property in Malia was
acquired by the US naval government nine days after his
grandfather left. ALS Eay noted that the property was acquired
at the location claimed, which was a correct aspect of this
application compared to the previous one.

» Acting Land Agent Supervisor G. Eay recommended that
Arthur Paul Juanillo be deemed eligible because the property
in question was acquired by the government shortly after his
maternal grandparents occupied it. They also recommended
approving his son as a successor, which would follow the
lineage and automatically transfer eligibility if something
happened to Mr. Juanillo. The discussion clarified that while
the father had a lease in Yigo, the eligibility process for the son
concerned property in Anigua, which was a different location.

» Eligibility and Lease Reissuance - Acting Land Agent
Supervisor G. Eay questioned the eligibility determination for
Mr. Juanillo, noting that their eligibility was previously
established when the lease was first issued. Mr. Eay raised
concerns about reissuing new leases for "cloud" leases and
whether the eligibility criteria would need to be reassessed for
all 2,800 existing leases, as only 19 applications from 1998
met current standards. AAD Cruz clarified that reissuing a new
lease would require applying current eligibility criteria, and this
process is a preliminary step towards compliance.

» Approval of Beneficiary and Successor - Acting Land Agent
Supervisor G. Eay recommended approving Arthur Paul
Juanillo as an eligible beneficiary and Arthur Paul Juanillo the
second as a successor to Arthur Paul Juanillo's residential
lease. Commissioner Rojas made a motion to approve
Arthur Paul Juanillo as an eligible beneficiary for the
program, as well as Arthur Paul Juanillo, the second, as
successor to Arthur Paul Juanillo’s residential lease.
Seconded by Commissioner Respicio. Chairwoman
Bordallo called for a vote. Motion passes 4-0.

(5) Jessica Cabrera Berisha (appeared via Google Meeting)

» Acting Land Agent Supervisor G. Eay presented the request of
Ms. Berisha to be deemed an eligible beneficiary, based on her
affidavit stating her parents occupied a lot in Palantak, Yona
from 1958 to 1971. Research indicated that while land was
taken from the owner, Jose Cepeda Cruz, it was in "Agana,”
not Palantak, as claimed in the affidavit. ALS Eay clarified that
eligibility for the program requires occupying property at the
location where land was taken by the US government.

Page 12 of 12
CLTC Meeting Minutes — July 17, 2025



» Discrepancy in Affidavit Location - Acting Land Agent
Supervisor G. Eay explained that Jessica Berisha's affidavit
stated the property was in Palantak, but research showed the
land taking was in "a gang yard". They highlighted that while
Berisha could be eligible as a descendant of an occupier, the
error in the municipality on her affidavit was a key issue. ALS
Eay noted that the affidavit was signed under penalty of
perjury, making corrections challenging without legal guidance.

» Jessica Berisha clarified that Roman Cabrera is her father, not
her grandfather, and Jose Cepeda Cruz is her father's brother-
in-law, who sponsored her father in 1958. She stated that she
never claimed a land taking in Palantak and was unsure where
the information about land in "Agana" came from. Berisha
further explained that her family rented next to a Quinine Farm
in Palantak, within walking distance from her uncle's land.

» Discussion on Eligibility Criteria - AAD Cruz affirmed that
eligibility criteria include individuals who occupied, farmed,
ranched, or resided on land taken by the federal government
between 1890 and 1968. They confirmed that Jessica
Berisha's father resided on the property and that the entire
island was once under US government control, technically
gualifying occupants. Despite the location discrepancy in the
affidavit, Berisha's verbal testimony supported her qualification
as an occupier. Commissioner Rojas questioned whether this
discussion should be tabled and discussed with Attorney Miller.

» Motion to Disqualify - A motion was made to disqualify
Jessica Berisha from being an eligible beneficiary due to
discrepancies between her affidavit's stated location of land
taking and the research findings. The motion was based on the
belief that the sworn statement in the affidavit regarding land
acquisition was incorrect. Commissioner Respicio made a
motion based on the discussion and the recommendation
of our staff member, Mr. Eay, to disqualify Ms. Jessica
Barisha from being an eligible beneficiary for the CLTC
program based on her affidavit of eligibility item number
three and the research that is presented to us. Seconded
by Commissioner Rojas. Chairwoman Bordallo called for a
vote. Motion passes 3-0. Commissioner Garrido did not
vote.

(6) Leah Rojas - TABLED

B.Survey Completion without Board Ratification

» Lease for Surveyed and Registered Parcels - Acting LAS, G. Eay
addressed the issue of applicants who completed surveys for their
properties but were never issued leases, particularly for unregistered
land. Casem clarified that leases can only be issued for parcels that
are both surveyed and registered

» Motion to Approve Surveyed Properties - Commissioner Respicio
made a motion to approve leases for parcels that have already
been surveyed on parcels that are registered. Seconded by
Commissioner Rojas. Chairwoman Bordallo called for a vote.
Motion passes 4-0.

C. Lot 153-1, Yona — Request to Survey Easement — MEC, LLC

Page 13 of 12
CLTC Meeting Minutes — July 17, 2025



» AAD Cruz presented a request from MEC, LLC, represented by Ray
Cruz (licensed surveyor), to survey the easement within the CLTC
property to provide access to Lot 153-1 Yona for Melissa V. Torres and
other landowners. AAD Cruz clarified that the survey would only be for
the existing access easement; not the properties along it.

» Commissioner Respicio made a motion to approve Ms. Melissa V.
Torres’ request. Second by Commissioner Rojas and
Commissioner Artero-Cameron. Chairwoman Bordallo called for
a vote. Motion passes 4-0.

D. Lot 7161-R1, Yigo

» Commissioner Artero-Cameron corrected AAD Cruz in regards to the
individual who is seeking to remove the junk. He stated the name of
the individual is Sherwin Mobida.

» AAD Cruz brought up the request from Ms. Shakira Francisco,
represented by Sherwin Mobida in regards to the abandoned junk
vehicles from Lot 7161-R1, Yigo, noting that only the board could
decide on the request. AAD Cruz suggested that Sherwin Mobida,
known for refurbishing junk, could be the person to remove them and
emphasized the need for a waiver of liability. Commissioner Artero-
Cameron made a motion to approve the removal, subject to legal
counsel, Attorney Miller, drafting a waiver of liability to protect
the board from any liabilities. Seconded by Commissioner Rojas.
Chairwoman Bordallo called for a vote. Motion passes 4-0.

E.Designation of Public Information Officer (P10)

» As per AAD Cruz, due to Guam Daily Post not posting this segment,
the board is unable to move forward with a vote to designate a PI1O at
this meeting but assured that this will be brought up at the next CLTC
meeting.

VI. Public Comment(s) - Chairwoman Bordallo asked if there were any public comments.
None responded.

VII. Adjournment — Commissioner Rojas made a motion to adjourn the meeting.
Second by Commissioner Garrido. Chairwoman Bordallo called for a
vote. Motion passed 4-0.

**Meeting adjourned at approximately 6:43PM.**

Transcribed by: Jessica Dayday, Land Agent I

Approved by motion in the meeting of

Chairperson Arlene P. Bordallo Date

Page 14 of 12
CLTC Meeting Minutes — July 17, 2025



Administrative Director’s Report



DIRECTOR’S REPORT
SEPTEMBER 18, 2025

1. ADMINISTRATIVE

1y

2)

3)

4)

Department of Interior Office of Insular Affairs TAP Grant has been extended for one year
which now would expire on September 30, 2026. Title of Project: Enhancement of the
Chamorro Land Trust Commissions’ Information Technology Infrastructure to improve its
Process.

August 11, 2025 met with Mr. Tony Barcinas, and Lennie Okano-Kendrick from USDA and
Mr. Tomas Lynch from RCAC.

August 19, 2025 and September 15, 2025 met with Public Auditor Cruz and EY
representatives to discuss status of CLTC’s FY2023 Independent Financial Audit.

Vice Speaker and Oversight Chairman Senator Anthony Ada introduced Bill 176-38.
(Attached for your reference as Ex.1)

2. LAND ADMINISTRATION

1)

2)

3)

FY2025 Nine Million Dollar Appropriation

A) GPA — The current process is a lessee will need to apply for power services. However, we
are reviewing the current MOA between CLTC and GPA. (Attached for your reference
Ex. 2)

July 29, 2025 received an email with a letter attached from Mayor Frances Lizama of the
Municipality of Yigo requesting for the “Remainder Parcel of Lot 7055, Municipality of
Yigo. (Attached for your reference Ex.3)

Compliance Inspections — At this time we have put a pause on all compliance inspections due
to Public Law 24-62 (Attached for your reference Ex.4) which we will be requesting to meet
with DAG Miller to get further guidance.

3. COMMERCIAL

1) May 1, 2025 received via email a letter dated April 30, 2025 from Mr. Daniel Tydingco
with Docomo requesting the renewal of 7 site leases which have expired or about to
expire through the authority granted in Public Law 38-1. (Attached for your reference Ex.
5)

2) August 10, 2025 the Guam Fire Department responded to a fire incident at Global
Recycling. A site inspection was conducted on August 13, 2025. Attached are photos of
the area and letter sent. (Attached for your reference are pictures of site Ex.6)



I Minatrentai Ocho Na Lieslaturan Gughan

THE THIRTY-EIGHTH GUAM LEGISLATURE I Mina'trentai Ocho Na Liheslaturan Guihan EX. 1
Bl HISTORY BILL STATUS

7/24/2025 4:54 P

V. Anthony Ada AN ACT TO 4DD A NEW § 5128 TO CHAPTER 5, TITLE 5, GUAM CODE 7/24/25
176-38 (COR) ANNOTATED, RELATIVE TO COMMERCIAL LEASE EXTENSION FOR TENANTS IN| 4:18 p.m.
GOOD STANDING.

CLERKS OFFICE- “Referred Version Page 1



10
11
12
13
14
15

7/24/25 4:37 p.m.
kw

I MINA'TRENTAI OCHO NA LIHESLATURAN GUAHAN
2025 (FIRST) Regular Session

Bill No. 176-38 ( COR )

Introduced by: V. Anthony Ada(@

AN ACT TO ADD A NEW § 5128 TO CHAPTER 5, TITLE 5,
GUAM CODE ANNOTATED, RELATIVE TO
COMMERCIAL LEASE EXTENSION FOR TENANTS IN
GOOD STANDING.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE PEOPLE OF GUAM:
Section 1. A new § 5128 is added to Chapter 5, Title 5, Guam Code
Annotated, to read as follows:

“§ 5128. Commercial Lease of Public Real Property and Related

Facilities; Extension for Tenants in Good Standing.

Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a tenant who has a commercial

lease of government property and has continuously occupied the government-

leased property for at least five (5) years and has fully complied with all lease terms

and conditions throughout such occupancy, may extend the lease at fair market

value, which shall be determined by an appraiser who is licensed to do business on

Guam and is paid for by the tenant, for an additional term or terms, the total of

which shall not exceed fifteen (15) vyears, with approval from the lessor. If such

extension is granted, fair market value shall be determined for, at least, every five

(5) vears during the extension period but in no event shall rent be less than the rent

charged during the previous five (5) year period.”




MEMORANDURM OF AGREEMENT

THIS MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT ("MCA") is madeon this 13t day of June
2024, by and between the CHAMORU LAND TRUST COMMISSION (CLTC) whose address is
PO Box 2950, Hagatna, Guam 26932, and the GUAM POWER AUTHORITY (GPA) whose
mailing address is P.O. Box 2977, Hagatha, Guam 96932-2977.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, on June 13, 2024, the CLTC approved through a vote and motion to authorize the
Guam Power Authority 1o utilize Lot 7054-Rg (the “Lot”), Municipality of Yigo for a period of
three (3) years,

WHEREAS, Guam's agricultural and residential lands are largely administered by CLTC, whose
responsibility includes monitoring land use agricultural production, environmental compliance
and iis lessee's compliance with land leases;

WHEREAS, the missions of each party to this MOA include, but are not limited to, providing
access (o power utility for Agricuiture and Residential Lessees;

WHEREAS, GPA, whose mission is to provide reliable, efficient, effective, environmentaily
sound, affordable, accountable, leading energy solutions, and CLTC desire to maximize their
respectlive resources, expertise and capacity through cooperation;

WHEREAS, GPA has the expertise and capacity to oversee and complete the joint effort of the
parties to provide access {o power utility;

WHEREAS, CLTC desires the assistance of GPA to provide the aforementioned in-kind
services in exchange for use of the land.

NOW THEREFORE IN CONSIDERATION of the covenants provided, CLTC and GPA agree as
follows:

1. GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE: Designated Representalives

CLTC representative is:

Joseph B. Cruz Jr, Acting Administrative Director

CHamoru Land Trust Commission

590 S. Marine Corps Drive ITC Building, 2nd Floor, Suite 222
Tamuning, GU 96910

(671) 300-3296

joey.cruz@cltc.guam.gov

GPA representative is:
John M. Benavente, P.E.
General Manager

Guam Power Authority
P.QO. Box 2977

Hagalfa, Guam 96932

Ex. 2



Memarandum of Agreement
Re Yigo Lot 7054-R&

Page 2 of 4

(671) 648-3225
jbenavente @ gpagwa.com

Each party can change its designated representative(s) upon prior written notice fo the other
pairty.

2. TERM:

The initial term of this MOA shall be for a period of three (3) years.

3. GPA OBLIGATIONS:

4,

o

™

A.

oom

Provide in-kind services of the installation of power ufility valued at $190,000.00 to
parcels of property selected by CLTC.

Comply with Section 7 regarding environmental management.

Ensure that the property is returned in the condition prior to occupancy or better.

Ensure that all waste originating from GPA's aclivities on the Lot will be collected
promptly in & place on the Lot suitable for ready and prompt removal; be responsible for
the disposal of waste, including hazardous waste, in a manner that meets the
requirements of applicable law; and conduct any and ali environmental cleanup if the
need arises.

Provide CLTC with status reports on a quarterly basis on the instaliation of electrical
services pursuant to Section 3(A) above.

CHAMORU LAND TRUST COMMISSION OBLIGATIONS:

Grant exclusive access to GPA to the Lot for the term of this Agreement.

. Provide GPA with a formal letter identifying the parcel(s} selected for GPA to provide in-

kind services of the instaliation of power utility pursuant to Section 3{A) above.

. Provide GPA with the necessary authorizations to obtain permits or approvals for

Government or Federal agencies.

NOTICES:

Any notice required shall be marked PRIVATE AND CONFIDENTIAL and sither hand
delivered or sent by United States certified mail to the altention of the Designated
Representative only, at the principal place of business of each of the parties set forth in
Section 1, herein.

TERMINATION:

This MOU shall be terminated if either party does not comply with its obligations.

A

ENVIRONMENTAL:

GPA, at its sole cost and expense, shall comply with all present and future laws, rules,
orders, ordinances, regulations, statutes, requirements, codes and executive orders,
extraordinary as well as ordinary, of all governmental authorities now existing or hereafter



Memorandum of Agreement
Re Yigo Lot 7054-Rg

Page 3ol 4

created, and of any and all of their departments and bureaus, and of any applicable fire
rating bureau, or other body exercising similar functions, affecting the Lot.

. CLTC makes no representations or warranties to GPA that the Lot (including surface

water, ground water, and any existing improvements) does not contain any asbestos,
substantial amounts of waste or debris, or contamination, including without limitation, any
Hazardous Substance as hereinafter defined.

. As used in this Agreement, the term "Hazardous Substance(s)" means any hazardous or

toxic substances, materials or wastes, including, but net limited to, those substances,
materials, and wastes listed in the United States Department of Transportation
Hazardous Materials Table {42 CFR 172.101) or by the Environmental Protection Agency
as hazardous substances (40 CFR Part 302) and amendments thereto, or such
substances, materials and wastes which are or become regulated under any applicable
local, state or federal law including, without limitation, any material, waste or substance
which is (i) petroleum, (i) asbestos, (iii) polychlorinated biphenyls, (iv) designated as a
*hazardous substance" pursuant to Section 311 of the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. §1251,
et seq. (33§1321) or listed pursuant to Section 307 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C.
§1317), (v} defined as a "hazardous waste" pursuant to Section 1004 of the Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. §6901, ot seq. (42 U.S.C. §6903) or (vi)
defined as a "hazardous substance" pursuant to Section 10t of the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. §9601, et seq. (42
U.S.C. §9601) or any similar laws, ordinances, rules or regulations promulgated by
Guam.

. Except for materials incident to GPA's business operations, GPA shall not cause or

permit any Hazardous Substance to be generated, produced, brought upon, used, stored,
treated or disposed of in or about the Lot by GPA, its agents, employees, contractors,
sub-licensees or invitees without the prior written consent of CLTC. CLTC shall be
entited to take into account such other factors or facts as CLTC may reasonably
determine 1o be relevant in determining whether to grant or withhold consent to GPA's
proposed activity with respect to Hazardous Substance. In no event, however, shall GPA
be permitted to install or use any storage tanks on the Lot nor shall CLTC be required to
consent to the installation or use of any storage tanks on the Lot.

8. MISCELLANEOUS TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

A. Entire Agreement. This MOA constitutes the entire agreement between the parties. All

prior discussions and understandings on this matter are superseded by this MOA.

. Non-Waiver. The failure of a Party to exercise any of the agreements, terms or conditions

hereof shall not be deemed a waiver of any right or remedy that a Party may have, and
shall not be deemed a waiver of any subsequent breach or default of any such
agreements, terms or conditions.

. Amendments. This MOA may not be amended without the pricr written consent of all

parties.



Memgorandum of Agreement
Re Yigo Lot 7054-R9

Page 4 of 4

0

D. Governing Law. This MOA shall be governed by the laws of Guam.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered into this Memorandum of Agreement
effective the day and year first above written.

CHAMORU LAND TRUST COMMISSION:

JOSERH Bﬁ/z JR. ARLENE P. BORDALLO

ACTING, ADMINISTRATIVE DIRECTOR CHAIRWOMAN

GUAM POWER AUTHORITY:

S

Ly
JarN M. BENAVENTE, P.E.
GENERAL MANAGER




OFFICE OF THE
MAYOR AND VICE MAYOR

274 W. Gayinero Dr., Yigo, Guam 96929
P.O. Box 786, Hagatna, Guam 96932
(671) 653-YIGO (9446) / 9119 / 5248

FRANCES S. LIZAMA yigomunicipaloffice@gmail.com PEDRO S. BLAS
Mayor Vice Mayor

= s p—
July 29, 2025

Mr. Joseph Cruz

Acting Director

Chamorro Land Trust Commission
Suite 222, ITC Building

Tamuning, Guam 96913

SUBJECT: Request for Remainder Parcel of Lot 7055, Municipality of Yigo
Dear Mr. Cruz,

Buenas yan Hafa Adai!

I hope this letter finds you in good health and high spirits.

I am writing to you in hopes of obtaining assistance regarding Lot 7055, located in the
municipality of Yigo. This property, consisting of 42.65 acres, is situated directly behind
the Yigo Bus Satellite.

Public Law 22-18 reserved a portion of Lot 7055, totaling 29.16 acres, for the Guam
Waterworks Authority. The remaining 13.49 acres have not been reserved or transferred
to any other government agency.

The property has remained undeveloped for decades, and I am not aware of any current
plans or proposals for its development. Therefore, I respectfully request that the
remaining parcel of Lot 7055 —13.49 acres—be turned over to the Yigo Mayor’s Office for
community use. I have attached a map for your reference, noting that the reserved 29.16
acres is not specifically identified its exact location on the said lot. I also indicated the
preferred area (in red) due to easy accessibility from the Yigo Gymnasium.

As you may know, Yigo’s existing sports facilities include only the Yigo Gymnasium and
the Yigo Softball Field. As our community continues to grow with new housing
developments, our current facilities are inadequate to meet the increased demand. If the
remaining parcel of this lot is transferred to the Yigo Mayor’s Office, my vision is to



develop it into a community recreational area featuring softball, baseball, football, and
soccer fields; outdoor volleyball and basketball courts; playground areas; restroom
facilities including locker rooms; and an ample parking lot. Additionally, a walking path
is essential, especially since Andersen South housing is no longer available for use as a
community walking route.

The development and utilization of Lot 7055 aligns with the shared vision of former
Mayors Rudy Matanane, Robert Lizama, and Commissioner Antonio Calvo, who have
long advocated for promoting healthy, active lifestyles through community recreation
programs.

Any assistance you can provide in facilitating the turnover of the remainder of Lot 7055
would be greatly appreciated by the people of Yigo.

Please feel free to contact me at my office should you have any questions. I look forward
to your favorable response.

Sincerely,

Frances S. Lizama
Mayor of Yigo

Cc: CLTC Board

Senator Tony Ada, Chairman, Committee on Land

Attachment

CLTC Director
Lot 7055
July 29, 2025 - Pg. 2



LOT 7055 - MUNICIPALITY OF YIGO
ke h‘gﬁa 1837 a{ od &

'ﬁ:* iSBt\ LA ,..‘-'.
\\&3 r1safAch Ve o0\

Tl o

247
' %148




CARL T.C. GUTIERREZ

Ex. 4

GOVERNOR OF GUAM
SEP 26 1997 Refer ©

Lagislative SOCretary | OFFIGE OF THE LEGISLATIVE SECRETARY
The Honorable Antonio R. Unpingco ACKNOWLEDGMENT RECEIPT
Speaker ﬂ L
Twenty-Fourth Guam Legislature Received By ﬁ""w-«
Guam Legislature Temporary Building Time_ 438 f;m
155 Hesler Street Dat
Agana, Guam 96910 o_7-2¢-97 —

Dear Speaker Unpingco:

Enclosed please find a copy of Substitute Bill No. 257 (COR), "AN ACT
RELATIVE TO EXTENDING THE TIME PERIOD REQUIREMENT FOR THE
INITIAL USE OF CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION RESIDENTIAL
LEASED PROPERTIES BY INDIVIDUALS AND FAMILIES, TO ALLOW FOR
BASIC INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT AND OTHER LESSEE PREPARATION
ACTIVITIES.", which I have signed into law today as Public Law No.
24-62.

Currently, the law requires those who have obtained a Chamorro Land
Trust residential lease to build their homes on the land within 1 year. The
law also currently makes it quite difficult to obtain outside financing for
homes built on Chamorroc Land Trust land. Also, it takes time and monecy to
install infrastructure in areas where it is lacking. Since many families have
already received their leases and a 1 year deadline is approaching, it is
necessary to extend the deadline while difficulties related to obtaining
financing are worked out.

Very truly yours,

m : :
Governor of Guam AR G R e

ANETO Ve v NU?”J(:((\
Attachment 0 ﬁ'% -97__.
i C3 7 O < oM
c¢c:  The Honorable Joanne M. S. Brown Kot G DY %
Legislative Secretary prin Npme_VJenie Breser

00429

Ricardo }. Bordalio Governor’s Complex » Post Office Box 2950, Agana, Guam 96932 » (671)472-8931 » Fax (671)477-GUAM




TWENTY-FOURTH GUAM LEGISLATURE
1997 (FIRST) Regular Session

CERTIFICATION OF PASSAGE OF AN ACT TO THE GOVERNOR

This is to certify that Substitute Bill No. 257 (COR), “AN ACT RELATIVE TO
EXTENDING THE TIME PERIOD REQUIREMENT FOR THE INITIAL USE OF
CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION RESIDENTIAL LEASED PROPERTIES BY
INDIVIDUALS AND FAMILIES, TO ALLOW FOR BASIC INFRASTRUCTURE

DEVELOPMENT AND OTHER LESSEE PREPARATION ACTIVITIES,” was on the 15th
day of September, 1997, duly and regularly passed.

AN'I'HOR:Y C.BLAZ
Acting Speaker

% JOANNE M.S. BROVGR—
Senator and Legislative Secretary

This Act was received by the Governor this ZQ %i day of R%ﬂéﬁ?«/ 1997, at
(/ 9‘( o'clock ﬁz M. %{m%

Assmtant Staff Officer
Governor's Office

APPROVED:

W

CARL T.C. GUTIERREZ
Governor of Guam

Date: 9* 26 - i?
Public Law No. A% - & 2-




TWENTY FOURTH GUAM LEGISLATURE
1997 (FIRST) Regular Session

Bill No. 257 (COR)

As substituted by the Committee on
Agriculture, Land, Housing, Community
and Human Resources Development and as
amended on the Floor.

Introduced By:

F.B. Aguon, Jr.
J. C. Salas
T.C. Ada

E. Barrett-Anderson
A.C.Blaz

J. M.S. Brown

Felix P. Camacho
Francisco . Camacho
M. C. Charfauros
E.]J. Cruz

W. BS.M. Flores
Mark Forbes

L. F. Kasperbauer
A.C. Lamorena, V
C. A. Leon Guerrero
L. Leon Guerrero

V. C. Pangelinan

A. L.G. Santos

F. E. Santos

A. R. Unpingco

J. Won Pat-Borja

AN ACT RELATIVE TO EXTENDING THE TIME
PERIOD REQUIREMENT FOR THE INITIAL USE
OF CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION

RESIDENTIAL  LEASED

PROPERTIES BY

INDIVIDUALS AND FAMILIES, TO ALLOW FOR
BASIC INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT AND
OTHER LESSEE PREPARATION ACTIVITIES.



(ol JEEEN B« AT 5 Y O 7L I

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

24
25

BE IT ENACTED BY THE PEOPLE OF THE TERRITORY OF GUAM:

Section 1. Legislative Findings and Intent. The Guam Legislature
finds that the Chamorre Land Trust Commission only recently entered into
lease agreements with families and individuals for the use of Commission
properties for residential purposes.  With the presentation of lease
agreements, many families have desired to access their properties in an effort
to commence their work on preparing the sight for the construction of their
residential dwelling. Due to the need to construct adequate access roads to
the areas, it has been quite difficult for these families to proceed with the use
of their said properties. Meanwhile, the Chamorro Land Trust Commission is
working aggressively in the preparation of plans for the installation of the
necessary basic infrastructure, i.e. roads, water, power, into these residential
leased properties.

Furthermore, and most importantly, it is presently a requirement that
the lessee of a residential leased property “shall occupy and commence to use
the tract as his home within one (1) year after the lease is made.” Any lessee
within the Residential Lease Program may need additional time in excess of
the required one (1) year period to occupy and use their properties. A time
extension would allow for the installation of necessary basic infrastructure in
the residential lease properties, would allow for the processing of
construction loan applications, if applicable, with local lending financial
institutions, and would allow for the time needed for the completion of the
construction of a residential home.

As a result of these concerns, it is the intent of the Guam Legislature to
insure that the individuals and families granted properties within the

2



v =1 S T e W N

—
- O

Chamorro Land Trust Commission Residential Lease Program are provided
adequate time for the occupation and use of their leased properties.
Therefore, this proposal would extend the existing one (1) year requirement to
three (3) years.

Section 2. Time Extension for the Initial Use of Residential Leased
Properties with the Chamorro Land Trust Commission. Any individual or
family, otherwise referred to as the lessee, who leases property with the
Chamorro Land Trust Commission through its Residential Property Lease
Program shall occupy and commence to use the tract as his/her home no later
than three (3) years following the availability and installation of necessary

basic infrastructure, i.e., road, water and power.



Ex. 5

docomo

DOCOMO PACIFIC

April 30, 2025

Joey Cruz

Acting Administrator

Chamorro Land Trust Commission
733 ITC Building

590 South Marine Corps Drive
Tamuning, Guam 96913

Hafa Adai Mr. Cruz:

On behalf of Docomo Pacific, Inc., I write respectfully requesting favorable consideration for renewal of
7 site leases which have lapsed or are about to expire.

For various reasons, the lapsed site leases were not attended to and formally renewed by the Chamorro
Land Trust Commission. Nonetheless, they have been automatically renewed for successive five-year
terms when expiring. Throughout all those terms, as the lessee, DPAC has been prompt with annual lease
payments for the sites throughout to the present.

As these sites are situated at locations where subscribers all around avail of cellular communications for
routine activities, conducting business or accessing critical communications for public safety and
emergency responders, we seek to formally renew the lease agreements with the Chamorro Land Trust
Commission. The recently enacted Public Law 38-1 will enable renewal of these lapsed, yet critical sites
without issue,

Public Law 38-1 provides for this with validation by the Chamorro Land Trust Commission that we have
satisfied the terms of our original lease agreements as a lessee who has been current and paid in full the
lease term.,

To come into fair market valuation for lease of the sites, we are also prepared to undertake the cost of a
fair market value appraisal for all sites to adjust lease values accordingly with the terms of a renewed
lease agreement.

Attached you will find a spreadsheet summarizing the sites and leases and relevant information.

Please let me know what other information may be needed to proceed with an administrative renewal or
Commission approval.

I can be contacted at 671-687-9363 or via email here.

N
. Thank ytyi,

=i

DANIEL J. TYDINGCO
Chief
Compliance, Legal and Regulatory Affairs

890 S. Marine Corps Drive, Tamuning, Guam 96913 » docomopacific.com



- e T S S

| |}

i i R —
3 T q..-...'-.._-p.'.__'____‘,
TR e A ARy Ry Ry AR, T




R

FFFTFFF




Lourdes A. Leon Guerrero
Governer of Giam
I Mapa'Huga Gudhgn

Joshua F. Tenario
L. Governor of Gaam

f Segietedts Na Maga' Luhen.

Gudhan

Conmnission Members

Earl J. Garrido
Acting Clenrperson

Jaseph F. Artero-Cameron
Coeprrnissiogter

Fabrienne Cruz Respicio
Commussioner

Jeremy 1. Rojas
L remiina e e

{Vacani}
{ .(JJHHH'.\.'HHPH'J‘

{ Varam)
Velwiriestretive Doer e

Rev OR/2N25

Kumision Inangokkon Tano’ CHamoru

(CHamoru Land Trust Commission)

P 0. Box 2950 Hugatda. Guahan 96932  Phone (67113003296 ¢ Fav 67103319 * Fmail clic adimin@ clic guanm goy

r September 16, 2025

COPY

Daniel Chu

- President
~ Global Recycling Center, Inc.

P.O. Box 11792
Tamuning, GU 96931

SUBJECT: PHASE 1 ENVIRONMENTAL STUDY

Buenas yan Hafa Adai Mr. Chu!

Global Recycling has been operating a recycling facility located on Lot No.
10122-15 in the Municipality of Dededo for many years, under an Authorization to
Occupy issued by the previous Director, Mr. Michael J.B. Borja, on January 6,
2015. The Authorization to Occupy states that “your company is hereby
responsible for all costs associated with the utilization of this property and shall
indemnify and hold harmless the Chamorro Land Trust Commission from all
potential liabilities during your daily operations and maintenance of all related
activities on the property as of the date of this authorization.”

I am aware that on August 10, 2025, a tire fire occurred on the premises
occupied by Globai Recycling. As a result of the fire, | am requesting that Global
Recycling conduct a Phase 1 Environmental Study. The study shouid be
performed by an environmental engineering firm authorized to practice on Guam.
The engagement letter should explicitly indicate that the report is prepared for the
benefit and use of the CLTC. This study will help determine if the tire fire has
caused any environmental issues and will also ensure that the operations of
Global Recycling over the years have not led to any environmental concems that
need remediation.

It is crucial that you prioritize this matter without delay. Your prompt attention is
greatly appreciated. Please provide our office with a written confirmation that you
have retained an appropriate engineering firm to undertake this study not later
than October 15, 2026.

Senseramente,

=

- Garrido
Acting Chairman

Attachment(s):

Authorization to Occupy dated January 6, 2015

AP

dors cou 9Ye)2s




Chatiw, ‘0 Land Trust Co. mission ]

(Rumision Inangokkon Tano’ Chainoru)

F.0. Box 2950 Hagdiila, Gudhan 96932 ___ Phone: 649-5263 ext. 651 Fax: 6:49-5183

RayTemoria . Mr. Daniel Chu, General Manager
Uesranast Govenior of Gudhan  Global Recycling Center, Inc.
PO Box 11792
Tamuning, GU 96931

w‘ i - - -
Subject: Authonzation to Occupy
""‘2,{;,:,‘{,,,,,""” Dear Mr. Chy,

Joseph 1. Cruz Buenas yan Hafa Adai! This is to authorize the continued use to occupy and proceed with
Vice: Chairman the operation and maintenance of the recycling facility located on Lot No. 10122-15
Municipality of Dededo.

Amanda £.G. Santor
Conmmirsioner Please be advised that your company is hereby responsible for all costs associated with
the utilization of this property and shall indemnify and hold harmless the Chamorro Land

’“E';’f:,:;‘ﬂ‘,.ﬁm Trust Commission of all potenttal habilities during your daily operation and maintenance

of all related activities on the property as of the date of this authorization.

ivacanty
Coammisse e This authorization shall be deemed temporary and will be superseded by a commercial
lease agreement upon completion of the Commercial Lease/License ' Rules and
Mickaet J.B. Borfa Regulations

Vincmvirutne Pire. 1

The Commission issues this authorization with the acknowledgement that all activities
upon the above subject real property shall be conducted in a manner fully in compliance
with any and all applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Ifyou have any questions, please contact me at 649-5263 Ext 650,

Senseramente,

i Jelf

Fravcive % rgw’
//g 5

Rev, 1071672014



Old Business



Constituent Matters



ISSUE:

CHamoru Land Trust Commission
Land Agent Staff Report

ROBY JEAN QUINTANILLA (ANNE CASTRO LEE)

Transfer of application rights while the original applicant is still alive

1. § 6A112. (a) An applicant may designate a relative qualified under the Act pursuant to 21 GCA
§ 75A109 (1) From the following relatives of the lessee, husband and wife, children, widows or
widowers of the brothers and sisters, or nieces and nephews (2) Such designation must be in
writing, must be specified at the time of execution of such lease with a right in such lessee in
similar manner to change such beneficiary at any time and shall be filed with the Commission
and approved by the Commission in order to be effective to vest such interests in the successor
or successors named. (3) In the absence of such a designation as approved by the
Commission, the Commission shall select from the relatives of the lessee in the order named
above as limited by the foregoing paragraph one

2. § 6A107 (b) Within thirty (30) days after the submission and filing of the completed application
and all such other documents as the Commission shall require of the applicants, and any
investigation the Commission shall require of the applicants, and any investigation the
Commission may conduct, the Director shall make a determination as to whether the applicant
qualifies as an applicant. Such determination shall be based upon the application form, birth,
marriage, and death certificates, the documentation required by 21 GCA, § 75A101.2, and any
investigation the Commission may conduct consistent with the Act and these rules and
regulations.

FACTS:

A. Application Type: Agriculture

B. Original Applicant: Anne Castro Lee

C. Current Applicant: Roby Jean Quintanilla

D. Original Applicant’s Date and Time: December 2, 1995 at 8:54 a.m.

E. Application Number: 0000045

F. Priority: N/A

G. Lease: No

H. Issue/Complaint: lllegal transfer of application rights

l. Pre-occupier: No

J. Land Use Permit (LUP): No

K. Mayor’s Verification (MV): No

L. Notice of Intent to Award (NOIA): No

M. Survey Authorization (SA): No

CHRONOLOGY:

A. December 2, 1995 — Anne Castro Lee’s agricultural application was received at the Astumbo
intake site at 8:54 a.m. and issued numerical designation 45.

B. January 2, 1996 — Payment of the non-refundable application fee of $50.00 with receipt no.
A4850580

C. January 17, 2003 — Review of the file Ms. Lee has not submitted her birth certificate and birth or
death certificates of parents and/or grandparents and has yet to qualify for lease award

D. September 13, 2014 — Notarized letter appointing Roby Jean LG Quintanilla as the attorney-in-
fact for Anne C. Lee

E. January 27, 2017 — Notarized letter relinquishing application and lease rights to Roby Jean LG

Quintanilla from Anne Castro Lee

ROBY JEAN QUINTANILLA / ANNE CASTRO LEE
COMPILED BY LAND AGENT 1 L.E. TALEU - JUNE 23, 2025

PAGE 1o0f3



V.

CHamoru Land Trust Commission
Land Agent Staff Report

ROBY JEAN QUINTANILLA (ANNE CASTRO LEE)

May 30, 2017 — Death of the original applicant without a named successor (No Death Certificate
submitted)

August 31, 2017 — Request to transfer application rights from Anne Castro to Lee to Roby Jean
Quintanilla approved by Deputy Director of the Department of Land Management David V.
Camacho

Eulogy shows the original applicant Ms. Castro has eleven (11) siblings [Jose, Anthony
Leonard, Maatias, Francisco, Edward, Rose, Bernadita, Lourdes Elizabeth and Unknown] and
four (4) children [Frankie Baza Jr., Brenda Lee Baldwin, Berna Lee Hayden and Jesse Lee
Bradford].

FINDINGS:

A.

Guam Code Annotated § 75A109 Successors to Lessees and Applicants. (a) Upon the death of
the lessee or applicant, his interest in the tract or tracts and the improvements thereon,
including growing crops (either on the tract or in any collective contract or program to which the
lessee is a party by virtue of his interest in the tract or tracts), shall vest in the relatives of the
decedent as provided in this paragraph. From the following relatives of the lessee, or applicant,
spouse, children, grandchildren, parents, grandparents, siblings, widows or widowers of the
children or siblings, or nieces and nephews, the lessee or applicant shall designate the person
or persons to whom he directs his interest in the tract or tracts to vest upon his death.

Guam Administrative Rules 8§ 6A112 Transfer of application rights. (a) An applicant may
designate a relative qualified under the Act pursuant to 21 GCA § 75A109 which provides that:
(1) Upon the death of the lessee, his interest in the tract or tracts and the improvements
thereon, including growing crops (either on the tract or in any collective contract or program to
which the lessee is a party by virtue of his interest in the tract or tracts), shall vest in the
relatives of the decedent as provided in this paragraph. From the following relatives of the
lessee, husband and wife, children, widows or widowers of the brothers and sisters, or nieces
and nephews, the lessee shall designate the person or persons to whom he directs his interest
in the tract or tracts to vest upon his death.

The former Attorney General of Guam, Elizabeth Barrett-Anderson in her May 11, 2018 letter to
Senator Regine Biscoe-Lee and the former Chairperson for CHamoru Land Trust Commission
Pika P. Fejeran stated “Further, there is no authority that allows an applicant during his lifetime
to transfer or switch places with another applicant. A lease in violation of this prohibition is null
and void and is not subject to the Commission’s power to correct or remedy. Applicants should
be permitted to resume their sequential status subject to the order of the date and time they
applied.”

The former Attorney General of Guam, Elizabeth Barrett-Anderson in her July 12, 2018 letter to
Austin Duenas the acting chairperson for CLTC stated “Twelve (12) leases were assessed as
void. The void category contains issues that arose at the application stage when a living
applicant transferred their “application rights,” and the transferee subsequently received a lease.
Because there is no statutory support for this practice, any lease that resulted from this action is
void. The statute requires that every applicant must wait in line and does not allow an applicant
to transfer their “application rights” prior to death”.

ROBY JEAN QUINTANILLA / ANNE CASTRO LEE
COMPILED BY LAND AGENT 1 L.E. TALEU - JUNE 23, 2025

PAGE 20f3



VI.

VII.

ROBY JEAN

CHamoru Land Trust Commission
Land Agent Staff Report

ROBY JEAN QUINTANILLA (ANNE CASTRO LEE)

E. Guam Code Annotated § 75A101 (5) (d) The eligible beneficiary means any persons, regardless
of race, color, or national origin: (1) whose land was acquired by the United States government
between 1898 and 1968, or descendants of such person; or (2) who either occupied, farmed, or
ranched land for residential or agricultural purposes for at least one (1) year immediately prior to
that land being acquired by the United States government between 1898 and 1968 or
descendants of such person; except that if a person occupied, farmed, or ranched on or after
December 8, 1941, and the land was acquired at any time after that date and up to 1950, the
one (1) year tenure need not have occurred immediately prior to acquisition by the United
States government.”

F. Guam Code Annotated § 75A101.1 (b) Any applications for leases that have not been approved
by January 1, 2021 shall be subject to the terms of the public law enacted this Act and Chapter
75A of Title 21, Guam Code Annotate, and this Act shall not affect the order of consideration of
applications by the CLTC under Chapter 75 of Title 21, Guam Annotated, and pursuant to
applicable rules and regulations to the same.

SUMMARY:

Anne Castro Lee’s agricultural application was received at the Astumbo intake site on December 2,
1995 at 8:54 a.m. and issued numerical designation 45. On January 2, 1996, the non-refundable
application fee of $50.00 was paid with receipt no. A4850580. January 27, 2017 Anne Castro Lee
notarized a letter relinquishing application and lease rights to Roby Jean LG Quintanilla. The
Department of Land Management Deputy Director David V. Camacho’s approval of the transfer of Anne
Castro Lee’s agricultural application rights to Roby Jean Quintanilla was and remains contrary to the
Guam Administrative Rules § 6A112 and the original Guam Administrative Rules §6112.

BOARD /LEGAL COUNSEL / ADMINISTRATIVE DIRECTOR ACTION(S):

1. Motion to approve, deny or table the reversion of December 2, 1995 8:54 a.m. agricultural
application rights to the original applicant, Anne Castro Lee
2. Motion to approve, deny or table authorizing CLTC to contact Ms. Anne Castro Lee to begin the

lease award process

COMPLIED BY: Lydia E. Taleu, CLTC Land Agent |

QUINTANILLA / ANNE CASTRO LEE

COMPILED BY LAND AGENT 1 L.E. TALEU - JUNE 23, 2025

PAGE 3o0f3



CHamoru Land Trust Commission
Land Agent Staff Report

RICHARD BLAS SANTIAGO
RESIDENTIAL LESSEE

. REQUEST(S}
1. Terminate the March 12, 1997, Residential Lease for Lot 17, Block 04, Tract 9210
(Phase -1), Yigo.
2. Return Lot 17, Block 04, Tract 9210 (Phase 1), Yigo, back into the CLTC inventory.
. MATTER(S)
1. The request to terminate is following 18 GAR Chapter 6A §6A137.
(a) Upon receipt of written notification of a lessee's intent to surrender, the commission
shall process the same. The commission may forego acceptance of a surrender until
a new lessee is found and it is determined by the commission that sufficient funds
are available in the Chamorro home loan fund to meet the payments required. At all
times until acceptance of COL4/18/202218 GAR LAND MANAGEMENT CH. 6
CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION surrender, the lessee shall remain
responsible for the demised leasehold together with any improvements thereon, and
shall remain liable for ali taxes, assessments, and charges of whatever kind and
nature, on said tract and improvements thereon.
2. A notarized letter requesting to terminate the residential lease agreement for Lot 17z
Block 04, Tract 9210 (Phase 1), Yigo
lll. FACTS
Applicant’s Date and Time: December 2, 1995, 8:42 A M.
Applicant’s Application Number: 0000050
Application Type: Residential
Takeover Applicant's Date of Submission: N/A
Lot Description: Lot 17, Block 04, Tract 9210 (Phase —1), Yigo
Survey Map: 126FY93
Priority: 1
Preoccupier:. N/A
Land Use Permit (LUP): N/A
10 Mayor's Certification: N/A
11.Recorded Lease: No
12.Unrecorded Lease: January 23, 1997 Residential Lease Agreement
13.Lease Fee Paid: No
14.1s this a Registered Property? Yes
15.Residing on Private Property: No
16.Residing on Guam Ancestral Lands Property: No
17.Part of Null and Void Listing: No
18. Part of 2018 Ratified Listing: No

CoOoNO RN




Vi.

CHamoru Land Trust Commission
Land Agent Staff Report

19.Part of 1995 Listing: Yes
20.Part of OPA Audit Listing: NO
CHRONOLOGY
1. January 3, 1997: Residential Interview Report compiled by G. Igros
2. January 23, 1997: Residential Lease Award for Lot 17, Block 4, Tract 9210 (Phase 1) in
the municipality of Yigo, signed by Administrative Director, J. M. Borja
3. June 2, 2015: Letter from Richard Santiago to AD M. Borja, requesting to relinquish any
interest in the CLTC Residential Lease Agreement
SUMMARY
Richard Blas Santiago was awarded a residential lease agreement for Lot 17, Block 4, Tract
9210 (Phase 1), in the municipality of Yigo on January 23, 1997, and then requested to
terminate the lease agreement on June 2, 2015. A notarized letter was submitted and
received by the CHamoru Land Trust Commission Administrative Director, Michael Borja.

On June 9, 2016, CLTC staff noted on the Status Information Sheet to remove Mr. Santiago
from the database, but this action was not completed.

Per 18 GAR, Chapter 8A, §6A137, the lessee shall remain liable for all taxes, assessments,
and charges of whatever kind and nature on said tract and improvements thereon.
SUGGESTED ACTION
1. Terminate residential lease for Lot 17, Biock 4, Tract 8210 (Phase 1), in Yigo,
conditionally, pending payment of property taxes from 2005 to 2025.
2. Return Lot 17, Block 4, Tract 9210, (Phase 1), Yigo to inventory upon termination of
lease agreement.




» Sy
|
Richard Blas Santiago b SUNO 2 7015 i
140 Serafin Mafnas Court of L Managere
Yona, Guam 96915-4646 T+m 09 It L

{(Home)671-789-0678 / (Work)671-969-4041 / {Cell)671-685-5656
email; richardblassantiago@gmail.com

June 2,2016

Mr. Michael Borja

Adminijstrative Director
Chamorro Land Trust Commission
P.O. Box 2952

Hagatna, Guam 96932

Dear Mr. Borja,

Please accept this letter as an official notice that | wish to relinquish any interest in the following
Chamorro Land Trust Commission (CLTC) property currently under my name:

Location: Lot 17, Block 4, Tract 9210 {Phase 1)

Village: Yigo

Type: Residential Lease
I will be relocating to the U.S. mainland in August 2016 and do not have any plans on using the property
in question. Any assistance that | can get from your office regarding this matter will be much
appreciated.

Thank you for your time and have a nice day.

Sincerely,

ot 5 o

Richard B. Santlago

State of

Quam (IS4
Hovman)

City of

This instrument was acknowledged before me on (‘! l' J &

@.\df\a"d 4] Sanhfﬂ )

Name of Person _

: Do . Ry
Wﬂ? of Notary Public
T.
SONET R0
In and for Guam, %’* 2018

MYME Rm,GU%’BlS

RIOS




CHamoru Land Trust Commission
Land Agent Staff Report

LEAH N. ROJAS
RESIDENTIAL APPLICANT

.  REQUEST
» Revert application to the original applicant
> Revert application type back to Residential.
[I. ISSUE(S)
» The original applicant is Marvin Gary Rojas.
» The application was transferred administratively Deputy Director D. Camacho on
February 14, 2018 to Leah Rojas AKA Leah Rojas Truong.
» A legal opinion from the Office of the Attorney General from Elizabeth Barrett-Anderson
stated. The Statute requires that every applicant must wait in line and does not allow an
applicant to transfer their “application rights” prior to death. Letter dated July 12, 2018.
» A Notarized Letter was received by CLTC on September 10, 2024 via Certified Malil, to
revert back to the original applicant which is Marvin Gary Rojas.

_|
n .

Applicant’s Date and Time: December 4, 1995 8:02 A.M.
Applicant’s Application Number: 0000782
Application Type: Residential

Lot Description: N/A

Survey Map: N/A

Priority: 1

Preoccupier: N/A

Land Use Permit (LUP): N/A

9. Mayor’s Certification: N/A

10.Recorded Lease: N/A

11.Unrecorded Lease: N/A

12.Lease Fee Paid: N/A

13.1s this a Registered Property? N/A

14.Residing on Private Property: N/A

15.Residing on Guam Ancestral Lands Property: N/A
16.Part of Null and Void Listing: N/A

17.Part of 2018 Ratified Listing: N/A

18.Part of 1995 Listing: N/A

19.Part of OPA Audit Listing: N/A

®~No b wNE Oy

LEAH ROJAS
COMPILED BY EC LAND AGENT 11
1/13/2025



CHamoru Land Trust Commission
Land Agent Staff Report

IV. CHRONOLOGY

1.

2.
3.

8.

9.

March 1, 2005; Letter from Allan Quan, Land Agent 1, to Marvin Gary Rojas to contact
Chamorro Land Trust Commission.

September 25, 2007: Applicant Request/Change posted.

September 25, 2007: Agriculture Interview Report completed by B. Gumataotao, Land
Agent 1

September 25, 2007: Marvin Gary Rojas submitted Special Power of Attorney for
Patricia Rojas

November 19, 2007: Request to change application type from Residential to Agriculture
requested by the POA, Patricia Rojas and approved by AD J. Borja

July 1, 2008: Acknowledgement Letter signed by POA Patricia Rojas that Lot 7153;
Yigo is unregistered. Letter was accepted by B. Gumataotao, Land Agent 1

. December 26, 2017: Letter of relinquishment was received by CLTC from Mr. Marvin

Gary Rojas to transfer his Residential application to Leah N. Rojas AKA Leah Rojas
Truong.

February 14, 2018: Deputy Director D. Camacho approved the request regarding the
Letter of relinquishment.

February 28, 2018: Mr. Rojas was advised via email that his application was
transferred to his daughter Leah Rojas AKA Leah N. Rojas Truong.

10.February29, 2018: Leah N. Rojas AKA Leah Rojas Truong submitted a notarized

Chamorro Land Trust application and all required documents to qualify.

11.June 25, 2018: Lean N. Rojas AKA Leah Rojas Truong submitted a Special Power of

Attorney for Patricia Rojas.

12.June 21, 2023: Marvin Rojas visited Chamorro Land Trust Office to inquire about the

process to revert the application back to him.

13.September 10, 2024: Received Notarize letter from Leah N. Rojas AKA Leah Rojas

Truong to revert the application back to the original applicant to which is Marvin Gary
Rojas.

V. SUMMARY
» The original applicant is Marvin Gary Rojas and transferred his application to his

daughter, Leah N. Rojas AKA Leah Rojas.

» A legal opinion from the Office of the Attorney General from Elizabeth Barrett-Anderson

LEAH ROJAS

stated. The Statute requires that every applicant must wait in line and does not allow an
applicant to transfer their “application rights” prior to death. Letter dated July 12, 2018.

COMPILED BY EC LAND AGENT 11

1/13/2025



CHamoru Land Trust Commission

Land Agent Staff Report
KAREN KASPERBAUER PEREZ

l. COMPLAINT/ISSUE:
A. Issue 1: Priority Status
Guam Administrative Rules 8§ 6A116 (c) the Commission shall prioritize awards for residential
tracts to applicants in the following descending order: (1) those who do not own land anywhere;
(2) those who own one (1) acre or less anywhere; and (3) those who own more than one (1)
acre anywhere.

B. Issue 2: Change of Application Type
The Act is silence regarding the change of application type

C. Issue 3: Recorded Survey Map
Recorded Survey Map IN 958114 226FY2020 for Carmen Artero Kasperbauer, Karen
Kasperbauer Perez and Teresa Kasperbauer Sakazaki for resubdivision of Lot 10129-R8,
Dededo; a copy of invoice for survey service from Meliton S. Santos & Associates, Inc. in the
amount of $7,500.00 with outstanding amount of $3,870.00

Il. FACTS:

Original Applicant’s Date and Time: December 2, 1995 at 8:27 a.m.
Application Number: 0000018

Application Type: Agriculture, (Originally was Residential)
Priority: N/A

Pre-occupier: No

Land Use Permit (LUP): No

Mayor’s Verification (MV): No

Notice of Intent to Award (NOIA): Yes, dated: June 4, 2009
Lease: Yes, dated: January 23, 1997, Unrecorded
Location: Tract 9210 (Phase — 1), Block 02, Lot 02, Yigo
Lot Size: 955 square meters or .25 acre

Survey Authorization (SA): Yes, dated: June 4, 2009
Survey Map: Yes, Map numbers: FYN 226FY2020, IN 958114
Null and Void Listing: No

2018 Ratified Listing: No

1995 Listing: Yes

OPA Audit Listing: No

GALC Property: No

Private Property: No

Registered Property: Yes

HODOTVOZErAC~IONIMOUO®D>

. CHRONOLOGY:

A. December 2, 1995: Residential application received at Astumbo intake site at 8:27 a.m. and
issued numerical designation 0000018

CHAMORU LAND TRUST COMMISSION
COMPILED BY LYDIA TALEU - AUGUST 5, 2025
KAREN KASPERBAUER PEREZ

1 OF PAGE 3



CHamoru Land Trust Commission

Land Agent Staff Report
KAREN KASPERBAUER PEREZ

B. January 23, 1997: Residential lease for Lot 02, Block 02, Tract 9210 (Phase — 1), Yigo by Acting
Administrative Director Ronald E. Teehan

C. June 4, 2009: 1st Decline of Municipality Award: declining Residential lease on Lot 02, Block 02,
Tract 9210 (Phase — 1) for an Agriculture Lease on signed by Karen Kasperbauer

D. June 4, 2009: Survey Authorization for a portion of Lot 10129-R3, Dededo issued by Jesse G.
Garcia, Administrative Director

E. April 15, 2009: Request to change application type from Residential to Agricultural

F June 9, 2009: Approved to change application type from residential to agricultural by Jesse G.
Garcia, Administrative Director

G. October 26, 2015: Department of Revenue and Taxation issued 2011 Real Property Tax
Statement

H. October 26, 2015: Department of Revenue and Taxation issued 2012 Real Property Tax
Statement

l. October 26, 2015: Department of Revenue and Taxation issued 2013 Real Property Tax
Statement

J. October 26, 2015: Department of Revenue and Taxation issued 2014 Real Property Tax
Statement

K. July 18, 2016: A deed of gift for Lot 16, Block 16, Tract 1314, Tamuning given to Karen
Kasperbauer Perez and Thomas D. Perez recorded July 22, 2016 IN 895198

L. May 12, 2021: Invoice for Survey Service from Meliton S. Santos & Associates, Inc. in the
amount of $7,500.00

M. October 20, 2022: Karen Kasperbauer Perez placed on the Board of Commissioners Meeting
Agenda Under Old Business for 1995 Constituent Update

N. November 22, 2022: Karen Kasperbauer Perez placed on the Board of Commissioners Meeting

Agenda Under Old Business for 1995 Constituent Update

0. January 14, 2022: Received packet from the Law Office of Minaksh V. Hemlani by Jhoana
Casem, Land Agent I

P. October 16, 2024: Letter regarding notification of the lease award issued by Acting
Administrative Director Joseph B. Cruz Jr.

Q. February 27, 2025: Verification of Eligibility issued by Acting Administrative Director Joseph B.
Cruz Jr.
June 9, 2025: Joey B. Cruz, Acting Administrative Director; Eileen Chargualaf, Land Agent 2
and Lydia Taleu, Land Agent 1 met with Mrs. Perez. Because Mrs. Perez will be off-island from
June 11, 2025 to August 7, 2025 and will not be able to attend the July 2025 CLTC Board of
Commissioners Meeting in person it was decided her case will be tabled and presented in the
August 2025 CLTC Board of Commissioners Meeting.

V. SUMMARY:
Mrs. Karen Kasperbauer Perez was issued on January 23, 1997 residential lease for Tract 9210
(Phase — 1), Block 02, Block 02, Yigo based on her December 2, 1995 8:27 a.m. #0000018 residential
application. She declined the Yigo residential lease for Dededo agricultural lease after her application

CHAMORU LAND TRUST COMMISSION
COMPILED BY LYDIA TALEU - AUGUST 5, 2025
KAREN KASPERBAUER PEREZ

2 OF PAGE 3



CHamoru Land Trust Commission

Land Agent Staff Report
KAREN KASPERBAUER PEREZ

rights was administratively approved to change from residential to agricultural. In 2016 she became a
property owner after receiving a deed of gift. On February 27, 2025, she was deemed an eligible
beneficiary by Acting Administrative Director Joseph B. Cruz, Jr. Monday, June 10, 2025 Mrs. Perez
met with Acting Administrative Joseph “Joey” Cruz; Land Agent 2 Eileen Chargualaf; and Land Agent 1
Lydia Taleu. Mrs. Perez recounted her history with CLTC regarding her original lease and what lead to
her decision to request to change her application type from residential to agricultural. She will off-island
for the June 2025 Board Meeting and will not return to island until the first week of August 2025. It was
decided that her case will be tabled for the June 2025 meeting and presented in the August 2025 Board
Meeting.

V. BOARD /LEGAL COUNSEL / ADMINISTRATIVE DIRECTOR ACTION(S):

A. Motion to approve, deny or table change Karen Kasperbauer Perez’s application type from
agricultural to residential, the original application type

B. Motion to approve, deny or table Karen Kasperbauer Perez’s residential priority status from N/A
to 2

C. Motion to approve, deny or table reimbursement to Karen Kasperbauer Perez in Unknown

amount for survey cost

VI. COMPLIED BY: Lydia E. Taleu, CLTC Land Agent 1

CHAMORU LAND TRUST COMMISSION
COMPILED BY LYDIA TALEU - AUGUST 5, 2025
KAREN KASPERBAUER PEREZ

3 OF PAGE 3



DLM MOA



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE
CHAMORU LAND TRUST COMMISSION
AND
DEPARTMENT OF LAND MANAGEMENT

This Agreement is entered into on this ______ day of , 2025, between the
CHAMORU LAND TRUST COMMISSION, by and through the CHamoru Land Trust Commission
(CLTC) whose mailing address is P.O. Box 2950, Hagatina, Guam 96932 and the DEPARTMENT OF
LAND MANAGEMENT (DLM)} whose mailing address is P.QO. Box 2950, Hagatna, Guam 96932

WHEREAS the CLTC is an instrumentality of the Government of Guam charged with
administering for the benefit of their Eligible Beneficiaries available lands on Guam that are
CHamoru Land Trust properties, and to this end may grant leases and licenses for the use of such
property, and

WHEREAS the DLM is an instrumentality of the Government of Guam with an operational
Survey Division that establishes and maintains a cadastral system, and

WHEREAS the DLM’s Survey Division performs surveys that support land-related activities
for the betterment of the island’s social and economic welfare, and maintains a cadastral system,
and

WHEREAS the CLTC Board of Commissioners has unanimously voted on June 6, 2025 at a
Special Board Meeting to approve the execution of a Memorandum of Agreement with the DLM for
the requested surveying services detailed in the Work Request received from DLM for the following:

Tract 318, Municipality of Hagat

Tract 1113, Block No. 16, Municipality of Dededo
Tract 15344, Municipality of Mangilao

Tract 1722, Municipality of Mangilao

Tract 18113, Municipality of Mangilao

Lot 7160, Municipality of Yigo

e pp PP

(hereinafter “Lots” or “the Lots”).



Memorandum of Agreement -- CLTC and DLM Page 2 0of 3
NOW THEREFORE, the CLTC and the DLM agree as follows;
1. CLTC Responsibilities:

a. Submit an official letter detailing the order of priority;

h. Agrees to prepay for the surveying services as follows:

1) Tract 319, Municipality of Hagat - $115,085

2} Tract 1113, Block No. 16, Municipality of Dededo - $38,602
3) Tract 15344, Municipality of Mangilao - $49,478

4) Tract 1722, Municipality of Mangilao — $72,042

5) Tract 18113, Municipality of Mangilao - $103,898

6) Lot 7160, Municipality of Yigo - $121,484

c. Provide evidential documentation of the processing of paymen with the Department of
Administration to commence the surveying services;

d. Agreesto presentany project amendments to the board at the next regularly scheduled board
meeting once informed by DLM,;

e. Agrees that DLM will procure all surveying equipment necessary for the survey work prior to
commencement of the survey services. The costs for survey equipment are incorporated
herein and ail equipment shall become the property of DLM;

f. Agrees to make all necessary arrangements and coordination with other agencies or private
contractors relative to the survey projects, such as clearing and/or site work, and to inform
and coordinate with the occupants or lessees of the pending work and potential impact to the
property or their leases, if any.

2. DLM Responsibilities:

a. Agrees that when evidential documentation of the processing of payment, surveying services
will commence;

b. Agrees that there will be no increase in projected preject cost, except for changes or
amendments to the Scope of Work attached herewith and is made a part of this Memorandum
of Agreement. Any change or amendment shall be mutuatly negotiated and agreed upon
between the parties before work proceeds;



c. Agrees that the total number of days to complete the specific survey projects, after the
commencement, are as follows:

1) Tract 319, Municipality of Hagat — 60 working days

2} Tract 1113, Block No. 16, Municipality of Dededo — 30 working days
3) Tract 15344, Municipality of Mangilao — 30 working days

4) Tract 1722, Municipality of Mangilao — 40 working days

5) Tract 18113, Municipality of Mangilac — 80 working days

6) Lot 7160, Municipality of Yigo - 60 working days

d. Agrees that the commencement date for each project shall begin upon the issuance of a
Notice to Proceed {NTP} by CLTC. The NTP, for any subsequent project, shall be issued
according to CLTC’s priorities in sequential chronological order and shall not be issued until
completion of the prior project or upon reasonable expectation of its estimated completion
date as concurred by DLM;

e. Agrees to record with the DLM Records section all maps completed as a result of the
surveying services and provide CLTC copies of said recorded maps;

f. Agrees to complete projects within the completion dates in accordance with above ltems 2¢
and 2d and the Scope of Work, subject to weather conditions and other factors beyond DLM’s

control.
AGREED this day of , 2025 at the City of Tamuning, Guam.
DEPARTMENT OF LAND MANAGEMENT CHAMORU LAND TRUST COMMISSION

Joseph M. Borja
Director




SCOPE OF WORK FOR CLTC—TYPICAL FOR ALL SURVEY WORK

. Retracement survey of subject lot perimeter and adjoining lots if necessary to
determine limits of boundary

. Tieinto three {3) GGN markers, as required

. Analyze field data for accuracy and conformity to record

. Computation of coordinates for easement-R/W stakeouts

. Traverse along approximate centerlines of proposed easements-R/W’s and
placement of stakes for clearing

. Place permanent monuments or GGN’s as required along easement-R/W’s after site
clearing for other surveyors to use during their surveys for CLTC clients

. Provide plats and/or maps certified by the Guam Chief Surveyor of the surveys
performed and recorded with the Records Division when required

. Apprise CLTC of any issues that might affect or delay the work



DEPARTMENT OF LAND MANAGEMENT - DIVISION OF LAND SURVEY
LAND SURVEY COST ESTIMATE

RETRACEMENT/STAKE-OUT SURVEY OF TRACT 319, HAGAT

SCOPE OF WORK, PROJECT EXPENDITURES & MAPPING:

Computation &

a. |Project and Coordination setup lday |t Analysis 3 days
Parceling Stake-
Research, Drafting of Sketch for field work out & Final
b. |&Reconnaissance Survey 3 days |o. Monumentation: 15 days
¢. |Field Traverse & Property Survey 30 days |h. Final Mapping 30 days
d. |Supplies & Materials & Equipment: $10,300.00
¢. |Gas & Maintenance $500.00
II.  LIST PERSONNEL INVOLVED AND TABULATE HOURLY RATE ALSO TO INCLUDE BENEFITS:
NO. RATE +
NAME RA‘I::RPER OF BENEFITS PER TOTAL
: DAYS HR.
1|Paul L. Santos, PLS $25,161.23
2|Thomas ]. Torres $18,906.12
3|David B. Delgado $13,672.23
3|Benjamin T. Limes, Jr. $11,350.08
4]Jerome Okada $9,398.85
5|Joseph Flores $8,415.52
$86,904.02
**TWENTY PERCENT (20%) OF ABOVE TOTAL ARE ADDED TO REFLECT ADMINISTRATIVE
COSTS AND OTHER UNFORESEEN COSTS OR EXPENDITURES INCLUDING ADVERSE WEATHER.
TWENTY PERCENT (20%) ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS | $17,380.80
GRAND TOTAL: (**Inclusive of Supplies/Materials/Gas &
Maintenance & Equipment -$10,800) $1 15,084.82
APPROVED BY: CONCURRED BY:
PAUL L. SANTOS, P.I.S. No. 68 Date JOSEPH M. BORJA, Director Date

Chief of Cadastre/Guam Chief Surveyor, DLM

ACCEPTED BY:

Department of Land Management

INOTE: Acceptance herein constitutes the
Notice to Proceed with the survey and
mapping.




DEPARTMENT OF LAND MANAGEMENT - DIVISION OF LAND SURVEY
LAND SURVEY COST ESTIMATE
RETRACEMENT/STRKE-OUT SURVEY OF BLOCK 16, TRACT 1113, Dededo

SCOPE OF WORK, PROJECT EXPENDITURES & MAPPING:

Computation &
a. |Project and Coordination setup 2day |t Analysis 3 days
Parceling Stake-
Research, Drafting of Sketch for field work out & Final
b. |&Reconnaissance Survey 5 days . Monumentation: 5 days
¢. |Field Traverse & Property Survey 10 days |n. Final Mapping 10 days
d. |Supplies & Materials & Equipment: $10,150.00
e. |Gas & Maintenance $300.00
Il.  LIST PERSONNEL INVOLVED AND TABULATE HOURLY RATE ALSO TO INCLUDE BENEFITS:
NO. RATE +
NAME RA‘I::RPER OF BENEFITS PER TOTAL
: DAYS HR.
1|Paul L. Santos, PLS $5,591.38
2|Thomas J. Torres $5,671.83
3|David B. Delgado $4,101.67
3|Benjamin T. Limes, Jr. $3,405.02
4{Jerome Okada $2,819.65
5/Joseph Flores $1,870.12
$23,459.68
**TWENTY PERCENT (20%) OF ABOVE TOTAL ARE ADDED TO REFLECT ADMINISTRATIVE
COSTS AND OTHER UNFORESEEN COSTS OR EXPENDITURES INCLUDING ADVERSE WEATHER.
TWENTY PERCENT (20%) ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS | $4,691.94
GRAND TOTAL: (**Inclusive of Supplies/Materials/Gas &
Maintenance & Equipment -$10,450) $38’60 1 _62
APPROVED BY: CONCURRED BY:
PAUL L. SANTOS, P.I.S. No. 68 Date JOSEPH M. BORJA, Director Date

Chief of Cadastre/Guam Chief Surveyor, DLM

ACCEPTED BY:

Department of Land Management

INOTE: Acceptance herein constitutes the
Notice to Proceed with the survey and
mapping.




DEPARTMENT OF LAND MANAGEMENT - DIVISION OF LAND SURVEY
LAND SURVEY COST ESTIMATE
RETRACEMENT/STRKE-OUT SURVEY OF BLK. 1, TRACT 15344, Mangilao

I.  SCOPE OF WORK, PROJECT EXPENDITURES & MAPPING:

Computation &
a. |Project and Coordination setup lday |t Analysis 3 days
Parceling Stake-
Research, Drafting of Sketch for field work out & Final
b. |&Reconnaissance Survey 5 days . Monumentation: 5 days
¢. |Field Traverse & Property Survey 10 days |n. Final Mapping 10 days
d. |Supplies & Materials & Equipment: $10,150.00
e. |Gas & Maintenance $300.00

II.  LIST PERSONNEL INVOLVED AND TABULATE HOURLY RATE ALSO TO INCLUDE BENEFITS:

NO. RATE +
NAME RATI;ERPER OF BENEFITS PER TOTAL
g DAYS HR.
1|Paul L. Santos, PLS $8,387.08
2|Thomas ]. Torres $1,562.45
3|David B. Delgado $5,468.89
3|Benjamin T. Limes, Jr. $4,540.03
4{Jerome Okada $3,159.54
5/Joseph Flores $2,805.17
$32,523.16
**TWENTY PERCENT (20%) OF ABOVE TOTAL ARE ADDED TO REFLECT ADMINISTRATIVE

COSTS AND OTHER UNFORESEEN COSTS OR EXPENDITURES INCLUDING ADVERSE WEATHER.

TWENTY PERCENT (20%) ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS | $6,504.63

GRAND TOTAL: (**Inclusive of Supplies/Materials/Gas &

Maintenance & Equipment -$10450) $49’4'11_19

APPROVED BY: CONCURRED BY:

PAUL L. SANTOS, P.L.S. No. 68 Date JOSEPH M. BORJA, Director Date

Chief of Cadastre/Guam Chief Surveyor, DLM Department of Land Management

ACCEPTED BY: INOTE: Acceptance herein constitutes the

Notice to Proceed with the survey and
mapping.




DEPARTMENT OF LAND MANAGEMENT - DIVISION OF LAND SURVEY
LAND SURVEY COST ESTIMATE
RETRACEMENT/STAKE-OUT SURVEY OF TRACT 1722, Mangilao

SCOPE OF WORK, PROJECT EXPENDITURES & MAPPING:

Computation &
a. |Project and Coordination setup lday |t Analysis 3 days
Parceling Stake-
Research, Drafting of Sketch for field work out & Final
b. |&Reconnaissance Survey 5 days . Monumentation: 5 days
¢. |Field Traverse & Property Survey 10 days |n. Final Mapping 10 days
d. |Supplies & Materials & Equipment: $10,150.00
e. |Gas & Maintenance $300.00
II.  LIST PERSONNEL INVOLVED AND TABULATE HOURLY RATE ALSO TO INCLUDE BENEFITS:
NO. RATE +
NAME RAT::RPER OF | BENEFITS PER TOTAL
g DAYS HR.
1|Paul L. Santos, PLS $8,387.08
2|Thomas ]. Torres $13,234.28
3|David B. Delgado $9,570.56
3|Benjamin T. Limes, Jr. $7,945.05
4{Jerome Okada $6,579.19
5{Joseph Flores $5,610.35
$51,326.51
**TWENTY PERCENT (20%) OF ABOVE TOTAL ARE ADDED TO REFLECT ADMINISTRATIVE
COSTS AND OTHER UNFORESEEN COSTS OR EXPENDITURES INCLUDING ADVERSE WEATHER.
TWENTY PERCENT (20%) ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS | $10,265.30
[GREND TOTAL: (**Inclusive of Supplies/Materials/Gas &
Maintenance -$10,450) $'12,04 1.81
APPROVED BY: CONCURRED BY:
PAUL L. SANTOS, P.L.S. No. 68 Date JOSEPH M. BORJA, Director Date
Chief of Cadastre/Guam Chief Surveyor, DLM Department of Land Management
ACCEPTED BY: INOTE: Acceptance herein constitutes the
Notice to Proceed with the survey and
mapping.




DEPARTMENT OF LAND MANAGEMENT - DIVISION OF LAND SURVEY
LAND SURVEY COST ESTIMATE
RETRACEMENT/STAKE-OUT SURVEY OF TRACT 18113, Mangilao

I.  SCOPE OF WORK, PROJECT EXPENDITURES & MAPPING:

Computation &
a. |Project and Coordination setup 3 days |t Analysis 5 days
Parceling Stake-
Research, Drafting of Sketch for field work out & Final
b. |&Reconnaissance Survey 5 days . Monumentation: 30 days
¢. |Field Traverse & Property Survey 15 days |n. Final Mapping 20 days
d. |Supplies & Materials & Equipment: $10,300.00
¢. |Gas & Maintenance $500.00

II.  LIST PERSONNEL INVOLVED AND TABULATE HOURLY RATE ALSO TO INCLUDE BENEFITS:

NO. RATE +
NAME RAT::RPER OF BENEFITS PER TOTAL
g DAYS HR.
1|Paul L. Santos, PLS $16,174.15
2|Thomas ]. Torres $18,906.12
3|David B. Delgado $13,672.23
3|Benjamin T. Limes, Jr. $11,350.08
4]Jerome Okada $9,398.85
5/Joseph Flores $7,480.46
$11,581.88
**TWENTY PERCENT (20%) OF ABOVE TOTAL ARE ADDED TO REFLECT ADMINISTRATIVE

COSTS AND OTHER UNFORESEEN COSTS OR EXPENDITURES INCLUDING ADVERSE WEATHER.

TWENTY PERCENT (20%) ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS | $15,516.38

[GREND TOTAL: (**Inclusive of Supplies/Materials/Gas &

Maintenance -$10,800) $ 1 03,898_26

APPROVED BY: CONCURRED BY:

PAUL L. SANTOS, P.L.S. No. 68 Date JOSEPH M. BOR]A, Director Date

Chief of Cadastre/Guam Chief Surveyor, DLM Department of Land Management

ACCEPTED BY: INOTE: Acceptance herein constitutes the

Notice to Proceed with the survey and
mapping.




DEPARTMENT OF LAND MANAGEMENT - DIVISION OF LAND SURVEY
LAND SURVEY COST ESTIMATE
RETRACEMENT/STAKE-OUT SURVEY OF LOT 7160, YIGO

SCOPE OF WORK, PROJECT EXPENDITURES & MAPPING:

Computation &

a. |Project and Coordination setup lday |t Analysis 3 days
Parceling Stake-
Research, Drafting of Sketch for field work out & Final
b. |&Reconnaissance Survey 3 days |o. Monumentation: 15 days
¢. |Field Traverse & Property Survey 30 days |h. Final Mapping 30 days
d. |Supplies & Materials & Equipment: $10,300.00
¢. |Gas & Maintenance $500.00
Il.  LIST PERSONNEL INVOLVED AND TABULATE HOURLY RATE ALSO TO INCLUDE BENEFITS:
NO. RATE +
NAME RA‘I::RPER OF BENEFITS PER TOTAL
: DAYS HR.
1|Paul L. Santos, PLS $25,161.23
2|Thomas ]. Torres $20,796.73
3|David B. Delgado $15,039.45
3|Benjamin T. Limes, Jr. $12,485.08
4]Jerome Okada $10,338.13
5|Joseph Flores $8,415.52
$92,236.15
**TWENTY PERCENT (20%) OF ABOVE TOTAL ARE ADDED TO REFLECT ADMINISTRATIVE
COSTS AND OTHER UNFORESEEN COSTS OR EXPENDITURES INCLUDING ADVERSE WEATHER.
TWENTY PERCENT (20%) ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS | $18,441.35
[GREND TOTAL: (**Inclusive of Supplies/Materials/Gas &
Maintenance: $10,800) $lz 1 ,484_ 10
APPROVED BY: CONCURRED BY:
PAUL L. SANTOS, P.L..S. No. 68 Date JOSEPH M. BOR]JA, Director Date

Chief of Cadastre/Guam Chief Surveyor, DLM

ACCEPTED BY:

Department of Land Management

INOTE: Acceptance herein constitutes the
Notice to Proceed with the survey and
mapping.




GWA MOA



e

GUAM WATERWORKS AUTHORITY
Gloria B. Nelson Public Service Building | 688 Route 15, Mangilao, Guam 96313
P.0Q. Box 3010, Hagétfia, Guam 96932
Tel. No. (671) 300-6846/47 Fax No. {671} 648-3280

July 11, 2025

Mr. Joseph F. Cruz

Administrative Director, Acting

Chamorro Land Trust Commission {CLTC)
Department of Land Management Building
Third Floor, ITC Intersection

Tamuning, Guam 56913

Subject: Transmittal of Implementation Plan for Tract 1113, Block 16 Water and Sewer Infrastructure
Project

Hafa Adai Mr. Cruz:

The Guam Waterworks Authority (GWA) is pleased to transmit the attached Implementation Plan for the
proposed water and wastewater infrastructure improvements to serve CLTC Tract 1113, Block 16 in
Dededo.

The plan outlines in general terms GWA’s understanding of next steps for developing the required MOA,
transferring the available project funding, initiating design and construction activities, and completing
construction of water and wastewater infrastructure to support 71 planned residential lots. As detailed in
the plan, GWA will submit a one-time full billing to the Department of Administration {DOA) by August 30,
2025, to obtain the total project funding of $7,191,000. Procurement activities will commence only upon
receipt of funds.

To ensure transparency and coordination, GWA will also provide quarterly progress reports to CLTC
beginning the quarter following execution of the MOA. The report will summarize project milestones,
schedule updates, and any issues encountered.

As we get closer to implementation, GWA will designate appropriate points of contact for implementation
and financial issues. We appreciate your continued support and partnership on this critical infrastructure
project.

Sincerely,

Ml

MIGUEL C. BOR , P.E.
General Manager
Guam Waterworks Authority

Attachment: Implementation Plan = CLTC Tract 1113, Block 16 Water and Sewer Infrastructure Project



Implementation Plan: CLTC Tract 1113 B16 Water and
Sewer Infrastructure Development

1. Summary

The Guam Waterworks Authority (GWA), in partnership with the Chamorro Land Trust
Commission (CLTC), will implement water and wastewater infrastructure improvements to serve
71 residential lots at CLTC Tract 1113, Block 16 in Dededo. CLTC provided GWA with proposed
subdivision layout, and GWA has provided conceptual planning-level cost estimates for water and
sewer infrastructure improvements only. The total estimated budgetary cost is $7,191,000.
Through Public Law 35-125, the CLTC has received a legislative appropriation for its survey and
infrastructure fund and intends to allocate the above amount to GWA for water/sewer
infrastructure development.

2. Fund Transfer and Billing Process
Fund Transfer Objective

Obtain the full $7,191,000 in project funding from the Department of Administration (DOA) by
September 30, 2025, the end of Fiscal Year 2025.

Billing Procedure

o GWA will submit a one-time invoice to DOA by August 30, 2025.
o The billing package will include:

o Planning scope of work and cost estimate

o Project implementation timeline

o Supporting documentation and transmittal letter

Procurement Contingency

« No procurement may begin until GWA receives confirmation of the fund transfer from
DOA.

3. Memorandum of Agreement (MOA)

A Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) between GWA and CLTC will be developed and
executed prior to fund transfer, The MOA will:

» Define roles and responsibilities of both agencies

o Reference project scope, funding and funding schedule constraints (if applicable), and
reporting requirements

» Establish a mechanism for resolving issues and confirming project completion



« Serve as the basis for accountability and recordkeeping

Drafting of the MOA will begin in July 2025, with the goal of execution by August 2025, prior
to billing DOA.

4. Preliminary Implementation Timeline

Draft MOA July 15, 2025

Execute MOA August 15, 2025

Submit billing package to DOA  August 30, 2025

Receive funds By September 30, 2025

Begin design/procurement October 2025

Begin construction procurement June 2026
Permitting/Construction July 2026 — December 2028 (est’d)
Final inspection & reporting January 2029

5. Quarterly Reporting to CLTC

Upon execution of the MOA, GWA will provide CLTC with quarterly progress reports
including:

Project status and milestones

Updated timelines

Any challenges or issues

Summary of expenditures (non-financial)
Photos and maps/plans as appropriate

Reports will be submitted by the 15th of the month following the FY quarter to the CLTC
Administrator.

6. Project Oversight

GWA will assign a Project Manager to oversee all implementation activities, coordinate with
CLTC, and ensure compliance with the MOA. A final report will be submitted upon project
completion.



Tract Revised Tract Tract Tract Tract Revised Lot Tatal Revised

1722 Cost 15344 Revised Cost 18113 Revised Cost 319 Revised Cost 1113 Cost 7160 Revised Cost {Original) Cost Difference Total
|RT / ST Survey* 46,830.43 72,042.00 30,753.43 49,478.00 72,100.86 | 103,898.00 82,977.82 | 115,085.00 22,086.70 38,602.00 87,317.06 | 121,484.00 342,066.30 500,589.00 | 158,522.70 500,589.00
|lnst| Pwr Util** 132,6000.28 184,921.42 372,497.19 590,932.47 1,280,951.36 1,280,951.36
Inst! W & S Infra*** 7,066,000.00 | 7,191,000.00 7,066,000.00 | 7,191,000.00 | 125,000.00 7,191,000.00
Total S 8,689,017.66 $ 8,972,540.36
Reserved for Unfarseen Expenses: $  310,982.34 $  27,4559.64

|

* Retractemnent / Stake-Out Survey
** Installation of Public Litility
*** Installation of Water and Sewer Infrastructure




BILL 32-38(COR),
RESOLUTION 2025-001



I Minatrentai Ocho Na Liheslaturan Guéhan

THE THIRTY-OCHO GUAM LEGISLATURE. | Mina'trentai Ocho Na Liheslaturan Gudhan

Bill HISTORY

BILL STATUS
1/17/2025 439 PM

(Committee on Rules by request of AN ACT TO AUTHORIZE THE TRANSFER OF LOT 5173-1-R2NEW-R7 AND LOT 1/17/25

Magahégan Guahan, the Governor of |5173-1-R2NEW-6 IN THE MUNICIPALITY OF TAMUNING FROM THE CHAMORRO
32-38 (COR) Guam, in accordance with the Organic [LAND TRUST COMMISSION TO THE HEIRS OF FRANCISCO D. PEREZ, THE
Act of Guam ORIGINAL LANDOWNER.

4:26 p.m.

CLERKS OFFICE Page 1



1/17/25 4:26 p.m.
mc

32-38 (COR)

5















CHAMORU LAND TRUST COMMISSION
RESOLUTION NO. 2025-001

Bill 32-38(COR): AN ACT TO AUTHORIZE THE TRANSFER OF
LOT 5173-1-R2NEW-R7 AND LOT 5173-1-R2NEW-6 IN THE
MUNICIPALITY OF TAMUNING FROM THE CHAMORRO LAND
TRUST COMMISSION TO THE HEIRS OF FRANCISCO D.
PEREZ, THE ORIGINAL LANDOWNER

WHEREAS, the Maga’hagan Guahan, the Governor of Guam, Governor Lourdes A. Leon

Guerrero, in accordance with the Organic Act of Guam created Bill 32-38; and

WHEREAS, Bill 32-38 was Introduced by the Committee on Rule by request of Maga’hagan

Guahan, the Governor of Guam, in accordance with the Organic Act of Guam; and

WHEREAS, on July 17, 2025 the CLTC Board of Commissioners at their regularly
scheduled meeting, Tamuning, Guam, reviewed, discussed and approved by motion
unanimously voted “to move in favor of Bill 32-28(COR) in its current form and intent.”

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED,

The CHamoru Land Trust Commission Board of Commissioners supports Bill 32-38.

DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED BY THE CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION
THIS 18™ DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2025.

EARL J. GARRIDO, ACTING CHAIRPERSON
CHamoru Land Trust Commission

JOSEPH F. ARTERO-CAMERON, COMMISSIONER
CHamoru Land Trust Commission

FABRIENNE C. RESPICIO, COMMISSIONER
CHamoru Land Trust Commission

JEREMY J. ROJAS, COMMISSIONER
CHamoru Land Trust Commission




TRACT 10123, YIGO



CHamoru Land Trust Commission
Staff Report

TRACT 10123 (Formerly Lot 7128-REM]}, Municipality of Yigo

.  REQUEST: Authorize the issuance of a Request for Proposal to Develop a Turn Key
Affordable Housing Subdivision on Tract 10123, Municipality of Yigo

. MATTER: N/A

Ill. FACTS:

1.

February 15, 2012 CLTC represented by Acting Chairman Oscar Calvo and
Administrative Director Monte Mafnas execute a Memorandum of Understanding with
TR, Inc. {Attached for reference and recorded with DLM under document # 835942)
March 14, 2014 DLM submits letter to the Governor regarding the GLUC Zone Change
Approval from A to R-1 on Tract 10123 and A to C on Lot 1 Block 5 Tract 10123 in the
municipality of Yigo. (Attached for reference and recorded with DLM under document
#890271)

On June 16, 2016 CLTC Declared and Designated Tract 10123, Yigo for Commercial
Use through the execution of Resolution 2016-12

February 9, 2022 a Request for Expression of Interest published by DPW.

October 17, 2024 CLTC Board approved management to issue an RFP for Tract 10123
for housing development.

IV. CHRONOLOGY:

V. SUMMARY:

CLTC and DLM have completed several tasks related to the development of a housing
subdivision on Tract 10123 in the Municipality of Yigo. Despite having received prior approval
from the previous board, we are now seeking the continued support of the current board to
move forward with issuing a Request for Proposals (RFP) for the development of a tumkey
affordable housing subdivision on Tract 10123.

VI. SUGGESTED ACTION

DEXTER TAN, PFROGRAM CTOOQRDINATOR I

A/14/2025



stand of Guam Government of ¢
N Guam
Department of Land Management Offige of the Recorde:

Flle for Record is InstrumentNo, 835942
ouhe\fm}_%_uuag&\__my&’m 2.3\
RecondingFee__ 7O ReceptNo _ 32955

Deputy Recorder C:::'T\Qfm A Erome BT
Q)

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN TR,
INC. AND CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION FOR
PARADISE MEADOWS SUBDIVISION



835942

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
Between
TRI, INC.
And
CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION
For
PARADISE MEADOWS Subdivision

This MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (“MOU™) is entered into by and
between TRI, INC. (“TRI”) and the CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION

(“CLTC”)
PREAMBLE

WHEREAS, TRl is a Guam developer with experience in constructing residential
developments properties on Guam; and

WHEREAS, TRI intends to begin construction of Phase I of a 101 single family tract
subdivision in Yigo, Guam on Lot 7128-2 and Lot 7128-3-R4 to be known as Paradise Meadows
which will be located in the vicinity of CLTC lands including Lot 7128-REM and Lot 7150-3-
R4; and

WHEREAS, it would facilitate the development of Paradise Meadows if additional
public access points were established over CLTC Lots 7128-REM and 7150-3-R4 and if a
portion of CLTC Lot 7150-3-R4 were improved for use as public park; and

WHEREAS, it would further CLTC’s statutory purpose of leasing CLTC land to
qualified local families and enabling local families to acquire affordable homes, if CLTC Lots
7128-REM and 7150-3-R4 were parceled into smaller more leasable sized lots at no cost to
CLTC; and

WHEREAS, it would provide benefit to CLTC land beneficiaries if additional access
points were created through an easement over CLTC Lots 7128-REM and 7150-3-R4 and if
CLTC land beneficiaries were permitted to connect to utility lines along such easements and if a
portion of CLTC Lot 7150-3-R4 were improved and maintained as a public park all at no cost to
CLTC; and

WHEREAS, TRI and CLTC desire to cooperate and assist each other in developing Lots
7128-2, 7128-3-R4, 7128-REM, and 7150-3-R4 in a manner that furthers their respective
purposes and goals as described above.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and the terms and
conditions herein contained, the parties agree as follows:

388539 //



835942

AGREEMENT

1. PARCELLING OF CLTC LOTS 7128-REM and 7150-3-R4. TRI
agrees to engage a licensed and reputable surveyor to prepare a recordable parceling map of
CLTC Lot 7128-REM and a recordable parceling map of CLTC Lot 7150-3-R4 so these two
CLTC Lots will be parceled into at least three (3) smaller Lots with the size and shape of each
smaller lot to be as approved by CLTC. If requested by CLTC, TRI will also engage a surveyor
to prepare a map for the possible subdivision of the parceled lots. All costs and expenses of the
parceling and other mapping services described herein shall be donated by TRI.

2, RIGHTS OF WAY IN CLTC LOTS 7128-REM and 7150-3-R4.
CLTC agrees that the parceling map of CLTC Lot 7128-REM shall include one or more 60 foot
wide public access rights of way in the approximate locations as depicted on Exhibit A attached
hereto. The parceling map of CLTC Lot 7150-3-R4 shall also include a 60 foot wide public
access right of way in the location as depicted on Exhibit A attached hereto and also a two (2)
acre portion to be used as a public park in the location as depicted on Exhibit A attached hereto.

3. EASEMENT UTILITY CONNECTIONS. Upon request by CLTC,
TRI will allow CLTC and/or beneficiaries of CLTC lands adjacent to CLTC Lots 7128-REM and
7150-3-R4 to connect to the water, sewer and power lines that service Paradise Meadows at
access points within CLTC Lots 7128-REM and 7150-3-R4 without charging a fee to CLTC or
its beneficiaries for such connection.

4, USE OF PORTION OF CLTC LOT 7150-3-R4 AS PUBLIC PARK.
TRI shall, at its sole cost and expense, construct improvements on a two (2) acre portion of
CLTC Lot 7150-3-R4 so that that the two (2) acre portion may be used as a public park. The
design of the public park improvements shall be determined by TRI in consultation with the
Mayor of Yigo and the CLTC Administrative Director. Following its construction of the public
park improvements, and for a period of Fifty One (51) years thereafter, TRI or its designee or
successor will be permitted to maintain the public park in good and clean condition, including
maintenance of landscaping and repair and maintenance of park equipment. TRI or its designee
or successor, including, without limitation, Paradise Meadows Owners Association, Inc., will
continue to provide such maintenance services until expiration of the Fifty One (51) year period
described herein.

5. ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS. Each of CLTC and TRI acknowledge
and agree that their respective representatives, in particular the President of TRI and the

Administrative Director of the CLTC, are authorized to execute any and all additional documents
as may be necessary to fully carry out the items agreed upon herein,

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON NEXT PAGE]

2 %
388539 @(’



835942

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Memorandum of
Understanding to be executed effective as of the dates written below.

CHAMORROQ LAND TRUST TRI, INC.

COMMISSION
RICHARD J. UNTALAN
President

Dated: o’?-//d‘/wr z___
7 /

388539



CERTIFICATION

LML CHIEY PLARNER [
Thp wap e st i s aasbuums Bl THr 11, Oumw Gl dsbubel
Oapler I drints & Unifarm Tyulen mad Ppiiniiers Buirsder o

LAMD SURVEVOR MO, 18
ISLAND OF DUAM
PO GH 11 H i, uk S LY

FLG FRANK L.G. CASTRO
PROFESTIONAL

VICINITY MAP

[T ] | 3

[l . e TEZ AT TUE Il
—FyEoq | o oF R
] W - . 1
e —————] [T e | B
SCALE: 1" 200"
= reooR-ge1 TRt
FLAC—039-2041 | R Sy % A ——
ACuf: IO maman
- O (S -
—

SHEET 4 OF 1%

¢V6SES




ZONE CHANGE
APPLICATION NO: 2013-49
TRACT 10123

(Formerly LOT 7128-REM)
MUNICIPALITY OF YIGO

istand ot GISFAEFRBRFGARPATION
Depsartment of Land Management Office of the Recarder

File for Record fs [astrumeat No.

890271

On the Year ALY Mnnthga Dy 22 Time _Q__‘_Q? [ _ _ .=l I----

Recording FEE-OFFICIO

Y

Receipt No.

\)\IMMAL
B

Deputy Recorder Qc\“‘*‘u

ZONE CHANGE -
APPLICATION ND. 201349

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION

Prepared on January 31, 2014

| FROM: “A"AGRICULTURAL

T0: C" COMMERCIAL

LOTNO:. . LOT1

| BLOCK NO:  BLOCK 5

TRACT: _mzs

MUNICIPALITY: ¥iGO

SCALE! . NA

AMENDMENTNO: 126

ZENING WAP NO: F3-67 S42
@ S s
z i
g % Rt N
&L

-
i, A

] THE GUAM LAND USE COMMISSION, AT ITS SPECIAL

o4 —

4 HEARING ON NOVEMBER 26, 2013 APPROVED

4 "A"TO"C" ON LOT 1, BLOCK 5 ,TRACT 10{22
;§ FORMERLY LOT 7128-REM MUNICIPALITY OF Y1GO

| My APPROVED IN WHOLE
[ ] APPROVED IN PART
[ ] DISAPPRQVED
ﬂ%‘m 3-1214
| LAWRENCE RIVERA DATE
=} CHAIRMAN

o E iU;AM LAND USE COMMISSION

WITHOUT CONDITIONS THE ZONE CHANGE FROM -
v
\- -
&
v

-"II‘I‘ -‘\‘\“‘\
v |-
a'lf’l = ;

=

- ‘A [ ] APPROVED IN PART
e [ ] DESAPPROVED

" | GovernoR oF Guam

n/épnoven IN WHOLE

waR 26 1014

DATE

i BAZA CALVO




ZONE CHANGE
APPLICATION NO: 2013-49
TRACT 10123

(Formerly LOT 7128-REM)
MUNICIPALITY OF YIGO

(SPACE FOR RECORDATION)

AL T
|

| suBJECT LOTS
i BLOCK 1,
/] BLOCK 2,
i¥4 BLOCK 3,
BLOCK 4,
BLOCK 6,

'ARPLICATION NO. 201349
CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION
Proparad on January 31, 2014

-4 THE GUAM LAND USE COMMISSION, AT A SPECIAL
§ HEARING ON NOVEMRBER 24, 2013 APPROVED
< "8 WITHOUT CONDITIONS THE ZONE CHANGE FROM
“f "A"TO"RI" ON BLOCK 1, BLOCK 2, RLOCK 3

g LOT 2 THRUL
‘=4 BLOCK 4, BLOCK 6 AND LOT 2 THRU LOT 46, OF

LOT 46 OF

uOISIAl(] SPI0DaY

: i g e P : BLOCK 5, ALL OF ;TRACT 10123; FORMERLY BLOCK 5
gw .,':_1 ;‘glﬂg_”mb DWELLING '} LOT 7128-REM. MUNICIPALITY OF YIGO -
' 4 "4 "R1" ZONE
- BLOCK NQ: BLOCK 1 i == === === ===== 7 ;
BLOCKNQ: BLOCK 2 : [mn IN WHOLE
BLOCKNO: BLOCK3 - § { 1 APPROVED IN PART
BLOCKND:  BLOCK 4 2 4 [ ] DISAPRROVED

BLOCKNO: BLOCKE s _ 2
et - : ! - §Z -4
m"g'm LOT:;HHULOT#& g AWRENCE RIVERA abA'rE 2

GUAM LAND USE COMMISSION
F IR

TRACT: . 10128
] B
: IPALITY: YIGO A : =
%‘“‘c s | (SPPROVED IN WHOLE
B NA 2, et M { 1 APPROVED IN PART
ALE: g T l [ } DISAPPROVED
' Hed 2 6 7014 [———

DATE

“} GOVERNOR OF GUAM

: I BAZX CALVO




Department ofifand Management . Records Division . Scanned WI

| DIPATTAMENTON MINANEHAN TANO’
(Department of Land Management)
GUBETNAMENTON GUAHAN

fGovernment of Guom)
‘ EDDIE B. CALVQ
ssmmd"::nm T
590 S. Marine ! : ]
RIS S eamime o tHEgy
A 8
;S;‘ PP ryrron €
March 14, 2014 5 S E
PO oz = AR 10 201 ok 3
’ Msmorandum Voo f8F0 ‘ D
KL :
. - ReCugy X
Tor The Govemer \NALFE’ ﬁpﬁ d Mana
. Time: int;
mmﬁ;m;inm! From: Acting, Executive Secretary, Guam Land Use Commission
Subject: GLUC Zone Change Approval from “A” (Rural) to “R-1” (Single
Family Dwelling) on Traet 10123 and “A” (Rural) to “C"
(Commercial) on Lot 1, Block §, in the Municipality of Yigo
m Re: Chamorro Land Trust Commission — Application No. 2013-49

Buefias Yan Hafa Adai Govemor:

Telaphons: Submitted for your consideration and action is Zone Change Application 2013-49
671-649-LAND (5263) affecting Tract 10123 and Lot 1, Biock 5, in the Municipality of Yigo. The Applicant,
Chamorro Land Trust Commission, request for a Zone Change to construct a fully
improved subdivision to accommodate 166 residential lots inclusive of a ponding

basin, commaercial & bus shelter facilities for a total of 169 lots.

kel Application chronology is as follows:
e August 1, 2013 - Application officially accepted
+ September 19, 2013 - Reviewed by Application Review Committee
(ARC)
November 19, 2013 - Public Hearing, Yigo Senior Citizen Center
November 26, 2013 - Guam Land Use Commission (GLUC) Public
Hearing (approval of the Zone Change).

™

&d« 1

All Rights Reserved 4 Copyright



L] -
Department of Land Management . Records Division . Scanned Dm27‘ 1
| .

Memorandum to the Govemor

Zone Change request — Chamorroe Land Trust Commission
Tract 10123 and Lot 1, Block 5, Municipality of Yigo
Application No. 2013-49

March 14, 2014

Page 2 of 2

Pursuant to the Guam Code Annotated, Title 21 (Real Property), Chapter 61
(Zoning Law), §61634 (Decision by the Commission), which states, “f the
application is approved in whole or in part by the Commission, the same shall be
forwarded lto the Governor who may approve or disapprove the proposed change in
whole or in part”, this application is being sent to you for your action.

This Application is being sent to you for decision pursuant to Title 21, GCA, Chapter
61 (Zoning) Section 61634.

Contact Land Planning Division at 649-5263, extension 371, should you have
Additicnal questions or need further clarification.

Si Yu'os Ma'ase

Actlng. Executlve Secretary, GLUC

Attachments:
1. Amendment No. A-125, Zoning Map No. F3-67842 (Tract 10123)

Amendment No. A-128, Zoning Map No. F3-67842 (Lot 1, Block 5)

Zone Change Application

Formal Letter to Mayors for Public Hearing (dated October 28, 2013}

Affidavit for Record Attendance Sheet(s) of Pubiic Hearing

Staff Report with Summary of ARC Position Statements

GLUC Agenda Notice — PDN (dated November 19" & 24, 2013)

GLUC Agenda of November 26™, 2013 — Disposition

GLUC Minutes for November 261, 2013 (Doc. No. 853814)

Notice of Action — Findings of Facts

* Exhibit A - Affidavit of Publication
- Attachment A - Official Memorandum to PDN (dated October 28t, 2013)
- Attachment B —Public Hearing Advertisement (November 9% 2013)

* Exhibit B - Affidavit of Mailing
- Attachment A - U.S. Postal Certified Receipts (dated October 315t 2013)
- Attachment B — Official Notice of Public Hearing (dated Octaber 28%, 2013)

LRNDO AW

All Rights Reserved 5 Copyright Protected



. Scanned [83'9'27 i

" .. Department of Land Management .

RAY TENORIO
Lieutenant Governor

EDDIE BAZA CALYVO
Governor

@}'& of the f’-_:g/('('f"rﬂﬁ}‘ 'L gjr(m:

The Honorable Judith Won Pat

Speaker, Thirty-Second Guam Legislature
155 Hesler Place

Hagatha, Guam 96910

Re: GLUC Zone Change Approval from “A” (Rural) to “R-1" (Single
Family Dweiling) on Tract 10123 and “A” (Rural) to "C" (Commercial)
on Lot 1, Block 5, Municipality of Yigo, Applicant Chamorro Land
Trust Commission, Application No. 2013-49

Buefas Yan Hafa Adai Speaker Won Pat:

| am pleased to submit for you and your colleagues the above-referenced zoning
documents for the Legislature's consideration. This is pursuant to Title 21, Guam
Code Annotated (Real Property), Chapter 61 (Zoning Law), Part 4, Section 61647.

| have APPROVED the Applicant, Chamorro Land Trust Commission, request to re-
zone from “A” (Rural) to “R-1" (Single Family Dwelling) on Tract 10123; and “A” (Rural)
to "C* (Commercial) on Lot 1, Block 5, Municipality of Yigo, to construct a fully improved
subdivision to accommodate 166 residential lots inclusive of a ponding basin,
commercial & bus shelter facilities for a total of 169 lots.

| am sure you recognize the public benefits of this endeavor, and respectfully ask your
expeditious response.

_Z

Eddie Ba alvo
Governor of Guam

Attachments

Ricazdo J. Bordallo Governor’s Complex + Adelup, Guam 96910

Al Rights Reserved Tel: (671) 472-8931/6 « Fax: (6T E47?-4826 * WWW.ZDVEIMOL.QUAM. S0V Copyright Protected



CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION
RESOLUTION NO. 2016-12

Declaration and Designation of
Land for Commercial Use

WHEREAS, the Chamorro Land Trust Commission (hereafter CLTC), pursuant to Public Law
33-95, may declare and designate certain lands for commercial leasing or licensing to the general
public. CLTC shall conduct a public hearing for the proposed lands and the commissioners shall
approve by resolution the proposed lands. The resolution shall then be forwarded to / Liheslaturan
Guahan within thirty days for review; and

WHEREAS, the CLTC board of commissioners at their November 19, 2015, regularly
scheduled meeting passed a motion for the CLTC Administrative Director conduct a public hearing of
proposed lands; and

WHEREAS, on January 19, 2016, at 6:00PM, the CLTC conducted a public hearing for the
proposed lands at the Dededo Senior Center, Dededo Guam; and

WHEREAS, on January 21, 2016, the CLTC board of commissioners at their regularly
scheduled meeting, Tamuning, Guam, reviewed the public hearing comments on the proposed lands
for commercial use; and

WHEREAS, on June 16, 2016, the CLTC board of commissioners at their regularly scheduled
meeting, Tamuning, Guam, reviewed the following parcel.

Tract 10123 (Lot 7128-REM), Yigo. Size: 30 acres. Zone: A. Survey Map:
229FY76. Tax Assessed Value: $2,666,037. This tract is master planned for
about ninety one-third acre residential lots to include some road frontage
commercial use. Potential use to engage in a commercial contract with a
developer to install infrastructure and build approximately one hundred fifty
affordable homes to be sold to eligible CLTC applicants or existing CLTC
residential or agricultural leaseholders who have not yet developed thelir leased
properties. Marine Corps Drive frontage area may be designed for small-scale
commercial activity to be described and approved later.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED,

1. The Chamorro Land Trust Commission Board of Commissioners approves the listed land and
declares this land to be designated property for commercial use having been duly public heard
in accordance with Public Law 33-95; and

2. The Chamorro Land Trust Commission Board of Commissioners transmits this Resolution to /
Liheslaturan Guahan with its recommendation to approve the property identified in this
Resolution.

DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED BY THE CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION THIS
16™ DAY OF JUNE 2016.

W Date: é/z{ //; ‘&

PASCUAL V.A, SABLAN, Chairman
Date: 6/2 9/,6

Chamorro Land Trust Commission

Chamorro Land Trust Commission




mmnumm o

T SR CLTC

LA USROS
Acting Discnyt

R ion of Intarest

The Government of Guam, Chamorro Land Trust Commission now invites Expression of Interest for efigible
developer firms (“developer™) ip provide the detaled Engineering Survey, detziled Design Concepts for
affordable housing subdivision to comply with the subdivision lws of Guam and other pemmitting

Proposal of interest Criteria

This document is to provide information for companies Interested in building affordable homes on CHamory
Land Trust properiies. The CHamonr Land Trust Commission (CLTC) I8 a Govemment of Guam entity
established since 1993 for the pumose of adminisiering CHamoru Land Trust properties primarily for residen-
tial and agricultural leasing. CLTC seeks to create heatthy, safe and sustaimable communities fheough
innovative financing and the development of affordable housing in our commumity. CLTC recognizes that the
cost to construct a home has increased dramatically resuliing in the desire o construct 2 home nearly
impossibla for CLTC lessees. The objective of this project Is to butld affordable houslng units for CLTC lessees
thai are first-time and iow to moderate income level famikies. The term “affordable housing” is defined by the
federal Department of Housing and Urban Development as - one that a household can obtain for 30 percent
or less of its income. CLTC is soliciting information to determine if there are developers interested in building
affordable homes. The parcel of land CUIC has Identified for the housing units o be construcied on Is as
follows: ANl lots within Tract 10123 except for Block 5 Lot 1: a total of 166 residential lots undeveloped land
Imtedinmenmicipalityumqgthmmnalsn1 . Single Family Map of property and zone

change application is attached tor reference. Site visit of this property is bie upon request. Interested
%mmpaﬂ;;:crtemmtosubmnaPmmloflnlereslwmdudemetdlowinguﬂw' to be considered

]

.T slwg?“t:fl h its
- ngle family housing un
dﬁwm Igyhuuslngunils
(power, water and sewer lines, roadways, ete.) for suggested
IBI"!I

aveloped
-Bu!dlngsystembbem entand environmental-frien sl{
life: expectancy of units; and must be insurable
- Green bbemcmdedwmmmdpmpm
- Design keyout should be maximum use of property and comply with rezoning requirements

Hmmngmﬂmarketvaluemakdm
* 20% < $100,000

* 30% < $100,000 - $150,000.00
« 30% < $150,000 - $200,000.00
» 20% < $200,000 - $250,000.00

= Estimated total project cost
+ Project timefvame
The Proposal should also include the following information;

Company Name

Contagt ;c'mn(s] and Titer
ress

Contract number(s)

Fax number

Email address

Nlﬁmlsmmmmuwummmua Ibanez, Depulyulrector DepatrnenlofPuNicm
and submitied wia email to lnda.ibg licworks.ouam . gov by Wi : 2

“This ad was paid by the CLIC Operations Rmds”™

VINCENT P. ARRKRA
Disector

542 North Marine Corps Drive, Tamuning, Guam 96913 - Tel (671} 646-3131/ 3232 - Fax (§71) B43-6178















jhoana.casem
Highlight

jhoana.casem
Highlight




jhoana.casem
Highlight




jhoana.casem
Highlight





Kumision Inangokkon Tano’ CHamoru
(CHamoru Land Trust Commission)

| P.O Box 2950 Hagdtiia, Gudhan 96932 Phone; 671- 300-3298 Fax: 671-310-3319

CHamoru Land Trust Commission Regular Board Meeting
Thursday, October 17, 2024 at 1:00PM

CHamoru Land Trust Conference Room, 580 S, Marine Corp Drive ITC Building, Suite 223, 2nd Floor
Tamuning, Guam. Public Comments may be made at clc.admin@cltc.guam.gov To view the mesting
virtually, log on to GovGuam Live-YouTube or CLTC's Facebook page or Google Meet joining info Video

call link; hitp:// meet.qoogle.com/rek-wdkm-hbr
MEETING MINUTES

I. Call to Order at 1:15PM
Present. Chairperson A. Bordallo, Commissioner D. Herrera, Commissioner E.
Garvido, Commissioner J.J.P. Ibanez, Acting Administrative Director J. Cruz, Atty N.
Miller {(OAG) and CLTC Staff

| . Approval of Minutes
e 2 “i_-ﬂ_ g a. June 13, 2024 (Regular Meeting)
W o S ACTION: Motion by Commission E. Garrido to approve, 2™ motion by D.
Herrera
PASSED unanimously
R e e e b. June 20, 2024, (Regular Meeting)
ACTION: Motion by Commission E. Garrido to approve, 2™ motion by D.
(Vacant Herrera
Commissioner PASSED unanimously
Joseph B. Cruz Jr. lll. Administrative Director's Report by AAD J.B. Cruz

Acting Adminisirative Director

a. Waiting List: The next 25 people in line will receive a 90-day notice via
certified mail. The Commissioners were given copies of the publication that
appeared in the Guam Dazily Post. Additionally, a notice was put on the CLTC
Facebook page, and Mayor Jesse Alig, the President of the Mayor Council,
distributed it to the different mayors for posting in their respective mayor's
offices,

b. Three Demand Pay Letters from SBA: In order to find out if CLTC was
obliged to pay in full or bring payment current, AAD J Cruz spoke with Mr. Bill,
an Attorney Advisor for the U.S. Small Business Administration. AAD J Cruz
will inquire further for a response.

c. Usage of 7055, Yigo Guam: During a follow-up site inspection on October 11,

2024, CLTC officials observed that the heavy machinery had been dismantled:

however, they also discovered new activity on the property, including the

staging of trash cars. Tires, metallic waste, and debris cleanup have not been

Rev. 09/30/2024 removed. There will be a second notice given. To decide how to proceed,
AAG Miller and AAD J Cruz are set to meet tomorrow,

d. Status of the Commercial Submerged Land License Agreement with Tata
Communication: The Commercial Submerged Land License Agreement with
Tata Communication is currently in the process of being signed by the



necessary corporate parties. Once signed, the agreement will be sent to the
Govemnor, AOG, Chair, and members for signature by AAD J Cruz. CLTC will
begin billing the landing costs and current cable fees for Tata Communication
as soon as all parties indicated have signed.

e. CLTC Staffing Announcement: The Department of Administration will
release announcements for CLTC posts, with the goal of hiring by the end of
October 2024,

f. CLTC Website: The new website, which is supported by the Office of Insular
Affairs, was presented to the Commissioners by AAD J Cruz. In order to have
their own website, CLTC will be moving away from sharing the Department of
Land Management's website. The website is being built with minor edits. The
public and constituents will have immediate access.

IV. Old Business:

a. MedPharm Update: The Department of Land Management received a work
request from CLTC asking them to perform an area certification and
retracement. CLTC will be able to identify, develop, and produce the
MedPham invoice after receiving these from DLM. According to AAD J Cruz,
CLTC will evaluate the fees between 2014 and 2024. MedPharm expressed
interest in a commercial lease to CLTC. CLTC clarified that a competitive bid
is the method used for commercial leasing. They will have to vacate the
property if they (MedPharm) are not the winning bidder. MedPharm
recognized this. CLTC will keep charging the fee as long as MedPharm is
present until it is settied. CLTC is awaiting the completion of the retracement
by the DLM.

b. Amended Bill 179-37: The Commissioners were given a copy of the
amended bill 179-37 to examine. All of the changes made to Resolution No.
2024-001 were additional. The resolution was reviewed, and it was found that
the Lot number and size was wrong. The resolution had another problem that
was not seen when the first one was raised. To provide the board a chance to
examine the modification and off the board's opinions on the bill prior to the
Legislature's final vote. Speaker Therese Terlaje and Senator San Agustin
were made aware of this issue. Currently under consideration by the
Legislature is Bill 179-37, often know as the “Substitute Bill on the Floor”

Error on the Bill — page 03, Section 4. Lot 1022-12. Should be Lot 10122-
12

ACTION: Motion by D. Herrera to table Bill 179-37 to continue discussion
on Bill 179-37 on October 28, 2024 Resumption Meeting.

Commission E. Garrido second the motion
PASSED unanimously.

¢. Lot 7161-R1, Public Law 35-125: Members were notified by AAD J Cruz that
Public Law 35-125 ought to be Public Law 37-125. The Commissioners were
shown the Guam Motorsports Association Business Plan 2025 by Hans Ada,
Jeff and Jay Jones from the Guam Motorsports. The president, Hans Ada,
gave the Guam Motorsport Association’s proposal for the Yigo Raceway to the
board members, AAD J Cruz and Atty N. Miller.

CLTC Regular Board Meeting October 17, 2024
2



Commission Members D. Herrera and E. Garrido both mentioned that GMA
had first asked for drag racing, but at today’s meeting, GMA President Hans
asked for more space for the site.

ACTION: Motion by Commission E. Garrido to table until the next month
Board meeting (November 21, 2024), in the meantime Guam Motorsports
Association team will meet with AAD J.B. Cruz and AAG Miller to
continue discussion.

Commission D. Herrera second the motion.
PASSED unanimously.

V. New Business

a. Northern Guam Feral Pig Control Project with Dededo Mayor’s Office and
Camp Blaz: The Board was given a copy of the Dededo Mayor's Office. In
order to trap and remove nuisance pigs from Dededo and Tamuning, the
Dededo Mayor asked CLTC to provide the Department of Defense Readiness
and Environmental Protection Integration Program (REPI) temporary access to
the CHamoru Land Trust Commission. On behalf of the program, Mr. Teddy
Concepcion addressed the board in person.

ACTION: Motion by Commission E. Garrido to allow CLTC Acting
Administrative Director to coordinate with the REPI and the Dededo
Mayor’s Office allowing them temporary access into CLTC properties Lot
Number 10090-1 in the municipality of Dededo.

Commission D, Herrera second the motion
PASSED unanimously.

b. Approval of CLTC new logo: AAD J Cruz present a copy of 3 sample logos
for board approval.

ACTION: Motion by Commission E. Garrido to approve the new CLTC
Logo shown below.

Commission D. Herrera second the motion.
PASSED unanimously.

CLTC Regular Board Meeling October 17, 2024
3



c. Transcript of Meeting minutes: In order for CLTC personnel to

demonstrate how the transcription complies with Robert's Rules of Order
Minutes and 5GCA Government Operations CH8 Open Government Law,
AAD J Cruz asked that the Transcript of Meeting minutes be tabled at a
subsequent meeting.

ACTION: Mation by E. Garrido to table the discussion of the
Transcript of Meeting minutes for November 2024 meeting.

Commission D. Herrera second the motion.
PASSED unanimously.

. Access for Removal of GPA Transformer: According to AAD J Cruz,
GPA has a de-energized pad mount transformer at Tamuning's Rotunda
Oka Point. In order to remove the old transformers, GPA is asking access
from the gate, clearing the vegetation on the current route to the
transformer, and enabling heavy machinery to load and unload the
transformer.

ACTION: Motion by Commission E. Garrido to approve the request
from GPA to access CLTC property to recover their transformer on
site assets.

Commission D. Herrera second the motion.
PASSED unanimously.

. Tract 10123 Affordable Housing: Previously, this particular tract was set
aside for affordable housing by the CLTC board. AAD J Cruz is asking the
Board to give CLTC permission to move forward with the request for
proposals (RFP) for building an affordable housing subdivision on Tract
10123. The board will remain updated on the project by AAD J Cruz.

ACTION: Motion by Commission D. Herrera to approve Management
to issue an RFP for Tract 10123 for housing development.

Commission E. Garrido second the motion.
PASSED unanimously.

Lot No. 5174-REM-1, Tamuning Lease: Nicole Kelly: This is to renew
the board’s support. On January 17, 2019, the board issued Resolution
2019-05, a Declaration of Support for Nicole Camacho Reyes Kelly to
purchase portions of Lot 5174-REM-1.

ACTION: Motion by E. Garrido in regards to Resolution Number 2019-
05 Declaration of Support for the sale of Portions of Lot 5174-REM-1
to Nicole Camacho Reyes Kelly be put on hold until next regular
board meeting allowing CLTC AAD to do further research.

Commission D. Herrera second the motion.
PASSED unanimously.

CLTC Regular Board Meeting Octaber 17, 2024
4



VI. Constituent Matters

a. Antonio Castro Camacho (Agriculture Applicant): Lot 10125-R3,
Dededo. Antonio Bauer Camacho, successor to Antonio Castro
Camacho’s (deceased) agriculture application. Requesting Antonio
Castro Camacho’s agriculture application to son Antonio Bauer
Camacho

ACTION: Motion by J. Ibanez granting Mr. Antonio Bauer
Camacho the son of Antonio Castro Camacho, for him to be the
successor of this Agriculture application.

Commission D. Herrera second the motion.
PASSED unanimously.

b. Antonio Castro Camacho (Residential Lessee) Lot 9, Block 1, Tract
14119, Mangilao. Requesting transfer of residential lease to Mary Lou
Camacho, named successor to Antonio Castro Camacho (deceased).

ACTION: Motion by Commission J. Ibanez to table until the board
receives additional information from CLTC AAD and staff regarding
Lot 9, Block 1, Tract 14119 Mangilao the property due to some
concerns in terms of the access, any encroachment of the

property.

Commission E. Garrido second the motion.
PASSED unanimously.

VIL. RECESSED:
Motion by Commission D. Herrera to recess and return on Monday,
October 28, 2024 at 1:00PM, CLTC Conference Room.

Commission E. Garrido second the motion.
PASSED unanimously. Time 5:24 PM

(*** MEETING ENDED — NOTHING FOLLOWS ***)

Chairperson Arlene P. Bordallo %@'{[4@4&% Date /- -»é? "Jff’/

Concurred by: Date /A’ " / adl

ActingAdminjsffative Director

Joseph B. Cruz

CLTC Regular Board Meeting Oclober 17, 2024
5



Lot 7161-R1, Yigo



el Segtiy Ma Lniauran Sadhih
+ATY SEVENTH GUAM LIGILARLAL
AT

T

Cummunies v Fules
by request ol f Mo o Gisiio,
the G evnur ' Guany, 0 seeordence
wwith 1 Derganitne A ol Guase

AN ALT MAKING APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE OPERATIONS OF TIIE EXECLTIVE
BRANCI CF TIE GOVERNMENT OF GlUaM FOR FISCAL YEAR EMIING
SEFTEMBER 10, 3024 MAKING OTIIER APFRCPRIATIGNS. ANLF ESTABLISHING
MISCELLARECUS AN ADBINISTRATIVE FPROVISIONS

1 Mina'treniai Siette ¥o Likesloturan Guahan
BILL STATUS

o

on Lreneral G
Uperatons and ApRroprialivns

APPROPRIATIONE, ANIF
AW INISTEATIVE FROVISIONS

ESTABLISHING MISCELLAMEGLS AN

136-3.7 §CORY 1 A
EEes :..M., SESSION DATE TITLE : _ i DATE FASSED TRANSMITTED DUE DATE PUBLICLAWNG., | DATE SIGNED NUTES
At AN ACT MAKING APPROPRIATIONS YOR TIE OPERATRNS OF TOF[ |
EXECUTIVE. LEGISLATIVE, ANU JUDICIAL BRANCHES OF THE GOVERNMENT) | Reccived: 5/ 12
iside DF GLIAM FOR FECAL YEAR ENDING SEFTEMBER 30, 2025, MAKING OTIIER) A o st 1138 9114

Messugrs and Communzaniens
P Mu, SPGL-24-2669




LOURDES A. LEON GUERRERO JOSHUA E TENORIO
GOVERNOR L. GOVERNOR
UFISINAN I MAGA'HAGAN GUAHAN
OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR OF GUAM
eGP0
Transmitted via Email to: speaker@guamlegislature.org ERESE M. TERLAJE
SEP 13 20U

September 12, 2024

Tima: . 00
Recelved:
THE HON. THERESE M. TERLAJE, Specker %

I Mina'trentai Siette Na Liheslaturan Guahan
37th Guam Legislature

Guam Congress Building

163 Chalan Santo Papa

Hagatiia, Guam 96910

Re:  Substitute Bill No. 236-37 (COR) - AN ACT MAKING APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE
OPERATIONS OF THE EXECUTIVE, LEGISLATIVE, AND JUDICIAL BRANCHES OF
THE GOVERNMENT OF GUAM FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2025,
MAKING OTHER APPROPRIATIONS, AND ESTABLISHING MISCELLANEQUS AND
ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS

Hafa Adai Madam Speaker,

On September 11, 2024, [ transmitted Substitute Bill No. 236-37 (COR), now known as P.L. 37-125. It
has been brought to my attention that, on the signature page for the bill, I had inadvertently misnumbered
the bill as Public Law No. 35-125, which does not accurately reflect the current 37" session of the Guam
Legislature. Please accept this letter as an acknowledgment of the scrivener’s error.

Senseramente,
I &MQM

LOURDES A. LEON GUERRERO
I Maga'hagan Guahan
Governor of Guam




LOURDES A. LEON GUERRERO JOSHUA E. TENORIO

GOVERNOR LT. GOVERNCR
UFISINAN 1 MAGA'HAGAN GUAHAN
OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR OF GUAM

it via Email to: - Z76L-24-26

Transmitted via Email to: speaker@guamlegislature.or. oracRor %El'/ ¢9
THERESE M. TERLAJE

September 11, 2024 SEP 1 1 02
THE HON. THERESE M. TERLAIJE, Speaker Time: 5~
I Mina 'trentai Siette Na Liheslaturan Guahan Received:

37th Guam Legislature
Guam Congress Building
163 Chalan Santo Papa
Hagatiia, Guam 26910

Re:  Substitute Bill No. 236-37 (COR) - AN ACT MAKING APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE
OPERATIONS OF THE EXECUTIVE, LEGISLATIVE, AND JUDICIAL BRANCHES OF
THE GOVERNMENT OF GUAM FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2625,
MAKING OTHER APPROPRIATIONS, AND ESTABLISHING MISCELLANEOUS AND
ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS

Hafa Adai Madam Speaker,

Transmitted herewith is Substitute Bill No. 236-37 (COR) (the “Budget Act™). This bill reflects the strength of our
government finances, a product of our Administration’s strict adherence to sound fiscal policy and practices. Since
our Administration took office, we have eliminated the deficit and strengthened the General Fund, allowing the
Legislature to allocate additional funds to meet agency and community needs. While, as discussed below, I disagree
with several provisions in this year’s Budget Act, on the whole the bill adopts conservative revenue projections and
agency budgets, and delivers a sound and balanced plan that will enable our government to serve our community.
For this reason, subject to the line item veto noted below, I am signing Substitute Bill No. 236-37 into law as Public
Law No. 37-125,

Lack of Clear Guidance regarding Prioritization of Appropriations of Potential “Excess Revenues”

As discussed, the Legislature has adopted conservative revenue projections for the upcoming fiscal year.
Consequently, the Budget Act appropriates not only from projected revenues but also from revenues collected in
excess of these adopted levels for FY25. The Legislature has appropriated nearly Ten Million dollars
($10,000,000.00) of these unaudited so-called “excess revenues.” As I have noted previously, while appropriating
based on Consolidated Revenue Expenditure Report (“CRER™) reports may be necessary in exceptional
circumstances, it is not the best practice. Until such time as these excess collections are reported in our audited
financial statements at the end of the fiscal year, it is premature to treat such funds as a surplus, to the degree our
government is willing to write checks against them.

RICARDO J. BORDALLO GOVERNOR'S COMPLEX
513 w. Marine Corps Drive Hagdlia, Guam $6910
governcrguam.goy | {671) 472-8931



To: The Hon. Therese M. Terlaje, Speaker Page 2 of 4
Fr:  The Hon. Lourdes A. Leon Guerrero, Governor of Guam

Date: September 11, 2624

Re:  Substitute Bill No. 236-37 (COR)

However, in this Budget Act, the Legislature has gone even further — it is not merely appropriating from reported
excess revenues, it is appropriating from excess revenues that have not yet been collected. It is an unsound fiscal
practice to appropriate from a surplus the Legislature merely hopes will materialize in the next fiscal year. This
practice will hinder our government’s ability to properly balance its budget and threatens to spend our government
back into a deficit.

Further, these types of “what if”” appropriations are difficult to operationalize. On pages 92 and 156 of the Budget
Act, the Legislature appropriates Nine Million dollars ($9,000,000.00) to the Chamorro Land Trust Survey and
Infrastructure Fund from excess revenues as reported in the first quarter of the CRER, which it intends to continue
this speculative appropriation in subsequent quarters until the amount is met.

On page 43, the Legislature also appropriates nearly Two Hundred Thousand dollars ($200,000.00) of excess
revenues to fund the pay adjustments for nurses at the Guam Behavioral Health and Wellness Center (“GBHWC™).
A third appropriation from excess revenues in the amount of Three Hundred Seventy-Five Thousand dollars
($375,000.00) is made to the Departmeni of Integrated Services for Individuals with Disabilities (“DISID™) for its
FY25 operations.

The Legislature does not provide clear guidance regarding the prioritization of these appropriations of “excess
revenue” in the event they materialize, except to provide that the appropnations for GBHWC pay adjustments for
its nurses and appropriations for DISID’s operations trail the substantially higher $9 million appropriation to the
Survey and Infrastructure fund, which must be paid if possible in the first quarter and continues until paid in full.
While funding the Survey and Infrastructure fund is an appropriate use of government funds, at this time, it does
not appear as though there are any exigent circumstances requiring immediate funding of surveys, particularly given
the established shortage of available surveyors on island. Certainly, funding this initiative before funding our nurses’
pay adjustments and operational funding for an agency providing services to individuals with disabilities seems out
of touch with the urgent needs of our community.

The fact that the supporters of these budget amendments fund GBHWC and DISID last, despite their lower
appropriations, suggests these measures were low on their priority list if they were priorities at ail.

HRRA Line Itemt Veto

Pursuant to Section 14231 of the Organic Act of Guam, as amended, I exercise my authority to veto the amounts
identified in Chapter XI, Section 12(a) and (b). Without this veto, the Budget Act would take Two Hundred
Thousand Dollars ($200,000.00) (nearty half) of the appropriation for the Hagéatfia Restoration and Redevelopment
Authority in a poorly considered, inequitable, and counterproductive bonus scheme for Guam Memorial Hospital
Authority (“GMHA”) nurses and Department of Public Health and Social Services (“DPHSS”) social workers. The
Budget Act would provide only 10 bonuses for nurses and only 10 bonuses for social workers—a drop in the bucket
of our need for these professionals. The hospital recruits on average between forty to fifty (40-50) nurses every
year, and DPHSS’ recruitment for social workers so far this year has already exceeded the scant “incentive” the
Budget Act would provide. The Budget Act scheme could actually complicate and frustrate recruiting efforts as
applicants reasonably attempt to delay their applications to increase their likelihood of securing one of the handful
of available bonuses.

/!

RICARDO ). BORDALLO GOVERNOR’'S COMPLEX
513 W. Marine Corps Drive Haogditna, Guam 94910
governorguam.gov | (671) 472-8931



To: The Hon. Therese M. Terlaje, Speaker Page 3 of 4
Fr:  The Hon. Lourdes A. Leon Guerrero, Governor of Guam

Date: September 11, 2024

Re:  Substitute Bill No. 236-37 (COR)

Our Administration has demonstrated its commitment to public health and to recruiting and developing
opportunities for nurses, social workers, and other vital public health professionals. Having served as a registered
nurse, | have experienced the professionalism and dedication with which our healthcare professionals serve our
community, despite our limited resources. Our Administration worked to ensure our nurses are paid their worth,
including two revisions to the Nurse Pay Plan, with a 15% pay increase in

2021 and an 18% increase this year. When I served in the Legislature, I was an author of the Nurse and Other
Healthcare Professional Recruitment and Retention Incentives Act of 1998, Public Law No. 24-325, and pursuant
to its authority this Administration will continue to develop well-considered and right-sized recruitment and
retention efforts, not underdeveloped, poorly considered incentives that, if implemented, will leave most of our new
nurses and social workers out in the cold and create divisiveness among our ranks.

The Budget Act recruitment scheme does not contribute nearly enough incentives to outweigh the inequity in
rewarding so very few of the dedicated professionals Guam needs. While the meager amount would have little
impact on our ability to recruit nurses and social workers, the funding would have a substantial impact on the
Hagétfia Restoration and Redevelopment Authority’s ability to fulfill its mandate of improving housing conditions
and employment opportunities that help to make Guam a better place to live and lead to increased tax revenues that
support our future growth.

For these reasens, | VETO Chapter X1, Section 12(a) and (b).

Lack of Funding Source for Critical GMHA Expenses

On Page 144 of the Budget Act, the Legislature authorizes me “to pay hospital vendors, HVAC system
improvements, and interface between the electronic health record (EHR) and billing for [GMHA),” and further
requires me to notify the Speaker of the Legislature five (5) days prior regarding the funding source of such
payments. To be clear, my authority to operate the hospital comes not from legislative authorization, but from the
Organic Act of Guam. The Legislature’s primary role in the hospital’s operation lies in its power of appropriation.
Without providing me with an appropriation or a funding source, the proviston “allowing” me to pay GMHA’s
outstanding obligations will not help our hospitai’s finances and will not aid in supporting hospitat operations. This
provision represents another example of politicians claiming to do something for our only public hospital while
doing nothing at all.

Homelessness Prevention

The Budget Act fails to fund the Office of Homelessness Assistance and Poverty Prevention (“OHAPP”), despite
the critical services the office provides. It appears that politicians expect the Department of Public Health and Social
Services (“DPHSS™) to assume responsibility for leading homelessness assistance and poverty prevention with less
funding. While I have every confidence in the leadership of DPHSS, imposing yet another new and significant
responsibility on such a large and impacted agency risks undermining the agency’s efforts to perform its existing
responsibilities and service to our community. The Legislature has not offered an adequate reason why this
Administration, which has created, implemented, and operated these vital programs from their inception, should
not be afforded the reasonable opportunity to continue to manage the programs, instead of haphazardly reassigning
them at the Legislature’s whim.

i

RICARDO }. BORDALLO GOVERNOR'S COMPLEX
513 W. Marine Cerps Drive Hagdina, Guam 94910
gavernor.guam.gov | {671) 472-8931



To: The Hon. Therese M. Terlaje, Speaker Page 4 of 4
Fr:  The Hon. Lourdes A. Leon Guerrero, Governor of Guam

Date: September 11, 2024

Re:  Substitute Bill No. 236-37 (COR)

Credit Card Fees

On Pages 149-150 of the Budget Act, the Legisiature observed that the government’s operating budget has grown
over the years and expressed its intent to set a cap on amounts of excess funds collected above projected revenues
spent on further government appropriations, and {o return the remaining excess funds to our taxpayers “to ease their
financial burdens.” However, the Legislature has declined to adopt our Administration’s recommendation that such
revenues be used to defray the costs of credit card fees associated with accessing GovGuam services, a simple and
direct method to ensure that taxpayer dollars are efficiently retumed to the taxpayers. Regrettably, the Budget Act
makes only vague statements in favor of returning funds to our taxpayers while rejecting a proven, impactful method
of doing so.

Unfunded Necessities

Alarmingly, the Legisiature decided not to fund some of our government’s most critical budget requests, including
several items vital to public safety. These requests include Two Million dollars ($2,000,000.00) for the HVAC for
the Guam Police Department’s (“GPD™} Forensic Lab, without which laboratory samples and specimens may not
be properly preserved for criminal investigations or trial. The Legislature also cut Three Hundred Sixty-One
Thousand, Seven Hundred Seventy dollars ($361,770.00) in funding for GPD trainees, compromising our efforts to
recruit and train more officers to respond to emergencies and keep our villages safe. The Legislature extended these
cuts to the Department of Corrections ($270,600} and the Guam Fire Department ($794,061), both of which were
shortchanged in funding for their recruits.

The politicians gutting OHAPP’s budget, including the Committee on Health Chair, also failed to provide Two
Million doltars ($2,000,000.00) in funding for GBHWC requested in the Executive budget request, which wil
potentially impact programs and contracts providing services to other vulnerable communities, including Guma
Mami’s residential services, which supports individuals with behavioral disabilities and the homeless population,
and the Sagan Mami Drop In Center, which offers daytime enrichment programs, employment services and
counseling, and temporary shelter.

It is imperative that the funding requests for these urgent needs be promptly addressed in a supplemental budget
bill, to ensure that services to these vulnerable populations are not disrupted, and to ensure agencies that protect our
people from crime and respond in the event of an emergency are equipped to provide the best possible service to
our people.

Senseramente,

e bam Bunian

LOURDES A. LEON GUERRERO
[ Maga 'hagan Guahan
Governor of Guam

Enclosure(s): Bill No. 236-37 (COR) nka P.L. 37-125
cc via email: Honorable Joshua F. Tenorio, Sigundo Maga'lahen Guahan, Lt. Governor of Guam
Compiler of Laws

RICARDO J. BORDALLO GOVERNOR'S COMPLEX
513 W. Marine Coips Diive Hagdina, Guam 96910
governorguam.gov | {671} 472-8931



I MINA'TRENTAI SIETTE NA LIHESLATURAN GUAHAN
Thirty-Seventh Guam Legislature

August 30, 2024

The Honorable Lourdes A. Leon Guerrerc
I Maga'hagan Gudhan

Ufisinan I Maga'hdga

Hagatha, Guam 96910

Dear Maga'haga Leon Guerrero:
Transmitted herewith is Substitute Bill No. 236-37 (COR) which was passed by [ Mina'trentai

Siette Na Liheslaturan Guahan on August 30, 2024.

mcerely,

ANMIANDA L. SHERTON
Legislative Secretary

Enclosure (1)

2029 ~ 25.2-17

OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR
CENTRAL FILES OFFICE

Red'd By: o T PPy ) \
Daae Q}Eﬁ?g? Time: i
d Ll

GUAM CONGRESS BUILDING + 163 CHALAN SANTO PAPA « ITAGATNA, GUAM 96910




I MINA'TRENTAI SIETTE NA LIHESLATURAN GUAHAN
2024 (SECOND) Regular Session

CERTIFICATION OF PASSAGE OF AN ACT TO I MAGA'HAGAN GUAHAN

This is to certify that Substitute Bill No. 236-37 (COR), “AN ACT MAKING
APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE OPERATIONS OF THE EXECUTIVE,
LEGISLATIVE, AND JUDICIAL BRANCHES OF THE GOVERNMENT OF
GUAM FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2025, MAKING
OTHER APPROPRIATIONS, AND ESTABLISHING MISCELLANEOUS
AND ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS,” was on the 30™ day of August 2024,

duly and regularly passed.
ai

Therese M. Terl
Speaker

Attested:

Qrndd o=

| Amanda helton
Legislative Secretary

This Act was received by I Maga'hdgan Guéhan this __ S0L_day of ﬁ%w‘ ,
2024, at 33|  o'clock P_M. '

Assistant Staff Sfficer
Maga'hdga’s Office

APPROVED:

B O T

Lourdes A. Leon Guerrero
I Maga'hdgan Gudhan

Date: q'/it /9-3‘14-

Public Law No.__ 35 - /2.5 B o
OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR
CENTRAL FILES OFFICE
Rec'd By:

Flaine Figalle




(= R e D =, L ¥ - N TS e o

P f—
—_—

I MINA'TRENTAI SIETTE NA LIHESLATURAN GUAHAN
2024 (SECOND) Regular Session

Bill No. 236-37 (COR)

As substituted on the Floor; and amended
in the Commtittee of the Whole.

Introduced by: Committee on Rules
by request of [/ Maga'hdgan
Gudhan, the Governor of Guam,
in accordance with the Organic
Act of Guam.

AN ACT MAKING APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE

OPERATIONS OF THE EXECUTIVE, LEGISLATIVE,

AND JUDICIAL BRANCHES OF THE GOVERNMENT

OF GUAM FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING SEPTEMBER

30, 2025, MAKING OTHER APPROPRIATIONS, AND

ESTABLISHING MISCELLANEOUS AND

ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE PEOPLE OF GUAM:

CHAPTERI
GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 1. Short Title. This Act shall be known as the “General
Appropriations Act of 2025.” Except as otherwise provided by this Act, the
appropriations made by this Act shall be available to pay for Fiscal Year 2025
obligations incurred on or after October 1, 2024, but not later than September 30,
2025. If any appropriation in this Act is found contrary to federal law, all other
portions of this Act shall remain valid.

Section 2. Estimated Revenues for Fiscal Year 2025. Notwithstanding §

22436, Chapter 22, Title 5 GCA, I Liheslaturan Gudhan adopts the following



o0 -] N L B W RN e

[ TS N TR N5 N N T NG IR N T N B N T S Sy S e T e e e e e
] SN s W N = DN 0 1Nt B W= O

revenue estimates for Fiscal Year 2025 as the basis for the appropriations contained
in this Act.
L. GENERAL FUND REVENUES AMOUNT
TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUE $994,802,116
GENERAL FUND PROVISION FOR TAX REFUND
PAYMENTS ($44,145,511)
TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUE AVAILABLE
FOR OPERATIONS $950,656,605
A, TAXES
Income Tax

Individual (not including the

Additional Child Tax Credit) $105,570,171
Corporate $105,033,423
Withholding Taxes, Interest, and Penalties $297,659,446

Provision for Tax Refunds:
Gross Provision for Tax Refund Payments
[Federal and General Funds] ($175,604,534)

Eamed Income Tax Credit

Federal Receipts $57,296,793
Child Tax Credit/ Additional Child Tax Credit
Federal Receipts $74,162,230
General Fund Provision for Tax
Refund Payments ($44.145,511)
TOTAL INCOME TAXES $464,117,529
Business Privilege Tax
Business Privilege Tax $390,986,495
GMHA Pharmaceuticals Fund



O 00 ~1 N B W RN —

[\ T NG T N T N T Y5 S NG R S B e e e e T . T
o SO T O VY o == NN = T~ . N T o W & W N US B & =]

(§ 26208, Article 2, Chapter 26 of Title 11 GCA) ($24,202,064)
Tax Credits:

Tiyan Gymnasium (P.L. 32-202) ($250,000)
Guam National Tennis Federation (P.L. 36-128) ($300,000)
Guam National Youth Football

Federation (P.L. 36-129) ($500,000)
Other Taxes $9.270.630
TOTAL BUSINESS PRIVILEGE TAXES $375,005,061
TOTAL TAXES $839,122,590
FEDERAL SOURCES
Federal Income Tax Collection
Section 30 Funds $76,402,101
Immigration and Passport Fees $1,381.664
TOTAL FEDERAL SOURCES $77,783,765
USE OF MONEY AND PROPERTY $2,683,874
LICENSES, FEES, AND PERMITS
Licenses, Fees, and Permits $4,403,808
Licenses, Fees, and Permits (Better Public Service Fund)
(Chapter 161 of Title 11 GCA) ($440,381)
TOTAL LICENSES, FEES, AND PERMITS $3,963,427
DEPARTMENT CHARGES $1,410,504
TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUE $924,964,160
2% GENERAL FUND RESERVE
(RAINY DAY FUND) ($18,499,283)

TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUE

AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION $906,464,877



A= T B N o L T - S W R o R

[ T N TR NG TR N5 TR NG S 0 B N T N T R T T T T
NG Y~ U 2 T N % R N TP e T X B &« B L o S & T - e A T =

o
|
-

SPECIAL FUND REVENUES AMOUNT

Q 7 B0 0OW >

ot TN -

Sslio) v

Banking and Insurance Enforcement Fund $386,733
Better Public Service Fund $1,377,900
Chamorro Land Trust Operations Fund $664,211
Chamorro Land Trust Survey and Infrastructure Fund $21,183
Contractors License Board Fund $896,462
Corrections Revolving Fund $1,184,629
Customs, Agriculture, and Quarantine

Inspection Services Fund $7,845,357
DPHSS Sanitary Inspection Revolving Fund $424,986
Enhanced 911 Emergency Reporting System Fund $2,065,656
Environmental Health Fund $1,415,223
Fire, Life and Medical Emergency Fund $899,009
GMHA Pharmaceuticals Fund $24,202,064
Guam Ancestral Lands Commission Survey, Infrastructure,

and Development Fund $444,396

Guam Board of Accountancy Fund $699,600
Guam Educational Facilities Fund $35,864,705
Guam Environmental! Trust Fund $492 444
Guam Highway Fund (GHF) $12,986,048

GHF (Better Public Service Fund;
Chapter 161 of Title 11 GCA) ($937,519)
GHF (GIAA -Pursuant to Federal

Register Vol. 79, 66282) ($1.408.356)
Total Guam Highway Fund $10,640,173
Guam Invasive Species Inspection Fee Fund $755,328
Guam Plant Inspection and Permit Fund $92,253

4



O 00 ~3 A WU A W N =

S I T S T S T N T N T N T N O I R N T e

T.  Health Professional Licensing Office Revolving Fund $338,801
U.  Healthy Futures Fund $23,483,837
V.  Host Community Fund $300,000
W. Indirect Cost Fund $1,610,830
X.  Land Survey Revolving Fund $3,306,199
Y. Limited Gaming Fund $1,108,243
Z.  Manpower Development Fund $12,291,600
AA. Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services Fund $394,200
AB. Office of Vital Statistics Revolving Fund $225,014
AC. Police Patrol Vehicie and Equipment Revolving Fund $332,362
AD. Police Services Fund $1,050,116
AE. Professional Engineers, Architects
and Land Surveyors Board Fund $267,348

AF. Public Recreation Services Fund $95,677
AG. Public School Library Resources Fund $1,107,060
AH. Rabies Prevention Fund $45,919
Al Safe Streets Fund $62.223
AlJ.  School Lunch/SAE/Child Nutritional Meal Reimbursement Fund -

Federal Sources (100% Federal Grant)/Cash Collections $12,504,000
AK. Solid Waste Operations Fund $22,308,454

Host Community Fund $300,000)

Total Solid Waste Operations Fund $22,008,454
AL. Street Light Fund $4.157,009
AM. Tax Collection Enhancement Fund $1,133,635
AN. Tourist Attraction Fund $35,998,148
AO. Water Research and Development Fund $80,999
TOTAL SPECIAL FUND REVENUE $212,273,986

5



WO - N b W RN e

| T N T N R e e e e e e o
PN = SO e -1 bh B W N — O

23

II.

IV.

FEDERAL MATCHING GRANTS-IN-AID

Federal Grants-in-Aid Requiring Local Match:

A.  Department of Integrated Services for
Individuals with Disabilities

Department of Labor

Department of Military Affairs

Department of Public Health and Social Services

Guam Community College

Guam Council on the Arts and Humanities Agency

Guam Customs and Quarantine Agency

Guam Police Department

Office of the Attorney General

~ - Eo0mMMmU QW

University of Guam
TOTAL FEDERAL MATCHING
GRANTS-IN-AID REVENUE

REVENUE SUMMARY:

TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUE
AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION

TOTAL SPECIAL FUND REVENUE

TOTAL FEDERAL MATCHING GRANTS-

IN-AID REVENUE
GRAND TOTAL

$2,085,461
$47,000
$2,173,224
$164,039,765
$595,389
$378,700
$1,230,075
$2,629,110
$8,011,689
$8,904,945

$190,095,358

$906,464,877

$212,273,986

$190,095,358
$1,308,834,221

Section 3. Authorization to Pay and Prioritize the Payment of Tax

24  Refunds. I Maga'hdgan Gudhan shall prioritize tax refund payments for ‘A-Status’

25

returns for tax year 2025 and prior years in an amount no less than Forty-four Million
26  One Hundred Forty-five Thousand Five Hundred Eleven Dollars ($44,145,511).



W G ~ O th B W R

% TR N O NG TN 5 TN TN N S GO o U S S
th & W N — O W e =] & Wb B W N e O

court of a felony, a crime involving moral turpitude, a crime of

domestic or family violence, or who has been administratively

pardoned of any crime.

(3) No person shall be appointed as a medicolegal death
investigator before a thorough investigation of the applicant’s
background and moral character is completed.

(d) In the event that there are no applicants that meet the
minimum knowledge, abilities and skills to be registered or certified
medicolegal death investigators, the Office of Post Mortem
Examinations/Chief Medical Examiner may employ candidates as
interns, with compensation, while completing the training and
experience necessary to meet the minimum requirements for
employment. The Office of Post Mortem Examinations/Chief Medical
Examiner shall determine the length of internship programs.
Internships are limited term appointments until such time the intemn is
either hired as a medicolegal death investigator or terminated.”

Section 62. Lease of Lot No. 7161-R1, Yige, Guam to the Guam
Motorsports Association.

Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the Chamorro Land Trust
Commission (CLTC) shall lease a portion of or all of Lot No. 7161-R1, Yigo, Guam
to the Guam Motorsports Association or its successor entity for the purpose of the
operation of a raceway, related support facilities, and various outdoor events. The
CLTC shall negotiate the terms of the non-commercial lease of Lot No. 7161-R1,
Yigo, Guam with the Guam Motorsports Association within ninety (90) days of the
enactment of this Act.

158



DO ] N L B W N e

p— g
—

Section 63.  Continuing Appropriation Authorization.
Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the allotted but unexpended balance of
funds appropriated to the Department of Revenue and Taxation (DRT) for Fiscal
Year 2024 and prior shall not lapse and shall continue to be available in Fiscal Year
2025. DRT is authorized to use lapsed funds for the purposes of Internal Revenue
Service (IRS) Training for the Tax Enforcement Division. On October 1, 2024, DRT
shall submit a written report to I Likeslaturan Gudhan and I Maga'hdgan Gudhan
detailing the total amount of lapses from Fiscal Year 2024. Upon the expenditure of
such lapsed funds, DRT shall submit a written report detailing those expenditures to
I Liheslaturan Guahan and I Maga'hdgan Gudhan within thirty (30) days after such

expenditure.

159



{Vacane)
Commissioner

Joseph B, Cruz Jr.
Aciing Administrative Director

Rev., (19/3v20024

Kumision Inangokkon Tano’ CHamoru
(CHamoru Land Trust Commission)

P.O. Box 2950 Hagdifia, Gudkan 96932 Phone: 671-300-3296 Fax: 671-300-3319

December 17, 2024

Honeorable Douglas B. Moylan
Attorney General

Office of the Attorney General of Guam
Suite 901, ITC Building

580 S. Marine Corps Dr.

Tamuning, Guam 96913

SUBJECT: LEGAL GUIDANCE / Public Law 37-125

Dear Attorney General Moylan,

The CHamoru Land Trust Act was created in 1875 by Public Law 12-226 and
enacted as Chapter 75 of Title 21, Guam Code Annotated. Which was later
updated through Public Law 35-112 and enacted as Chapter 75A of Title 21,
Guam Code Annotated to clearly demonstrate that the CLTC program is a land

= restoration program meant to rectify the unjust taking of CHamoru homelands by
~  the United States federal government between 1898 to 1968. Furthermore, it

expanded the program’s eligible beneficiaries to individuals and their
descendants who ranched, occupied, farmed, or owned land the federal
government took.

Recently the enactment of Public Law 37-125, also known as the FY2025
Government of Guam Budget Act, included a provision that reads:

“Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the Chamorro Land Trust
Commission (CLTC) shall ease a portion of or all of Lot No. 7161-R1, Yigo,
Guam to the Guam Motorsports Assaciation or its successor entity for the
purpose of the operation of a raceway, related support facilities, and various
outdoor events. The CLTC shall negotiate the terms of the non-commercial lease
of Lot No. 7161-R1, Yigo, Guam with the Guam Motorsports Association within
ninety (90) days of the enactment of this Act.”

As the CLTC board continues to negotiate and discuss a Non-Commercial lease,
| humbly request your guidance and legal opinion regarding the following:

1. What is the rate CLTC can charge for a Non-Commercial Lease?
2. Given that the 90 days have lapsed since the enactment of Public 37-125, is

CLTC or the CLTC board personally liable because a Non-Commercial Lease
has not been executed within the ninety (90) day period?




3. Does the Sole Source requirement violate the CLTC Commercial Rules and
Regulations enacted within Chapters 75 and 75A of Title 21, Guam Code
Annotated as §75122 and §75A1227

4. Will the provision, when applied to any person or circumstance, be invalid or
inorganic because it is contrary to the CHamoru Land Trust Act and its primary
mission?

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at (671) 300-
3296.

Senseramente,

fdy frrd

Chairperson



Administrative Directors Position



ADMINISTRATIVE DIRECTOR
POSITION DESCRIPTION

Classification: Unclassified
Pay Grade: E-P
Salary: Negotiable

Position Title: Administrative Director

Summary: The Administrative Director reports directly to the Commissioners of the
CHamoru Land Trust Commission (“CLTC”). The Administrative Director is
the principal manager of the CLTC’s day to day activities. The Director serves
at the Board's pleasure, and works to execute the CLTC’s statutory functions as
well as to fulfill the goals and objectives that the board shall from time to time
adopt.

Quialifications/Requirements:

e Master’s degree from a U.S. accredited college or university plus five (5) years of
management level experience in the application of the Chapter 75 and 75A, Title 21 Guam
Code annotated, with Knowledge of Guam Subdivision Laws and other Land Regulations;
or

e Bachelor’s degree from a U.S. accredited college or university plus seven (7) years of
management level experience in the application of the Chapter 75 and 75A, Title 21 Guam
Code annotated, with Knowledge of Guam Subdivision Laws and other Land Regulations;
or

e Any equivalent combination of experience and training which provides the knowledge,
abilities and skills to fully perform the work involved in the position.

Special Qualifications:
Strategic and futuristic thinker with a rational thought process in analyzing critical factors and
variables that can impact the long-term success.
e Embraces future or new possibilities, is creative, and not debilitated by risk-averse
considerations.
e Forward-thinking and proactive in resolving issues.

Essential Functions:

e Ability to interpret and make sound recommendations regarding proposed legislation.
Advise the CLTC on how various legislative and other proposals may affect the mission
of the Trust.

e Resolves problems in a timely manner, and generates solutions to challenges.

e The Director serves as the principal spokesperson for the CLTC. Excellent
communication skills are required; speaks clearly and persuasively in positive and
negative situations and writes clearly and informatively.

e Approaches others in a tactful manner.

e Balances team and individual responsibilities and focuses on solving conflicts within the
organization.

e Shares expertise with others and offers opportunities to staff for personal and professional
growth and development.

e Develops and coordinates projects and communicates changes and progress.

e Exhibits sound and accurate judgment and displays willingness to make decisions.

e Prioritizes and plans work activities.

e Adapts to changes in the work environment and strives to increase productivity while
demonstrating accuracy and thoroughness.

e Uses equipment and materials properly.

e |s consistently at work and on time and volunteers readily, initiates and undertakes self-



development activities.

Displays original thinking and creativity.

Follows instructions and responds to management direction while taking responsibility for
actions.

Special Requirements:

Must be willing to work long hours, weekends, and holidays.

Must be knowledgeable with the Government Accounting Standards Board
Pronouncements.

Must be knowledgeable with the Generally Accepted Account Principles.

Must be able to use basic office computer programs and software.

Must have completed Procurement Training Module 1.

Must have a demonstrated track record of superior personnel managerial skills, in addition to
technical expertise.

Supervises the entire day-to-day of operations of the Commission that encompasses Financial,
Fiscal, Procurement, Budgeting, Planning, Land Administration, and Compliance. Such Activities
include, but are not limited to:

Prepare Annual Budgets

Prepare financial adjustments in accordance with GASB and GAAP requirements for the
preparation of Financial Statements

Customer service

Staff development

Strategic Planning

Intergovernmental and military relations

Communicates regularly with the Board’s chairperson and, as required from time to time,
with other members of the board, on matters related to the day-to-day operations and
management of the Commission, its employees, vendors, and external associations.
Ensures compliance with all Guam Open Meeting and Sunshine Reform Act requirements;
including all information that pertains to the agenda for all board meetings, and accurately
documents all such meetings and activities.

Oversees the development and execution of such strategic and other plans as the board
shall cause to be prepared, adopted, or otherwise modified.

Reviews employee performance regularly to rationalize performance-based compensation,
enforce employee rules and regulations, and provide or arrange staff training as needed.
Serves as Authorized Authority of all Federal Grants.

Serves as the Certifying Officer of the Commission.

Monitors federal and local legislation impacting the Commission.

Coordinates the Commissions activities with appropriate local government, military,
federal, and other planning agencies with respect to their impact on Land.

Represents the Commission in Public Hearings and other meetings.

Acts as key liaison and adviser between and among the Governor, the Legislature and Board
on matters relating to the Commission.

Ensures the Commission's legal and other regulatory compliance.

Delegates his/her responsibilities as appropriate, and consistent with sound accountability
and management practices.

Performs such other duties and responsibilities as determined by the board.

Supervises the formal preparation of financial statements and reports for General Funds,
Special and Revolving Funds or related funds as needed; analyzes various financial
information of a wide variety for appropriate recommendations.

Supervises the preparation of receipts and disbursement schedules, expenditures against
budget schedules and appropriation summaries; reconciles cost balances.

Evaluates a variety of financial reports for internal consistency and validity Profit and Loss
Statements, Balance Sheets and other financial reports.

Supervises the installation of special accounting systems and related procedures in
establishment, which cannot use standardized systems.

Analyzes the financial aspect relationship of cost to the major accounting structures such
as codification of accounts, different appropriation accounts and budgetary elements;
analyzes cash collections received on a daily basis; controls to assure sufficient cash flow



of current payables; evaluates the effect of deficits.

Analyzes trend projection for top management review pertaining to cash flow status and
projection. Evaluates or recommends fiscal policy that should be followed such as tight
policy or balanced budget.

Invest cash accounts with the concurrence of top management review within the
cognizance of legislative constraints.

Prepares various administrative reports and correspondences. Perform related duties as
required.

Knowledge, Skills & Abilities:

Demonstrated integrity and ethical business practices.

Ability to negotiate and communicate, network, and present effectively and meaningfully
to the board, general membership, and to other public, private and civic organizations.
Demonstrated history and success in advocating positions, conceptualizing strategy, and
executing plans or programs effectively.

Proven history of success in overseeing and administering complicated and diverse
strategic plans including the involvement of private sector teams, committees, and
government leaders.

Ability and skill in generating strategically meaningful data

Good working knowledge of the government of Guam budgeting process, sources of funds
for Bureau operations, and financial accountability.

Good working knowledge of government rules and regulations applicable to the
Commission, and its staff

Ability to plan, organize, and manage people in a general office environment and
willingness to be a “hands on” working manager as needed.

Demonstrated ability to identify, develop and train new and junior personnel to position
them for matriculation to positions with more responsibility and experience.
Demonstrated ability to develop and achieve a superior workplace culture.

Ability to write effectively and work well in professional and non- professional
environments.

Ability to handle multiple challenges in a fast-paced environment.

Proven history of community service and involvement.

Key Competencies:

SourwnE

Technical Capacity 7. Adaptation to various situations
Personal Effectiveness/Credibility 8. Creative Thinking
Thoroughness 9. Engagement

Collaboration Skills 10. Decision Making/ Decisiveness
Communication Proficiency 11. Impact / Influence

Flexibility

Supervisory Responsibility:
This position requires the supervision of all staff and management.

Work Environment:
This job operates in a professional office environment. This role routinely uses standard office
equipment such as computers, phones, photocopiers, filing cabinets and fax machines.

Physical Demands:
This position involves activities related to meetings, meeting functions and facilities, public
speaking, and/or standing for long periods of time.

Other Duties:

This job description is not designed to cover or contain a comprehensive listing of activities,
duties or responsibilities that are required of the employee for this job. Duties, responsibilities
and activities may change at any time with or without notice.



New Business



Constituent Matters



CHamoru Land Trust Commission
Land Agent Staff Report

ANGELA NICOLE CARBONE SANTOS
RESIDENTIAL APPLICANT

.  REQUEST

» Request for Building Permit for a container home.

Il.  ISSUE(S)

>
>
>

Lessee has not occupied the premises on a full-time basis.

Lessee has not properly installed and metered all utilities.

The Lessee has not conformed to all Territorial Zoning and Building laws, subdivisions,
environmental or administrative laws, or policies.

Lessee has not received written approval to build, alter, or make other improvements to
the property.

Lessee has outstanding real Property Taxes.

Lessee has no fire insurance coverage for structures on Premises.

. FACTS

1.

©ONOORWDN

9.

Applicant’s Date and Time: December 2, 1995 at 2:51 pm.
Applicant’s Application Number: 0000604

Application Type: Residential

Lot Description: Lot 1, Block 13, Tract 1113, Dededo
Survey Map: Yes; L.M. No. 214 FY94

Priority: 1

Preoccupier: N/A

Land Use Permit (LUP): N/A

Mayor’s Certification: N/A

10.Recorded Lease: Yes

11.Unrecorded Lease:

12.Lease Fee Paid: No

13.1s this a Registered Property? Yes

14.Residing on Private Property: N/A

15.Residing on Guam Ancestral Lands Property: N/A
16.Part of Null and Void Listing: N/A

17.Part of 2018 Ratified Listing: Yes

18.Part of 1995 Listing: Yes

19.Part of OPA Audit Listing: N/A

ANGELA NICOLE CARBONE SANTOS
COMPILED BY EC LAND AGENT 11

7/28/2025



CHamoru Land Trust Commission
Land Agent Staff Report

IV. CHRONOLOGY
1. January 15, 2002: Lessee was interviewed.
2. December 9, 2002: Lease for Lot 7153, Yigo Unregistered. 21 GCA, Chap. 75, Section
75105 (f) — The Commission shall not lease or license any available land until it is
registered under the provisions of Chapter 29 of this Title Land Title Registration Law.
3. February 18, 2025: Site Inspection was conducted by staff.
4. February 20,2025: Notice to Remediate

V. SUMMARY

» Lessee is requesting for a Building permit for a container home.
» Attached are the building plans and signed by a Certified Engineer.

ANGELA NICOLE CARBONE SANTOS
COMPILED BY EC LAND AGENT 11
7/28/2025



Angela Santos & David Santos—RESIDENTIAL LESSEE Page 1 of 4
Compiled by D. Tan— Compliance re-Inspection conducted 2/18/20




Angela Santos & David Santos—RESIDENTIAL LESSEE Page 2 of 4
Compiled by D, Tan— Compliance re-Inspection conducted 2/18/2




Angela Santos & David Santos—RESIDENTIAL LESSEE Page 3 of 4
Compiled by D. Tan— Compliance re-Inspection conducted 2/18/2025



BIBT0O2. Schse

PROPOSED 20 FT. HOUSE CONTAINER

LOT 1, BLOCK 13, TRACT 1113

PROWJECT LCCATICN

<

/ \
| b
7
i 1 ' r’
PROJECT *}
LOCATION,
P T é—‘-‘/ /
= et
\‘-"!"E\J e m e
!__; ¥ f.--)
=

ISLAND OF GUAM
L °
?l m A
m -l

> u :_b_. sl faes
- 4

PROJIECT
LOCATION

YICI

VICINITY MAP

ASTUMBO, DEDEDO, GUAM

INCEX OF DRAWINGS
CIVIL

T-1 | SITE & UTITY FUAN, INDEX OF DRAING, LOCATION MAP, WICINITY WAP
©-1 | SME PuAN

€= | wisg. DETALS

£-3 | MISS DETAILS

| TRAFFIC COMTROL Fran

ARCHITECTURAL
FLODR PLAN, ROOF PLAN, ELDWATION AND SECTIONS
GYFSUM BOARD DETALLS

STRUCTURAL 7.

§—1 GEWERAL NOTES, STanD4RD DETaLS

PLUMBING
P-1 | FENERAL MOTES, RLUMBING SPECEFCATIONS, SCHEMAE, LECENMDS & SEER,
P-2 | WGCELLAMEDUS DETAILS PLUMBMG LATOUT

fer R '

e ELECTRICAL

WOV 18 7 E-1 | PANELBOSART SCHEDOULTEMERAL WOTES & SPECIMCATION, ELECTAICAL SYWROL
2 | TV, OME UNE DISGRAM TEL ONE LINE DUGRMM. POWER RISER DUGRAM

FOUNDATION PLANWF DETARS  STRUCTURAL DETALS S wimhe

O4TE

CESCRATHN

CANER:
WA, DAVE SAHTOS
FHEET CONTENT;
STE & URUTY PLAN, #MDEX OF DRAMNG,
LOCATION MAP, WINITY MAP

Lot 1,8lo6x 13 TRACT 1111,
CHMALAN GORIYDT.
ASTULBD, DEDLDC. SUAM

@
w
=
g
=]
u
uy
v
2
o
et
=)
~
[a]
T}
g
2
a

LOGATION:

£
8
H




()SITE PLAN

5
g
E
&
i
=1
é
8
z
z
o 5
w
2 |5
=
o E“
iR
¥ ]
H g
o0
r
w
=
= X2
-4 Q353
bt 2z
w I—Ko'
2 | ¢58
o 128
o
~ = T
= 2958
g8 |eces
] EE 85
gn. 52-—5
2 [e} <
E —

v/
-

THES WORK, 15 PRERARED BY ME
OF LMIDER WY CIRECT
SUPERVSION

PROJECT NUMBER  P-20022

APPROVED | WD | APPAOYED | CWE

DESIGH | W3R G -

CHECKED : DD | 3Py - v

APPROVED : EWR | DA TE - sumaram

ORAMING MO,

C-1

SHEET 2o 13

T S |




(VERIFY WITH GPA RECUREMENTS) —
VEATHERE ¥, STEEL —
ZH 5 50 E g&ﬁ%
COPPER THW SERVICE
CABLES (28LACK & 1-WHITE) || | ) METER SOCKET SEMMFLUSHMID,
2 ALUMINLIM LONDUTT FCR POWER [i §
Wiy [ CONC. RISER.COLUMN &
2 PVC ADAPTER HOleo | 45 {GAST-MELACE} 3
Z PYCCONDUT EVEEDDED — e
-]
]
R ERe TS — -
WIHPLLLWEE FOR G b——— 1" PYC CONDUIT EMBEDDED
iy CROUNDIVIRS —— 34" PG CONDLAT EMBEDDED
SERVICE ENTRANCE FIN, GRADE LINE )
GPA CUMNECTION AN Pl >>‘ LEACIDS
EXTEND 121 3
TR — 8
%@% 5 | T top of Kieting
Ly (3] TOTEL § CATY 50X
e L—= Tomrencr
/ RN AR T
GROUNDING RCD 1 RS e B T
BE T RRATED To so%
ORY BENSITY

@QQNCRETE PEDESTAL DETAILS

\

@TRENCH DETAIL

GENERAL NOTES:

1. ALL CONSTRUCTICH WORK SHALL BE DONE W

@jEDESTAL STRUCTURE

WITH THE APFLICABLE FEDERAL AND LOGICAL LS, COOES,
CIRMMNAKCE S, A0 DTHER REGULATIONS OF THE GOVERNMENT

DFGJMANDI'I'SP.PPWJPP s
IRE RESPONSIBILITY 7O BECDME FAMHLIAR WITH
FERH]TMQ’ECT“REGJRBENTS_
3 TOR, AT . FHALL KEEP THE

FROJECT AND SURROUNDNG AREA FREE HIST
MR POLLATION CONTROL STANDARDS AND REGL

. THE \LL HOT ENTER LIPON ANY FROPERTY

FOR AN PURPOSE WITHUHIT FIRST OBTAIKING PERMSSI0H
AND BHALL BE REPONSIRLE FOP THE PRESERVATION OF

ALL PROPERTIES, TREES, FENGES, MONUMENTS,
UNDERGROUMD UTILITIES, ETL. WHEN DWMAGE 1S DOME
COMTRACTOR SHALL RESTORE SUCH PROPERTY AT His 04
EXPENSE -

. THE GOMTRACTER SHAUL CONDUCT COMSTRUCTION

WUESANCE. THE WORK, SHALL BE IN ACOCRDANCE WITH THE

oF
MM ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY (GERA). THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE GLEANING
THE RUAD CHANNEL OR ANY WATERWAYS.

21 ALL EXISTING UTILITIES, WHETHER SHOMWN OR NOT SHOWN
(}NTHEPLMS.M.I.BE PROTECTEN AT ALL TREES DURING

VEHEGUILAR AMD PEDESTRIN FACILINES HE SHALL ASSURE
THAT TRAFFIC FLOW 15 CONTINLOUS (M ALL DIRECTIONS AT
ALl TMES. HMLESS MECESSARTY, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL
HOT CLOSE OF DASTRLCT ANY PORTION OF DRIVEWAY,
ROACS, CF PARKING WITHOUT OBTAINING PERMITS FROMTHE
CONTRACTING OFFICERE.

THE £ FHALL EXAMIKE THE it}
ROTIFY THE ENGINEER OF ANY INSCREFANCIES HE MAY FIND
BEFORE FROCEEDING WITH THE WORK.

OF: SHALL PRCAWIDE OTHER WATERLALS, HOT

. WIFIG!LI.\" DESCRIBED BUT RECUIRED FOR A COMPLETE

M FROPER INSTALLATION, A5 SELECTED BY THE
CONTRACTOR SUBJECT TO THE APRROUAL UIF THE ENGINEER.

—t—a—FRIVATE
FROPERTY

L

i

L4 G BOT.

FOOTING PLAN

w
a
&
-
-
9 y
g %
(1]
o a
= m
z \éa
[=] oo
© &
g = |8 3
] -
: (B4
S &
*4
1T}
=
5 X2
=z (&) =
s | g83
w [
@ a3 0
o - w
] xZ0
x 04w
o§"—"
8 S E o
& azg
5 g s ]
] = "=
w5 g
‘0‘ =] 50‘-2
& 3 ol bk
Lo |
[+%
[THIZ WORIK IS PREPARED BY ME
OR UNDER MY DIRECT
SUPERVESION

PROJECT MUMBER  P-2ioiz

AFFRONED : (ME. | APPROVID : T8

CESHGN . SR DRANN - Sl

CHECKEY : [WE | SUPY - CwR

APPRESVED  DWH | DATE * 48T 7

DRANING MO,




NOTES:

1. WALVE BOX REGUIRED OM COMCRETE
MEPHALT PAYED SURFACES. OTHIRWISE
OPTIOHAL

R
me
2. DR TD PUBMIT SHOP DRAMNG
MNDADR FOR APROVAL

3. LEAD FRIE HRASS FPIPE, WALVES AHD FTTYINGS
AAE REQUIRED AFTER JAHUARY 4, 2014

HOTER

4. RINO aND COVER SHaLL BE E747 LOCKIMG TYPE, DLYWPIC FOUINDRY PRRT MO M1DGT 077 it
APFRVED ECUAL

@ﬂATER CONNECTION DETAIL

-

TRENTH WIbTH
P L oL

VARES
VARES
w, |

i

R

R

& | Pee et
- WIN.

B THK. (WIN) LGRAL BASE
{CONPADT TO A% ORY DENSTY)

——-—— UNDISTURBED
HATERAL

- —— UTIUTY WARHING TAPE

SELECT FIL MATERWL SEE
KOTE
(OR FLOWABLE FLE)

REFMRED/NEW UTHITY HE

PIPE BECDING
EWVELD® WMATERAMLS

2 \CORAL ROAD OR SHOULDER

1. DLEAN-(AT FIPE AMD FTITINGS SHAML B THE SWME MATERIM, A5 THE SEWER MaN.
2 A TANITARY TEE, TWEEF, GR STRAGHT TEE 5 W(T ACCEFTABLE,

ANDH MINGAZE COMFLIETS WITH OTHER UTIUTIES WHEN SERVCE TO PriLbwes 15

@QANITARY SEWER CLEAN-OUT

HOT ASFHMLT COMCRETE PAYEMENT (CLAZS “A%,

TYFE 1)

CRADE A,
a7 (MIN} THICKNESS OR MATCH EXTSTING
PAYEMENT

MPPLY TACK COAT PRICR To —-
PAYEMEWT PLACEMENT

NOTES

- CONTRACTOR SHALL APPLY A0 DETAIN MM
PERMIT

PROR T THE START OF
ANT FIELD WORK.

. CONTRACTCA SHALL WOTIFY DFRCS HIGHWY

(BAR—31%0)
SHML BE RESPONSERE FOR THE

. DONTRACTOR
SHORMG OF TRENCH TO WRURE SAFE ACCESS FOR
WORKERS.

. DPW RECOMWENDS 7 DTS CURE TIME It THE
FLCAAALE FRL PRIDR T RAVEMEMT Al

COMTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPCHEARE TO PROVIDE
ADCOUATE PRITECTION FOft THE FLOWARLE FILL
FROM YEHICULAR LOADING DURING THIS CURING
PERICD. LANE SHML WA BE USID 45
AN DPTHIN [IURIMG THIS CUR{NG

AL RESTORATION WORK SHail O PER DIPw
APPRONAL

Tha|
e

B s
ot e — | N7
O 4 b
~( T
Al
[P,
-1

B WA GO L 8 VD PR P ML
E WP BOWEK ITE FETHG 70 FREWERT M OMTIGCMO, O OMTAL H-Ow
A POME 4 A TSI AT I L & § D T U MR

3 SEWER STUB Wit DEF EXTEWDED 107 BEYDMD FRCPERTY UME TO PREVENT [aMAGE 10 DLEAN—OUT
ED.

SEWER SERVICE LATERAL

@CONNECTION TO EXISTING MAIN

Pk | i

HRES

@PAVED VILLAGED ROAD

1.8

MR, DAVE SAHTIS

MISCITLANEQLS OCTALE

SEET CONTENT:

CHALAN GDRYOZ,
ASTULED, DEDIDO, CLUAM

PROPOSED 20" HOUSE CONTAINER
LOT 1.6LOCK ¥3. TRACF W13,

PROECT:




Wag~1
Ll

| \

SPWNG N

D
FosbRub
L2
R

|D‘ L1+

B

S,  (7)TEMPORARY TRAFFICCONTROLONSHOULDER oy sy, ,.- <
= mu_\ /_® /_.
e ‘5—' »
5 \@ =
.

rrm! } ‘

\F
[
e

‘ HlN. T8
/N it
@ LEFT LANE CLOSURE

1]

A

D20-2
| X
x W W R g W e e
202 T
g x 1t 2 iy
Akldb
.._. TOMET SPACING AT @ /
\ 10 0%, 1T j
=00 & N EE T A 4
& R —
i oy boS L e R 2
| <=
A e Y
k s —
i i :
B A & [); B Ljor s (T Ve 2 me._l_: 100, I e / LEGEND:
SV v Al g
sy L v
t RIGHT LANE CLOSURE
Wz0-1 wan-4 wap-7 A HMHELZING TEWCES
387 % aw Ly W5 ". S TACS s MR FT0F foL e RALEEE
TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL b oo o
LANE CLOSURE ON TWO LANE HIGHWAY
NTE —_ RAFFIC FLEW
TABLE 1 TABLE 2 GEMERAL NOTES:
REN RS GONE/DRUR SPACING P T B
ADAD TrRLC Ay APPROACH SPEED SRALING (FF.} 1. mmwmmmrmlmm&:swmwmmm
UBE S IserD ZojvRHloN Less ko] 2t B, 2 2 Mwmmﬁﬂmmummmm:mmw:mmmmsm
URBAN — SPEED 30 LPH OR LORE o 3 k) ROAD ALIGHMENT, SCHT DISTANCE, THTERSCUTIONS. DRVEWATS, PERMMENT SIGNS ER COSTRUCTIONS
PR b 45 [ 3 !urF:nmcmzlm»nlnﬂmwmwmmﬁmﬂm«ueﬂ\ﬂhﬁummw:m

SOHT DISTANCE CONSIDERATION,

MR, DAYE SANTDT
MISCELLAMECUS DETAILS

SHEET LONTENT:

| PROPOSED 20' HOUSE CONTAINER
LOT 1,5L06¢ 13, TRAET 1113,
wiALAN Gopvay,
ASTUMED, DEDEDHN, LAl

| ProweT.




D T e CT
ONY NY1300M ‘NYld HOOTd T L i 8 | ¢ m m m : -
UNAINGO 13IHS NOILYD0T gE | B G b
: 23z 3|% 5| 4B &
SOLNVS 3AVQ W HINIVINOD FSNOH 02 IFSOL0Nd mmm g m p m g M g
MmO :193r0ud 2gk i g m
@1 e o

&
e
=
O
=
2
L
ead |
L
—|
=
0-:
raf
am Zz
_—l|l“ﬂn|. ,.r. |m
s 28
® UG
. a T o
o X
o_.%“ S
g <k 3
e
a W- (&1
@ .. (o
Z|r
3
o
O
e
|
L1
[
=
3
4
%

i vl

ke R

¥

( ) RIGHTSIDE ELEVATION Is-cE_E "I;I_.w
SCALE 144* m gt

=1

o

SCALE




METAL SCRTWE
AT 247 D

»

METAL BEAD W,
TAFE JD"é o
RPN

H[ BA 2F 1-5/87 % COMFOUNG {FYPIAL) kY
H—3-5/a" soee

METAL FUKNER RURIEER CINE 1747 POWDER ACTUATED

3087 T 5 E BASE (P ™= §TUD BOLF & 24* O.C.

g — Ceam o i 31 FIN. FLODR LINE ..._2’%_1—sfr S =
J-5/8" ik Iy ARTINICH , FLOGR MET.
fLiihgrtd 4 T
STUiS B 18" O.C, L/ DA X 1T LONG ST W
METAL SCREW @ 167 O£ T
X W INTERSECTION
B ROOF e e W FLOCR

DOCR SCHEDULE

CELWG [~ %
UNE I=5./8" VERTICAL
S B
WIERICR CORMER

§ o1-5m0
METAL
187 oL,

Y B

@GYPSUM BOARD WALL CONNECTION DETAILS

e e ™E ROUGH DFEMIMG COOR SIZE
w H w H
e} ~ 134 Taa" 50" T g el Gg_ﬁ rwsum BECD W00 DOCHE
65 [ VU S ' 10r B—B* e . Nc[n\nnunssm
. » . .
! L
-
= k1 1 E:

A FF

o

WINDOW SCHEDULE

wak | e ROUGH DPENING WO HIE A
[] H w H
@ 'y . L ALULNUN FRAMED SLIDIMG WoiDow
§ A a-1 = - - PROVIDE ALLIM, [NSELT SCAEEN
@ L r-1" L ¥et” L ALLMHUS FRAWED FOED WINDOW

A

he o AAN

e
—

NOTES:

1. ALL ALUMINUM SMul BE MADE
POWCER WHITE FINIGH.
2. Al DOGR FINEH AMD COLOR
UWMER AFPROVED.

A AL DOOR AND WIHTHIWS AT
WS

7. DODR SHAlL BE LINOERELT T
PROVIDE
DOOR FREELY FRON APPUED FIN,
FLOOR WAIEfGALS MWD FLOODR
MOULENGS,

B. ECFEST OO HARDWARE SHALL
BE A LEMER TWPE

B. EGRESS COOR SHALL BE WEADLY
OFENALE FROW INSIDE WITHOLT
THE LSE OF KEY OR SPECUL
KNTMEGGE.

578" THK
CYPED WAL ——
PARTITHI

EXTERKIR CORNER METAL

BEAD WITH TAPE 4 JOINT
Ly IX)HPOUND—‘

LL il

MTERKM CORHER METAL
BEAD W/ TAPE 4 JOMT

Gho21-5/8° %
J-5/R' VERTOCM. METAL
ag,

BNCS & 18

i

B CORNER

A0 T SEMENT B —
PARTTIION

RUBBER COWVE
WSE [TV}
M, FLOOR LINE
SCHEDULE OF INTERIOR & EXTERIOR FINISHES
MAME NAME
FLOOR WALLY CEILING WSS
1ty o
& g
z g RELE:
N RRECERERHGE
= ] o alaljo
RN R
HHIE FE]
LIVING AREA, » . . . |
KITCHEM [ . [ ]
DINTG ARER L » L
BEDROOM=1 L J [ ] »
____?EDROOM-Z [ ] i [ ] L ]
BATHROGM L} L *
il _MASI'ER BATH ROOM [ ] - L ]
|
WALK—IN GLOSET ID . -

-’Y: [ CONTAMNER
H-24 Ga 1-

5/E x A-8087
HORZENTAL WETAL Mf‘
SPACED & 4~ G0,

17470 POWDER

ACTUATER
[{~ 5IuD BLIT ® 24* o,
| an Ma‘_ -5/ %
, 3 FLODR WETAL
SUHHER
| %

L

B FURRED WALL AT FERMITER

;

MR, DAVE SANTCS

:
vy
P8
&
T
5 |
z |
: |
-
S | iz
B | #
s |
5
g |
£ s
£ |3

CHELIED: OB Lo
AFPROWED: O |DATE: el gt
DRAWNG HO.

o



GENERAL NOTES:

THE CONTRAZTDN SHALL THORCUGHLY DN T DRAWNGE EEFDRE
WORE 0 INVOLVEDL

DECREPANTIES

ON THE DROWNGS  BEFORE
THE COMTRACTOR SALL BWETTIGATE THE TE DURING CLEARIMG  ANDY
EARTHWORN CPERATICNE FON UNDERGROUNG COATES, BURHD STRMCTURES
TR UNDERCRODMD UTLNES SUCH &S Tapsls, CESSPROOLS, FOLNDATIONS,
EL F a0 SICH STRETURES WE FOUND, THE ENGMEIR S
BF WOTFIED  RANIITELY.

THE LONTRACTOR Sabdl DasEDWTELY MOTIFY THE ENGINEEM OF AHY
CONDMCH WHCH ¥ HG OFNUH WIGHT EBROWGEN TS STNRLTY  OF
THE STRUCTIRL O CALISE DISTRESS T THE STRUCTURE

FRAYES,

TEMPORARY BRACEL. A5 PART OF HE RESPOWSEILTY, THE [OMTRACTOR
THALL FETAM THE SERWMCES (F AN EMGINCER 0 OESIGH AND SUPERVISE
M SCAFFOLDNG FUR IS MORMWEN AWD SHORSMG FORWS Anl ELEWEMTS
OF COMSTRUCTION AFFECTED BT He§ wosmn.

CONSTRUCTION WATERAL SHAMLL BE SPREKD OUT IF PLAGED 0N SUOFS
LOM SHEL W1 DOFR THC OESEM  LNE LOAD PIR SOUARE
FOOL, PROMDE AOCDWATE  SHORING AND/DR  BRACHG WHERE THE
STRUCFURE HAS MOT ATIMMED DESGN

. ML WORE  SHALL CONFORM 10 THE GONMUM SEOURTWENTS ©F THE
FOLLOWNG:

A THE 208 EDMON 4F THE (NTERWATONAL BLADME CCCE

ML MGMCHED FOUTRE, UTWMES, DO, THAT WOERFERE Wi WEW
CONSTRUCTION  SHALL BE  REWONED,

FRoWLE  OTWER  WATERMS, AT ROy CESORD @l
ROMED  FOR A COMFLETE AND PROPER INSTALLATICN, A5 SCLECTED BY
THE CONTRADTOR SURITT T THE APPRCNWAL OF THE EHGMERR.

. THE  COWTRACTUR  SHAL SUBWNIF  STRLCTURAL CHCARONS w0
STRUCTURN.

P09 metr EXPOSURE CATECORY L7

WHIES AMD DETMLS OW CRABMDS SHAL INE PRECIDENGE (VER
CINEEAL  NOTEE AMD TYPIOAL  DETMLS,

FOUNDATION:

THE COMSTHUCTION AREA EXTERING 5 FEE1 FRON GRALDANG LIWE SHOULD BE BE

CLERRET 10 REWME EOSTIG VEGETATI, TOR SOHL WD AWY OTHER DERWRS,
STRUCTURAL FLL, S0l BE WELL-GRADED CRAMLLME SO WH ROCK SIFFS

LEES Thad § INGHES, WO WORE THAY 15 PERCENT OF THE WATERIAL B wixcHT

SHOLUT BE PSR TrAl O 30 SEWE EXCAWIED NATERLL Wit BE RISUSFD

LPON AFPACYHL FROM THE SOL EWSMEER 0 BE RETANED A THE SOMTRACTOR.

STRUCTURAL FILL SHOLUD BE PLACED IN 10-WTH LDOSE LAYERS BTTH AT

LEAST S5 COWFALTICN, MITAMARLE BY ASTW 1557

ThE FOOTWG M0 FLOOR SLAD SHALL REST OW MiMWAM  OF 2" Tt comy
BRGECHURSE COMPACTER T0 S5 WANMEIM DEMSITY AMD LMD GH SONHD
A PATASE  EOSTING WATURAL SUBCRADE CAPARE (OF TUPPCRING 3000

5 Wi wAlod OF ROMNAROMG STELL SHALL B PORPAORMT ik Th

AN MOCFIHDENT TISTMG LABORAMGRY SHAL B REGUILE.

CONCRETE:

mmamntﬁmmmm{mm
L COMPRESSIE STRENGTHS AT AT 28 OATR

=Fe = 5000 P5
—Fe = A e

mmwmmmmmmmwm

" BMIMG OXC FIDURINENTS POt RONFDRCED
m [mala}mmmsvsmun:m
mmzmlmmmmnmm
S OIWFO T ST QM. PUCTMEND = )
T ACH TONDHRTE.

ML CIMCRETE MGES SHALL BE CEDCHID BY & CINRFED

CMGRETE SHML NOT B PIILY OROF T0 WORE Moy 3 FERLL
AL CONDRETE Skl BE PLACED WTRH & SUUAE W TO DOCEED 4 LHCHES.

SMEES WAL BT SECURELY WIROD TOGETMER AD Ghet Lae Of EXTDMD
A MMM OF ) BAR CAMETER UNLESS SHOWN OTHEMWESE OW PLAL

- AL TESTHG  THAT AWy € RECURED BY ThE THGBEETR TR AL WoRk
B0 WOVER SHAL BE FWD BT CONTRACFOR

REINFORCING STEEL:

1. ROWIROMC EUEEL SHAL BE HEW STOOC DFIRARD BARS COMFORMNG O
ATH 15 GRWE 4 WELDED WD FABRC Snall OE MADE OF COLI-
CRAMH WAE SO AMD AL COWORM R AST ATBS

1 ML BATS AL I JFIE OF RUST, GREATE, Wi SCAE OF ANY MATERIM,
WCH WA ATRCI THGR BN D COWCRETL

3 W BT FDES WS BF WADE COLD REMOM F ANES W, 40T B
PEFaTTED.

4. BEHONG, FLADNG, SPACHT, DOMCRTE PROMECTYE  COVER. SPLICHG, W
AL OTER DETHLS OF RENORUWG SAuL OOMtf 00 D ‘R rum
mmmmmmm)mmn
gusr;‘;?‘mmmmmm DOMCRETE STRECTIRES.

[T

[

1| NOTES:

1| ML BENTS SHALL BE MADE COLD,
45 |3

49 |4

=]

a7 e
TIE CR STIRRLUP

ﬁ e

1 K" o muty

T E.gi:l:u
] ROMF.

( 4 } BEAM SPLICE DETAIL
B1 5 SOME: HTS

)

WALL/SLAB SPLICE DETAIL
SO

HIS

:nn'm
-
)
10—
3 -
MAX, OFFSET BEND

/16y PRINCIPAL REINFORCING
51

SCME: NTS

/1 BAR BENDS AND LAPS
81

SCHE HTS

Wi DavE SAMTOS
CENERAL MOTES

SHEET CONTENT:

PROPOSED 2 HOUSE CONTAINER
LOT 1OLOEK +3. TRACT 1113,
CHALAN SORIFOZ,
ASTUMED, DEDEDO, GUAM

LOCATION:

IATE

BRRPTN

THE Wik, WS PREFARTD BY WE
DIRECT SUPLRMSHN

O LMER WY ki

DRAMMG NO.

.

ok P



SOALE 147 = '4F
r
NOTE: ZEACH 310" Db
ANCHOR BOLTE Rl - L]
nE X e
ALL ANGLES, BOLTS, PLATES uziowe EER e Vi AL HVELE WELD TG CONTAINER

MUST BE GALVANIZED OR SS. 3,___ TR
PAINT WELDING W/ ANTI

CORROSION PAINT. K T J?/—‘ ®
@

CONTARER —il
CFFICE ANER
L
ELAN @ CORNERS
SCALE 1 =1
CONTAIMER
2ZEACH 3 Blb,

ZEACH 1 DLk
ANCHUR BOLTS
W12 LOWG PER ANGLE

ANCHOR BOLTS
0 LONG FER ANGLE

COH. PEDESTAL ol

i

e

r\]

"

——mgTon
BOT, BARS

6.?\ PLAN

SCALE W3 =108

2045 VERT
N o Wi TIES i

DATE

REVIZICH [MESCRFTION

MR. DAVE SANTOS
FOUNDATICN PFLANS
AND MISC. DETAILS

SHEET COMTENT:

{OWNER,

LOT 1, BLOCK 13, TRACK
1113, CHALAN GORIYUS
ASTUMBO, DEDEDQ, GUAM

PROJECT:
PROPOSED 20' HOUSE CONTAINER

LOCATION

THES WORK K5 FREFARELD HY ME
OR LINDER MY DIREST
SPERVIEION

COH. PECESTAL i

wm% 2L

S IR e

PROJECT MUMBER  P-200R2

APFROVED DWR | APPROVED : WE

SCALE 11f2"=1{ w

DETA
SCALE 112" =100

E % ) LONGITUDINAL SECTON
s =10

73\ COLUMN/EOOTING

SCUNE3

W =1

DESIN : MER DA & B

CHECKED -DWR | S - (g

APPROVED - TWE | DATE : st g

DRAWING NO.




EPA LEAD-FREE CONSTRUCTION NOTES

22 GAR E140.43c): CERTIFET LEAD-FREE MATERIALS WUST BE LISED. AL
MATERMAS LEEEDY 1N THE [ TE

o MFEWIENTS, OHLY FRODUCTS THAT
EEEM CERTNICD A5 I.W-FHEE UNDER AY HE OF THE
I ANCARTES WY O M| STAHOARD 372, NEFANS

FOLLOWING 5T, s
STAHDARD 61, ANeafx G; aummn HE ABI9A3, SECTION 115HPS, DR AGME
LARFALRES Frin - EY N

{13 ENEWPTIONS. THE SEATIACATION REQUREMENT B THm SECTEW
SHALL MOT APPLY T

(A} PPES, FPE FITINGS, PLLNESNG FIITINGS, OR FIXTURES. MCLLENNG
AW PREVEMTERS THal LISED EXCLUSHELY FOR MOMPOIABLE
SENCB EUC.H“HNI‘MURI.G INDUSTRIAL PROCESSING, IRRIGATION,
GTHER UGS WHERE THE WATER 15 NOT
AN'|1C|PA"E° "DBE IEEDMKUM CONSUMPTION, TR

[EJ TAILETS, BWS. LERALS, FILL WALVES, FLUSHOMETER WAVES. Tul
FILLERS, SHOMR VALVES SERWEE EalmLES, DESTRIBUTKIN

DR WATER
MMM CATE WALVET THAT ARE TWO [2) INCHES IN DAAMETER OR LARGER.

22 GaR 6114304 BURDME OCCANANGY PERAETS, MO PUBLC WATER
SYETEM, POURLIC SYETEM COMPONENT, OF RESIDEMTIAL OR
NOMEESIGENTIL FACAITY WHICH m 5 PLUMBING THAT Pmm OR My
FROVIDE WATER FOR HUMAM CONSUMPTION SHALL RECEWE OLELPanET
PERMIT, Lasmnsncissuammmmm oy e EPA
THAT ML PIFET, E FITTINGE, PLUMEING FITTMOGS, OR FINTURES UPSTREAM
GF AN INCLWING ALL EHDPOMT OEWCES ARE LEAD=FREE, ACCEFTAHLE
EWIDEWCE SHALL BE IN ONE OF ThE FOLLCWING FINRMS:

(1} LEAD SAMPLING RESULTS THAT ARE .05 MILLIGRAWS PER LITER
('m%)’m LERS HN‘ST T SAMPLES COLLECTED FROM AlL REGLUIRED

ORIGINAL PROCUCT PACKIGHG OR APPROVED CN-FADIULT WARKINGS.
ED THIRCARGH IMGPECTHIN BY Glwad EPa STAFF, ILEWTIFTING EAcH
PIPE, FIPE FITING, PLUMBMG FITTING, 06t RXTURE UPSTREAM OF AND
INCLUGING £4CH ENDFOINT BEWICE AS HAVENG BEEN INDRPEN
CORMFIED A5 LEAD-FREE UNDER A1 LEAST ONE (1) OF THE STANDAROS
REFEREMCED W SUBSECTHMN (o) €F THI SECTION,

22 {‘-IR Bl41 lﬁ(l‘t —mEE COMPLANCE SAMPLING. AL SAMPLMG
EDMPLANCE WITH THIS SECTHON BHAL EoMPLY

“'I'H THE FOLLOWING XN m THESL SANPUING NBQLIIREMEN"S

APPLY T3 HEWLY CONSTRIKTED FACILITIES, AS WELL AS ABGCHE AN

REWNCVATIONS OF THESE SAME FACILITAES.

41} NI.NBER OF SAMPLES COLLE! . AL NEW WILﬂm
RENCHATICNS, DLCURNTY

SUBPARACFAFH
mﬁg&m\ oo e
Dfm THEN‘JHBERCI'MNTDMETUE

TESTED SHALL BE A% FTALOWS:

(A} BUILTING WITH LESE THAH FVE {5) ENDROINT DEVCES — ALL
[EVCES SeALL BE TESTEL.

{B] BULEWSE waTH FRE (S} OF MORE EWDPORT DEVICES - PRE (%)
EEMLES PLUS TEN PERCENT {i0X) OF THE TOTAL NUMEERS DF ENDPCOMT
SHALL TESTED: HOWEVER,

FRIUAAELY FOR DMMNOKG WATER SUPPLY AND cuonua I. WATER
FOUNTAMEG COLIFRE, KECHEN FAUCETS. SHAUL BE FELECTED AS MRST
PRIGRITY,

(G Be THE CASE OF NEWL X5 WELL AS ADDITIONS AHD REHOVATIONS oF
SEHOOLS, AMG MEALTH CARE FACLIMES — aLl
mmmlm:mmmﬁm

{2} FRST DftAw SAMPUES, AL SAMPIIS COULECTED FUR DETERMMIMG
COMPLILNCE WITH THIS SECTICH SMALL EBE FIRST DRAW SAMPLES, ‘FIHS'
QRAW SAMPLE" WEANS & CHE—LITER SaMPLE OF TAP WATER, COLLECTE
N .lDDUME WITH 40 FF 141,86{bN20, AS ADOFTED UNDER S‘-".!H

IS CMAFTER, THAT Hat BEEW STAMUMG N PLLNWEING PIFES
LD\ST B {8 HOLIH'S NG 15 COUECTED WATHOUT FLUSHING THE !AP
TAILLRE To THIS INSTRUCTION WaY RESLLT m CAMCELATIGN OF
BAMPLIMG, THE SAMFLE RESUNTS BENG INVALICATED, ANE,
ENFOSCEWENT ACTION LW TO AMD MMCLUOWG ACamisTRe Ml TR

TWENTT—FOUR (24} FOURS FRIOR TO SAUPLING.

13} SAMPLERS MUST BE W¥ROVWD. AL SauPLBiG CONDUCIED
SPLAKCE Wit THIG SECTION MUST GE PERFCRMEG

WAL NOT BE ACCEFTED,

(4) CEFTEED LABORATORIES. FOR THE PURPCEE &F WNINU
WUFLIANCE WITH THE RECUREWENTS GF THI SECTHIN. FLE REBATY
E WCCERTED A IABUE!TORY SPECIFICALLTY CEFI'IFIL'D BY Gk
[W\ l'DR THE AMALYTES MWD WETHODS LASED.

W.H. CONNECTION

ML W DR rwmmw

@FLOOR DRAIN OETAIL
WY

CAIR CHAMBER DETAIL

WASHING MACHINE

( )CONNECT ION DETAIL

C)GLEANOUT TO GRADE DETAIL

PLUMBING SYMBOLS

—— e LT
—— oo LI T

—— oAb e TP

——— b e » wow e
Aok b o e

W Ve o LIRS
e WO M GITRC W HEER
@0 e o o o me

[T T *  sam

PLUMBING FIMTURE SCHEDMILE

P ooz = _u.?"‘:m""w —
RTEN CLOET - 1 - st Trom
[ L we | A ¥ B .
Ieicwen o 1 v | # e o
CLECTRG, WATIN HESTER L e v - - rer

OTE

WA, OANE SANTOS
PLUMBOMG GIMERAL MITES
ANT WSC, DOTAILS

N EF
SHEET COMTENT.

LOT #BLOCK 13, TRACT 1113,

o
|77}
=z
g
=]
v}
al
wi
=
=]
I
©
~
jm]
ol
wi
1%
=]
E

THS WK MAS PREPARED BY NE

_uumwmm

PROECT ssEn P03

CESHMER: ¥ DRANM: Al

CHECKET: aFv W

MTREED: M |MIT RGN

DRAMMHG NG,




4" SEWER LINE CONNECT TO
EXISTING SEWERMAIN

[ SLOPE = /4" PER FEET MiN. @ ® @ @

Vi 4600 600
34 CWL
O—F—H———
e
SHO d ]
KS i
| FD___}
[ 2 RkstRoomM | !
/’ [ l
£YTR o
B = 3 = -
O 4°FCO
7 ®
AY 34" CVAL
24" COLD WATER LINE
CONNECT TG THE NEAREST
PUBLIC COLD WATER LINE

5\ ISO. SEWERLINE DIAGRAM

NTS

1

PLUMBING LAYOUT PLAN

SCALE Hig" =100

o

@ ISO. WATERLINE DIAGRAM

NTS

MR. DAVE SANTOS
SWERLINE ISOMETRIC WIEYY |REVISION [DESCRIPTION | DATE

PLUMBING LAYOUT PLAN
WATERLINE ISOMETRIC VIEWY,

SHEET CONTENT:

OWNER:

CONTAINER

LOCATION:
1113, CHALAN GORIYLS,

PROPOSED 20' HOUSE
LOT 1, BLOCK 13, TRACK
ASTUMBO, DEDEDO, GUAM

PROJECT:

',..

THES WDRK I3 PREPARED BY ME
[OF UNDER My DIRECT
BUFERWTSION

APPROVED : CWE | APPROVED : DWE

DESIGH : MSR CIRAAN | M

CHECKED: OWR | GUPY - D

APPROYED - [ANE | DATE | wone




1 ]
y &
ELECTRICAL NOTES ULE
LA e work Sl L BE W SCCOOINCE WIH THE APPUCADLE SECTONS O REFEREWCE POIMT !
GO0E () eEUTONL BULDNG CODE (BE). RU.ES kst PRI T i
MU wzsuunons oF THE ol OF FUBLC WORKE, GOVERMI rie ? WP U, CERMG, SURFACT WOUMTEDL, WIKETR DMOTES CNECT HUMERR LEMCE | atiimn) REFERENCE POMT |
BSCRFT GETTOR *o” DENATE {XMTRALNG SATICH PEMARNS H
UM FOWER MSTHERITY AND (U TELEPHONE AUTHORITY I L I e ON PLW | THESM | roor [ cmuws | 7o | & | e | sortou i
7 ML [OUFWENT AnD MATERULS SWALL 8E UL LISTED WHERE USTING 15 AVANABLE :
LED LGHT FIRTLAE, GOLIE, RECTSD =ounTED o) CLG, SURFACE MOUNTED i
FOR THAT TYPE OF EQURPMENT OF OONFORM 10 ANSI OF NEWA STANCUARDS. SUBWT T T e e o
SHCP DRAWINGS. AND PRODUCT BGRMATION CATALOG FOR APPROVAL i} o (ST PN R BT N CD0 ST Mo TED H . o .
3 WORKMAWSHIP SHUL CONFDRM WITH THE STaM(AR( EHGINEERING KD CONSTRUCTION [TEES | WAL 0% LD UMCAR UG FUTAE. CIRRK SORRACE WD = ol =
PRACTICES ENFORTED 6 GOVERKMENT OF GUAM MWD SHALL BE SUBJECTED TO THE E= T T o T e — S =2 - - by
APFROVML OF THE AGENCE Wit HAS JURSDICTION OMER THE FROJECT AnG o | PRMEUR SHTOL WAL WUORTED IR 130V, GROARCRSS TTE Yo aon & TOP COMMTER L]
PECOMMENTED: BY THE AMEREAN ELECTRICWM HANDBODK HY CROFT {LATEST ZDMed SUFGGATT LETTER 'c* BEWTE FITRtl CONTROUED
4. UETALLIC ENCLOSURES, AMEWAYS AMD ELECTRICAL [T £y | THREE Wt SWTCL sy MCsTn Gl = . S 2 £
W ACCORDANEE WITH RECUIREVENTS OF HEE ARTELE 250, PROVDE CROUND WIRE IN i A | et i bt S mATeC B =gl o o iy | oh e 3 O 8 €
EVERY RACTWAT SIIE M ACCORDAMCE WITH THE NEC TABLE, T30-34 B | e v e il S S A D 2P A 2 —
5. DBTAN AND PAY FOR PERWTS 4D CCMSHRUCTION LTLTES Bhr) | SO REECPTACLE. TP ATSIETANT. WALL WOUNTED = S i i = 3
B COOMNMATE WITH WECHANCAL THADE FOR ECLPMENT ACJUIREMENTS AND PROWIDE o | TMOLE RECFTATE, TSR RESATANT, ali, FLZH WMTELL BR1Ss, 138, G Ry - - . ¥ <
WIRING AND- PROTECTION OF THE ECUSFMENT AS WAT REQUNED, Lo iad - £
7. CONDANT SHALL GE PV {ENCASED I CONCRETE AMD GELOW GRADE], ALUMMNUM £ | SHOIF RECOTACIL wkl WHLNTID, 2P0 200v. COOLMOMG TrPE &) . Y =) £ “
NTED, 2PHOA, 20, CROVMING TTRE
(EXPOSED NGTALLATION). EMT (DRY LOCATICNE) GONGEALET ABOVE GRADE). FLIVIBLE SIS S ) ROEFT TAHLE [wie LY v — = N a | E
UMD SHALL BE MCHETED TYRE 1N ACCORDANCE WIH NEC ARTICLE 350. EI |ttt Coptt L I L0 = &
8. WRING SMALL EE NEC TYPL THW, THWH OR XHW, SO0V. COMDUGTORS SHALL BE T | Suo% CETECROR AN W/ BATTERY BAGK- P, COUMG TURFAE WOLNTED b | i 5
cormER (E7 | CwMIM WONOAIE AU ¥/ BAITERT BAGH_#, COUNY TARTACE MOLNTED @ O L. SURFACE WILNTED H
S WINIMUM SIZE OF WERE SMALL J13MMG AND MIMKAM SZE OF CONOUT SHML BE % 3 Frar® o " = =3 -
DWAETER UWLESS DTHERWNSE WOTED. H il
10, &Y DPMCES WAY BE INSTMLLED WITH 10° OF THE LOCATION ON THE ORAWING AT o EETET e . o | » =
THE DIRECTION DF THE BIREETION OF THE ARCHITECT AT bl 4ODMGMAL 50ST 10 = s " E— . =T — Z
THE DHMWER. : }_"(_
14, GUTDOOR INSTALLATION SHALL BE Ramn THGHT. 5 z
1Z. PAMEL BOARD SHALL BE COMPLETT WITH GIFS ENCLOSUWE AND TRIM MOLDED CAST = - Q g;
CRCUTT BREASER PLUG=M TYFE WITH RATING 45 WRCATED AND TrPE WRTTEN ) S o -
CIRCUIT DIREETORY. = = o 98
13 ELECTAICAL WORK SHALL BE UWDEH IME FULL SUFSRVISIDN DF A MASTER - = E§
ELECTRAGIAN REGETERED 10 PRAGTKE iN GUAM, g =
14. SHOKE DETECTOR / GARBOM MONGNEE SWDKE DETECTOR SHML BE WIRED ON ¥ §3g
TAMDEW SO THAT THE ACTRATION OF ONE OETECTOR SHALL CAUSE OTHER DETECTOR g gid
T SIUND AN ALARM SMULTANETAERY AFPROVED M ACCORDANCE WITH GaM FIRE a -9
COOE / FEDERM FRE CODE AN(H WITH BATTERY BACK—LF. : o =
A SMOKE DETECTDR SHALL BE 120 ¥ AG WITH BATIERY BACK—UP AND N COMPLAHCE WTH UL : 8
B CARBON MONGODE DETECTOR SMALL BE 120W AL WITH BaTTERY BACK=UP AMD L £
N COUPLIANCE WITH LL 202e g 8 z
14, [T 5 THE WTEMT OF THE PLANS TO PROVIDE & COMPLETE AND WORKAGLE £ o &
CISTAUATION ™ EVEAY OETAL AND AL TTEMS RECURED S SE PROVDER e [ = ==
WHETHER OF HDT ¥ g oM R SRELIPED m TS b, ok I T S R
READY_ FUR AHD A3 RETATRED
{NECG,FCIBC) 4D LOCAL REGULATIONS, LAWS AND GRTERS, LD
14, PLAMS NI DRANSGS FOR EECTRCH, WORK ARE DWGRAMMATIC AND ARE INIENDED To E [0
SOy SCope 4D GENERAC IERANCIMENT, OHLY. CONTRACTOR, Sl RenEw P s
ELECTRICAL DRAWDHS AM0 DTHER CSCIPLINCS T0 GOORDINATE ELECTRICA, Wom: =
17. PROVDE ACCEST PANELS T0 JUWCTION BOMES, PULLBOAES AND  DISCONWECT BWTTCH :
BGIIE CERMG SPACE. T
100 .
18, CODRDMATE AL ELEETRICAL COMMECTION OF AL APPLIANCES AS TO TYPE OF :
COMWECTION, ELECTRICA LOAD AMD VDUTAGE. PROVIDE NECESSMRY ADWSTMENMT A3 TOTAL LA 18,000
LTS TOTAL AP 5
10, AL FLECTREAL CONDUT PENETRATION THRU FIRE WALLS SHALL BE FIFE STCFPED, APFLED DEWAND FACTOR 0%
0. COMTRATTOR SHALL SUBMIT AS BINT 1D THE ARCHITECT 4MC OR CWHER Lk 0

THE. Wifh, WAS PREFAREL: NY ME
Cf eadiER Y DRECT SPERMEH

21, FROVMOE PULLBCK A5 REGUINEG BY NEC, EVEW NOT Sedien N DRAWTMODS,
22 ML LIGHTING FOTURES SHALL BE ARFROVED: B ARGHITECT AND DR DWNER,

smummmmmmwmﬁamm‘mmmm«(&]
FEET ABOVE FLODR SHAL BE CAST ALLIMEAR,

24 AL EFCTRICAL EQUIPWENT SUBJECT T0 WEPATIONS Seall BE CONMECTED wiTH
FLEXIBLE COMOHKTS

5, PROWVIDE SURPORTS ON AL A5 PER 5

I8 ML ELECTRICAL DEWCES AM EOUIPUENT [APOSED T WEATHER SHal B
WEATHERFP RO

27 Ml 120 vOUT RECEFTACLES SeM: BE TAMPER RESISTANT TYPE
S i CRALEL TSy (7)RUCT DETAILISECTION E-1

THEET 12, oF

DETGHET: B DRutic &

GO W e

APFRCVET: OB | DATE IO ER

- DRAWING NO.

.



@ ®
! ,i ANEL'A"
1a | |
@ .
==  E
lEl ||:‘ .
* : TEL. GABINET
X W ' TV CABINET
.‘ !
LIGHTING LAYQUT PLAN
1 SCME 154" =1
@ ®
! ! ANEL A"
- A B0 !
e .
a A . 2
I\\ ! a %— g i
- e b v
RESTROOM | ,’/7“ o Yoo
N | A—L': \-_ }
o SN 5 ! ——
13 )A oo 4\ - \\I Il{l/’,’
o FCA-14 T ’ FEU- 1
| ) TEL CABINET
| . TV CABINET
| |
(7)-POWER LAYOUT PLAN

@
|

DaTE

REVISCH [DESCRIPTION

/2]
g [+
< gz
s | 5t
. 25
11
of 'g:c
& = 3 =2
g &
8 3
o
w
=
£ | g
= =
S FEo
s FEg
§ ‘;’wg
I 52'-'-'
: 830
. R a‘gd
5 g g-oe
w ]
o8 |EgER
=] % O -0
] <
O
o
-l

20523

THIS VK 13 PREFARED BY ME
R URDER T INRECT

T0
ACOU- 1B

ROOF LEVEL
CONC. PEDESTAL i
@ KWH METER LBanF, 16y Fiofzeor
2004 1201240 :
- g 19, 3W, 4-JAW
4 ae % VERIFY GP.A. S 1#5 B.C, GROUND
B w REQUIREMENTS WIRE IN 34" CONDUIT
E GROUND  EL TO GROUND ROD 58'G X 80"
N e T NERST P
NDERGROUND 4 110 AWG WIRE & 148 GRD
SERVICE ENTRANCE I 2 -CONDUIT
GPA CONNECTION
3410 AWGWIRE & 1#5 WIRE IN - CONDUIT
GRO N 2 ~CONDUIT TO GROUND ROD 5/'G X B0
- POWER RISER DIAGRAM
3
12 K1ZHED T.Y, CABINET
WIS THK BACKBOARD
v, BED.H  BED.#2
|
GAD. FIN, LINE—) ﬂ | P
t l J ‘ I ‘ I TV OUTLET
IL
34" CONDUT TO T, 34” CONDUIT
PEDESTAL WITH PULL WIRE
1812 TINNED COPPER WIRE e
{GRD) IN 1@ CONDUIT TO i
SR XB-0
P — . 1. SEEPLANS FOA DIVICE EXACT
@ T.V. ONE LINE DIAGRAM auANIY.
NTS
12 X136 TEL, CABRET
Wi §/8° THIC BACKEOARD .
r TEL OUTLET
§ Ly KT BEDM  BED.#2
2
GAD, Fil, LIN
| L [ | O [
34" CONDUIT TO (GTA} TEL 34" CONDUIT
PEDESTAL OR TO END OF WITH PULL WIRE
PROPERTY QR TEND OF 4#12 TINNEE COPPER WIRE
PROPERTY BOUNDARY EXACT (GRD.) IN 1/2°@ CONDUIT TO HoTES.
LOCATICN TO BE VERIFIED SIB"D X&'-0" GROUND ROD
BY GTA ENG. (Wi PULL WIRE) 1. SBE PLANG FOR DRVIGE EXACT

SUPERMSION

PROJECT MAJGER  P.R0032

APPROYED ! DB

APRCVED : TWR

DERIGH : MER

DRy -

CHETXED : W

SUFY . OWB

APPROVED : B

DATE : g sar ey

DORAVANG MO,

@ TEL. ONE LINE DIAGRAM
NTS _

E-2

SHEET _13 or 13

i




CHamoru Land Trust Commission
Land Agent Staff Report

JOLEEN M. ALMANDRES
RESIDENTIAL APPLICANT

.  REQUEST
» Terminate Residential Lease.
» Request reimbursement for Property Taxes in the amount of $280.00.

» Request to be relieved of lease rent payments.
II. ISSUE(S)

» Lessee has not occupied the premises on a full-time basis.

» Lessee has not properly installed and metered all utilities.
» Lesse has outstanding lease rent payments of $99.00.
> Lessee has outstanding real Property Taxes of $865.62.
>

1] FACTS
1. Applicant’s Date and Time: December 2, 1995 at 8:48 am.
2. Applicant’s Application Number: 0000057
3. Application Type: Residential
4. Lot Description: Lot 20, Blk 04, Tract 9210 (Phase-1) Yigo
5. Survey Map: N/A
6. Priority: 1
7. Preoccupier: N/A
8. Land Use Permit (LUP): N/A

9. Mayor’s Certification: N/A
10.Recorded Lease: N/A
11.Unrecorded Lease: Yes

12.Lease Fee Paid: No

13.1s this a Registered Property? Yes
14.Residing on Private Property: N/A
15.Residing on Guam Ancestral Lands Property: N/A
16.Part of Null and Void Listing: N/A
17.Part of 2018 Ratified Listing: No
18.Part of 1995 Listing: Yes

19.Part of OPA Audit Listing: N/A

JOLEEN M. ALMANDRES
COMPILED BY EC LAND AGENT 11
7/16/2025



CHamoru Land Trust Commission
Land Agent Staff Report

IV.  CHRONOLOGY

1.

January 3, 1997: Lessee was interviewed.

2. January 23, 1997: Lease was issued.
3.
4. May 27, 2025: Ms. Joleen M. Almandres submitted a letter to CLTC requesting for lease

March 11, 2025: Lessee met with AAD Mr. Joey Cruz and CLTC Staff Jessica Dayday.

fee payments to be waived in the amount of $99.00 and Real Property taxes in the
amount of $865.62.

May 27, 2025: Ms. Almandres submitted to CLTC a Notarized Form for Notice to
Terminate Lease Award Voluntarily.

V. SUMMARY
» Lessee is requesting to Terminate her Lease.
» Lessee is requesting Lease Fee payments and Real Property taxes be waived

JOLEEN M.

7/16/2025

ALMANDRES
COMPILED BY EC LAND AGENT 11



Joleen MLM. Almandres
P.O. Box 1127 Hagiitiia, Guam 96932
671-727-1205 / joleenalmandres{@gmail.com

May 27, 2025

Mr. Joseph B. Cruz, Jr.

Acting Administrative Director

Kumision Inangokkon Tano’ CHamoru
CHamoru Land Trust Comrussion (CLTC)
PO. Box 2950 Hagatfia, Guahan 96932

Hafa Adai Mr. Cruz,

On March 7, 2025, I received 2 call from CLTC staff Ms. Jessica Dayday notifying me to come into the
CLTC office to meet with you regarding areas of non-compliance found after a CLTC compliance
mmspection was conducted on my CLTC leased property fLot 20, Black 4, wract 9210 (Phase -1)
Municipality of Yigo].

I was never provided a copy of my CLTC Residential Lease after signing the agreement on January 23,
1997, during a signing event in Yigo with then Lt. Governor Madeleine Z. Bordallo, Thus, I requested
Ms. Dayday for a copy of the agreement for my review before meeting with you, which I received via
email on March 10, 2025.

On March 11, 2025, I met with you and Ms. Dayday at the CLTC office in in Tamuning. During the
meeting, you read the Notice to Remediate Residential Lease addressed to me, and a copy was emailed
to me 2 days later. The notice identified 4 areas of non-compliance, which are listed below:

- Lessee has not occupied the Premises on a full-time basis.
- Lessee has not property instalied and metered all utilities.
- Lessee has outstanding lease rent payments of $99.00.

- Lessee has outstanding Real Property taxes of $865.62.

Although you explained how to come into compliance, you informed me that | am no longer eligible to
be a lessee, as my husband is also a lessee. For this reason, enclosed is my signed and notarized Notice
fo Terminate Lease Award Voluntarily form.

I want to mention that for the past 28 years, [ have never received direction, instruction, or
communication from the CLTC concerning my lease terms. Therefore, ] am requesting the CLTC to
relieve any lease rent payments due, request to be relieved of any Real Property taxes due under my
name, and be reimbursed for property taxes I have paid on the aforementioned CLTC property from
2018 to 2024, amounting to $280.

Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact me via email, and 1 look forward to the
Commission’s favorable response to my requests.

Senseramente,

Y sty

een M M. Almandres

Enclosure

—GEIVED

e



Notice to Terminate Lease Award Voluntarily

|, Joletn Maric Mabayagq AMmandres (Lessee), whose address
s__fo ox 1127 Hagétrs, Guanr_Guqsz
| request that the CHamoru Land Trust Commission (CLTC) terminate my

lease with CLTC due to my inability to comply with the lease terms at this
time. | will waive any and all liabilities and witl not pursue any claims against
CLTC regarding the lease that | am requesting to Terminate.

QeI . obror-drn 328" 208(
V4

Lessee Date

NOTICE TO LESSEE BY SIGNING THIS “NOTICE TO TERMINATE LEASE AWARD
VOLUNTARILY,” YOU ARE REQUESTING CLTC TO TERMINATE YOUR CLTC
LAND LEASE IMMEDIATELY. SIGNING THIS DOCUMENT HAS IMPORTANT
LEGAL CONSEQUENCES. WE URGE YOU TO CONSULT WITH AN ATTORNEY
BEFORE SIGNING.

on this __ 29T day of _ MRRUE 2025, before me, the undersigned notary
personally appeared ___ JUIEEN M AUNANDRE , known to me to be the

person whose name is subscribed to the within the instrument and for its stated
purpose.

In witness whereof, | have hereunto affixed my name and official seal.

Notary Pub!ic‘ﬂ%%m__‘

My Commission é)qgires DEU.,9078

MAELEEN .0, AGUON
P

Page 3 of 3



CHamoru Land Trust Commission
Land Agent Staff Report

MARK MENDIOLA ALMANDRES
RESIDENTIAL APPLICANT

.  REQUEST
» Terminate Residential Lease.
» Request reimbursement for Property Taxes in the amount of $280.00.

» Request to be relieved of lease rent payments.
II. ISSUE(S)

» Lessee has not occupied the premises on a full-time basis.

» Lessee has not properly installed and metered all utilities.
» Lesse has outstanding lease rent payments of $99.00.
> Lessee has outstanding real Property Taxes of $865.62.
>

1] FACTS
1. Applicant’s Date and Time: December 2, 1995 at 8:48 am.
2. Applicant’s Application Number: 0000058
3. Application Type: Residential
4. Lot Description: Lot 07, Blk 22, Tract 9210 (Phase-1) Yigo
5. Survey Map: N/A
6. Priority: 1
7. Preoccupier: N/A
8. Land Use Permit (LUP): N/A

9. Mayor’s Certification: N/A
10.Recorded Lease: N/A
11.Unrecorded Lease: Yes

12.Lease Fee Paid: No

13.1s this a Registered Property? Yes
14.Residing on Private Property: N/A
15.Residing on Guam Ancestral Lands Property: N/A
16.Part of Null and Void Listing: N/A
17.Part of 2018 Ratified Listing: Yes
18.Part of 1995 Listing: Yes

19.Part of OPA Audit Listing: N/A

MARK MENDIOLA ALMANDRES
COMPILED BY EC LAND AGENT 11
7/16/2025



CHamoru Land Trust Commission
Land Agent Staff Report

IV.  CHRONOLOGY

1.

January 6, 1997: Lessee was interviewed.

2. January 23, 1997: Lease was issued.
3.
4. May 27, 2025: Mr Mark Mendiola Almandres submitted a letter to CLTC requesting for

March 11, 2025: Lessee met with AAD Mr. Joey Cruz and CLTC Staff Jessica Dayday.

lease fee payments to be waived in the amount of $99.00 and Real Property taxes in
the amount of $865.62.

May 27, 2025: Mr. Almandres submitted to CLTC a Notarized Form for Notice to
Terminate Lease Award Voluntarily.

V. SUMMARY
» Lessee is requesting to Terminate her Lease.
» Lessee is requesting Lease Fee payments and Real Property taxes be waived.

MARK MENDIOLA ALMANDRES
COMPILED BY EC LAND AGENT 11

7/16/2025



Mark A.M. Almandres
P.O. Box 1127 Hagitiia, Guam 96932
671-727-8520 / markalmandres@yahoo.com

May 27, 2025

Mr. Joseph B. Cruz, Jr.

Acting Administrative Director

Kumision Inangokkon Tano’ CHamoru
CHamoru Land Trust Commission (CLTC)
P.O. Box 2950 Hagétiia, Guahan 96932

Hafa Ada Mr. Cruz,

On March 7, 2025, my wife received a call from CLTC staff Ms. Jessica Dayday notifying to come
into the CLTC office to meet with you regarding areas of non-compliance found after a CLTC
compliance inspection was conducted on my CLT leased property fLot 7, Block 22, Tract 9210 (Phase
-1) Municipality of Yigo].

I was never provided a copy of my CLTC Residential Lease after signing the agreement on January
23, 1997, during a signing event in Yigo with then Lt. Governor Madeleine Z. Bordallo. Thus, my
wife requested Ms. Dayday for a copy of the agreement for my review before meeting with you,
which she received via email on March 10, 2025,

On March 11, 2025, I met with you and Ms. Dayday at the CLTC office in Tamuning. You read the
Notice to Remediate Residential Lease addressed to me, and at my wife’s request, a copy of the notice
was emailed to her 2 days later. The notice identified 4 areas of non-compliance, which are listed
below:

- Lessee has not occupied the Premises on a full-time basis.

- Lessee has not properly installed and metered all utilities,

- Lessee has outstanding lease rent payments of $99.00.

- Lessee has outstanding Real Property taxes of $865.62.

Because I will not meet full compliance within one year of notification of non-compliance, I submit
my signed and notarized Notice to Terminate Lease Award Voluntarily form.

Further, for the past 28 years, I have never received direction, instruction, or communication from the
CLTC to be aware of my lease terms. Therefore, | am requesting the CLTC to relteve any lease rent
payments due, request to be relieved of any Real Property taxes due under my name, and be
reimbursed for property taxes that I have paid on the aforementioned CLTC property from 2018 to
2024, amounting to $280.

Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact me via email, and I look forward to the
Commission’s favorable response to my requests.

Senseramente,

RECEIVED

Enclosure



Notice to Terminate Lease Award Voluntarily

,_Mar k Mendzo/q Almandres (Lessee), whose address
is_P0. Box 11327 Hz?a:fha?r Cu. 96732

| request that the CHamoru Land Trust Commission (CLTC) terminate my
lease with CLTC due to my inability to comply with the lease terms at this
time. | will waive any and all liabilities and will not pursue any claims against
CLTC regarding the lease that | am requesting to Terminate.

4 /a§A"
W "‘;’é?/ G
{essee ‘ Date

NOTICE TO LESSEE BY SIGNING THIS “NOTICE TO TERMINATE LEASE AWARD
VOLUNTARILY,” YOU ARE REQUESTING CLTC TO. TERMINATE YOUR CLTC
LAND LEASE IMMEDIATELY. SIGNING THIS DOCUMENT HAS IMPORTANT
LEGAL CONSEQUENCES. WE URGE YOU TO CONSULT WITH AN ATTORNEY
BEFORE SIGNING.

on this _7UTH _ day of MM ., 2025, before me, the undersigned notary
personally appeared LIAFY MDPEN _MENDINLA AMANDEEL | known to me 1o be the

person whose name is subscribed to the within the instrument and for its stated
purpose.

In witness whereof, | have hereunto affixed my name and official seal.

Notary Pubufﬁgﬁm‘ﬁ‘“

My Commission @ires 0L 09\.,'107«%

Page 3 of 3



CHamoru Land Trust Commission
Land Agent Staff Report

DANIEL C. LUJAN
Agriculture Lessee

I.  MATTER(S): 1) Cancellation of Application and Lease Agreement; and 2) Waiver of tax years
2011-2014

Il FACTS
1) Applicant’'s Date and Time: December 2, 1995 at 4:00PM
2) Applicant’s Application Number: 0000529
3) Original Application Type: Residential
4) Lot Description on Lease Agreement: Portion of Lot 528 Merizo
5) Lot Size: Not more than 2-acres
6) Master Plan Identification: Lot 528-4 Merizo
7) Survey Map: None
8) Priority: N/A
9) Preoccupier: No
10) Land Use Permit (LUP): N/A
11) Mayor’s Certification: N/A
12) Recorded Lease: 684597
13) Unrecorded Lease: N/A
14) Lease Fee Paid: None; As per lease agreement — “Rental fees shall be determined at a later
date”
15) Is this a Registered Property: Yes
16) Residing on Private Property: No
17) Residing on Guam Ancestral Lands Property: No
18) Part of Null and Void Listing: No
19) Part of 2018 Ratified Listing: Yes
20) Part of 1995 Listing: No
21) Part of OPA Audit Listing: No
22) Lease Approved by CLTC Board of Commissioners: Yes

.  CHRONOLOGY

1) December 2, 1995 — Agriculture Application submitted by Daniel C. Lujan. Application No.
0000529 at 4:00PM

2) September 2, 1998 — Request to change application type from Residential to Agriculture
indicated on the Residential Interview Report. Approved by AD J.M. Borja.

3) July 29, 2003 — Survey Authorization issued to Mr. Lujan for a Portion of Lot 528, Merizo no
more than 2-acres from J.M. Borja.

4) July 29, 2003 — Approval of application for building and clearing permits from AD J.M. Borja.

5) August 29, 2003 — Agriculture Lease Agreement issued to Mr. Lujan for a Portion of Lot 528,
Merizo containing not more than 2-acres subject to survey. Signed by AD J.M. Borja and
Governor Carl Gutierrez; no signature from Mr. Lujan; however, this lease was recorded under
Ins. No. 684597

DANIEL C. LUJAN

COMPILED BY LAND AGENT 11, JMCASEM
06 AUG 2025



CHamoru Land Trust Commission
Land Agent Staff Report

6) October 21, 2014 — Agriculture inspection conducted by J. Acfalle and S. Duenas indicating that
the place he was occupying is undeveloped.

7) January 28, 2021 — CLTC Land Agent J. Casem and survey crew met with Mr. Lujan at his
father’s private property so he can show us the lot he was supposed to utilize. He advised that
the property is an incline and is not feasible to utilize.

8) Mary 21, 2021 — Land agents G. Eay and J. Casem met with Mr. Lujan to advise him of the
findings regarding the property behind his father’s private property. Findings from the research
identified that the property behind his father’s is private property; therefore, he is unable to use
it. Documents supporting this finding was placed in his file for reference. CLTC placed him on
Lot 528-4, municipality of Merizo based on the Master Plan Map.

9) May 23, 2025 — Submission of tax receipt payments for years 2015 through 2024.

10) May 29, 2025 — Notarized letter of request from Mr. Lujan in regards to the cancellation of his
CLTC application and lease agreement of recorded document no. 684597.

11) June 18, 2025 — Request of any pending tax assessments under Daniel C. Lujan to Department
of Revenue and Taxation (DRT) sent to Property Division

12) July 10, 2025 — Response from DRT via email regarding the pending tax payments owed under
Daniel C. Lujan totaling $293.44 from the tax analysis.

13) July 31, 2025 — Compliance inspection conducted by land agents E. Chargualaf and J. Casem
to identify the occupancy of Mr. Lujan within Lot 528-4, municipality of Merizo. Based on the
compliance, Mr. Lujan is not occupying.

14) August 4, 2025 — Mr. Lujan came in to inquire on the tax assessment received from DRT. He
wishes to seek the board’s approval to waive his pending tax payments for years 2011-2014.

IV. SUMMARY
Mr. Lujan was under the assumption that CLTC would assist him with a relocation request to a different
lot within Merizo, as the property behind his father's land is not within CLTC inventory. However, he
claims he was never given the opportunity to settle on an agriculture property. Many years later, he
recalled his agriculture lease and contacted our office for an update on his status.

The Master Plan Map placed Mr. Lujan on Lot 528-4, municipality of Merizo, near the Merizo church.
This assignment occurred because CLTC did not physically locate him during the MP Map's
development. For taxing purposes, Mr. Lujan was placed on this particular lot, which is not more than 2
acres.

Mr. Lujan would like to return the 2-acre property to the CLTC inventory through the cancellation of his
application and agriculture lease. He also requests a waiver for tax years 2011 through 2014, as he
states he never received statements from the Department of Revenue and Taxation for those years.
However, as per 875A108(f)(g), The lessee shall pay all taxes assessed upon the tract and
improvements thereon. The Commission may in its discretion pay such taxes and have a lien therefor
as provided by 8§ 75A114 of this Law. The lessee shall perform such other conditions, not in conflict with
any provision of this Chapter, as the Commission may stipulate in the lease; provided, however, that an
original lessee shall be exempt from all taxes for the first seven (7) years from the date of the lease.

DANIEL C. LUJAN
COMPILED BY LAND AGENT 11, JMCASEM
06 AUG 2025



21 GCA REAL PROPERTY
CH. 75A CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2021

Commission and who has actually occupied such land for more than six (6) months
immediately last past.

(C) Asused in this Subsection, government of Guam shall include all of the government
of Guam, its agencies and instrumentalities, including autonomous agencies, except for the
Commission.

(2) Water shall be metered for both private and agricultural/aquaculture use. Approval by
the Administrative Director of the Commission, or the Director of Land Management, does not
waive any of the utilities’ requirements or restrictions for the installation of the utilities, and the
qualified applicant shall be responsible for paying the actual connection fees. The application,
issuance, and connection of utilities shall not prejudice anyone in any ejectment action, quiet title
action, litigation or claim relating to the property, nor shall it be construed as an admission, nor
shall it create any presumptions.

(3) The application for a utility extension pursuant to this Subsection and the connection of
utilities shall in no way prejudice the qualified applicant in any way as to any claim or litigation
relating to ownership of the land in question, the validity of any lease or land use permit, the right
of the qualified applicant to occupy the property, or the qualified applicant's use of the property.
By so applying for utilities, the qualified applicant is in no way admitting, recognizing or ratifying
any claim which the government of Guam or the Commission may have to the land in question.

(4) The granting of a utility extension pursuant to this Subsection and the connection of
utilities shall in no way prejudice the government of Guam or the Commission in any way as to
any claim or litigation relating to ownership of the land in question, the validity of any lease or
land use permit, the right of the qualified applicant to occupy the property, or the qualified
applicant’s use of the property. By so granting such a clearance, neither the government of Guam
nor the Commission is in any way admitting, recognizing or ratifying any claim which the
qualified applicant may have to the land in question.

(e) The lessee shall not in any manner transfer to, or mortgage, pledge, or otherwise hold for the
benefit of, any other person or group of persons or organizations of any kind, except an eligible
beneficiary or beneficiaries; and then only upon the approval of the Commission, or agree so to
transfer, mortgage, pledge, or otherwise hold, his interest in the tract. Such interest shall not, except in
pursuance of such a transfer, mortgage, or pledge to or holding for or agreement with an eligible
beneficiary or beneficiaries approved of by the Commission or for any indebtedness due the
Commission or for taxes, or for any other indebtedness the payment of which has been assured by the
Commission, including loans from governmental agencies where such loans have been approved by
the Commission, be subject to attachment, levy, or sale upon court process. The lessee shall not sublet
his interest in the tract or improvements thereon.

(f) The lessee shall pay all taxes assessed upon the tract and improvements thereon. The
Commission may in its discretion pay such taxes and have a lien therefor as provided by § 75A114 of
this Law.

(g) The lessee shall perform such other conditions, not in conflict with any provision of this
Chapter, as the Commission may stipulate in the lease; provided, however, that an original lessee shall
be exempt from all taxes for the first seven (7) years from the date of the lease.

(1) Thirty (30) days after the enactment of this Act, Chamorro Land Trust Property leases
surveyed at the cost of the government of Guam shall not be eligible for the tax exemptions
stipulated in this Subsection as an offset to the cost of such surveys.

12


jhoana.casem
Highlight

jhoana.casem
Highlight


CHamoru Land Trust Commission
Land Agent Staff Report

EMILIA S.N. PALACIOS (dec)
Agriculture Lessee

MATTER(S):

1) Anthony S.N. Palacios is disputing his father, Antonio Rabago Palacios, acquiring successor
rights to his mother’s lease agreement

2) Affidavit of Occupancy from Antonio Rabago Palacios

FACTS

1)

Applicant’s Date and Time: December 2, 1995 at 8:09AM
Applicant’s Application Number: #9

Original Application Type: Residential

Current Application Type: Agriculture

Lot Description: Lot 476 Agat

Survey Map: 154FY2000 — Land Registration Map of Lot 476, Agat
Priority: N/A

Preoccupier: Yes, Santa Ana, Guam (as stated on the application)
Land Use Permit (LUP): None

10) Mayor’s Certification: None provided

11) Recorded Lease: No

12) Unrecorded Lease: Yes

13) Lease Fee Paid: No payments have been made
14) Is this a Registered Property: Yes

15) Residing on Private Property: No

16) Residing on Guam Ancestral Lands Property: No
17) Part of Null and Void Listing: No

18) Part of 2018 Ratified Listing: Yes

19) Part of 1995 Listing: No

20) Part of OPA Audit Listing: No

21) Lease Approved by CLTC Board of Commissioners: N/A

CHRONOLOGY

1) December 2, 1995 — Emilia SN Palacios submitted her Residential Application

2) June 5, 1997 — Emilia SN Palacios enters into a Ground Lease with CLTC under a Portion of Lot
480 Santa Ana, Agat, containing an area of 5,736 sgm, subject to survey

3) December 4, 1997 — Letter from Emilia SN Palacios to AD Borja in regards to the approval of a
loan from Guam Housing Corp.

4) April 20, 1998 — Emilia SN Palacios enters into a Ground Lease with CLTC under Lot 476, Agat,
containing an area of 4,471 square meters; all signatures; lease is pending recordation

5) July 20, 2000 — Emilia S.N. and Antonio R. Palacios entered into a CLTC Loan Guaranty on Lot
476 Agat for the sum of $50,000.00; all parties signed the document

6) December 13, 2000 — A Memorandum of Lease under Antonio R. and Emilia S.N. Palacios in
regards to “Lessor” Emilia S.N. Palacios on Lot 476 Agat under Ins. No. 630931

7) October 2, 2018 — Ms. Emilia SN Palacios’ Agriculture Lease Agreement on Lot 476 Agat was

ratified under Resolution 2018-08

EMILIA S_.N. PALACIOS (DEC)
COMPILED BY LAND AGENT Il1, JMCASEM

05 AUG 2025



CHamoru Land Trust Commission
Land Agent Staff Report

8) July 7, 2021 — CLTC conducted a site inspection on the property of Ms. Emilia Palacios regarding
their inquiry on the lot size of the property.

9) July 30, 2021 — Land Agents E. Chargualaf and J. Casem conducted a Compliance Inspection on
Lot 476 Agat; current lot occupied by Antonio R. Palacios and Anthony SN Palacios.

10) April 4, 2022 — Emilia SN Palacios names Anthony SN Palacios, son, as her named successor
under 21 GCA, Chapter 75.

11) December 11, 2024 — Death Certificate of Emilia SN Palacios submitted by Anthony SN Palacios

12) March 11, 2025 — Lt. Governor’s EA J. Cepeda, AAD J. Cruz and J. Casem met with Mr. Antonio
Rabago Palacios at the LT’s Office to discuss his inquiry on the property he shared with his wife
in Agat.

13) April 15, 2025 — AAD Cruz, J. Casem, and J. Dayday met with Mr. Anthony SN Palacios and his
wife to discuss his successorship of Ms. Emilia SN Palacios. As per AAD Cruz, Mr. Anthony will
still need to go through the process of qualification under 75A

14) June 5, 2025 — AAD Cruz, G. Eay, J. Casem met with Mr. Antonio Palacios to discuss the Affidavit
of Occupancy to qualify under 75A. He requested to meet with the CLTC Boad to address his
concerns.

15)June 5, 2025 — Affidavit of Occupancy submitted from Antonio Rabago Palacios. Pending
approval of his 75A qualifications.

16) July 28, 2025 — AAD Cruz, G. Eay, J. Casem met with Anthony SN Palacios to discuss the findings
based on CLTC’s legal counsel regarding the status of the lease agreement of his mother.
Anthony would like to dispute the findings of Atty. Miller and bring his concerns to the CLTC Board
of Commissioners. Pending the qualifications of Anthony SN Palacios under 75A.

IV. SUMMARY

Emilia S.N. Palacios designated her son, Anthony S.N. Palacios, as her named successor, rather than
her husband, Antonio Rabago Palacios.

While Antonio Rabago and Emilia S.N. Palacios are the named borrowers on the Guam Housing
Corporation Loan and are listed on the Memorandum of Lease (MOL) recorded at the Department of
Land Management, Emilia's clear wish was for Anthony to be her designated successor.

Anthony has expressed significant concerns about the legal opinion, specifically regarding why he
appears to have no rights to this property despite his mother's explicit wishes.

EMILIA S_.N. PALACIOS (DEC)
COMPILED BY LAND AGENT Il1, JMCASEM

05 AUG 2025



630931

FOR ; ’ ) Islam[ of Guam, Government of Guam

) Department of Land Management, Office of The Recordex
RECORDATION

; Fileforrecord is Instrumen% No. 6 3 9 9 3 1
DEPARTMENT ) on the year 2000 , Moath__\ = _Day_ N2 Time_ 10
OF LAND Recording Fee \ S - Receipt No, \_\ Lets 1 3 > 1

bep.ﬂtj' Renorder M m?\\“u

MANAGEMENT \ ' \ )
MEMORANDUM OF LEASE
THIS INDENTURE made this_06th day of _ December 2000 , by and

between Chamorro Land Trust Commission, whose address is P.O. Box 2950, Hagatna,
Guam, 96932, hereinafter called the “Lessor”, and Antonio R. Palacios and Emilia S.N.
Palacios, who hereinafter called the “Lessee”:,

WITNESSETH:

The upon consideration, terms and conditions set forth in that certain unrecorded
LEASE AGREEMENT dated DECEMBER 06, 2000, hereinafter called the “Lease”,
entered into between the Lessor and the Lessee, all of the terms, covenants and
conditions of which are hereby made a part hereof as fully and completely as if specifically
set out in full herein, the to lease that certain parcel of land located in the Municipality of
AGAT, Guam, more particularly described as follows:

That certain unrecorded Ground Lease dated April 20, 1998 by and
between Chamorro Land Trust Commission “Lessor” to Emilia S.N.
Palacios “Lessee” for a term of 99 years, commencing April 20, 1998
and ending on April 20, 2097 the following described premises to wit:
Lot No. 476, Agat, Guam. (NOTE: THIS IS NOT AN INSURABLE LEGAL
DESCRIPTION.)

Area: 4,741 +/- Square Meters.



632931

This instrument may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall
constitute one and the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Lessor and Lessee have executed these presents
on the day and year first above written.

LESSOR:

RONALD E. TEEHAN, JR. ~
Administrative Director, Acting
Chamorro Land Trust Commission

LESSEE:

Ay,

Antonio R. Palacios

Emilia S.N. Palacios




630931

GUAM USA )
) 88:
CITY OF HAGATNA )

ON THIS_06th DAY OF December, 2000 bhefore me, a Notary Public in and for
Guam, U.S.A_, personally appeared Ronald E. Teehan, Jr., and he/she acknowledged to
me that he/she executed the foregoing MEMORANDUM OF LEASE, as his/her voluntary
act and deed for the purposes therein set forth.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official
seal the day and year first above written.

2 ; Notary Public

“JOHN E. POTTER
MOTARY PUBLIC

13 anad for Gizam, UGA
My Cormmission Bxpirea: August 11, 2002
B0, Box 5131 KO1-3
Dedede, Guam 95812

GUAM USA )
) 8s:
CITY OF HAGATNA )

ON THIS 06th DAY OF Degcember, 2000 before me, a Notary Public in and for
Guam, U.S.A., personally appeared Antonio R. Palacios and Emilia $.N. Palacios, and
hefshe acknowledged to me that he/she executed the foregoing MEMORANDUM OF
LEASE, as his/her voluntary act and deed for the purposes therein set forth.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official
seal the day and year first above written.

Notary Public

E. POYTER
\JO}%I'?MW PUBLIC

5 L
fn and for Guam, u.s
iy Commission Expiras: August 11, 2002

p.O. [ox B33 OU-3
pededn, Guaﬂ? 95912




Kumision Inangokkon Tano’ CHamoru
(CHamoru Land Trust Commission)

P.0, Box 1950 Hagltia, Guihan 96932 Phone: (67])308-3286 Fax: (671)300-3319

AFFIDAVIT FOR ELIGIBILITY
OCCUPIED, FARMED, OR RANCHED

ANTONIO RABAGO PALACIOS

, being first duly sworn, deposes and says that:

1. The name of the individual seeking verification of eligibility is:

ANTONIO RABAGO PALACIOS

2. The individual, or their descendant, occupied, farmed, or ranched tand on Guam for residential or
agricultural purposes for at least one (1) year immediately prior to that land being acquired by the
United States government between 1898 and 1968, If that land was acquired between Dacember 8,
1941 and January 1, 1950, the one (1} year tenure need not have occurred immediately prior to the
acquisition by the United States government.

3. The land acquired by the United States government is identified as one of the following:

O Parcel Number:

O Address:

O Legal Description:

O Other Identifier:

The date the land was acquired by the United States:

4. The name of the person or persons who occupied, farmed, or ranched the land:

Rosa Palacios (sister), Filomania Palacios (sister), Myseif,

Rosalia Palacios {(mom) Silvestre Palacios (dad)

5. The length of time the person or persons listed above continuously occupied, farmed, or
ranched the land: Qver 25 years

6. The legal owner of the lana: N@tional Park (Agat) - Tent City Development

7. The relationship between the legal awner of the land and the person or persons who occupied,

farmed, or ranched the land:

bl \"5 / @DQ‘% : 68"]% CLTC AFF - 002

- | B B= | § Page | of 2
B Gra & e Qo O?a,«q




C C

Kumision Inangokkon Tano’ CHamoru
(CHamoru Land Trust Commission)

P.O. Box 2950 Hagitiia, Guiban 969321 Phone: 649-5264 ext 815

8. Compensation or rent, if any, that was paid by the person or persons who occupied, farmed, or

Rent Payment $80.00 a year

ranched the land ta the legal owner:

9, Description of the nature of the person’s or persons’ activity on the land, including whetherthe

land was used for residential or agricultural purposes:
Agriculture

10. The type of activity being conducted on the land, such as the types of crops harvested or

animals raiseg: CiCken and pigs, banana, mango, hot pepper,

beans

11. If the person or persons improved the land, the nature of any improvements {if not applicable,

list N/A): Cleaning for planting, pig fence

12. The undersigned makes these statements on behalf of themselves or as a representative of
the applicant via a power of attorney.

> i Y/5/as

Sighature Date

Subscribed and swom to before me this_(S" day of JUNE 20285 by

Aty . Dalacis

g

NOTARY PUBLIC

KRISTOFER C.F. ROMAN

e A ot 5 5

A

CLTC AFF - 002
Page 2 of 2



CHamoru Land Trust Commission
Land Agent Staff Report

PEDRO B. BLAS
AGRICULTURE LESSEE

. REQUEST
1. The lessee is requesting to relinquish a portion of the leased lot for Pedro Blas Jr. to
comply with the Guam Building Code.
. MATTER(S)
1. The law does not state that a lessee can relinquish a portion for another lessee to
comply with their lease terms.
. FACTS
Applicant’'s Date and Time: December 7, 1995, 8:36 A.M.
Applicant’s Application Number: 0001462
Application Type: Agricuiture
Takeover Applicant’s Date of Submission: N/A
Lot Description: A Portion of Lot 10171, Dededo
Survey Map: None
Priority: N/A
Preoccupier: Dededo, Tract 100C
Land Use Permit (LUP): # 3764
10 Mayor's Certification: None in file
11.Recorded Lease: None
12.Unrecorded Lease: Yes
13.Lease Fee Paid: No
14.|s this a Registered Property? Yes
15.Residing on Private Property: No
16. Residing on Guam Ancestral Lands Property: No
17.Part of Null and Void Listing: No
18. Part of 2018 Ratified Listing: Yes
19. Part of 1995 Listing: N/A
20. Part of OPA Audit Listing: No
21.Board Approved Lease Award: N/A
Iv. CHRONOLOGY
1. January 28, 1998: Agriculiure Interview compiled by Liz Untalan
2. April 20, 1998: Ground Lease award for a portion of Lot 10171, Dededo, containing an
area of not more than 2 acres, subject to survey, signed by Acting AD Lydia Cruz; the
lease is unrecorded
October 12, 1999: Agriculture Compliance Report compiled by Liz U.
March 7, 2005: Authorization to Initiate Survey, signed by AD Thomas A. Elliott

©oOoNOORARWN=

Hw



Vi

CHamoru Land Trust Commission
Land Agent Staff Report

5. February 4, 2025: Compliance Inspection report compiled by PC 1 D. Tan and LAl J.
Casem
6. February 18, 2025. Notice to Remediate Lefter issued, signed by Acting AD J. Cruz Jr.
7. July 28, 2025: Mr. Blas submitted a notarized request to relinquish a portion of the
leased lot for Pedro Blas Jr. to comply with his lease terms
SUMMARY
Pedro B. Blas was awarded a lease on April 20, 1998, for two acres. He is now requesting to
relinquish a portion for Pedro Blas Jr. to comply with his lease terms.
SUGGESTED ACTION



C C

Letter of Relinquishment

Date: July 28, 2025
Re: Letter of Relinquishment of Partial Land (CLTC Land Lease Lot#10171)

To: Chamorro Land Trust Committee

To whom this may concern,

t Pedro B. Blas Sr. (DOB: 9/11/1943), relinquish a portion of my CLTC land lease
(#A1462) for portion of Lot 10171 in Macheche Dededo to: Pedro B. Blas Jr. (DOB:
03/09/1969).

ot i @W

Pedro B. Blas Sr. Ped&o B. Blas Jr.
671-637-8336 671-777-2527
420 Kalamasa St. Dededo, Gu. 275 Chandiha St. Dededo, Gu.

Subscribed and swor fore me this &

day of (TW[L; , X225

Notary Public

State of Guam _SEAL

My Commission Expires

ﬂh@:WF
7139245



CHamoru Land Trust Commission
Land Agent Staff Report

PEDRO BLAS JR.
AGRICULTURE LESSEE

. REQUEST

1. The lessee is requesting to revert the lease from agricultural to residential.

2. The lessee is requesting to reconfigure the lease lot to meet the legal setback
requirements.

. MATTER(S)

1. As per Public Law 131-37. Title 21, Chapter 75A, §75A126(2). Review and
Remediation of Existing Leases. (2) The lessee is otherwise in full compliance with the
terms of their lease, the law, and the Commission’s regulations, the Commission shall
issue the lessee a new [ease for a term to equal the terms of the lessee’s existing lease.
Any other provisions of a new lease shall be substantially the same as the terms of any
prior lease.

2. No farming activity which contrary to Title 21, Chapter 75A, §75A108(c). The lessee
shall occupy and commence to use or cultivate the tract as his home or farm within one
(1} year after the lease is made. (1) The lessee of agricultural lands shall plant five (5},
ten (10), fifteen (15}, and twenty (20) trees on leased land, and the lessee of grazing
lands. Such trees shall be of types approved by the Department of Agriculture, and at
locations specified by the Department of Agriculture and at locations specified by the
Department of Agriculture’s agent. Such planting and maintenance shall be by or under
the immediate control and direction of the lessee. Such trees shall be furnished by the
Department of Agriculture free of charge.

3. As per 18 GAR, Chapter 6A, §6A126 (a). Conditions in Leases:. Building
Requirements. No building structure or improvement may be constructed on the
premises without written approval from the commission. Such an approval shall be
considered only after submission of a plan as to design, materials, probable value, and
use of the structure to be built on the leasehold. Such building structures or
improvements must meet building and zoning codes and other ordinances and
regulations of Guam.

4. Guam's building codes are primarily governed by Chapter 67 of Title 21,
Guam Code Annotated, which is titled "The Building Code". These codes
address various aspects of construction, including structural requirements,
energy efficiency, and fire safety. The Guam Tropical Enerqy Code
(GTEC), adopted in 2021, is a significant component of the building

regulations, focusing on energy conservation in new and renovated buildings.
a. Lot Boundaries: The setback from lot boundaries varies depending on the
zoning.




CHamoru Land Trust Commission
Land Agent Staff Report

b. No Overhang: Overhangs of the carport may also be subject to setback
regulations, especially in side yards.

¢. Permits Required: Building permits are generally required for carports, and
failure to obtain them can result in fines and even the removal of the structure.

d. Consuit Regulations: For specific details and to ensure compliance, it's best to
consult the local zoning ordinances and building codes for Guam, or the
Department of Public Works.

e. Planning and Permitting: It is recommended to check with the local planning
department or building permits office for specific requirements and procedures
before starting construction,

. FACTS
Applicant's Date and Time: December 2, 1995, 11:48 A.M.
Applicant's Application Number. 0000321
Application Type: Residential
Takeover Applicant's Date of Submission: N/A
Lot Description: Lot 10171-39, Dededo
Survey Map: Doc. No. 686723
Priority: 1
Preoccupier: N/A
. Land Use Permit (LUP): N/A
10. Mayor’s Certification: N/A
11.Recorded Lease: Doc. No. 686723
12.Unrecorded Lease: N/A
13.Lease Fee Paid: Yes, $100.00
14.1s this a Registered Property? Yes
15.Residing on Private Property: No
16. Residing on Guam Ancestral Lands Property: No
17.Part of Null and Void Listing: No
18. Part of 2018 Ratified Listing: Yes
19. Part of 1995 Listing: N/A
20.Part of OPA Audit Listing: No
21.Board Approved Lease Award. N/A
V. CHRONOLOGY
1. January 16, 1997: Residential Interview Report compiled by Bill Gutierrez
2. June 16, 1998: Unrecorded Residential Lease Award for Lot 4, Block 3, Tract 1022 in
the municipality of Dededo, signed by AD J. Borja
3. January 17, 2001: Pedro Blas Jr. requested to change the application type from
residential to agricultural.
4. August 27, 2002: Approval of applications for utilities, telephone, clearing, and building
permits, approved by AD R. Teehan.

©ooNOORWN=




VL

CHamoru Land Trust Commission
Land Agent Staff Report

5. September 3, 2002: Decline of Municipality Award for the residential lease for Lot 4,
Block 3, Tract 1022, Dededo, for an agriculture lease for Lot 10171-39, Dededo.
6. October 8, 2002: Authorization to Initiate Survey, approved by Deputy AD J. Perez
7. July 23, 2003: Lease fee payments of $100.00, Receipt #A881189205.
8. October 30, 2003: In-house approved survey map for Lot 10171-39, Dededo, approved
by AD J. Borja
9. December 11, 2003. Addendum to Ground Lease to reflect the in-house approved
survey map. Signed by AD J. Borja
10.March 8, 2004:. Memorandum of Lease issued to Pedro Blas Jr., signed by AD F.
Dungca Jr.
11.July 14, 2004: CLTC Loan Guaranty for Guam Housing Corporation, signed by AD J.
Borja
12. October 14, 2022: Site inspection report compiled by LA Il E. Chargualafand LA Il J.
Casem
13. October 30, 2023: Mr. Blas spoke with LA Il J. Casem requesting to reconfigure the
property.
14.March 14, 2025: Compliance inspection report compiled by PC | D. Tan. There is no
farm activity.
15. March 18, 2025: A Notice to Remediate letter was given to Mr. Blas for non-
compliance.
16. April 16, 2025: Mr. Blas and his successor were given a Verification of Eligibility letter,
signed by Acting AD J. Cruz.
17. July 29, 2025: Acting AD J. Cruz, Acting LAS G. Eay, and LA Il J. Dayday met with Mr.
Pedro to present a proposed scheme
SUMMARY
Pedro Blas Jr. was awarded a residential lease agreement on June 16, 1998, but then
declined the residential iease on Lot 4, Block 3, Tract 1022 in the municipality of Dededo for an
agriculture lease on Lot 10171 on September 3, 2002.

A site inspection was conducted on Ociober 14, 2022. The findings were that Mr. Blas was not
in compliance with his lease agreement, and he had made improvements by building a carport.
The carport was built contrary to 21 GCA, Chapter 67, The Building Code.
SUGGESTED ACTION
1. Mr. Blas requested to change the application type to agriculture and was awarded an
agriculture lease on September 3, 2002. As per Public Law 37-131, any other
provisions of a new lease shall be substantially the same as the terms of any prior
lease. Therefore, the Commission shall not allow the application type to revert to
residential.




CHamoru Land Trust Commission
Land Agent Staff Report

2. Mr. Blas is requesting to reconfigure the leased lot to comply with the Guam Building
Code; however, he failed to consult the Department of Public Works for specific details
to ensure compliance, as well as obtain a building permit to construct the carport.

Mr. Blas failed to obtain written consent from the Commission, which is contrary to 18
GAR, Chapter 6A, §6A126, conditions in leases, the Commission shall consider
instructing Mr. Blas to remove the carport, for him to be in compliance with the setback
requirements.




i € €

To whom it may concern, | Pedro B. Blas ir, hereby request to
change the status of my Chamorro Land Trust property (Lot
10171-39) located in the village of Dededo from Agricultural to
Residential. The CLTC lot that | initially applied for was a
residential lot and | would like to request to change it back to a
residential lot with your approval.

Si Yu' 'os Ma’ase’

(P% - 8/27/a5

Pedro B Blas Jr Date

¥ Pleate Sec asfach o g W\/ »
NDJ(ZIW C'CY)\'.\‘GCO*C? . 10 Boo



STATE OF _rernfory of cuam (SA

COUNTY OF _ 7amumng

E
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE 2129
THIS_21h DAY OF __ wareh ,

BY__Pdip B Blas Jr.

WW

NOTARY PUBLIC

JANNET TAMMY D

NOTARY PUBLIC
: Inand for Guam, US A,
My Commission Expires: JULY 19, 2027
Commission Number NP23.0584p
P.O. Box 26853 Barr; Guam 9692
e O 20655 Barripada,

Toaameny Bile: Affidaut of Requect 0 Change Sty



PEDRO B. BLAS

2 SEPTIC TANK

! LEaCHING

METAL EXTENSION |

PEDRO B. BLAS JR.
LOT 10171-45
A=2023+/-SM




Pedro Blas Jr.—AGRICULTURE LESSEE Page 2 of 4
Compiled by D. Tan— Compliance Inspection conducted 3/14/2025




CHamoru Land Trust Commission
Land Agent Staff Report

RYAN MUNA
Residential Lessee

.  MATTER(S): 1) Addendum to Residential Lease Agreement and 2) Consideration for those in the
Armed Forces

. FACTS

1)
2)
3)
4)
5)
6)
7
8)
9)

Original Applicant: Richard Concepcion Muna

Original Applicant’'s Date and Time: December 12, 1995 at 10:40AM
Applicant’s Application Number: 0002336

Original Application Type: Residential

Lot Description on Lease Agreement: Lot 15, Block 15, Tract 11405, Dededo
Lot Size: 2,225+ sgm

Master Plan Identification: Lot 528-4 Merizo

Survey Map:

Priority: N/A

10) Preoccupier: No

11) Land Use Permit (LUP): N/A

12) Mayor’s Certification: N/A

13) Recorded Lease: 921538

14) Unrecorded Lease: N/A

15) Lease Fee Paid: Pending Lease Fee Payment of $99.00
16) Is this a Registered Property: Yes

17) Residing on Private Property: No

18) Residing on Guam Ancestral Lands Property: No

19) Part of Null and Void Listing: Yes

20) Part of 2018 Ratified Listing: Yes

21) Part of 1995 Listing: No

22) Part of OPA Audit Listing: No

23) Lease Approved by CLTC Board of Commissioners: Yes

.  CHRONOLOGY

RYAN MUNA

1)
2)

3)
4)

5)

6)

December 12, 1995 — Residential Application of Richard Concepcion Muna under Application
No. 0002336.

January 27, 2012 — Richard Concepcion Muna submitted a notarized letter of request to transfer
his application to his son, Ryan Muna.

August 6, 2012 — T. Topasna indicated in file, “Transferred app. Rights to Ryan Muna”.
December 12, 2012 — Power of Attorney from Ryan Muna naming Richard Muna. Recorded at
DLM under Instrument No. 845111.

January 30, 2015 — Residential Lease prepared for Lot 10120-R22, Parcel 69, Dededo (1,933+
sgqm)

September 27, 2017 — Residential Lease prepared Lot 15, Block 15, Tract 11405, Dededo
containing an area of 2,225+ sgm, surveyed under 228FY2015.

COMPILED BY LAND AGENT 11, JMCASEM

011 AUG 2025



CHamoru Land Trust Commission
Land Agent Staff Report

7) May 9, 2018 — Residential Lease for Lot 15, Block 15, Tract 11405, Dededo recorded under
Ryan Muna, Instrument No. 921538

8) June 2, 2025 — Richard Muna came into CLTC inquiring on the lot description indicated on the
tax assessment issued; tax assessment different from the lot description on Ryan’s Residential
Lease Agreement.

9) June 4, 2025 — Richard Muna met with AAD Cruz, Acting Supervisor G. Eay, and Land Agent J.
Casem to discuss the tax assessment issue and consideration of his son’s status because he’s
currently serving in the military on active-duty status.

IV. SUMMARY

Mr. Ryan Muna has been a Residential Lessee since 2017 for Lot 13, Block 15, Tract 11405, in
Dededo. His father recently inquired about the tax assessment for Ryan, noting that it does not align
with the lease agreement. The Residential Lease Agreement recorded with the Department of Land
Management specifies Lot 15, Block 15, Tract 11405, Dededo, with an area of approximately 2,225
square meters, based on survey map 228FY2015.

Mr. Richard Muna is requesting that the lease agreement be corrected to reflect the proper lot
description with the Department of Revenue and Taxation, and he also wishes for consideration of his
son's active-duty military status, which currently prevents him from being on island and undertaking
construction.

It is important to note that CLTC is currently enforcing Public Law 37-137, which addresses leases with
“clouds." Mr. Ryan Muna's lease falls into this category because it was issued outside the established
date and time lineup, and it involved a transfer of application which was not applicable by law at the
time. Ryan acquired his father's Residential Application when Mr. Richard Muna requested to transfer
his application in 2012. This situation meant that CLTC bypassed hundreds of applicants from the
December 2, 1995 listing.

In response to Mr. Richard Muna's request, CLTC will need to conduct a compliance inspection of
Ryan's leased property. This inspection will determine whether he is in compliance with his lease terms.
As per Public Law 37-131, lessees are granted one year to remediate their property if found to be non-
compliant. Failure to meet these terms may result in the cancellation of their lease.

RYAN MUNA
COMPILED BY LAND AGENT 11, JMCASEM
011 AUG 2025



DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE ;( FTAXATION
Government of Guam AL PROPERTY TAX STATEMENT
REAL PROPERTY TAX DIVISION

P O Box 23607 GMF Barrigada, Guam 96921

388 You may be eligible for Real Property Tax Credits/Exemption.
Read the back of this statement for more information

MUNA RYAN

PARCEL DESCRIPTION YOUR PROPERTY TAX VALUES
‘MOSTLI405BI3LIS (Land Area: 1,933.00. SqMurs | Tax Period: Janvary [, 2024 (0 December 31, 2024
Munizipality Dededo Suburban Appraised Value: Land $ 26.800.00
Parcel Identification Number: _ Building $0.00
Tolal Yalue: $ 26,500.00
Current Gwner MUNA RYAN Exemption: $0.00
Taxable Value; $26,800.00
Tuxes Payable Year: 2025 livoice Number: RP24063553 Year Assessed 2024 Panl Dale: 6/2/2025
1. Land Assessed Value: % 24,120.00 Land Tax $23.46
2. Building Assessed Value: S (.00 Building Tax 5 0.00
3, Tolal Tax Due: $ 23546
YOUR PROPERTY TAX AND HOW IT IS REDUCED BY THE GOVERNMENT OF GUAM
" 4, Your property laxes before reduction by Chapter 24 Title 11 GCA § 23.46
5. Crediis as of March 15, 2024 % 0.00
6 Tax Assessment/Penalties/Credits
LAND TAX. s 23.46 fem 1 (DLQ) DELINQUENT PENALTY 5 10.00
BUILDING TAX: M 0.00 [temn 2 (PRP) PREPARATION FEE: 3 0.00
CREDITS: $ 0.00 Item 5(a) {CPY) COPY FEE: $ 0.0
PAYMENTS b3 0.00 (OTH) OTHER FEE: $ {XL1]
Tax less Credits and Payments Subtotal: 3 23,46
PAY THIS AMOUNT
S AMOU CHAMORRO LAND TRUST
1. Total Dug $33.46 e

PROPERYY (CLT)

Lst Installment DUE February 21: § 16,73 2od Installment DUE April 21: § 16,73
TREASURER O (j1iaM TREASURER (HF GLAM
VALIDATION VALIDATION
0 Not Write In This Space 130 Mol Wite [n Thes Space
DEPARTMENT OF REVENLE AND 2nd Instaliment Payment Stub - RPT 2024
TAXATION
4 Government of Guam 2nd INSTALLMENT AMOUNTS: TRTASTRTR 04 GF 40\
Parcel Identification Number: _ T;::less Crcditsland Paym:‘:js.‘ ’ I;;E PAYMENT YALIDATION
Deli 1P : by . ’
Invoice Number: RP24063553 e
- . (FRP) Preparation Fee: 5 €.00 MUSTBLMARKED IS
Chomorre fasd Trast €LT) (CPY)  Copy Fee: $ 0.00 THIS AREA ONLY
CURRENT OWNER: PaAYABLE TO {OTH) Other Fee: s 000
MUNA RYAN TREASURER OF GUAM L0 Wenle T Thiy Space
: 16.73 -
P O Bax 23607 GMF Barrigada, 2u0d Installment TOTAL DUE b
Guam 96921
2024RP24063553
Your canceled check is your receipt, DO NOT SEND CASH. To avoid penalty, pay on or before April 21, 2025
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE AND lst lnstallment Payment St'l]h - RPT 2024
TAXATION
Government of Guam 1st INSTALLMENT AMOUNTS: IREASURER G G A
-Tux less Credits and Payments: 3 11.73 T~
Parccl [dentification Number: JH00063050000 (DLO) Delinquent Penalty: $ 500 PAYMENT VALIDATION
Invoice Number; RP24063553 (PRP} Preparation Fee: $ 0.00 MUSET BE MARRED 1N
|Clam_om Land Trust Property (CLT} : | (CPY) Copy Fee: £ 200 THIS AREA ONLY
CURRENT OWNER: PAYABLE TO: {GTH) Other Fee: ¥ £.00 o i
TSV SR HE
SLNAKVAN TREASURER OF GUAM 1st Installment TOTAL DUE: s 16.73 B reln sk

P O Bax 23607 GMF Barrigada, Guam
e 2024RP24063553




Residential Lease -

Ryan Muna

921538

gf?i\;gﬁ?mgh;g; iI:AM - Department of Land Management
File for Record is Ipstrument Number 92 1 5 3,8

On the Year 20 __[‘_klvlomh an 7 Tin;e {/ j-/‘
Recording Fge 2’ i’d Receipt NO.M

Deputy Recorder [ AN

yd

{(Above Space for Recordation Only)

RESIDENTIAL LEASE

BETWEEN

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION

Revised Format:1/8/16

Doc. Printed: 9/27/2017

(LESSOR)

AND

Ryan Muna
(LESSEE)

OF0- 0¢- [199



921538

Residential Lease - Ryan Muna

RESIDENTIAL LEASE

THIS RESIDENTIAL LEASE ("Lease") is made and entered into this °2/7% day
of ber , 2017 by and between Chamorro Land Trust Commission, whose
mailing address is P. O. Box 2950, Hagatna, Guam, 96932, hereinafter referred to as
“Lessor’, and Ryan Muna a native Chamorro, and a resident of the Territory of Guam,
whose mailing address is 247 Chalan A'Abang Dededo, Guam 96929 hereinafter
referred to as "Lessee".

WITNESSETH:

In consideration of the rent hereinafter paid and acknowledged and of the
covenants herein contained to be observed and performed, Lessor does hereby grant,
demise and let unto Lessee, and Lessee does hereby hire and lease from Lessor, the
real property described in Section 1:

1. DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES: The Premises consists of real property
situated at Dededo more particularly hereinafter described, together with Lessor's
easements and appurtenances in adjoining and adjacent land, highways, roads, streets,
lanes, whether public or private, reasonably required for the installation, maintenance,
operation and service of sewer, water, gas, power and other utility lines and for driveways
and approaches to and from abutting highways or streets for the use and benefit of the
within described parcel of real property, including any improvements now or hereafter
situated thereon:

Lot 15, Block 15, Tract 11405, Dededo containing an area of 2,225+/-
square meters, as shown on the Survey Map, prepared by Raymond
A. Cruz, P.L.S. No. 73, L.M. No. 228 FY2015, Recorded Under DLM
Map Document No. 884204. PID 30000063050000.

The above-described parcel of real property, together with any existing
improvements and improvements subsequently erected thereon during the term of this
Lease and the appurtenances and other incidents associated therewith are collectively
referred to in this Lease as the "Premises".

2. LESSOR'S WARRANTIES OF TITLE: Lessor represents, warrants and
covenants:

2.1 Fee Title. Lessor is the owner of the Premises in fee simple, subject
only to easements, restrictions, reservations, liens, encumbrances and estates set
forth herein. Lessor shall cause any lien or encumbrance against the Premises or
any portion thereof which is superior to this Lease to be promptly discharged or
subordinated to this lease at the request of Lessee or his lender. The cost of
securing the subordination of such lien or encumbrance to this Lease shall be
borne solely by the Lessor;

2.2 Right to Lease. That Lessor has the right to possession of the
Premises and possesses all requisite right and authority to enter into this Lease;
and

3. TERM OF THE LEASE. To have and to hold the same, together with the
improvements thereon and the easements, privileges and appurtenances thereunto
belonging or appertaining, collectively herein called "Premises," unto Lessee for a term

of ninety-nine (99) years commencing on bey =27, 2017 and ending
b 7], 2116 unless the term shall be sooner terminated as
hereinafter provided.

4. RENTAL. Lessee agrees to pay the annual rental of One Dollar ($1.00).

Revised Format:1/8/16
Doc. Printed: 9/27/2017 1 of 8



321538

Residential Lease - Ryan Muna

5. PAYMENT OF RENTALS. Payment for the full term of the lease shall be
paid, in full, within one (1) year from the effective date of the lease.

6. QUIET ENJOYMENT OF THE DEMISED PREMISES. Lessor hereby
covenants with Lessee that upon payment by Lessee of the rent as aforesaid and upon
observance and performance of the covenants and conditions by Lessee hereinafter
contained, Lessee shall peaceably hold and enjoy the Premises for the term hereby
demised without hindrance or interruption by Lessor or any other person lawfully or
equitably claiming by, through or under Lessor.

LESSOR AND LESSEE HEREBY COVENANT with each other as follows:

7. OCCUPANCY. Lessee shall occupy and commence to use the Premises
as his home within three (3) years after the installation of infrastructure (P.L. 24-62).

7.1  Lessee shall, after the occupation of the Premises, thereafter occupy
the Premises on a full-time basis.

7.2 Lessee shall be required to have all utilities properly installed and
metered as is necessitated by the utility, and be responsible for the payment of all
charges, and connection fees.

7.3 Lessee shall conform with all Territorial Zoning and Building laws,
subdivision, environmental or administrative laws or policies.

7.4 Should Lessee possess an agricultural tract of Chamorro
Homelands and desire to build a home on that agricultural tract, Lessee shall
make prior arrangements with Lessor to surrender this residential premises, upon
completion of the construction of the residence, on the agricultural tract.

7.5 Lessee shall submit to the Commission, all plans as to the design,
materials, and probable value of the structure he intends to build on the Premises.
LESSEE SHALL NOT BEGIN CONSTRUCTION OF SAID STRUCTURE, UNTIL
HE HAS RECEIVED THE WRITTEN APPROVAL OF THE PLAN FROM THE
COMMISSION.

7.6 Should Lessee be occupying property which is designated as
Chamorro Homelands, at the time that Lessee obtained this underlying Lease,
Lessee shall, within one year of the date of this Lease, vacate the tract of
Chamorro Homeland which he was occupying at the time he entered into this
Lease, and not enter upon any other Chamorro Homelands for the purpose of
establishing a residence, or for farming purposes, without the expressed written
consent of the Chamorro Land Trust Commission. Violation of this section is a
default of this Lease Agreement and can cause forfeiture of this Lease.

8. DELIVERY OF RENT AND NOTICES -- METHOD AND TIME.

(@) All rents or other sums, notices, demands, or requests from one
party to another may be personally delivered or sent by mail, certified or registered,
postage prepaid, to the addresses stated in this paragraph, and shall be deemed to have
been given at the time of personal delivery or at the time of mailing.

(b) Al rents and other sums payable by Lessee to Lessor shall be made
by cash or check payable to Lessor, delivered in person to the Treasurers Office,
Department of Administration, Government of Guam, or mailed to the Treasurer's Office,
P. O. Box 884, Agana, Guam, 96932.

(c) All notices, demands or requests from Lessee to Lessor shall be
given to Lessor at P. O. Box 2950, Hagatna, Guam, 96932.

(d)  All notices, demands or requests from Lessor to Lessee shall be
given to Lessee at 247 Chalan A'Abang Dededo, Guam 96929.

Revised Format:1/8/16
Doc. Printed: 9/27/2017 2 of 8



921538

Residential Lease - Ryan Muna
(e) Each party shall have the right, from time to time, to designate a

different address by notice given in conformity with this section.

9. PAYMENT OF TAXES. Lessee shall pay all taxes assessed upon the
tract and improvements thereon. The Commission may, at its discretion, pay such
taxes, and have a lien therefore as provided for by Section 75114 of 21 Guam Code
Annotated.

10. UTILITIES AND CHARGES. Lessee shall pay all charges for water,
electricity, telephone, cable television and other utilities used upon the Premises.

11. OBSERVANCE OF LAWS AND INDEMNIFICATION OF LESSOR.
Lessee shall observe all laws and ordinances imposed by governmental authority and
shall indemnify Lessor against all actions, lawsuits, damages and claims by whomsoever
brought or made by reason of the non observance or nonperformance of this covenant or
by reason of any accident upon the Premises.

12. FIRE INSURANCE. Lessee at Lessee's own expense shall keep insured
all buildings erected on the Premises against loss or damage by fire with extended
coverage in an amount as near as practicable to full replacement cost thereof.

13. USE _OF PREMISES. Lessee shall use the Premises as his personal
residence, which premises shall only have a single family dwelling constructed upon it.
Failure to obtain express written consent of Lessor for the erection of any structures on
the property shall be deemed a default of this Lease, and subject the lease to termination
at the discretion of Lessor.

14. LESSEE NOT TO COMMIT WASTE. Lessee covenants not to commit
waste upon the Premises and upon the expiration of the term of this Lease, to deliver
peaceful possession of the Premises to Lessor.

15. LESSEE _TO HOLD LESSOR HARMLESS OF LIENS AND
ENCUMBRANCES. Lessee shall indemnify and hold Lessor harmless against all liens
and encumbrances against the Lessor's reversion interest in the Premises but nothing in
this paragraph shall be deemed to prevent Lessee from giving a good and valid mortgage
of all of Lessee's right, title and interest under the Lease and the improvements made
upon the Premises, subject to all existing laws of the Territory of Guam.

16. WARRANTY. Lessor warrants that the Premises are free and clear of all
encumbrances (other than those attributable to Lessee) and that it has good right to lease
the same.

17. LESSEE'S RIGHT TO BUILD AND OWNERSHIP OF IMPROVEMENTS
AND FIXTURES.

(a) Lessee shall have the right but not the obligation at any time and
from time to time during the term of this Lease, to erect, maintain, alter, remodel,
reconstruct, rebuild, replace, and remove one house and other necessary accessory
buildings or improvements on the Premises, and correct and change the contour of the
Premises, subject to the conditions that the cost of any such construction, reconstruction,
demolition, or of any change, alteration, or improvements, shall be borne and paid for by
Lessee. LESSEE SHALL OBTAIN THE EXPRESS WRITTEN CONSENT OF LESSOR
BEFORE HE ERECTS, RECONSTRUCTS, DEMOLISH, ALTERS, ALTERS OR
IMPROVES ANY BUILDING, NECESSARY ACCESORY BUILDING OR OTHER
IMPROVEMENTS ON THE PROPERTY. In the event said improvements or any part
thereof shall be destroyed or damaged by fire or any other casualty, then and as often as
the same shall happen all insurance proceeds, if any, on the Premises shall be available
for and be used by Lessee as it desires, and Lessor shall have no interest therein.

Revised Format:1/8/16
Doc. Printed: 9/27/2017 3 of 8



921538
Residential Lease - Ryan Muna

I. It is expressly understood and agreed that any and all
buildings, improvements, fixtures, machinery, and equipment
of whatsoever nature at any time construed, placed, or
maintained upon any part of the Premises shall be and
remain the property of Lessee, as their interests may appear,
until termination of this Lease, as provided in subparagraph
(iii) of this paragraph.

. Lessee shall have the right at any time during Lessee's
occupancy of the Premises, and with the express written
consent of Lessor, to remove any and all buildings,
improvements, fixtures, and equipment owned or placed by
Lessee, in, under, or upon the Premises, or acquired by
Lessee, whether before or during the lease term, but Lessee
shall not be obligated to do so.

iii. Upon the expiration of the lease term or any earlier
termination of this Lease, all of the improvements then on the
Premises shall become the property of Lessor without the
payment of any consideration therefore.

iv. Lessee shall present to Lessor the building plans for each and
every building or improvement on the property for approval
prior to undertaking and construction of any such building or
improvement.

18. LESSEE'S RIGHT TO ENCUMBER WITH LESSOR'S CONSENT.
(a) Lessee may, in a manner not inconsistent with the Chamorro Land
Trust Act, at any time, from time to time, during the term of this Lease, encumber by
mortgage or other security instrument, Lessee's interest under this Lease and the
leasehold estate hereby created in whole or in part, for any purpose, but Lessee must first
obtain the written consent of Lessor.

(b)  Any lender on the security of the leasehold estate shall have the right
at any time during the term of this Lease:

i. To do any act or thing required of Lessee hereunder and all such
acts or things done and performed shall be as effective to prevent
a forfeiture of Lessee's rights hereunder as if done by Lessee,
and

i. To realize on the security afforded by the leasehold estate by
exercising foreclosure proceedings or power of sale or other
remedy afforded in law or in equity or by the security documents
(hereinafter sometimes collectively referred to as ‘foreclosure
sale') and to transfer, convey, or assign the title of Lessee to the
leasehold estate created hereby to any purchaser that qualifies
under the Chamorro Land Trust Act, at any such foreclosure
sale.

(c) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary provided for in this
paragraph, or elsewhere in this Lease, the rights of Lessor, in the event of a default, may
not be exercised until written notice of such default is given to any lender, or to the person
or firm designated by any such lender to accept such notices. It is agreed that such
lender shall have the right to cure any such default within sixty (60) day after receipt of
such notice by lender with respect to any defauit that can be cured by the payment of
money, or within ninety (90) days with respect to any other covenant or condition or term
of this Lease; and, if such default is of such nature that it cannot be remedied within said
time, then such lender shall have such additional time as is reasonably necessary to cure
such default provided that it commence the curing of such default within said ninety (90)
day period, and thereafter diligently continues the curing of the same.

(d) No such lender shall be liable to Lessor as an assignee of this Lease
unless and until such time as such lender shall acquire the rights of Lessee hereunder

through foreclosure or other appropriate proceedings in the nature thereof, or as a result

Revised Format:1/8/16
Doc. Printed: 9/27/2017 4 of 8



921538

Residential Lease - Ryan Muna

of any other action or remedy provided for by such mortgage, or which may otherwise be
provided by law.

19. COMMERCIAL OR INDUSTRIAL ACTIVITIES. No commercial or
industrial activities shall be allowed on the Premises.

20. ASSIGNABILITY AND SUBLEASING. Lessee shall not sublet or assign
this Lease or any part hereof.

21. _SUCCESSORS OF LESSEE. Upon the death of Lessee, his interest in
the tract and improvements thereon, including growing crops, may vest in the relatives of
Lessee. Lessee may designate one of the following person or persons to whom he
desires his interest in the tract to vest upon his death.

(a) Husband or Wife;

(b)  Children;

(c) Widows or widowers of the brothers and sisters;
(d) Nieces or nephews.

21.1 The person whom Lessee designates as his successor, must be
qualified to be a lessee of Chamorro Homelands, but does not need to be 18 years of
age. Said designation must be in writing and filed and approved by the Commission.

22. CANCELLATION OF LEASES. Should Lessor believe that Lessee has
violated any of the conditions of the law contained in 21 Guam Code Annotated §75108
or 75109, the Lease Agreement, the Rules and Regulations of the Chamorro Land Trust
Commission, or intentionally provided false, material information to the Commission,
Lessor shall give notice to Lessee of said violations, and provide a hearing to Lessee on
said alleged violations. If Lessor, upon such hearing, finds that Lessee or his successors
have violated any conditions in respect to the leasing of this property, Lessor may declare
Lessee's or his successor's interest in the tract, and all improvements thereon to be
forfeited and the lease canceled.

23. CONSENT AND APPROVAL. Whenever Lessor's consent or approval is
required under the terms of or in connection with this Lease such consent or approval
shall not be arbitrarily or unreasonably withheld and no money shall be charged therefore
other than for a reasonable fee for processing the same.

24. UNAVOIDABLE DELAY -- FORCE MAJEURE. If either party shall be
delayed or prevented from the performance of any act required by this Lease by reason
of acts of God, strikes, lockouts, labor troubles, inability to procure materials, or other
cause, without fault and beyond the reasonable control of the party obligated (financial
inability excepted) performance of such act shall be excused for the period of the delay,
and the period equivalent to the period of such delay, provided, however, nothing in this
section shall excuse Lessee from the prompt payment of any rental or other charge
required of Lessee except as may be expressly provided elsewhere in this Lease.

25. DEFAULT. The following events shall be deemed to be events of default
by Lessee under this Lease:

(a) Lessee shall fail to pay any installment of rent hereby reserved or
shall fail to pay any taxes or other charges required to be paid by Lessee under the terms
of this Lease and such failure shall continue for a period of thirty (30) days from and after
the date written notice specifying such failure is delivered to Lessee; or

(b) Lessee shall fail to comply with any terms, provisions or covenants of
this Lease, other than the payment of rent, taxes or other charges, and shall not
commence to remove or to cure such failure within sixty (60) days from and after the date
written notice specifying such failure is delivered to Lessee or, having commenced to

Revised Format:1/8/16
Doc. Printed: 9/27/2017 5 of 8



921538

Residential Lease - Ryan Muna
remove or to cure such failure within said sixty (60) day period, Lessee thereafter fails to
proceed with reasonable diligence to completely remove or cure such failure.

26. GENDER. The use of any gender shall include any and all genders and the
use of any number shall be construed as singular or plural, as the case may be. The
headings of paragraphs herein are inserted only for convenience and reference and shall
in no way define or limit the scope or intent of any provision of this Lease. This Lease
shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon all of the parties hereto and their
respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors, successors in trust and assigns
as the law permits.

27. COUNTERPARTS. This Lease may be executed in several counterparts,
each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the
same agreement, which shall be binding upon all parties hereto notwithstanding that all of
the parties are not signatories to the same counterpant.

28. RECORDING. This Lease shall be recorded at the Department of Land
Management at Lessee's expense.

29. COMPUTATION OF TIME. The time in which any act provided by this
Lease is to be done is computed by excluding the first day and including the last, unless
the last day is a Saturday, Sunday or holiday, and then it is also excluded. The term
'holiday' shall mean all holidays specified in Sections 200 and 201 of the Government
Code of Guam.

30. ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATES. Either party shall at any time and from time
to time, upon not less than twenty (20) days prior written request by the other party,
execute, acknowledge, and deliver to such party, without charge, a statement in writing
certifying that this Lease is unmodified and in full force and effect (or if there has been
any modification thereof that the same is in full force and effect as modified and stating
the modification or modifications) and that there are no defaulits existing, or if there is any
claimed default stating the nature and extent thereof; and stating the dates to which the
rent and other charges have been paid in advance. It is expressly understood and
agreed that any such statement delivered pursuant to this section may be relied upon by
any prospective lender or prospective assignee of any lender on the security of the leased
land or the fee estate or any part thereof, and any third person.

31. LESSEE'S RIGHT TO SELF HELP. If Lessor shall fail to perform any of
the covenants to be performed by Lessor pursuant to the terms of this Lease, or if Lessor
shall fail to make any payment which Lessor agrees to make or is obligated to make, the
nonpayment or nonperformance of which might substantially affect Lessee's use or
occupancy of the demised Premises, then, in the event of the failure of the Lessor to
perform such affirmative covenants or to make such payment within a period of ten (10)
days after the Lessee shall have given written notice to the Lessor of his failure to perform
such affirmative covenant or to make any such payment, except that if the affirmative
covenant cannot be performed within such ten (10) day period, then if the Lessor shall
commence performance of such affirmative covenant within the ten (10) day period, and
to continue thereafter with reasonable speed and diligence until such affirmative covenant
is performed, Lessee may, at its option, perform any such affirmative covenant, or make
any such payment as landlord's agent. The full amount of the cost and expense entailed,
or the payment so made, shall be immediately owing by Lessor to Lessee, and Lessee
shall have the right to deduct the amount thereof, without liability or forfeiture, out of the
rentals then due or thereafter becoming due hereunder. The option given in this
paragraph is for the sole protection of the Lessee and any mortgagee of the Lessee's
interest in the leasehold estate and its existence shall not release Lessor from the
obligation to perform any of the covenants herein to be performed by the Lessor, or
deprive the Lessee of any legal rights which it may have by reason of any default by the
Lessor. *

Revised Format:1/8/16 ‘
Doc. Printed: 9/27/2017 6 of 8



921333
Residential Lease - Ryan Muna
32. GENERAL PROVISIONS.

(@)  Conditions and Covenants: All the provisions of this Lease shall be
deemed as running with the land, and construed to be 'conditions' as well as ‘covenants'
as though the word specifically expressing or imparting covenants and conditions were
used in separate provisions.

(b)  Entire Agreement: This Lease contains the entire agreement of the
parties with respect to the matters covered by this Lease, and no other agreement,
statement, or promise made by any party, or to any employee, officer, or agent of any
party, which is not contained in this Lease or executed pursuant hereto shall be binding or
valid.

33. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE. Time is of the essence of this Lease, and of
each provision.

34. GOVERNING LAW. The laws of the Territory of Guam shall govern the
validity, construction, and effect of this Lease. Whenever in this Lease any words of
obligation or duty are used in connection with either party, such words shall have the
same force and effect as though framed in the form of express covenants on the part of
the party obligated.

35. REMEDIES CUMULATIVE. The various rights, options, elections or
remedies of Lessor and Lessee, respectively, contained in this Lease shall be cumulative
and no one of them shall be construed as exclusive of any other, or of any other right,
priority or remedy allowed or provided for by law and not expressly waived in this Lease.

36. COVENANT TO EXECUTE ADDITIONAL INSTRUMENTS. The parties
agree to execute and deliver any instruments in writing necessary to carry out the
agreement, term, condition, or assurance in this Lease whenever occasion shall arise and
request for such instruments shall be made.

37. LEASE TERMS SEVERABLE. |If any terms, provision, covenant or
condition of this Lease should be held by a cournt of competent and final jurisdiction to be
invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of this Lease shall continue in full force and
effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired, or invalidated thereby.

In all other respects, said Lease shall continue in full force and effect.

38. STATEMENT RE: AVAILABILITY OF WATER AND POWER

RYAN MUNA hereby acknowledges that:

WATER AND POWER ARE NOT IMMEDIATELY
AVAILABLE ON THE PROPERTY OR WITHIN 100 FEET OF
THE PROPERTY.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Lease on the date
first written above.

Revised Format:1/8/16 ‘
Doc. Printed: 9/27/2017 . 7 of 8



Residential Lease - Ryan Muna 9215%

T ook

Michael J.B'._Vorja Jj Date
Administrative Director
Chamorro Land Trust Commission

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On this _ & E fﬁ day of S—af‘-"ég”'é* , 2017, before me the undersigned notary

personally appeared MICHAEL J.B. BORJA, Administrative Director, known to me
to be the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and for its
stated purpose.

In witness whereof | have hereunto affixed my name and official seal.

Notary Publfe, C
My Commission Ex 'f' /R
(

TERESITA A.C. TOVES
NOTARY PUB
In and for Guam, U.S.A.

My Commission Expires: JULY 13, 2019

PO. Box 2980 Hagatma, Gusm 96837

SSEE:

Ryan Mun D
Richard Muna, Attorney-In-Fact

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On this w day of W , 2017, before me the undersigned notary
personally appeared Richard Muna, known to me to be the person whose name is
subscribed to the within instrument as the Attorney-In-Fact for Ryan Muna, and
acknowledged to me that he subscribed the name of Ryan Muna, thereto as
principal, and his own name as Attorney-In-Fact, for its stated purpose on the
attached or preceding document and acknowledged to me that he signed it
voluntarily for its stated purpose.

Notary Public. ) it
My Commissiorﬁxpires (JM:_’\} \l',l'm

JOHN J. GUMATAOTAO
NOTARY PUBLIC
Comtmisso hamm’}llj%? 11,2021
1SS100 M »
My PO. Boxmmmmm

CONCURRED BY:

Edward Baza Vo
Governor of Guam

/¢

Date

Revised Format:1/8/16
Doc. Printed: 9/27/2017 8 Of' 8




SYMBOLS
{> GGNcontrolstation A  Traverse sation cpp Concrete power pole

T 4" x 4" congrete monument marked RLS # 64 found, as per ref. no. 1

W 4" x 4" concrete monument marked DLM found, as per ref, no. 1 1993 L GRID
€ No. 4 rebar with plastic cap marked DLM found, as par ref. ne. 1 A
% No. 4 rebar with plastic cap marked PLS # 84 found, a5 perref. no. 3
Lot 101206 Lat 10120-41
12.93 Acres varia 1S.AAcrgrazier @  No. 4 rebar no Identification found. Placement and pesition depictet] as found comer
Ramon San Agustin Ay : -
Doc. # 880839 CLTC Lessee @ Cormer investigated none found. Computed comer  ina inaccessible corner
R . _ - CURVE DATA
- ] [l . . ol
/QCi N 3049 = 4% x 4 epncrate monument marked PLS # 73 set, thx Telaphens box Cumve Delta Angje Radius Are Chord Chord Bearing
POB.1 el L°t1;2012?-40 / g 3?3’222 ggg; & No. 4 rebar with blue plastic cap marked PLS # 73 set. wh Weather head g; %%O%%%g.. 2‘%32 gg;g 38'222: ::énzggg,vg
i cre . ' : .
g 12 3363 gggg eopi | Gitbert C. Sanchez, CLTC Lessse tin hse Cc s'!?" ?g:gg:’ ggg‘g 9,576 8.621 S48 36’3‘;:' E
*35'49" ; . Cd *16'20" : 9.605 8.621 N 44°4447" W
| o S 89°36'49°E 77.845 < ccfd Tin house/concrete foundation pp Pigpen $6 Street sign o1 89°4340" 6.087 9504 8.560 N 45° 153" E
Vo 38.836 _ 39010 2 89°44'23" 6.096 8.548 8.501 N 44°28'48" W
L1-N4939'26"E 15.613 GGN 0416 b BLOCK |3 2 & brok C3 90°1537" 5986  9.430 8484  N4FBVIVE
L2 - 5 29%0°28"E 23.498 N 204348.1364 , | | 121 TRACT |z 11405 % " shk Broken shack inhse Tinhouse  conthse Container house C4 89°21'39" 6.164 9.614 8,669 S 44°4011"E
L3 - N 368%47'56"W 10.683 E 110366.8749 | |i'N 2 Loté T Lots =z |oB Lots, Block2 Cs 90°22'44" 6.096 2616 8.649 N44°4759" W
Lo VISl asqti7e [ A=dt7e: & Qg Tract 11405 cpp ) . C6 89°37'16" 6.279 8.821 8.850 N 45°11'54" E
i L= Sq. M. K Jo:gbm'a g $ & Doc #618339 " sl Concrate power pota/street light  wpp Wooden powerpole gw Guy wire c7 a0°00'00" B.098 9.578 8.621 8 44°59'21" €
o ROAD LOT 'G" | | ., | Lucia J. Lagos |5 8 _ c8 90°00'00" 6.096 9,576 8.621 N 45°00'39" £
- - [ Ai SegisurE Aikoss _ — - B  de @ ::Zf)g 3| ° wpp Cg 1133247 §0%6 12081 10199 S3P12SHE
g ssana croim 36,474 32519 \ % 32856 : — wh Wooden power pofe/weather head  cc slab Concreteslab  shk Shack c10 65°59'48" 3144 10533 9980  NBESEI2'E
+ 2 Loty = Lot 2 ¢ Lot 1 - | S B9TE2E'W  71.966 §§ Road Lot "A" RAW, c1 114°17'18° 7.620 15.200 12,802 § 33°1201"E
sl (2 . o 0 pE Tract 11405 ) . : ): ! *00'39"
21|18 astmrar 8] gt | As277stsg M. [N N 89B926"E 72,138 5 Doc 4618339 G 6006 0576 86 S45°003W
Nl fE M w . M. Adolpho Jr, rN
o w . - 3 i Ire)
g g eqer :,_.3 Palacios ::3 amﬂ B i Lot 31 g Lot 30 L?t 1, B:?:s 53_ |
5 3| BLOCK 2| 11 g 1 As2iare A=2,13TH- @ ract 1140¢ NOTES :
K z = : 5 seM 3 So M, 3| Doc.#618339 _
8 38474 38.474 38.415 2 | WM. E M3 |
o NormaJ. &| Vanessall, B 1) Survey is based on recovered monuments and Guam Geodetic Network (GGN} _
Lot 10120-7 € 5t6§§35.37..w 115,962 80.930 % Ouitugua & Soria control marks as depicted on plan. CERTIFICATION OF SURVEYOR
o . 8
49.24 Acres o 13! 3 _ 2} Al distances are in metric measurement, unless otherwise noted. e o ghat thi
Ramon San Agustin 3|3 Lot4 EIR Lot 5 N 3 L3032 2] 39451 Lot 2, Block 3, 3) Bearings and distances shown within parenthesis are record data consistent L, Raymond A, Cruz, hereby certify that this map was prepared
8 A2 519+-Sq. M. @|@  A=2177 @ e _ i , by me or under my direct supervision, That it is based on a
o ’ a1 A=2,177+-89. M. &N N 89°36'37"W “TRAND Tract 11405 as per ref, no. 1, depicted (per Dwg. No. RRV02-06) are dala consistent as per _ _ _ g .
8 Candice M. Bordallo Michae! M. Pataci | Doc. ¥ 618339 _ . ? . field survey made on May 26, 2012, in conformance with all
~ o eneet . Fawctes 12418 Lat 29 e ' ref. no. 4, all athers are field condition and based on 1993 grid. applicable laws and regulations. That I am responsible for the
wl S89°383TE 50204 & — B e A=2,137+/ Sq. M. o 4) Subject Lots are zoned "A" Agricultural as of the date of preparation of this map. : " .
o S 89°36'37"E 60.930 i ' ! & o i accuracy of all data and information shown herein. I, also
) Q| Manuel 8, Boria 5} Subject Lots are within the Northern aguater. i# that all th £the character and ooct
2 18 Lot § N - . 6) As-built are depicted on plan as per the date of this map certify that all the monuments are of the character and occupy
EN g Lot7? ] Lot d M EL S 89°38'37°E 78,580 ' e BN RsI the positions indicated on this map.
3| @ A=2519-8q.M g ASRITSq M. Mo - Let'3. Block 3 7) This survey map is prepared as per the Authorization o Initigle Parcel Survey _
Z[5%  PeterP.Manibusan &|©  Barbarad.Blas Sl lf% it o Sl react 11405 letter issued by CLTC Administrative Director, to lessees. oy ,
Nas'agarw s0gs0 | 1N Pl Es;&rﬁ K|  Doc.#618339 8) This survey map canforms o the Agriculturat Subdivision Master Plan 2015 M05-16 A = D051
g nertyn T Bot prepared by the Department of Land Management, recordad under Doc, # 880839, ~ . ”]Ti
N 89°36'37"W 120.134 (N 8O°1717"W 120.090) | h N 89°36'37"W 78,710 9) This survey is an extension of fract 11405, previously approved under Doc. # 618339, RAYMOND A. CRUZ, P.L.8. #73 DA
ot |8 Lot 27 & DLM 301 FY 99, |
[ wide | o A=2,137+- Sq. M. R _ p— AN OF O
[ Juan Q. Mendivla L?r:étmg' CERTIFICATION OF GUAM CHIEF PLANNER
Ly S BO°3537°E  78.839 Doc. # 618339 Approval pursuant to Title 21, Guam Code Annotated, Chapter 62,
Ml D et g Subdivision Law & Chapter 61, Zoning Law.
L= - s
o ﬂ._=2737+f- M. ~
* Justina Annsgarez N REFERENCES : .
— NegweeTW 74857 g 5 Blocks 1) Dwg. No. 14-99T652, Re-Subdivision of Lot 10120-R18 / Agricultural Subdvision G- ‘Zﬂ].’ wis
T o L ML O S, e Ry STk
H kN =g, B . M. No. B No, 1544, I G Lo 3 , Authonz
< & Raymond T. Alicta under P, L. 15-18. GUAMTCHIEF PL R
g w S 89035;37qu 79.096 3) DW‘Q. NG. RHVD4'25AFS, SUbdiViSiGn 0! L{n 101 20‘1 ‘1 2; Lm 1012?"40 & .
& i Lot 10120-41, by PLS # 54, L.M. No. 0BO FY 2005, on file with CLTC. T _
" s % aztieSoM, 3|3 Lot Blocks, 4) Dwg. No. RRV02:08, Re-Subdivision of Lot 10120-R18 (for iease purposss), CERTIFICATION OF GUAM CHIEF SURVEYOR
N 582040"W  9.704 ‘“H~§ R Rosita O. Hemandez | B Tract 11405 by PLS # 54, approved by Ron Teehan, Administrative Director, CLTC, This map has been examined for conformarnce with Title 21,
GGN 0963 S e ' § Doc. # 618339 Dated: 10/16/02, fied with CLTC. Guam Code Amotated, Chapter 60, Aticle S, Uniform
N 204111 6084 = N8OeITW 70225 |a 5) Dwg. No. RLSCLTCDED - 01, Re-Subdivision of (Lot 10120-R22) Parcels oyl Ind aflr
D 2 Lot 23 2} 1 thru 24 (for lease purposes only), by PLS # 73, approved by Monte Mafnas,
E 110385.3908 g A=2,i1esg#631q$ g Administrative Director, CLTC, Dated: 6/11/12, filed with CLTC.
L Annie C. Lot 7. Block 3 8) Dwg. No. RLSCLTGDED - 02, Re-Subdivision of (Lot 10120-R22) Parcals
S 2107'18"W 23.342 S 89°3837°E 79.353 Tract 11405 25 thu 85 (far lease purposes only), by PLS # 73, approved by
S g Lot 22 é g Doc. # 618339 David V. Camacho, Acting Birector, DLM, Dated: 11/3/13, filed with CLTC. 1 ! '
Qe O | PAUW'L SANTOS,P.LS. #68
- CHIEF OF CADASTRE / GUAM CHIEF SURVEYOR
N 89°36'3T"W  79.481 . _ — _ M |
P 8] o |
' < A=2,WTs-Sn. M. g  Tract1140
S TR H S
Ramon San Agustin S B9°3037'E 79.608
? 2 ?:'c # 880839 5 Lot 20 5
2 T ®F 3§ g- & Az2,137+/- Sq. M. g
3 F 7 32 B | TerisitaF. & Bruce A Gleason Lot 16 NEW.R4
x il § 3 '6 N BOTIGITW 79736 Block 3, Tract 11405 GGN 0422
3 i ¥ 7 iz 2 |5 bam =k e N 204116.5884 P
: Y ¥ QI W A21ITH-SGM I o "n 200
é’é’ ' - g Y ) iciaP. Santos 3 & E 111062.2985 o
! ol E $89°38'37"E  79.863 - 4
b o
o= 2 Lot18 & Lot 16 NEW-4, /
-’ﬁ S 2 33 A=2,137+/- 8q. M. =1 Block 3, Tract 11405 g
f o 2 g Ants A Vienueve |  Doc. # 821607 y
> Block 3, 408 4
EL 2 i~ g NEseIW 78.890 “Boc. # 618339 Block 7, Tract 11405 S
" # 0 = Lot 17 g Lot 16 NEW.-3, Doc. # 618339 Lot 10120-18 /
a z l z 3 | g A=2,1284/-Sq. M. . B'Ug;gjggc}gg;% Do, # 527564 / JR—
>R ‘f ' - ; l?"j., : Peter D. Mondiol N 89°50'04"W (185.588) 185.544 N B°5004™W {216.031) 217.181 {  $89°3G20"W 64.426 /T8
Sy 5 } ; N BO°B2'STW T4.019 2 | e - & 4+ s s s 4 a4 4 oo oa o e . e e .« 4 s o . (SBY°BF2'E 444474}~ = « ¢+ - + - < - - < 4+ s e om s .o o .. S
= s 00°0701"W 15.240 nge
P a o : i - 5 89052'57"E ?401 g ) f """"" R'OA'D l:o.l: E‘ ?MCT 1'140'5 """""" S B89°50'04"E 445507- Toeor w s e e s k= m == e L A A T T R -~ N 39?3@"20'5
& [ 3 Efg\ 27.639 33746 [12634 21.201 33.686 33.983 34.041 4120 | 34174 34.043 35877 | 33714 33.617 33.880 33.751 33623 [ 17717 51.769
s ¥ e |E =, |B =28 |8 Y 2 g |2 TRACT(Z 38 3 wg |3 0o [RMMOS I3 o8 L R L |2 a8 L IS
. S g o8 |2 5 g 2?28 [8 g *n |2 @ |8 g s w2 |8 =2. I3 2 2 (2 3 |3 g 8
M . - &g Is Fi TaE ® g 3 e F-3 g% | g 1 4 0 & g3 1° & 2 & o i g
_ g @28 1z B.0 |uw S50 iz B w 898 |z &S < |z of W % > g§ W z u «P8 |5 &% W e z Lot 1 __S27°57'34"W
S K- =55 |5 : |z Z - = & e o g E Sge h 3 b B ! S 2Ed | LT % £x9 | - U f A=3,989+/ Sg. M. 84.880
£ 1w N B 3 Bg=E |3 3 g % 3 g §2% |8 3 : = 18 2 S8y | k 2 54 [ § = B g3 3 é E |8 .
" e 1 §g -lﬁ_g £ ‘___E g '-"E 2 i 2 "g @ ...ﬁ‘ & Ea 2 ___é 2 g_g ¥ §§§ 4 i E. £ it 2 _; S ‘_.g g r E Bernaditt L, Rabago
| {  I% |5 < $-3N 8 <& [8 3w |8 g 42 (3 ¥ 8 I8 22 |z 2% |3 I° |5 % 3
; ) g A o z % BLOCK |= s % z 12 ® z = § < % i 089 z % § 42 E oﬁ?
I Wit 33.064 32673 32.356 22442 31.933 31.728 31827 | 30980 AT Nes2r0oW 12Esor - - e T e (S BIBI21W 181487) - - - - - © /N 203853.3456
<] I S sl 0w o |8 89%E1eW) 266303 f - - - - - ¢ 2 _ per Dwg. No. RRVOZ-06 S BISTI2W  181.546 E 110038.8215
& = =E - ” g = a5 2 .§ 2 o o o § 3 g3 / 821
o ¥ ! ; ; & : ™ = : e & Lo .
& g g 8 = . i. — . ooy o = f=3 S 0
8-§ o ;'!g'- z egg § e g @ _Ea . g"? - g‘*g 5 gg%' §§ Lot 10120-21 %z /
2l By B T R 357 S3s o) i £ Sha 8 k30N | Edwanit A, Muna 5
u ;3}5 8= é -‘&g §g£§ §§ § dﬁ': % a%i 2 532 g; CLYC Lessee g-g /
1 - ® - ] ot 2 i el — b - & - g &
i) <gs 45% &é 8| & 5 I7: 1§ |5 é:g /g
w [ z 1) o =
| | 3ze71 32353 | 32140 31.931 31.725 31,524 ? 31.875 N ag?gwa v 2%, 504 3
_ 5 00°33°00"W N82°2100'W 250642 RQ, T'F" TRACT . e g GGN Tie Line
{ fg‘:_gw ) N | S 89°2100°E 293A221L0T F TRACT 11405 shik . 5 28 7% 3 | o not to seale
] iy 244 30269 | 301413 30.491 30.569 30.848 3&.7336@% 30.809 3 §§ 7
o | JTRACT| 11405 N 3 Sd5
=318 =g s ¥ 28|18 =_ |8 =18 =23 53 w  Llettoizoas K B
¥ $ g-s' & g % + 2 le 8 © = I 'g-g ™ = g_ i B JosePerezMafnas g &|¢ -
< a% . _ : $§ w?E [® -UE {8 & g CLTC Lessse 2 22|@ ¥
- 8 I% = m~at b = - ) g : oy A 8 8 2] “F
M x s m | ? 4 w s E o F W = ; d - -g gn el N
@ 2 : i |g §gw ' Sge [B 52 )
g 3 j ; 812 o § % = |9 w 3 s B z 82 5
g g <i3 <88 < |8 ¥yP|z <3 [ I 5 3
[ z d 1w z 0 Z (73 i ry— ; S
// - - S + e o - ~L589MOM1I"E| 305.780- -f- - - Pl RS { « . . . i?gf;ﬁg Eﬁ%gg - ; / GGN 0112
g 20,147 30.258 6 | 0491 | 30870 | aosss | s0r2 . 18 88 ?} N 203719.7548
s 2 S8O40MIE T2267 | 773 | . w| 38508 55,897 77465 iy $ E 110897.1967
Lot 10120-8 N gl8 Sl 18LOCK ¢ = 5 13 ¢ 5 n,/
15.09 Acres S A0SeM nle 0 B F 2 7 Latis 2 o ~ xel/
Francisco Taitanc E w Frapcisco Rlos % e M/ TEa 2| Ae22054-5q. M. g 2 29
Doc. # 880839 af & - - = . 3 é = P Maria Ryan §8 @ z //
8 B N 89°40"11"W 72.472 T SE j z < 3 o 28| %
S 58 Lot23 Bl 338y oElp F {2 |G ne £fiz f
Z A=2,023+ Sq. M ¥Esa WFlE B o, w2 Lot 1912 3
=z 5 J r 7 :q. . - i = w = 3 38 i Lot 20 @ sg Josus P Perez  Fy h
— 1% - 3% &8 i il 39.425 g CiiClessec 238 §/§
S 89°40H1'E 72,556 ol 1 ' ' g »318 v &
3 Lot2d . g 1 § 46,752 Ea gg @ %/?
R A=2,023+- Sq. M. 72 ), 22T g g N 89°59°21"W 52 &
Daro!lay #. Sablan 54.478 '3 Lot 21
_ . ' GGN 0469
N 89°40'11"W 72.840 q NETEEIW g § § A=2,023+- Sq. M. ¢
' 3 Lot 25 S m S, Flizabeth Ofeda N 203629.5587
| S A=20234-S.M, 5 ha2,0289-SqM. O M y O por D o V0208 E 110873.1652
I T K . - L r par Dwg. No. RRY02-08 N 89°5¢" . . §\ ERH
65.088 54.478 Ei 36,507 878 ~ - - s @_jf_n BO*2100W 64,752 _(N-89°59'21"W 72.500) Q S 53’;2 S3W 50.801
----------------- NBO°5021"W 204282- - + ¢ - =« - = s o+ e s s s e . . RRV03-1 SJPM
-—5 00D0'38"W 15.240 ROAD LOT F &/ &
................. S B9°E9'21"E 294_282 - r e %+ wm om a2 s = Tm”‘ 1‘36 _-S Bgasgfzalug 1*5‘g05 - * b‘:\
44.8%0 51.059 51.069 51.059 39.959 a1z 5 “ P O.B.3
d : - W b o
“ TRACT I |5 11405 15 BLOCK Hf . 4 [ otz g 11405 N 203579.4463
s BlE s BIE o BE e BFET . SIS 5 2t e larudl s W E 110819,3646
A=2,0884-5q. M. S| A=2089+-Sq. M. G|D A2,088+-Sq. M. S|5 As2,088+-5q.M. 2|e " 95 P el Sq.M. oA«
Ray C. Alcantarn | 5 Lindsey Vilsgomez | > TerseaM.Duenas |, JosephM.Dusnss |5 | n S Lourdes S.N. Pitue 1 g = Redine Jeen = sgie“éw’\??
51,397 N 51.069 ' 51.059 51,059 ] ¥ ;I 51.058 51.254 2 o Pt 15 thaim
o — N 89°59'21"W  306.885 inac oar __ﬁ"d___ 41389 1 1 | 39958 ] 30255
T e A YY" e 2 g N BO5921"W  110.344 i__._;am_ E.__q_é?ﬁm‘mgo_u__&_u 1_20
e — - T m&dge of COT'OI_EE__ —_— Chﬂ’m!‘ Frasnm s g Lot 7 g g g GRAPH[C SCALE
/ At - - S @ A:s‘zéaﬁ-rf« &g e 1 inch = 40 Meters
top edge of coral pit ~ z| Vanessa McCarrel | Z]5i
e .
~ 12,1924
~ 41349 =
SN S 89°5021°E 53.541
COROL PIT \%{qp@ AGHICULTURAL SUBDIVISION SURVEY MAP
7
e,
N

TRACT 11405

(Formerly Lot 10120-R48)
REVIEWED BY. , (FOR LEASE PURPOSES ONLY)
ik it 1015 | MUNICIPALITY OF DEDEDO

Frank P. Taitano Date LAND SQUARE 11 SECTION 4

\

Planner, DLM
] PREPARED FOR and SATISFACTORY 70O : - — _ —— RLS SE RVI CES LL c
- . A-\- - | URVEY DATA
Pikros Castro e v e | Sy ; - ABSTRACT OF TITLE
Engineering Technician, DLM e ,_ I | SUBJECT BY | _ DATES _ — . CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION NO. 283
N = o ob Number 1 00413 Sasio Lot Lot 10120 PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR NO. 73
725 /8 Admstrates Boaclor / ¢ Ressarched RAC iay 2012 B R P.0.Box 5296 Hagatna, Guam 96932 / Tef 969-3763 / Cell 888-6910
Edgardo Taguiam Date Chamorro Land Trust Commission ' ?e{g gook ] Rilé:sfé 5{;;0 . Certficate of Title: ~ C.T.#88094 ray, _pls @yahoo.com / www.racruz-risservices, vaeb com
; . ie CIRP/R -Nov
Cartographic Supervisor, DLM Field Supy.~ | RAGRDIRNC| VayNov201z]  Registeredon: ____ March28, 1591 | DRAWING NUMBERS
- Nov 2012 In Name of: |
i By RAG | Fob2013 e Govemmentof Guam  'SCALE: | MAP DWG. NO. ED. 21 | T CECKNO. o e
| CheckedBy | _RAC | Feb 2013 } 1 1"=40M. 1| _ RLSDED - 21 Y 2018

S-14797


jhoana.casem
Highlight

jhoana.casem
Highlight

jhoana.casem
Highlight

jhoana.casem
Highlight


RYAN MUNA
Lot 15, Block 13, Tract 11405 Dededo
228FY2015

Recorded Lease - 921538
er Lot 15, Block 15, Tract 11405DE




CHamoru Land Trust Commission
Land Agent Staff Report

MARTINA S. CRUZ
RESIDENTIAL APPLICANT

.  REQUEST(S)
1) The applicant wants the Commission to be aware of her frustration in obtaining survey services.
II. MATTER
1) N/A
.  FACTS
1) Applicant: Martina S. Cruz
2) Applicant’s Date and Time: January 22, 2025, at 3:20 PM
3) Applicant’'s Application Number: 008518
4) Original Application Type: Residential
5) Lot Description: Lot 11-5, Block 1, Tract 10316, Dededo
6) Survey Map: None
7) Priority: 1
8) Pre-occupier: Yes, June 30, 1994, signed by Administrative Director Joseph M. Borja
9) Land Use Permit (LUP): None
10) Mayor’s Certification: None
11) Recorded Lease: N/A
12) Unrecorded Lease: N/A
13) Lease Fee Paid: N/A
14) Is this a Registered Property? Yes
15) Residing on Private Property: No
16) Residing on Guam Ancestral Lands Property: No
17) Part of Null and Void Listing: N/A
18) Part of the 2018 Ratified Listing: N/A
19) Part of 1995 Listing: N/A
20) Part of OPA Audit Listing: N/A
21) Lease Approved by CLTC Board of Commissioners: N/A
IV. CHRONOLOGY
1) February 24, 1997: The Administrative Director, J. M. Borja, approved the application for
power, telephone, and water services and stated that Bernadita Dela Cruz, mother of Martina
Cruz, is an occupier on Lot 10140, Dededo.
2) January 22, 2025, Martina S. Cruz submitted an application, receipt of payment, family tree, and
an affidavit of ownership.
3) May 8, 2025: Board approved for a residential lease agreement for Lot 11-5, Block 1, Tract
10316, Dededo.
4) May 16, 2025: Authorization to Initiate Survey, signed by Acting AD J. Cruz Jr.
5) August 8, 2025: Verification of Eligibility letter signed by Chairperson A. Bordallo
V. SUMMARY
Martina Cruz was awarded a residential lease on May 8, 2025, by the Board of Commissioners. On
May 16, 2025, a survey authorization was issued, but the list of surveyors Ms. Cruz contacted did not
want to service CLTC constituents.
VI. SUGGESTED ACTION
MARTINA S. CRUZ

COMPILED BY J. DAYDAY, LAND AGENT 11
AUGUST 11, 2025



DESIGNATION OF PUBLIC
INFORMATION OFFICER



Real Property Tax Assessment



SWITCH/TRANSFER OF
APPLICATION DATE/TIME



SWITCH OF APPLICATION TYPE



Letter from the Governor
Staging Site for Junk Vehicles



LOURDES A. LEON GUERRERO JOSHUA E TENORIO
GOVERNOR LT. GOVERNOR
UFISINAN I MAGA'HAGAN GUAHAN
OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR OF GHUAM
July 11, 2025
ARLENE BORDALLO
Chairperson

Chamorre Land Trust Commission
Suite 222, 2nd Floor, ITC Building
Tamuning, Guam

Hafa Adai Chairperson Bordallo,

I request your assistance in identifying potential suitable lots for a designated staging site for
junk vehicles prior to their disposal. The government of Guam is currently utilizing a temporary
staging site at the Department of Public Works compound. However, this site is nearing capacity.
Over the past few months, we have observed a rise in the number of junk vehicles throughout the
island. In response, DPW is working diligently to clear these vehicles from roadways and
easements by staging them at its compound until these vehicles can be properly disposed of.

Given the current limitations at the existing site, we are in need of the expertise and resources
available through your agency to identify a new location where we can safely stage these
vehicles. Your assistance in finding appropriate lots that can accommodate our needs while
adhering to safety and environmental guidelines would be invaluable.

I would appreciate the collaboration between your agency and the several departments involved
in processing junk vehicles to discuss this matter further and explore potential sites that could
serve as a staging area. My office will be in touch with your staff to inform them of a meeting
date. We appreciate your continued partnership and look forward to your response and the
opportunity to work together on this important issue, as your assistance is crucial in this matter.

Senseramente,

S S

LOURDES A. LEON GUERRERQ
Maga hagan Gudhan
Governor of Guam

RICARDO ). BORDALLO GOVERNOR'S COMPLEX
513 W. Marine Corps Dive Hagdtia, Guam 94910
govemncrguam.gov | [671) 472-8931



Portion of Lot 440, Merizo
Trans World Radio



TRANS WORLD RADIO GUAM Legend

Lot 440-4, Merizo [70,477 sqm (17.415 acres)] - Bile Bay
Feature 1

“  Lujan's Point

Merizo Bell Tower

Merizo Mayor's Office

©  Priest's Pool

©  Trans World Radio Guam

z >

Irrage © 2025 Maxar Technologies
©2

e
Irrage © 2025 Airbus



i W — - ¢ - Scnroeqer

TRANS WORLD RADIO GUAM L

Lot 440-4, Merizo [70,477 sqm (17.415 acres)] Bile Bay

{ = i—"";._ﬁl =
S “  Lujan's Point

Feature 1

Merizo Bell Tower

Merizo Mayor's Office
Priest's Pool

Shell Gas Station

Trans World Radio Guam

Priest's ={ele]]

\ _,‘ ‘2:.( \/’L( |
* .:.._ @

9 Me;ii:?l\ﬁayor‘s Office ™

s

% S/
A ” /
,-/

Image ©2025/Miaxar Technologies

Image ©2025 CGNES / Airbus OF ]
; e == e B Shell GasgStation

Image©,2025/Airbus i = 2 f & L | R




Inspection conducted 01Aug2025—compiled by J. Casem Page 1 of 5



Inspection conducted 01Aug2025—compiled by J. Casem Page 2 of 5



|
==at —

Page 3 of 5

Casem

Inspection conducted 01Aug2025—compiled by J.



Inspection conducted 01Aug2025—compiled by J. Casem Page 4 of 5



Page 5 of 5

Inspection conducted 01Aug2025—compiled by J. Casem



o FILE
. | S VY I S T

AMENDED LEASE AGREEMENT

This Amended Lease Agreement will supercede the Lease Agreement
recorded under Document No. 269828 authorized by Public Law 13-134 is herein
entered by and between DEPARTMENT OF LAND MANAGEMENT,
GOVERNMENT OF GUAM, P.0. Box 2950, Hagatna, Guam 96932 hereinafter
referred to as the “LESSOR” and TRANS WORLD RADIO PACIFIC, a Guam
Corporation, P.O. Box 8780 Agat, Guam 96928, hereinafter referred to as the
“LESSEE”. |

WITNESSETH:

The parties hereto for the consideration hereinafter mentioned covenant
and agree as follows:

1. The LESSOR hereby leases to the LESSEE and the LESSOR

hereby leases from the LESSOR the following described premises to wit:

Lot No. 440-4, Municipality of Merizo, containing an

area of 758,607 square feet or 70,477.00 square

meters (17.415 acres) as shown on L.M. Checked No.

025FY97 recorded under Document No. 560187.

and

Lot No. 440-5, Municipality of Merizo, containing an

area of 10,463 + square meters (2.585 acres) as

shown on Map Drawing No. 14-04T690 dated June 27,

2005, L.M. Checked No. 184FY2005 recorded under

Document No. 710907.
2. TERMS: To have and to hold the above-described propenty, Lot
No. 440-4, Merizo, together with all rights appurtenant thereto belonging
to the LESSEE for a term beginning JULY 1, 1976 and ending JUNE 30,
2026 at midnight upon the terms, covenants and conditions hereinafter set
forth.

To have and to hold the above-described property, Lot No. 440-5,

Merizo, together with all rights appurtenant thereto belonging to the

LESSEE for a term beginning NOVEMBER 1, 2006 and ending JUNE 30,

2026 at midnight upon the terms, covenants and conditions hereinafter set

e

: I e T
forth, R e Bl




- V46771

3. RENT for Lot 440-4: The LESSEE shall pay to the LESSOR as
rental to the premises six percent (6%) per annum of the fair market value
of the premises at date of execution; the LESSOR herein agrees and
accepts as fair market value of the premises, for Lot No. 440-4,
established by the appraisal report dated February 23,1976 p‘repared by
Ralph M. Shiyama, an appraiser for Realty Research Corporation, which
is marked Exhibit “A” and recorded under Document No. 269828. |
RENT for Lot 440-5: The LESSEE shall pay to the LESSOR as
rental to the premises six percent (6%) per annum of the fair market value
of the premises at date of execution; the LESSOR herein agrees and
accepts an average fair market value of the premises, for Lot No. 440-5,
established by two appraisal report dated June 8, 2005 prepared by
Micronesian Appraisal Associates, Inc., Real Estate Appraisal and
Consultation and the other appraisal dated October 8, 2005 prepared by
Chief Appraisals, copies of which are attached marked Exhibit “B”.
The value established thereby shall be applied in the computation of rental
herein above agreed. |t is further agreed that the per annum rental shall
be compounded every ten (10) years at the rate of ten percent (10%). The
LESSEE through its facilities and ‘activities shall from time to time or at
LESSEFE’s initiative, cooperate with the LESSOR to propagate to its
audience Guam’s identity including but not limited to geography,
population, culture, climate, economy, society and politic. The LESSEE
further agrees to make available its broadcast facilities and capabilities to
the LESSOR in cases of national emergency, and before, during and after
natural disasters subject to the determination of the local Civil Defense
Office.
All rentals shall be paid monthly in advance on or before the first day of
each lease month.
4, OPTION TO RENEW: LESSEE shall have the right and option to
renew this lease for another thirty (30) years upon the same terms and

conditions contained herein except the payment of rent which shall be




. 148771

negotiated upon notice to exercise this option. The LESSEE shall give
ninety (90) days prior notice to the LESSOR by registered mail of
LESSEE'’s decision to exercise option.
5. The LESSOR shall deliver to the LESSEE physical possession of
the demised premises upon the execution of the lease. The LESSEE shall
deliver to the LESSOR physical possession of the demised premises upon
termination of this lease or any renewal thereto.
6. LESSEE covenants to save harmless and indemnify LESSOR from
and against all causes of action legal or equitable arising by reason of the
actions or neglect of the LESSEE or of the failure by the public or any
persons whomsoever which may be asserted against the LESSOR for and
upon said cause of action.
7. QUIET ENJOYMENT: The LESSOR covenants and warrants that
the LESSEE upon paying the rental and performing the covenants of this
lease may quietly have, hold and enjoy the demised premises during the
term of this lease or any renewal thereto. The LESSOR further represent
and warrant that LESSOR is the owner of the leased premises and has
the right to make this lease to wit:

(a) Lot No. 440, Merizo, is registered under the Government of

Guam, as per Certificate of Title Number 33482.

(b) The leased premises are now free from all encumbrances.
8. LESSEE shall pay all utility charges including water, sewer,
electricity, and telephone assessed againét the demised premises during
the term hereof and any renewal thereto.
9. ASSIGNMENTS, MORTGAGING AND SUBLETTING RIGHTS:
The LESSEE may not assign this lease in whole or in part or mortgage or
sublet all or any part of the demised premises but shall remain liable to the
LESSOR for the payment of rent and of the terms, conditions, and
covenants of this lease.
10. CONDITION:If at any time during the term hereof the whole or any

substantial part of the premises shall be taken for any public or quasi




- 748771

premises or arising by reason of the occupancy, use Or the leased
premises or the business carried on of the activities carried for which are
or may become a lien during the term of the lease of which are hereinafter
collectively referred to as taxes. LESSOR shall promptly forward to
LESSEE all bills received by LESSOR for taxes which LESSEE is required
by the provisions of this lease to pay and shall be assessed or levied
against the premises.

12.  USE CLAIMS WITH LAWS AND RECTRICTIONS: LESSEE shall
have the peaceful and quiet use of the leased premises only as authorized
by Public Law 13-134 without hindrance on the part of the LESSOR and
LESSOR shall warrant and defend LESSEE in such peaceful and quiet
use against the lawful claims of all persons claiming by, through or under
the LESSOR. LESSEE shall not breach or suffer to breach of any of the
condition, covenants and restrictions of record affecting the leased
premises and shall hold the LESSOR harmiess from any and all
consequences of any such breach. LESSEE shall comply to all present
and future laws and regulations of duly constituted public authorities in any
manner affecting the leased premises. LESSEE shall have the right to
contest the validity of any laws or regulations adversely affecting the use
of the leased premises and shall hold the LESSOR harmless from the
violation of any such law or regulation.

13. IMPROVEMENTS: LESSEE shall throughout the term of this lease
at its own cost without any expense to the LESSOR keep and maintain the
premises including all belongings and improvements of every kind which
may be a part thereto including the towers and broadcasting or
transmitting facilities and such other belongings and facilities including
dwellings as may be essential to the facility and effective use of the
property and all appurtenances thereto in good sanitary and neat order,
condition and repair. Upon termination or expiration and renewal thereto of
this lease, all improvements constructed or situated on the demised

premises shall remain thereon and shall revert to the LESSOR except




-~  T48771

those facilities and equipment directly used for transmitting and
broadcasting and which can be removed without impairing the
improvement remaining therein.

14. LESSEE shall prepare at his expense a fifty (50) foot public right-of-
way severance map depicting access to the demised premises and submit
said map with due haste to the LESSOR for its approval and adoption
pursuant to the terms and conditions of this agreement. LESSEE shall
thereafter develop and construct a twenty-two (22) foot wide coral base
road at his expense and shall continue to maintain said road until such
time as the LESSOR releases in writing the LESSEE from this obligation.
15. The LESSEE may terminate this agreement at any time by giving
written notice by registered mail to LESSOR ninety (90) days prior to the
effective date of termination.

16. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES:  The following events shall be
termed to be events of default by LESSEE under this lease:

a) LESSEE shall fail to pay any instaliment of rent hereby
reserved or shall fail to pay any taxes or other charges
required to be paid by LESSEE under the terms of this lease
and such failure shall continue for a period of thirty (30) days
from and after written notice expressing such failure is
delivered to LESSEE.

b) LESSEE shall fail to comply with any term, provision or
covenant of this lease other than the payment of rental,
taxes or other charges and shall not commence 1o remove or
correct such failure within thirty (30) days from and after the
date written notice such failure is delivered to the LESSEE or
having commenced to renew of to correct such failures
within sixty (60) days, LESSEE thereafter fail to proceed with
reasonable diligence to completely remove or correct such

failures.




17. RIGHTS OF SUCCESSORS: The covenants, conditions and

agreements contained herein shall bind and enure to the benefits of the
LESSOR and the LESSEE and their respective heirs, distributes,

executors, administrators, and successors.

LESSEE:

i VB AL

MICHAEL B. SABIN
TRANS WORLD RADIO

Date: /0/7/0 4

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

CITY OF HAGATNA )ss

On this 4” day of mm/ , 2006, before me, the
undersigned notary, personally appeared MICHAEL B, SABIN, known to
me to be the person whose name is signed on the attached or preceding
document and acknowledged to me that he signed it voluntarily for its
stated purpose.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto affixed my name and
official seal in Hagatna, Guam, the day and year first above written.

U
(GRACE MARIE C. MARTINEZ

NOTARY PUBLIC
In and for Guam, U.S.A.

P.O. Box 21112 GMF, Guam 86621

My Commission Expires: July 05, 2008 |

P a1 vl

[

[E

0CT 30 2006

A HNERALS OHIT

APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY LESSOR:
AND FORM:

OVERNMENT OF GUAM:

Aftomey General of Guam Governor of Guam

pate: _/{ = (p 204 | Date: @ AOY AT




ASmnmmRT“ ol '
i | - 748771

Propased Antenna Site

K
. Lat 440-5, Muntelpality of Merizo, Istand of Guam

June 08, 2005

Effective Date of Valuation:
July 26, 2005

Date of Appraisal Report:
Trans World Radio/Government of Guam

P.0. Box 8780
Agat, Guam 96928

Real Estate Appraisals and Consultation

194 Chalan San Antonio, Suite 202
Tarmuning, Guam 96913-3 508
EXHIBIT “B”

,t_mw,galuep_gciﬁc.ne_g




Micronesian Appraisal Associates, Inc.

Subject:

Real Estate Appraisal and Consultation

July 26, 2005

- Trans World Radio/Government of Gunam

P.0.Box 8780
Agat, Guam 96928

palltyofMerbo.ls!andof-Guun SRR

 Appralsal of Lot 440-5,

Gentlemen, ’

As requested and per the terms of our engagement letter, we have conducted an appraisal of the property listed above, The
assignment is to estimate the current market value of the fee simple Interest in the subject property in its *as 15" condition,
The attached appralsal report communicates our conchusions and setz forth the methodotogy and data constdered In our
valuation. The attached is a Surnmary Appraisal Report prepared in conformity with the Uniform Standards of Professional
Appraisal Practics (USPAP).

The subject is a vacant parcel consisting of 2.535 acres or 10,463 square meters zoned A-Rural, in Merizo. The subject
Dbroperty is currently vacant and idle. Based on the data and analysis contatned In this report, we conclude a market value of
thefeesimpleintereatlntheproperty.asofjuneos.zoos.of = :

| US'$ 105,000

certifications for this report are also found in the Addenda. If you have any questions on the data or ou- conclusions, please
contact us, . ' ' ' '

Respectfullysubnﬂmd._

MICRONESIAN APPRAISAL ASSOCIATES, INC.

¥
L

194 Chalan San Antonio, Suite 202, Tamuning, Gnam 96913-3508

Telephone 671 646 0234: Pacsimile 671 646 023 3; www.valuepacific.net




746771

Table of Contents
Islend Map 4
The Assignment 7
Purpose and Function " 7
Intended USEr .....cvierammierrnicnsasinimssssassios tosios 7
Scope of Work 7
Property Rights Appraised 7
Date of the Appraisal 7
Effective Date of Valuation 7
Definitions 7
Market Value 7
Exposure 8
Fee Simple Estate 8
Highest and Best Use® 8
Current Use of the Property 8
Use Reflected in the Appraisal 8
Regional Analysis (Island Data) 8
Site Data 21
Site Map. 21
Legal Description 21
Site Description 21
Zoning 22
1 Tano-'ta Land Use Plan 23
Performance Standards " 23
YARDS AND LOT AREA TABLE 23
Utilities 24
Tax Assessment Information 24
Easemnents and Encroachments 24
Ownership History 24
Highest and Best Use: 22
The Subject Property as Vacant 24
APPRAISAL METHODOLOGY 25
Sales Comparison Approach 25
Property Rights Conveyed 25
Location 26
Size 26
Zoning 26
Site Valuation Chart 36
Conclusion 37
Addenda 37
General Assumptions and Limiting Conditions 37
Appraiser's Certificattons 38
Exhibit 1: Appraisers’ Qualifications

Page 3




Islargd M.‘_'P

sk

NS it

T Riban P

0 By

# Cematary
‘ ~ Church.
W Fil"g. Stafion .’

’ E%c‘ez{:.h . a Govem

~ Harbor
&3 Hospiial .
-3 Hotel

o tomy
# Park/Monumant
e POﬁCBPr.ecint__.
= Post Office

¥ Roue

& Schoos

Yo Shopping Mali
- Sposts Facility

Page 4




i N ' . » .

*a

View of the subject from the east.

746771

Page 5




View of the eastern portlon, mountatoous rock.

View Of.L.hE éﬁb]ect's sout.her}l boundary (the tractor is on the scuthern boundary)

Page 6

¥




Purpose and Function

The purpose of this report is to estimate the current
market value of the subject property in its “as is"
condition. The intended use this report s to provide
market data, real property information, and opinions of
value to the client for lease megotiations with the
Govemnmenjrol Guam.

Intended User

Trans World Radio Is our client and the intended user in
this assignment; the Government of Guam is also an
intended user. The appraiser intends no other users of
this report.

Scope of Work

The scope of the appraisal refers to the extent of the
process of collecting, confirming, and reporting data. The
Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice
clearly impose a responsibility on the appralsers to
determine the extent of the work and the report required
In relation to the significance of the appralsal problem. A
clear and accurate description of the scope of the
appraisal is desirable to protect other parties whose
reliance on the appraisal may be affected.

General data include informatton on the secial, economic
governmental and environmental forces that alfect
property value. The appraisers have accumulated general
data from a wide variety of sources. including Pacific
Area regional information sources; U. S. Pederal
Governmental sources; Government of Guam sources;
pational, regional, and local real estate organizations;
and trade associations’. The appraiser’s educational
background and experience is utilized extensively in the
collection and evaluation of general data’.

Specific data include details about the property being
appraised, comparable sales. rental properties, and
relevant local market characteristics. The data is used to
determine highest and best use and to make the specific
comparisons and analyses required to estimate market
value. The appraisers concentrated on specific data
related essentially to the subject's immediate

'¥fia the following soarces:

Industry Sources: Apprapal Tnstittz, The Appraisel Journal, Appralser News
Amexican Soclely of Appralsers, Newsline, Real Fropesty Perspeclives, Valuation,
Busiess Valuatlon Review, Real Property Jonmal; E&Y Kennelh Leventhal Real
Estate Group. Real Estate Journal, Real Estate Newstine; Hotel Valuation Services,
Hotel Valuatico Journal: B jonal Right of Way Assodiation, Right of Way:
Lincoin Tnstltute, Landlines; Urban Land Tnsiliute. Land Use Dlgest, Urban Land.

Local and Regional Scurces: Guam Board of Realtors, Multipte Listing Secvice; Bank of
Hawail, Economic Trends: Fiest Hawailan Banlk, Economic Indicators; Governmient. of

Guam. Department of Ci ¢, Annual E ¢ Revd Cuarterly 1ipd
Guam Business; Paciflc Taily Wews, Marianaa Variaty: Hawail investor: Building
industry.

* please pefer 1o Appralser’s Qualifications in the Addenda section.

neighborhood. This data is most relevant to the subject
and the comparables.

The appraisers confirmed the validity of all data used.
Any information which could not be verified by a
creditable source was not used. The sources of
confirmation included public records; interviews with the
parttes of transactions or offerings and their agents, such
as Realtors, bankers, developers, consultants, and others;
and other appraisers and professionals. The appraisers
made assumptions only as disclosed in the attached
Assumptions and Limiting Conditions. or as specifically
noted in the body of the report.

The data is organized and reported factually and
completely in the attached report. No mportant facts
have been withheld.

Property Rights Appraised

The property rights appraised in this report are the Fee
Simple interest in the property.

Date of the Appraisal
This appraisal report is dated July 26, 2605.

Effective Date of Valuation

The valuation has an effective date of June 08, 2005, the
date of last physical site inspection by the appraiser and
the date of photegraphs included in this report.

Definitions

Market Value®

The most probable price which a property should bring int a competitive
and open market under all conditions requisit to a fair sale, the buyer and
seller aach acting prudently and kmowledgeably. and assuming the price is
not affected by undue sitmulus.  Implicie in this definition Is the
consummaiion of a sale as of a specified date and the passing of title from
seller to buger under conditions whereby:

1) buger and selter are ypically motivated

2} both partles are well Inforined or well advised, and acténg tn what they
consider their best interests!

1} areasonable time Is allowed for exposure In the opeit marked;

4) payment is made in terms of cash in United States doilars or in ternts
of fnancing arrangenents comparable thereio; and

5) the price represents the normal consideration for the property sold
ninaffected by specla) or creative financing or sales concesslons granted by
anyoneassociated with the sale. .

"The Appraist} Foundation, Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Praclice.
page B-7. FOICFinal Rubes 12 CER Parl 323.21f).

Page 7




Exposure’
The estintated length of time the property interest being approised would
have been offered on the market prior to the hypothetical consunmation of
a sale at market vatue on the effective date of the appraisal; a retrospactive
estimate based upon on analysls of past events atsurning a compettitve and
open htarkel, Exposire time is always presumed o occnr prior o the
effective date of the appratsal The overall concept of reasonable exposiire
encompazses not only adequate, suliclent and reasoncble thme but also
adequate, sufficent and reasonable effors. Exzposure time i different for
various types of real estate and value ranges and under varlous market
cmdmom...

Fee Simple Estate’

Absolute ownership unencumbered by any other imierest or extate subject
only to the imitations fmposed by the governmental powers of taxation,
eminent domanin, police power, and escheat,

Highest and Best Use®

The reasonably probable and legal use of vacant land or an improved
property, which is physically possible, appropriately supported, finenclatiy
feasible, and that results in the highest waltie. The four criterla the highest
and best use musl mest ary logal permissibility, physical possibility,
financial feasibility, and maxtmum profitabiliy.

Current Use of the Property

As of the date of this appraisal, the subject property is
unimproved land.

Use Reflected In the Appraisal
The property is appraised as vacant.

Regional Analysis (Island Data)

Guam:; The Setting

Located in the western Paciftc, Guam is the southernmost
of the Marianas Islands and the closest U.S. possession to
Asia. Guam is about 2,400 km. south of Tokyo, 3,360
km. southeast of Hong Kong, 2,400 km. east of Manila
and 6,000 km. southwest of Honolulu, The Mariana
Trench, the deepest known ocean depth, is located
southeast of Guam.

*Appréisal Slandards Board of The Appraisal Foundation, S on Agp
Srandacds No. 6. "R hle Exp Timie in Market Value Extimates”.
“The Appraisal Institute, The Dictionary of Real Esiate Appraber, Third Edition,

Chicago, Ntinois, 1993,

Guam lies 13 degrees north latitude and 144 degrees east
Iongitude of the equator. it Is the largest landmass in
Micronesia. Guam is about 48 km. long, and from six to
14 lon. wide. The central and northern parts of the island
consist of a ¥mestone plateau with steep cliffs dropping
down to a narrow coastal shell. Southern Guam is made
up of volcanic hills with a maximum elevation of 407
meters. Coral reefs surround the island except for
openings at harbor and river mouths.

The history and natural beauty of Guam offer numerous
sights of interest, Latte stones, which served as
foundation blocks for the thatch huts of pre-contact
Chamorros, are found in parks and jungle areas. The
graceful remains of Spanish buildings, plazas and bridges
may be seen in Agana and at other locations around the
island,

The major hotel, business and residential centers are on
the western side of the island facing the calm Phillppine
Sea, A drive along the east coast past Pago Bay and
Yona, south to Talofofo and Inarajan affords spectacular
views of the open Pacific thundering against the namrow
coastal shell. Spanish influence is clearly visible in the
architectural design of the southern village.

Climate

Guam's tropical climate shows little varjation throughout
the year. The mean annual temperature fs 81 degrees

Fahrenheit and humidity is tempered by prevalling

northeast trade winds. The rainy season is from fuly
through November, and the cooler dry season from
December through June. Guam lies in the path of tropical
storms and occasionally experiences typhoons.

People

FPage 8

R Y

TR EERENE

! I\-\r-."'




The indigenous people of Guam are Chamorros, a
Micronestan race with a mixture of Spanish, Mexican: and
Filipino blood. Present day Guam is a cosmopolitan
community (eaturing large populations of Filipinos,
fapanese, “stateside” Americans, Chinese, Koreans, and
islanders from throughout Micronesia, as well as
Furcpeans, Vietnamese andl Indians.

Cwrrent population totals approximately 160,000, an
increase of 15% Irom 1992 levels,

History

Archaeological evidence indicates that Guam has been
settled since about 2000 B.C. The island was discovered
for the western: world by Portuguese explorer Magellan in
1521, and clalmed for Spain in 1565, Jesuit missionarles
arrived In 1668 to convert the populace to Christianity.
For the next 200 years, Guam remained a Spanish colony
administered from Mexico.

Guam first becamne a 1.8, possession in 1898 after the
Spanish-American War, and was run as a US. naval
station until the outbreak of World War II. The island
was surrendered to a Japanese invasion force in
December 1941.

On July 21, 1944, American troops landed on Guam and
recaptured the island in a serles of Berce battles. More
than 200,000 U.S. servicemen were stationed on Guam
after the concluston of the war.

In 1950, administration of the istand was transferred to
the United States Department of the Interior and residents
were granted U.S, citizenship. In 1962 a U.S. navy
security clearance requirement was lifted and Guam
began its rapid entry into the mainstream of modem
development.

Government

Guam is an unincorperated territory of the United States,
administered under the 1950 Organic Act of Guam.
Plans are underway to change the island's status to that
of a commonwealth. It is anticipated that this change in
the political relationship with the federal government
would ease some legal constraints that hamper economic
development.

The executive branch of government i3 headed by a
governor elected by voters at large for a four-year term.
Guam has a unicameral legislature consisting of 15
senators {previously 21} elected for two-year terms. The
most recent election for governor was held in 2002 and
for senators in 2002,

The District Court of Guam, headed by a judge appointed
by the U.S. president for an eight-year term, has

4 ==

jurisdiction over all cases arising under the U.S.
Constitutlon, federal laws and treaties. The Superior
Court of Guam handles all other cases arising under the -
laws of Guam. Appeals may be made to the Ninth Clrcuit -
Court of Appeals or to the U.S. Supreme Court.

Economy

The establishment of Guam’'s economy dates only to
1962 when a U.S. Navy security clearance that which -
restricted travel to the island was lited. Since that time,
Guam has witnessed tremendous growth and change.
and now serves as a Pacific crossroads with good
telecommunications, airline connections and media.

During the late eighties and early ninetles, the island
enjoyed an unprecedented economic boom. fueled
primarily by Japanese investment, and by tourism, most
of which criginated in Japan. Land values spiraled, with
the sales prices of parcels in some prime areas of the
island doubling within a short period. However, the
“bubble economy” on Guam suffered along with the
Japanese weakening. A persistently weak Japanese
economy, a serles of typhoons in 1992 and a powerful
earthquake in 1993 adversely impacted Guam real estate
markets for years thereafier; its effects are still being felt.
Real property prices that had been static since the end of
1990 began to soften, and rental rates for most types of
properties dropped.

Tourism remains the leading component of Guam's
economy, and is discussed in further detail below.

Federal and Military Impact

The Federal Government has historically played a major
role in the economic affairs of Guam. Increases in Federal
and Military spending has remained strong, and helped
mitigate the adverse impact of the Japanese economy.
The following table presents the growth in Military and
Federal spending on Guam since 1989.

Figure 1; Federal and Militaxy Spend!ng on Gnam

Y.

ear FEDERAL MILITARY TOTAL
1993 465.4 636.5 L,10L.9
1994 356.9 7349 10918 |
1995 337.9 495.3 833.2
1996 148.5 506.9 B55.4
1997 427.8 480.1 907.9
1998 678.6 507.1 1,185.7
1999 460.8 428.8 889.6
2000 119.8 451.0 290.8
2001 519.5 461.3 S580.8
2002 654.1 561.7 1,215.8
2003 7220 A16.7 1,5318.7
Source: Guaws Annpal Ey ic Revlews; Dep of Cominerce. 3000.000.

Military expenditures went through a decline lrom 1995
to 1999 as part of the U.S. cut-backs world-wide.

Page @

746771




On Febroary 28, 1995, the Penisgon in ity 1995 Base Closure and
Renilgnmnent Report recommended to the Defense Base Cloture and
Realigrenent Commission that four of Gram's milltary bases be closed or
reduced In size, residting in a loss of 2,104 mllitary Jobs and 2,665
clvifian Jobs. Specifically, the Pentagon recontmended the realignment of
Naval Activitles Guam, with 2.421 Jobs belng transferred to Hawail; the
closure of the Skip Repatr Pacility, with a loss of 633 fobs; the shifting of
soote 1,270 Joba formerly performned at Naval Alr Station Guam lo the
U.8. maintand and Hawali {nstead of to Guam's Anderson Air Force Base
as previously recommended; and the closure of Fleet and Indusirial Supply
Center, wish o loss of 413 Jobs....Naval Alr Statlon was closed by the
military on Apei] 1, 1995, and the facility, along with the clviflan alvport,
now Is operated by the Goverminent of Grar, The base was remamed
Tiyan Reuse Pacllity, and some government of Guam agencles occupy
former military hotising units. Gram has experlenced a steody decrease In
wmilitary personnel and infrasiructore, @ conseqiience of declining overall
wmilliary spending. Because Guam’s military expendifures have run an
irtporiont secomd to tourism in econamic input, most of the changes have
hada divect impact on the iskmd. ™~

Effective April 2000, the operation of Navy Public Works
Center was taken over by Raytheon Technical Services, a
Fortune 500 private company that outbid the Navy n a
Base Operating Support concept, essentially a
privatization process, Many federal clvil service
employees left island in order to retain benefits; substitute
jobs under the private contractor are at substantially
lower wages.

One result of overall military downsizing during the mid-
1990s was a transfer of substantial federally-held lands
back to the Government of Guam. During 1999, an
estimated 1,317 acres of the total 3,200 acres in the
Guam Excess Lands Act were returned by the military.
Economically significant properties being turned over to
Guam ioclude the Tiyan area around the Guam
International Airport and the Harmon Annex (Clililine)
area.

The Tiyan property returned to the Government of Guam
was leased during 2001 by the Tiyan Trust (Cuam
Economic Development and Commerce Authority) to a
private developer. Opposition by “original landowners”

resulted in the 2002 abolition of the Tiyan Trust and the

requirement that all Government of Guam agencies not
supporting the airport to vacate occupled buildings,
Current local political sentitnent is for a return of these
properties to “original landowners” (those owners at the
time of condemnation following World War II), but the
Federal Aviation Administration has indicated that this is
inconsistent with the provisions of the excess land return
from the Pederal Government.

The trend in military activity is now for increased
presence. A major indicator was the May 1995 decision
to halt the transfer of the 100-acre Naval Ship Repair
Facility to the Government of Guam, Under lease to the
Government of Guam and sublease to a private

8 1.5, Maval Forces Marianaa Fact Sheet - Military Presence on Guam. 33 quoted in
Pusiness Almanac of Guam and (he Mg 1996,

contractor, the Navy announced its decision to retain the
property only one week before the scheduled transfer
date, This decision is part of a larger trend towards
increased military presence on Guam.

Signiflcant investments have been made by the military
into renovation and expansion of on-base housing and
school facillties, a precursor ‘to increased personnel,
During 2000, it was announced that up to five nucleat-
powered submarines would be moved to Guam. The
advance team arrived early in 2001 with the first
submarine arriving in 2002 and two additional during
2003, There have been persistent ramors about possible
significant relocation of military personnel to Guam,
perhaps from Okinawa; for example, real estate
professionals were contacted during late 2000 by
individuals studying the ability of Guam’s market to
support up to 25,000 to 30,000 additional population.
There has also been discussion of possible home-porting
of an aircraft carrier on Guam, The past three years have
also seen increased port calls by various Navy ships,

In its most recent Quadrennial Review, the Department of
Defense has conclusions that will involve Guam and the
region’”;

o The Secretary of the Navy will increase aircraft
carrier battlegroup presence in the Western Pacific
and will explore options for homeporting an
additional three to four surface combatants, and
guided cruise missile submarines (SSGNs), in thai
dred.

o The Secretary of the Alr Force will develop plans to
increase contingency basing in the Pactfic and
Indian Oceans, as well as in the Arabian Gulf. The
Secretary of the Air Force will ensure sufficient
infrastructure for refucling and logistics to support
operations in the Arablan Gulf or Western Pacific
areas.

¢ In consultation with U.S. allies and friends, the
Secretary of the Navy will explore the feasibility of
conducting traiming for littoral warfare in the
Western Pacific for the Marine Corps.

The National Defense Authorization Act authorized $66
million o Military construction funding for 2002,
Anderson Air Force Base has ongoing and proposed
construction projects that total approximately $195
million. The Navy is finalizing bids for four to five-year

‘housing project at Big Navy estimated at $20 to $25

million.

Attached to this report as Exhibit 28 are recent media
articles regarding the military’s presence and prospects
for growth, The military states it will increase its

7
Department of Defeaise. Quadrennial Defense Review Report, Seplember 2001, p. 27.

Page 10

o




presence on Guam but has not been specific in its plans.
The number of personnel to be relocated to Guam is not
known. Since specific plans are not know, the total
impact of military growth on Guam cannot be quantified.
Military spending is anticipated to increase significantly
over the next several years. As discussed in the media lor
many months, a nuclear aircraft carrier could be ported
on Guam. Because of its size and the number of people
required to support an aircraft carrier, it would have a
tremendous positive economic impact that would ripple
throughett the economy and result in increased demand
for all types of real estate.

“The addition of iwo more submarines and an Air Force
Bomber Wing or Fighter Wing would add 500 to 2,000
military persortnel. An Aircraft Carrier or a Marine Corp
Unit would dramatically inctease population (15,000 to
20,000)," according an Air Force officer understanding
military planning.

Local Economic Indleators

Total revenues [or the Government of Guam for 2002
were $342.6 milllon, a significant decrease [rom
historical levels, For 2003 the estimated total revenue
rose to $396 million. : :

[E] 193 [ 1998 (3 1T
Toml Frveroes 5058 BLIM] 0300 N4MSD D0MTL S1S4M9
TomdSpmding  SYLFES  FHANP  UTAHZ  MIANG MMM R4
Revenws LomsSprnding  1OM74 1763 BGSMO  1S29I40  1773Q7 DUMS
Deficr Begiaring of Your L8130 (AIT4 QIINY (MMLE GRG0
Defictt End of Your 79015 (ID00-0 _(BAB6LY 103500 (N0 (1767
1990 158 2000 =N
Toml ey NOA%T  AGJATS 460504 WABLY  MLEXND
TowlSpmding  MA104  ILIHT  DESH] BB AN
Revmurs LsSprmding 975265 AT 139613 NLN91 M)
Dol fegisicing of Yaar (79267 [0S QOLSAD  (SATTZH)  (NNOG
Dvfice Brdof Tenr  (HX05 Q003000  ©55IL5 (96560 (1170004

Guam’s retail sector ks one of the areas heavily influenced
by tourism. [t can respond more quickly than other
sectors to changes in income, consumer preferences,
population changes and import prices. In 2001, retail
gross business income was $1.47 billion, down from its
1996/7 peak of $1.83 billion. Retail gross income
accounts for more than 40 percent of total gross business
income:; retail sector employment makes up 27% of total
private-sector employment. Confidence in Guam retailing
is indicated by entries over the past decade: Liberty House
(now Macy's), a high image and quality department
store; Crazy Shirts, ABC Stores and other Hawaii based
companies; K-Mart’, a large chain of discount stores; and
two Cost-U-Less warchouse retail stores. The Guam
Shopping Center (Cibson's) was repovated into an
80,000sf outlet mall (Guam Premium Outlets) by a
Hawail developer during 1997; during 2000, Ross Dress
For Less became the anchor of this center. There have
been persisting rumors about Wal-Mart considering

B'l‘hae Guam store, opened in mid-1995, was immediately projected to become the
chain's highest prodiscing stove, This store remains the number one store within the
chafn changed 10 24 hour operations doring 2600, and shortly thereafer converted
to a “Big K" format.

.- 748771

Guam, including in conjunction with the Micronesia Mall
(300,000sf) expansion. Purchases by visitors contribute
to the high retail and wholesale receipts. Visitor
expenditures have historlcally provided Guam with
revenues in excess of $1.4 billion annually. The high
expenditures on gifts and souvenirs may reflect the
cultural habits of the Japanese tourists, as Guam is a
duty-free port without luxury taxes ont goods.

The Gross Island Product grew rapidly from 1988
through 1991, both on an absolute and per-capita basis,
accompanying the boom in the visitor industry, as
discussed below. Beginning in 1991, the Gross Island
Product leveled off and then declined through 2003, as
showrt in the accompanying figure and table:

: %
1989 § 1,897.49 129,254 § 14,660 97%
1950 § 2247 132137 § 17,50 21.9%
1991 § 286737 136226 § 19.580 16.3%
1992 ¢ 290213 1931 § 20823 3.8%
1993 § 291673 142569 § 20456 0.5%
1934 § 3,035.1 145801 § 20,90 4.1%
19% § 2,998.60 149249 § 20091 A.2%
199 § 2,992.50 152,695 § 19,59 0.2%
1997 § 30000 156,220 $ 19,708 29%
1938 $ 3,020.50 159827 § 19698 -1.9%
1999 § 271880 163517 § 16,628 -10.0%
2000 § 277280 154805 § 17912 2%
2001 § 2.556.30 158,330 $ 18,139 -78%
0028 26130 161,067 § 16214 22%
003 § 2,536.30 163593 § 15,504 2%

Sowes: Depariment of Commerce, Guary Avual Econonic Review

The lollowing table shows income distribution by areas;
1999 is the most current data available for this analysis:

Page 11



Moctiun Hovnshak Famby snd Por Coglte incomn, 08 by Elontlon Diuirint
Bdeaton

Neodban Housshold ‘Modian Family Pos Capita
Diatrict ncome: Q Income _@ Incoma (8}
eland of Guem nnr H1e e
Agana Helghta 706 19825 16,403
gal 7% ».r 1047t
Azan 48511 0,000 16,507
Banigada wan 5199 #2100
Chalan PagnOrdot 508 40,583 13o0s
Dedadd a8 19.2% 16,781
Hagaina N 41 11514
e 2 3% 10,568
Manghao  # 0TS LF ] 1,768
Warizo .40 A 058
MongingTolaiiaile 3,134 B3 1354
P S4.167 65,500 2,38
Santa Fita 4928 43794 AT
Singana 8750 4,500 15314
Takdolo - 47,535 40,304 12477
Yamuning 1 B0 16,320
Umalae 34,208 6,250 9451
Yigo FA8 3,190 1,018
Yo 52555 53,704 14,39

N.B. The median divides the income disiribution into two aqud parts, o faving incomes
above the median and the otfer having incomes below the median.  For houscholdy md
Jarmilies, the median incoure i based on the votal nurmiser of units induding those with ne
income. Per capita Income iy the mean income computed for evwery man, woman and child
in & particular groug, H is derfeed by dividieg the total income of a particular groug by the
total poptlation (n that grovp. )

Source: 0.5, Depariment of Commerce, 20410 Cenaun of Ponlation and Housie,
Gusns.

The following table and accompanying figure show
employment trends over the past ten years, confirming
that the loss in Pederal Government jobs has been the
most noficeable trend:

1.278 18233

194 14,843 18619 a1 61,750
2 1A : 950 49658 £9.569
199 1387 62 nes el 68,420
194 1349 690 WM 46180 68,570
1995 12970 4120 19080 1% 65,220
1998 13310 5%0 1830 4807 68,440
1997 13360 520 19000 470 66,500
1998 1450 4060 19450 44780 6420
19 13590 458 8Om0 60,340
000 12560 M 15T 4480 60110
m 1278 ERE ) 15,900 44,200 60,108
002 13200 A0 1850 280 $6,020
w8 18R A0 147 2T 57,500
102004 11320 A0 14890 4290 57,610

Source; Governrent of Guam, Department of Labor.

Employment Trends __ |

Unemployment rates gradually declined over the last
several years from 13.5% on September 2001, to 11.4%
on March 2002, to the latest repocted figure of 7.7% on
March 2004.

Housing and Construction

While the number of households on Guam increased 16
percent during the 1990s, the number of housing units
increased by 35 percent or 12,454 units (1,245 units per
year) during this same period, Approximately 52 percent
of the housing units are now renter occupied, down from
55 percent in 1990. The mean number of per persons
per occupled housing unit in 2000 was 3.89, which
reflects a continuing decline from prior censns periods
{4.07 in 1980 and 3.97 in 1990).

1960 12373

1970 16,676 1,107 6.6%

1980 28,091 3,257 11.6%
1990 36223 3850 10.9%
2000 47,677 8908 18.7%

Source: U.S. Census Bursau

Construction expenditures on Guarn reached a high in
CY1991, driven by significant hotel consiruction.
Subsegnent permits are sigpilicantly less in total value
than 1991's peak; the levels remained consistent with
pre-peak figures through 2000 but have declined

precipitously in the past four years:

Page 12

®
r
K
E
W
B
n
!
R
B
Hi
B



R
Figure 2: Building Permits, Number, FY1985 to

2004, Island of Guam.

Sourve; Government of Guans: Department of Commerce, Anmual Economic Retiews;
Department of Public Works, Arniol Building Permtit Statistics.

o
Figure 3: Building Permits, Amount, FY1985 to

2004, Island of Guam.

EIL LW
NRNaERERNRRIEREANENN

Source: G t of Gueam: Depariment of C . Amnual E jc R
Department of Public Wonks, Arnnesd s.l_lffdl'lls Permit Statistics.

Residential construction has declined steadily since
1994, except for a spike in 1998:

Figure 4: Residential Building Permits, FY1985 to
2004, Island of Guam.

sqtvpnnegagnusEnin ’
[ ] 1nen

Source: Gi t of Guam: Deparh

t of Commerce, Annual Economic Revicws
Departiment of Public Works, Annual Buitding Perniit Stidfishics,
-

For commercial permits, recent levels are substantially
lower than peak years: levels for the past two years have
dropped to below pre-bubble levels:

Figure 5: Commercial Bullding Permits, FY1985 to
2004, Island of Guam,

TN IInrin

Source: G et of Guam: Depart o G

; y, Annual Ecomomic Reviews;
Departmenti of Public Works, Anmual Building Perniit Statigtics,

Significant construction activity is anticipated over the
next several years [rom a variety of sources. In the near-
term, activity will be driven by federal projects, as the
military expands its operations on Guam. Hotels on
Guam are aging with even the newer ones now over 10
years old, It common for hotels to do refurbishing every
seven to eight years; most hotels on Guam are overdue.
With the improved performance of the visitor industry,
hotzls will be able to afford to do more upgrades. Glven
its poor revenue generatlon over the past several years,
the government has neglected Infrastructure
maintenance and facilities upkeep; therefore, this will
also be a source of work.

Construction companies have reported many new
projects for the military and anticipate additional, larger
projects in the future. Construction compantes reported
a shortage of skilled construction stalf. These recent
events are not reflected in the statistics presented.
Construction costs are expected to rise over the next
several years.

Real Estate

The following shows Multiple Listing Service figures from
1988 through 3Q 2004 on volume and value of property
transactions, suggesting that 2000 is the low-point of the
current cycle while 1994 is the low-point of the previous
cycle. The figures for 2001 through 3(Q2004 indicate a
recovery in velocity. The Multiple Listing Service data
represents only a portion of total activity on Guam but

- has historically been indicative of single family.

condominium, and small land activity.

Pagel3

746771



Figure 6: Muldple Listing Service Transactions,
1988 to 3Q2004, Island of Guam.

HiiT

IEEEEEREEEEE

I—wunm—o-MdTrm-|

Saurce: Multiple Listing Service, Guant Board of Reaftors

Overall market volumes increased from 2001 to 3Q2004.
The volume ($) of activity increased substantially in
2001 and 2002 with a small increase in the number of
transaction in 2003:

Figure 7: Single Family Residential Sales, Multiple
Listing Service, 1993 to 3Q2004, Island of Guam.

250 - — T3

§§§§§§§§§%§§

| Nombar of Teansacilons —s— Ve of Trwnsoctions |

Source: Multiple Lis-'ing Service, Guam Board of Realtors @,

Single Family Moan and Median Sales Price

-----

Salas Price USS)
:

] mr e L) Joos i oo M3 QA

o Ay R b g |

Single-family sales volume spiked upward in 2003 after
surges in 2001 and 2002. The number of single-family
sales in 2003 is two and gne-half times 2000's. The
average and median transaction price declined 8% and
7%. respectively, from 2001 to 2002. The average and
median transaction price declined only 1% from 2002 to
2003, indicating stabilization single family market prices
during this period. The total volume tn 2003 is 34%
greater in total dollars and 36% greater in number than

2002, which is the second most active year of the last ten
years. The surge in volume in 2002 and 2003 is the
result of a 40 year low in Interest rates combined with
several years of price declines, The combination of these
two factors substantially boosted effective buying power.
With interest rates at record low levels and U.S. economic
conditions improving greatly, interest rate risk on future
transaction prices is Increasing.

For first time since 2000, the number of single family
transactions declined. This s not due to slowing demand
but due to a shrinking supply of homes available for sale.
As of November 15, 2004 there were 127 single family
sale listings in the MLS, which is a 41% drop [rom the
number of single family sale listings on the same day last
year and a 53% drop from the number of listings on the
same day two years ago. There were 217 and 273 single
family listings on November 15, 2003 and November 15,
2002, respectively, in the Guam MLS database.

After four years of continuous increases from 2000 to
2003, condominium unit sales increased again in
3Q2004, achieving a record number of sales and total
dollar volume. The average transaction price increased
5% from 2002 to 2003 while the median price declined
12%. The median price in 2001 and 2002 were about
equal, although the average transaction price declined
18%. The average price increased 31% while the median

Erlce increased 50% from 2003 to 3Q2004.

> .

Figore 8: Condominium Sales, Muitiple Listing
Service, 1993 to 3Q2004, Island of Guam.

Lr.

-
H

a
=

Hum ket of Trams-acl i

B

1903 1604 1905 1904 1067 1998 1000 2000 2001 2002 2003 1004

[ S Humbet o Tranaacions ~o Vit of Traneacions |

Source: Mulfiple Listing Service, Guam Board of Reiforsa®,

Condominium Unit Moan and Median Sales Price

- R,
Hedoe N
- -
£8.000 \ Ty g il —
3 \/—\ *a, #
g e S
4 \;_ / ,
2 oo
E —7 :
5 Y] i
I
1008
20,000
B L LA W Nk Iber el IR JQus

Page 14

i-ﬁ'-‘d

W - W

o}

e ! s ! Vo

w ™




R T R I W W N N

The following figure shows the value and number of MLS
land transactions from 1993 to 3Q2004. Alter a
substanttal increase in 1998 (116% in dollar value and
32% In number), 1999 declined substantially and was
followed by two years of level activity consistent with the
low-period of 1994. Land activity spiked in 2002 and
rose moderately in 2003, The spike in activity in 2002

followed a Elod of declining land prices.
Figure 9: Vacant Land Sales, Multiple Listing
Servicg, 1993 to 302004, Island of Gnam.

v
100

Transacions
8388

Humber of
%1

Value of Trsneacions (UEF billana}

$§3EEE8 8838}

fm Tamber of Transactions —— Value of Transactiona |

Soarce: Multiple Listing Service, Guant Board of Realiors®,
e e

The (ollowing figure shows the value of transactions and
the total amount of land sold:

Figure 10: Vacant Land Sales, Multiple Listing
Service, 1993 to 3020404, Island of Guam.

430
a0
kL

+ %0
=3
150
100
50

i
i
!

8

-
o

L

Value of Transactions [WES M)
&

-

S EEEERREERE

[ Vaius of Teansactiona —o-Total Squars Meters Sokd|
Sorce: Multiple Listing Service, Guim Bogrd of Realiors®.
Y

Land sales volume has increased four straight yeas from
2001 to 3Q2004.

The following tables contain statistics compiled Fom
Department of Land Management data, which contains
data on 100% of real sales on Guam. The data is
separated by property type. single family and
condominium. The tables include all transactions of each
property type except those transactions judged to be non-
arm’s-length.

L, -- 146771

Singir Famify Dowlings  Eransactions Median Prie Mean Prive Total §]

2002 Qp 8 $ 105000 & TBAR & TS
20004 5 $ 120000 § 127540 & 6687140
008 Q1 % $ WTH0 $  1MIET $ 12060
23 102 $ 120000 § 13337 § 13600653
2408 Q3 m 3 320000 3 1385 315710
2003 QW 26 $ WA $ 1Z60M $ 15027
2004 Q1 10 § NMOOD $ 1T $ 16,179,455
204 2 Cost 5 118200 3 135092 3 050008
W@ us 512500 3 14593 $2,i0705
2004 G4 1% S 1000 3 174M § M990

(Quarter on Quarky Chorge. Transwcifons. Modian Price.  Mean Frice Total 3}
@ . N/A N/A 572 N7Al
202 LM% 1% 73% -293%

T oomQu- T R S L IS
0082 - iR IS 518 14N
20908 ST 0M% T - 08K - A% Tk
20804 I B JETII 1. R 1. ]
e EY. S L1 SR I S X9
004 02 - Y © 038, C 2% . 269%
200408 4% LY 3 WL 3K

- T Has 0% 7 BBN T MAR|

Yo O Ve Chptge. -~ Transactions: Medisn Prics-

CoWEG - MR NZA

© 002 Q4 " N/A NfA

Loamgy - . NA " N/A

Jmmr . . Nk c NfAC L
Y- ST - T K| R

COMWBGE. T 1% 9k
- AR s . 3R

L OBAQY . . 0% . 5K

CAQE T IRA% ok

WME . W% T IsE% 91k, . . 5Ld%

The volume of single family transactlon activity has
increased- continuously from October 2002 through
December 2004 in total volume. The median and mean
prices are both trending upward recently, indicating that
higher priced homes are beginaing to sell.

Condosmimiines Transactions Median Price  Meam Price Total H
2002 Q3 © OIS0 5 I 5 34529
2000 4 F- ] $ 00 3 W05 §F AWM
2008 1 5 $ 8500 § 123407 $ 6664000
2003 Q2 56 5 700 F M2 3 5ZNE%
2003 Q8 o 5 66500 § 0306 $ 45000
003 36 5 90000 3 11763 3 ADMSS0
Pl g} 249 $§  Ba950 3 BO6T4 § 087768
2004 02 a2 $ L0 § 110767 5 9.08L9M1
104 03 H $ 113950 § 14973 5 TLO0M2B6
2004 04 178 5 1MSH & 0754 51900426

Qutrter ou Quarker Chuange Transactiony Medun Price. Mean Prie | Towl§
02 Q3 N/A N/A N/A N/A
207 4 -Ir5% 75 2y SR & 1
018 . IR T41A 19.7% . 1230%

ey Y. A75% I 2DE%
g | azsk 9% 254% M8
2008 Q4 . -6sk BI% €738 9%
2004 1 . 9% 56% 4R A4S
A0k 2 . AT 0 - kALY -t

| A dd 7% 2% 0%
00 14055 21% 284% FEAR|

Yewr O Yo Chitmpt Tramsactions MedianPrice MeanPrkz’ = Totl §
worgs MH/A . Ni& . N/A N/A
0028 N/A T Nfk NZA NfA
poicte, ] N/A N/k N/A NZA
W3Q2, N/A NfA N/A H/A
2003 O3 nsx “14.2% -16.9% -4k
2003 Q4 Hi% . s9% 141% &%
o4 301.1% 0% -HE% WLi%
2004 Q2 4645 L-A1% 1765 TN
004 O3 5108 1% 1A0% . MR
004 Q4 AL 9% 495 - A50.4%

The quarterly statistics are skewed by several significant
bulk transactions, but the overall trend is Increasing
volume and prices.

Page 15

-



Infrastructure

All international and jinter-island air traffic moves
through the A.B. Won Pat International Airport,
centrally lecated in Tamuning. The original terminal,
completed in 1982, became inadequate to handle the
current level of passenger movements, especially during
peak hours, In fiscal 1990 over 2 million passengers
passed through the terminal; this figure increased to 3.6
million by 1997,

An extensive airport expanmsion program with a total
price tag of $260 million was begun In October 1990,
with the first phase completed In October 1996. Work
included widentng the airport access road to four lanes as
well as upgrading the components of the airport itself.

The first construction stage included three new aprons to
provide additional parking areas for airplanes, rasing the
facility's total number of aprons to 13. The new aprons
are now able to accommodate two 74 7-jumbo type, three
DC-10 wide body, or four 727 narrow body planes at the
same time.

Work on the terminal building included construction of
new gates, ralsing the total from 7 gates to 16, and
tripling the total size from 225,783 to 767,553 square
feet. The overall handling capacity was increased from
1,500 to 5,000 pax/hour.

1,800 acres of the former Naval Alr Station Agana was
transferred to the Government of Guam in September
2000. Over 1,300 acres of this area has been designated
by the NAS Base Reuse Master Plan to support aircraft
aviation and related Industrial development. An
industrial park providing leasehold building sites for
airline-related businesses, adjacent to the airport to the
northeast, was completed in 1991, A significant current
project 13 the Tiyan Economic Development Zone, land
being requested via an Economic Development
Conveyance; current plans include an 87 acre Tiyan Free
Trade Zone, 56 acre Tiyan Government and Clvic Center,
31 acres Tiyan Airport Industrial Park, and 35 acre
Tiyan Commercial Plaza. As discussed earlier. the
ownership of the Tiyan area land is now under political
dispute, with “original landowners” attempting to regain
ownership,

The commercial Port of Guam is located at Apra Harbor
on the wesiern coast of the island and is the Port through
which most of the island's goods arrive, Vessels arriving
at the port totaled 3,301 in FY1995; cargo movement
through the port during the past three years has ranged
between 1.9 and 2.1 million tons. Over the next 10 years,
almost $100 million is expected to be invested in Port
improvements. .

Dramatic Increases in population and affluence
necessitated tnfrastructure expansion during the 1990s,
The Government of Guam floated a $300 million bond
issue to build new schools, including a new campus for
the community college and additional buildings at the
Unlversity, many of which have now beer: completed.

Tax System

Guam's tax system mirrors the U.S. Internal Revenue
code except for Territorial tax and investment incentlves
which permit rebates on business income tax. Guam is a
duty-free port and has no sales tax or value added tax.
Gross receipts tax is 4%: current law exempts the first
$50,000 if the prior year total was under $500.000.

¥isa Requirements:

U.8. citizens do not need a passport for eniry to Guam, but
proof of citizenship--such as birth certificate--is required.
In 1988, a "Guam-only" visa program was implemented,
allowing citizens of Australia, Brunei, Burma, Indonesta,
Japan, Malaysia, Nauru, New Zealand, Papua New
Guinea, Singapore, the Solomon Islands, the United
Kingdom (including Hong Kong), Yanuat, and Western
Samoa to visit Guam without a visa Tor a period not to
exceed 15 days; iravel on to other parts of the U.S.
without a visa is not allowed. The visa waiver program
was extended to citizens of Korea October 1990, and
recently in July 1993 to Taiwan. Proposals are now
undérway to include the Philippines in the waiver
program.

Citizens of all other countries must have a valid passport
with a U.S. visa, and a round-trip or onward ticket,

Yislior Industry Overview

As the largest Industry on Guam, the visitor industry
deserves additional consideration for understanding
Guam's economy.

Pge 16

el




- S— + S

Visitor Arrivals

Visitor arrivals grew significantly from the late 80’s to the
mid-90's:

Figure 11, Visitor Arrivals, 1981 to 2003, [sland of
Guam,

—-————mors T Increase

1981 312,862 -
1982 316,746 1.2%
> 1983 345,805 9.2%
1984 361,423 4.5%
1985 364,938 1.0%
1986 397,575 8.9%
1987 447,4N 12.6%
1988 576170 28.8%
1989 658,883 144%
1990 780,404 18.4%
1991 737,260 -5.5%
1992 873,742 18.5%
1993 784,018 -10.3%
1994 1,086,765% 38.6%
1995 1,361,830 25.3%
1996 1,362,600 1%
1997 1,381,513 14%
1998 1,137,026 -17.7%
1999 1,161,803 2.2%
2000 1,286,807 10.8%
2001 1,159,071 -9.9%
2002 1,058,121 -8.7%
2003 813,739 -23.1%
Source: Guam Visttors Bureat.

"The visitor industry has rebounded very strongly in 2004
after a dismal 2003 arrival figures. As of the month
ending October, 966,532 visitors had arrived on Guam
for 2004. Total arrivals lor 2004 are expected to exceed
1.3 million visitors.

The down years for visitor arrivals have corresponded to
natural disasters or external events:

Figure 12. Visitor Arrivals, 1981 to 2003, Island
of Guam,

1,600,600 e :
1,400.000

1200.000 4

1981
1983
19485
1987
1664
1881
1883 4
1995
1907
1688
2001
2003

Beglnning in 1997,  government and industry leaders
committed to a goal of achleving 2 million visitors
annually by 2001, as a key component of the

government's Vision 2001 plan. The expansion of the .
Guam International Airport was a necessary step to
accommodate the desired additional visltors. The frst
phase of the US$209 million expansion was completed in
September 1996, increasing the number of arrival gates
from 7 to 16, and tripling the total size from 225,783 to
767.553 square feet. The overall handling capacity was
increased from 1,500 to 5,000 pax/hour.

The pians for 2 million visitors were developed belore the
current soft market conditions impacted by events of late
1997: KAL crash (September) and Typhoon Paka
{December). The decline in 1998 arrivals was the result
of these events. 1999 arrivals were a small increase,
while 2000 arrivals resulted in an 11% increase. Current
market expectations within the context of improving
Astan economies are for slowly increasing arrivals for the
near term {one to 1.5 years) with stronger growth
thereafter.

Expectations during the early part of 2001 were for
increasing arrivals’;

The arrival numbers were temporarily depressed below
both normal short term levels as well as long-term
growth rates. The current demand for tourist visits to
Guam exists beyond current arrivals as there are airline
capacity bottlenecks and airline capacity is expanding as
expected In response to market forces. Increases in airline
capacity during the later part of calendar year 2000
contributed to increases for only part of the year.
Continuation of the same capacity level for the full
calendar year throughout 2001 should result in a higher
number of visitors, than in the initial partial year service
period in 2000.

However, the post-"9/11" visitor industry saw
continuing declines in arrivals,

Visitor Characteristics

The make-up of Guam’s tourist is changing, although still
heavily dominated by the Japanese tour industry., The
initial growth of the Guam hotel and tourism industry
was the result of Japanese tour operators and airlines,
who built the hotels and filled them with pre-sold
packages, typically to young, single Japanese office lady
and salaryman.

Beginning in 1991, Guam made significant progress in
diversilying its visitor base. Korean and Taiwanese

-visitor arrivals increased at dramatic rates through 1996.

The "Guam Only" visa walver program increased direct
flights and seat capacity to both countries during that
time period, These markets were seen as important

? Saucew: Guam Fronomte Ougloo 2001, February I00T. Gary Hiles, Senior
Economist, Department of Labor, Government of Guam

Page 17



strategic opportunities to diversify Guam’s visitor
industry,

However, subsequent events have not borne out these
hopes. The KAL 801 crash in September 1997 combined
with the Korean domestic economic crisis to diminish
Korean tourism. The following table and accompanying

figure illustrates the trend:

Figure 13: Visitor Avrivals by Key Country of Origin

(Thousagds) _ _
Yeur Japan Korean Taiwan s Otheer
o0 Q78 74 ¥ 518 W)
199 53 190 8.6 503 32
1992 6767 »m 124 6 889
198 5433 8.6 1) 61.2 413
1994 773 1185 1] L3 ) 03
1995 P X 166.3 na 366 0.5
19% 1007 194.6 209 i 973
1997 11130 191 -l 3l L7
19598 w4 3 183 .9 789
1999 97y 43 41.4 a2 743
2000 1,088.3 a1 Bs a7 B9.7
onm 015 899 ns 419 43
2002 TB4D 128} 1953 - 418 81_2.

Source: Guam Visitors Bureau,

The following illustrates Japan's continuing dominance
of the visitor indusiry on Guam;

Figure 14. Arvivals by Source, 1990 through
2002, Island of Guam.

o .
IIIIIIIIIIIII

16000 — ; - — e

14000

1,2000

10009 E

Visdor Arivels [Thousaads)
4

Source: Guam Viziiory Buredu, Annual Statistical Reports.

Room Inventory

As of September 2004, the Guam Hotel and Restaurant
Association reports 7,567 existing hotel rooms among
member hotels. The majority of these are within Tumon
and serve the visitor industry. The table below shows
inventory additions over the years; the following
graphically displays the change:

Figure 15: Historical Room Inventory

8.000 1 T
8,000
7.000

s.000 7T
sooo L]
4,000 Y[+
3,000 |
2,000 1
1,000

Hotel Rooms

The supply of rooms has fallen in recent years to hotels
being shuttered because of poor performance. Another
factor in the reduced supply Is due to typhoon damage.

A significant recent development in the visitor industry is
the increasing presence of branded hotels. While the
Hilton has had a presence on Guam for nearly 30 years,
and the Nikko arrived early in the 1990's, newcomers
include:

*  Wesatin Resort, taking over management of the
unopened LeoPalace Hotel in 1997;

*  Ouirlgger Hotels, taking over management of
newly completed facility in 1999;

*  Marriott International, taking over management
of the Pacillc Star Hotel in Spring 2000, with name
change in February 2001;

®  Holiday Inn, taking over management of the Parc
Hotel in September 2000.

= Asion International, taking over management of
Holiday Plaza in 2000. Aston also manages the
Ladera Towers and Inn On The Bay (properties
outside of Tumon);

*  Castle Hotels, taking over management of Royal
Orchid Hotel in 2000; this relationship ended during
2001.

*  Ohana Hotels (sister company of Outrigger), taking
over management of SunRoute Hotel and Regency
Hotel in October 2001; the Regency Hotel re-opened
in July 2002 after undergoing a $5 million
renovation.

To promote the goal of increased visltor arrivals, the
government is again aggressively courting foreign
investors, including tax incentives through the
Qualifying Certificate program administered by the Guam

Page 18

il

W W W W w

- Tl

‘.*

..

A



Economic Development Authority (GEDA}. This program
provides for substantial tax incentives, including real
property taxes, income taxes, and taxes on dividends,
during the initial investment pertod for hotel investments
{typically up to ten years; renewable thereafter). This
program was very successful in the initial hotel building
boom (1986 to 1992}, lelf out of favor politically after the
dramatic Increase Iz room inventory, and regained
emphasis after the decline in investment during the mid-
19903.:

Occupancy Rates

Over the long-term, Guam hotel occupancy rates have
historically trended at 80%+, but have been adversely
impacted by readilly identifiable natural disasters on
Guam and/or external events;

Figure 16. Average Annual Occupancy Rates,
1983 to 2003, Island of Guam.

s 3 &sWEnsO

25958933358

- e D

....................

i 8 5 8 3 8 %8 % B § §

The occupancy rate peaks also show some seasonal
influences. following the Japanese holiday schedules, The
trend is best seen in the older years, which are not
impacted by the unusual events noted above.

Figure 17. Seasonal Occupancy Rates, 1988 to
2003, island of Guam.

RN

Source: Guam Visitors Bureau and Guam Hotel and Restaurant Association.
Figure is “Weighted Average™ reported.

-- 148771

As of September 2004, the average occupancy rate lor
GHRA hotels lor the year was 59%, which is an increase
from 52% for the same period last year.

Achieved Room Rates
The achieved room rates show dramatic peaks during the

Japanese holiday times, with August being the strongest
month, followed by the January to March season.

Figure 18. Achieved Room Rates, 1992 ¢o 2003,
Island of Guam.

Averugs Lully Buie VASH

= ; "«- oy
i;i:ii;gggi o
1 A
Sotirce: Guinm Visttors Burean and Guam Hotel and Resiaurant Association.
Plgure is “Welghted Average™ reported.

These two statistics are combined to calculate the RevPar

{Revenue Per Available Room! for this time ﬂod:
Figure 19. RevPar, 1992 to 2003, Island of
Guam.

FET PRSP s

Source: Guam Visitors Burew and Guam Hotel and Restaurant Association,
Fignre is “Weighted Average” reported.

As of Septembet 2004, the average dally room rate for
GHR A hotels for the year was $104, which is an Increase
from $97 for the same period last year. The recovery of
the visltor industry for 2004 is indicated by the
simultaneous improvement in roem rate and occupancy
rate for GHRA hotels, The recovery is driven by the near
record level of visitor arrivals this year.

Page 19




Near Term Cutlook

Current trends include:

+  Increased military activity and presence on
the island, evidenced in construction activity,
demand for housing unlts, and retall activity.
There fs on-base houslng renovation and
construction, and significant demand for
private-sector housing units, The military
demand lor private housing units (single family
dwellings and condominium units) is a
significant factor in the current residential
market,

. Activity by “opportunify” investors.
Ranging from local amateur to units of
international financial organizations (Deutsche
Bank, Lehman Brothers), “strategic investors”
have acquired distressed (economic, physical)
properties recently. Some of these properties
have been renovated and others held for re-sale
purposes. Their acquisitions and recent
dispositions confirm the view of the market has
moved past its nadir.

*  Decreased supply of housing inventory,
Historical statigtics of increased velocity were
presented earller; the most recent information is
shown quarterly below. Realtors report that
since mid-2003, supply of residential units
(particularly good quality) has steadily
dwindled, While some foreclosure activity
continues, these are typically physlcally
distressed properties that are disposed at
discounted prices. Realtors report steady, albeit
shallow, demand for good quality homes in the
price range of $200K to $400K.

¢ Increasing prices for residential properties,
as shown by statistics that will be presented
later.

The most recent professional assessment of the island's
economy 1s a May 2004 report by U.S, Department of
Interior {formerly Bank of Hawall) economist Wali M.
Osman, Ph.D.™

Following yetrs of stagratlon and deciine, Gram's economy Is headed for
recovery and growth. The levels of activity In the two imaln englnes of growth,
tourlsin and rational deferse. are rising, although for different reasons and with
different effects on Guam's economy, the kbor market and public
finances.... Recovery in tourlst traffic is fueled by what still appears to be weak
but consistent signs of econoiic growth In Japan....the fact fhat the Japanese
econoiny is no longer declining is int liself on important signal of better times
ahead and iravel abroad. Adding io the momentum In the Japanese sconomic
recovery is the prospect of & stronger world econany, especlally in Ching and

E:mpted from_AQ

the rest of fapan’s neighborhood and across the Pacific in the United States with
which Japan has sigmificant economic and financlal ties....Among tourist
destinations In fopen's neighborhood that benefit immediately from a fopanese
econoimle recovery ls Guam. Guan's principal advantages are proximity,
Gram's “American in Asta” cultural attributes and reasonably good faciliies.
When the Japanese economy returns Lo normal patterns of growth, Japanese
toverisis retrning Lo levels considered normal for Guam would be omly a matter
of time....In 2004. most of the economle, financial and security faciors affecting
Griar's totrism are moving in direcctions favorable to the Amertcan terrliory's
economy.... the trend of rising defense owilays on the iskand cerialnty adds more
mothentum to economic and francial recovery than tourlsm because of its
higher mudtiplter effect, as more of the defense dollars tend to stay in the local
economy. Anecdolal evidence on defense spending Increases provided by bits and
pleces such as contracts put out Jor Wd or awarded reported in the local media is
much more favorable to Guam than has been the crse In the last fow
years.... With tourtst traffic in the flrst snonth of 2004 returning to what may
be constdered nortnal, the expectation is that Guam will have, once again, ong
milllon tourists this year. If that happens, it will mean not enly some level of
recovery in tourlsm and the economy but regaining confidence that Guam fs
indeed @ major reglonal destination dhat has experienced substantial but mabrily
cyclleol changes that now appear to be pasi....Given information gaps that have
nat yret been reinedled, it may be some time before a inore objective astessment
of Guam's economic performance is avatloble. However, the signs so far this
year indicate a path to recovery. With lis aging tourtst infrastructure ond
extensive damage cansed by a serles of destructive typhoons In the last few
years, the American territory’s impending economic recovery may once again
atirdct foreign capital ardd skills to latmch the next stage of business and
economic recovery.

Page 20




Site Data
Site Map
B x*
AN / ".; é ™
5 58
N $ €8
s s Aot 4404 — . LT 443-2-2/ 30 FT WO
I ] AREA = 70,477 /L WL D@ ACCESS & .o. 1S AT 5 wAY
) DG, § 58087 00 NS MR
S )
J e
- 'gi e R EW’ H R, .3 LA O
. - ¢ ﬁ @%gr} T WSSY. <
RPN S~ g - WSIIIT s AT " Lo 439
M _ ,’w;‘;ﬂ&, et 4 38768
k.2, - - 3 ‘N.!l"' 13
? ?::3-:‘24
_,’,""c;
A
‘a%’;&
-
)
?E":«»
LN
-
%
T OsmR TBDOFT.
L OT £40.4 AR
2% 5 OT 440-R7 T o W
7
Lol
. %a
z . %
(‘:A.
o
Legal Description Lot 440-5. Municipality of Merizo, Territory of Guam,

The subject property is legally described as:

containing an area of 10,463 square meters, as shown on Map
Drawing 14-04T690 dated June 27, 2005 by Pawl L. Santos,
RLS#69, Land Management Check No. 184FY2005 as

" recorded in the Department of Land Management, Government of
Guam under document # 710907,

Site Description

The subject is a somewhat rectangular shaped parcel
located on the southern side of the existing southern

Page 21




radic antenna sites. The shape and dimensions of the
property are shown on the map on the preceding page,
The property has an undeveloped access right of way
which is overgrown with grass, The southern half of the
site fs fairly level and gradually slopes up to the north.
The mid eastern portion of the site is characterized by
mountainous volcanic rock; the estimated encumbrance
is approximately less than 10% of the total area of the
property.

According to FIRM Flood Hazard Map No. 660001
0075B, the subject is within Zone C, which 13 not a
specially designed flood hazard zone, as shown In the
following excerpt from the map,

The subject is not recorded on the Historical Registry,
nor are there any known mineral deposits. The site Is
not located within a slide or erosion zone or within
the Territorial Seashore area®.

" Government of Guom. Dy of Pianning, Cuam's N; I and M d
Constraimis, [986.

Zoning

Guam's Zoning Law establishes regulations in order
to:

esiablish certain ininimun requlations for the protestion and promation of
the public health, safety and general welfare of the peopie of the Tersitary
of Guam, which regulations are deemed necessary in order to encourage
the mosi approprinle use of land, to provide adequate opem spaces aboid
butidings for light and alr, to prevent undue concentration of populaiion,
and to assure adeguate provisions for community utilites and fucilitios
such as water, schools, parks and other publlc requireiments."

Private properties on Guam are divided into eight
z0nes;

A" - Agricultural zone

"R1" - One-Family zone
"R2" -  Multiple-Family zone
"cr - Commercial

"pr - Parking
*M1* -+ Light Industrial
"M2" - Heavy Industrial
"H" - Resort

These zones are depicted on Officlal Zoning Maps,
available at the Planning Division of the Department
of Land Management. Each zone has permitted uses
and conditional uses as well as height limitations and
yard setback restrictions. If a proposed development
i5 a permitted use and complies with the zone's
regulations, Government review and approval is not
necessary by either the DRC (Development Review
Committee} or the TLUC (Territortal Land Hse
Commission}.

The subject is zoned A-Rural as shown in the excerpt of
the zoning map;

"Goveenment of Guam, Titke XVITL Chapter |, Faragraph 17001, as quoted i Land
use Regulations kor Guam, p. 50,

Page 22

™ W =

g

4

[

- Bra v Y

Tk T e

- T G T

"mE .

R B K
E £ i T Py



The permitted and conditional uses for the zone
include:

"A" Agricultural - Permitted Uses

1. One-family dwellings and duplex.

2. Parming and fisheries, including all types of activities
and pursulis customarily carried on in the field of
agriculture and fisheries. including the raising of
corps and fruits. poultry and livestock, gazing and
daiwing, tree and other vegetative production
weather for commercial or personal use.

3. Cockpits.

4. Uses castomarily accessory to any of the above used
including home occupations, and private auto
mobile parking areas as well as accessory buildings
and structures such as private garages, warehouses.
barns, corrals or other slmilar structures.

"A* Rural - Conditional Uses

1. Parks. playgrounds and community centers.

2. Biological gardens.

3, School and Churches

4, Hospitals, sanitariums, and institutional uses.

5. Cemeteries.

6. Recreational use including goll courses, marinas,
beaches, swimming pools and accessory residential
and commercial use.

7. Extractive industry.

8. Utilities and public facilities.

9. Wholesale and retail stores, shops and businesses,

10. Automobile service stations, including service shops.

11. Accessory uses and structures for thee above.

I Tano-‘ta Land Use Plan

The I Tanc-'ta Land Use Plan was enacted in June 1998
with an implementation date of May 1%, 1999. This plan
is a “performance-based” plan that permits a wide range
of uses with detailed performance standards. As a result
of concerns raised by the financial community, I Tano-'ta
was deferred/repealed by legislative act on May 26",

The concems centered primarily on the large oumber of
“legally non-conforming” properties resulting from new
performance standards, A significant concern for the real
estate community Is the continuity of secondary market
financing for these legally non-conforming properties.

The declared intent of the May 1999 legislation was to
defer the implementation of 1 Tano'-ta for 120 days.
However, a close reading of the legislation indicates that
1) [ Tano'-ta was repealed in its entirety; 2) the old code
was reinstated: 3) a working group is to be formed to
report recommendations within 120 days. This
legtslation does not contatn a provision that would re-
implement I Tano'-ta at the end of the 120 day period.

-~ 74877171,

We conclude new legislative action would be required to
re-implement I Tano-"ta in the future,

On September 3", 2000 the Task Porce completed its
assignment with a recommendation that the plan remain
permanently repealed. There is currently discussion that
a new task force may be appointed, to consider various
options:

implement I Tano-'ta ;

concur with prior task force;

recommend development of new Land Use Plan;
recommend changes to existing Zoning Code.

NENENEY

At the present time, public sentiment appears to remain
agalnst 1 Tano-'ta unless the concerns of the secondary
market are addressed.

Performance Standards

Setbacks, mintmum lot sizes and density are
determined by actual usage or by zoning:"

“No building or structure shall be erected or maintained, ror

shall any existing buflding or structure be altered, enlarged,

moved or maintainzd, on any lot, unless a front yard, a rear yard .
and two {2} side yards ave provided and maintained on such lot.

The depsh of such front and rear yards and the width of such side

yards shall not be less than the depth and width specified In the

folowing ¥Yards and Lot Area Table. Further, no lot width

or lot area, nor any lot area per dwelling shall be less than that

specified in the Table.”

YARDS AND LOT AREA TABLE
T Frand Feae side Mio. Miwin  LotAren’
Yard Yard Yard Lot umlot  Dwslling

Wuiti- 15h 198 8n
Fumity af
Commeschl on WR 2.n00' 404 0
of
Light pii) ] ih L1013 5.000' L,250" st
Industrisd sf
Heavy %R BN 1sn 1¥01 40,000
Indusiziel L

When public scwer 19 nol avalluble, and Ihe lot I3 Yorsted within the Croundwater Pretection
Zone (CPE) of the Northern Aquifcr, the nioimum lot siza shall be 10,000 s Lot densiy ahufl
nol exceed o dwelling wnit per §0,000 & v determined by the Cuum Eaviconmental Protecilon
Agency.

I The 20" resr yard sctback Is only reg d il no factilies ure oth Muble for louding snd

Pt e g b e . S——

“A commercial building to pccupy the whole width of a lot wnust

be of four-hour five resistive construction. If party walls are to be

erected, the written consent of the owners of adfacent lots must be

obtained as a prevequisite for the issuance of a building permit to

start construction. 1 the building to be erected is not of fireproof
- gonstruction, the side yards of eight (8) feet must be provided.”

“In the rural {A) zone, all structures shall have a front yard of
fifeeen (15) feet, a rear yard of ten (10) feet, and side yards of

" Biawm Cods Annotated, Section 3150 L; us unended per Public Law Mo, 24-51 on lune 15, 19497,

Page23



€ight (8) feet. The width of each lot shall be no less than fifiy
{50} Jeet with an area equal to or greater than ten thousand
(10,000) square feet, provided that mo lot shall have a length to
width relationship that exceeds a three-to-one (3:1) vatlo, The
Iot area per dwelling unit in the Rural Zone (A) shall not be less
than nineteen thousand two hundred (19,200) square feet
without sewer connection omly if located on top of the Northern
Aquifer. The lot area per dwelling unit in the Rural Zone (A)
shall not be less than nine thousand six hundred (9.600) square
feet with sewer connectlon, If located on top of the Northem
Aquifer.'?

Height Limit Established"

Inthe A, R1, LC, R2, C. M1 and M2 Zones, no building or
structure shall be erected or maintained, nor shall any existing
building or structure be altered, enlarged, moved, or maintgined,
to exceed a height limit of three stories (the three stories shall not
exceed a helght limit of thirty (30) fi). except that in the C Zone
within the New Agana lot and block system the building height
limie shall be six (6) storles (the six stories shall not exceed a
helght of sevenity five (75) feet.

The Guam Environmental Protection Agency has Issued
a policy statement, effective October, 1998, dealing with
minimurmn lot size requirements for unsewered areas;

The following table is provided by the Guam EPA:

Minkrmum. Ranldonidel Lot Size (Squsre Fael)
— R T il !5} i
Sewered 9800 5008 5000 2000 $.000 400
Favetal %800 5008 5.000 2,000 5,000 0,000
Uneweared 19,200 720 19,20 19.200 000 #1000
wrdd 080 oo g0 geo 25,000 000
Lot Aren Por Dwalling Unit
— L i 0T e
Eowernd 950 5 1,250 a0 15 B
Parantet 9,600 5000 1,20 0 1,260
Unaowared 9200 19,200 19,200 19,200 19.200
Paraal S600 9500 9,400 9,600 1,250
Mirkmun Reskdential Lot Stte (Square Foat
NN R L - T 25
Sawarsd 15,000 5,000 5000 00 [F- )
Pamviat 7.200 5,000 §,000 2,000 1250 40,000
Uniwwarnd 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 40,00 40,000
Purwial 9500 9,500 3500 2.600 9500 2600
Lot Arwa Pur Dwallng Unit
T — E = — T
Sawared 5600 5.000 20 [ T e —
Parutal 200 5.000 1250 W 5000 .
Unsewarad 10:000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 -
Parocial 2608 9,600 9500 9,600 9600

The subject is outside of the Northern Aquifer since it is
lecated on the southern portlon of the island.

"™ Thls excerpt iy drd by the Guam En | Frotecion Apency i Include "the minimum kot
szt permaitted in an A 2one, whare publc scwer 13 not ucaifuble snd s bocated within the Croundnater
Protection Zong (GE2) of the Nocthern Aqalier, Shall be 2L square ok, Lot density shull nol éxeend
wne (1) dwelling unikper 20,000 s1* Effective December 20, 1996,

" Guar Code Annotuted, Socton 51401,

Utilities

Public utilities including power, water, sewer, and
telephone are within Route 1. The adequacy of the
utilities 15 typical for the area and appropriate to
support development of the property.

Tax Assessment Information

The assessed value is established by the Department of
Revenue and Taxation, Government of Guam at 35% of
the "market value” as determined by the most recent
government revaluation conducted, with an eflecttve
date of March 1993. Real estate taxes are currently
computed as 1/4% of the assessed value of land, and 1%
of the assessed value on improvements,

There is no current tax on the land, since the property is
owmed by the Government of Gnam.

Easementis and Encroachments

There are no kanown encroachments or easements
impacting the site, as showa in the recent survey map
of the property included in this report.

Ownership History

The subject is owned by the Government of Guam,
currently negotiating a lease with our client. There is no
known market activity of the property over the past three
years.

Highest and Best Use™:

Highest and Best Use

ﬂwmmabmpmhbkandlemﬂma!mmthndaranlmpmw
property, which is physically possible, appropriately supported, financially
Jeastble, and that results in the highest valie,

The four criteria the Mighest and best use musé meet ars legal
permissibility, physical possibility, financial feasibllity, end mazimum
profitability.

The Subject Property as Vacant

Legally Permissible: The subject ks zoned A-Rural,
which permits low density residential use.

Physlmlly Passible: The physical characteristics of the
property permit any of the legally permitted uses.

Financlally Feasible; The comparable sales in this
report demenstrate the financial feasibility of property
acquired for commercial use. Current market conditions

" Appraisal Institute, The Dictionary of R eal Fstate Appraise], Fourth Editlon, 2001,

Page 24

- o

Lo I

i

!
.




- M W O NS N IR I N . : |

indicate recovering price levels and demand, with some
new construction beginning.

Maximally Productive: The maximally productive use
of the property is to hold for future residential
subdivision.

APPRAISAL METHODOLOGY

The prowfrty rights being appraised for the subject is the
fee simple interest in a vacant parcel. '

The valuation of the subject parcel involves the Sales
Comparison Approach, Utilization of the appropriate
approach or approaches for a given property is based on
the quality and quantity of data available, and the
relevance of the data to the property being appraised. If
more than one valuation approach is utilized, the
resulting value estimates are reconciled to produce a final
value conclusion.

The Sales Compavison Approach is based on the
premise that the market value of a property is directly
related to the prices of comparable, competitive
properties. The value of this appréach is dependent on
the availability of recent confirmed sales of properties
considered comparable to the property being appraised.
The sold properties are compared to the subject using key
units of comparison. Adjustments are made for
differences between the subject and the comparables,
resulting in adjusted sales values for each of the
comparables. The adjusted values are reconciled for a
value conclusion by the Sales Comparison Approach.
The Sales Comparison Approach Is appropriate for most
real property interests.

Sales Comparison Approach

SITE VALUATION”

Sales comparlson® is the most common technique for
valuing land and it is the most preferred method when
comparable sales are available. To apply this method,
date on sales of similar parcels of land Is collected,
analyzed, compared, and adjusted to provide a value
indication for the land being appraised. In the

~ comparison process the similarity or dissimilarity of the

parcels is considered.

""The following four paragraphs are quoted from The American Instiiute of Real Estate
Appraisers. The Appraisal of Real Estate, 12 Edltion, Chicage, Tllincls, 0L, pp- 137+
339,

™ Ane of the 1hree genetally accepted methods for valuing real estate: Cost Approach,
Income Approach and Sales Comparison Approach, The Cost Approach utilizes the
S$ales Comparison Appeoach for valuing the land component of the averall project.
The Income Approach can rt ground Tens {based on comparable
|ransactions) imio valug via market-extracted capitaiizalion ralcs (devived kom
comparable sales anaiyzed via the Sales Comparison Approach),

The appraiser must perform several tasks in developing
an opinion of land value:

¢ Cather data on actual sales as well as listings,
offers and options.

¢ [dentify the similarities and differences in the
data.

¢ Identify the highest and best use of each
potential comparables sale. '

o Identify units of comparison that explain
market behavior.

e Adjust the sales prices of the comparables to
account for the dissimilar characteristics of the -
land being appraised.

»  Porm a conclusion as to the market value of the
subject land.

The goal of the sales comparison approach is to select the
most comparable market sales and then adjust for
differences that cannot be eliminated within the selection
process, Elements of comparison include property rights,
financing terms, conditions of sale {motivation),
expenditures immedtately after purchase, market
conditions (sale date), location, physical characteristics,
available utilities and zoning. The physical characteristics
of a parcel include its size, shape, frontage, topography,
location and view, Unit prices may be expressed as price
per square foot, front foot, acre, lot, dwelling unit. or
other unit used in the market.

" After comparable data is collected and categorized and

the comparable properties are examined and described,
sales data can be assembled in an organized, logical
manner. Sales are commonly arranged in a market data
grid that has separate rows (or columns) for important
property characteristics.

Following is an explanation of the major categories of
comparison.

Property Rights Conveyed

The particular rights or interests being valued on a site
must be defined. This is especially important n
appraisals that involve a partial interest in a property.
limited rights such as surface or mineral rights, a fee
simple estate subject to a long-term lease, or a leasehold
interest. For lease transactions, the fee equivalent value
of the lease transaction has been calculated and included
in the narrative data on the transaction. Other
encumbrances such as easements, mortgages, or special
occapancy and use requirements, should also be
identified if the comparable sales property rights differ
from the subject.

Page 25




Financing/Conditions of Sale

Adjustments for conditions of sale reflect the motivations
of the buyer and seller. The conditions under which a
parcel of land may be sold could differ from property to
property. Adjustments must be applied on a property
that was sold under atypical financing conditions, Any
adjustments made In this category are typically of a
quantitative nature, for example, based on cash
equivalengy analyses.
L4

Market Condltions (Time of Sale)

The time of sale is the date that the comparable parcel
was originally purchased. In order for the sale property
to be deemed comparable to the subject, it must be
adjusted for Increases or decreases in market prices from
the date of sale to the effective date of the appraisal.
Adjustments in this category are typically of a
quantitative nature, and best based on re-sales. In the
absence of ideal “matched palrs®, qualitative adjustments
can be considered based on changes In market condltions
over tme. For example, a pronounced increase in
marketing time could suggest a discounted present value

(net of holding costs or opportunity cost) in a slow market

in compartson to an active market,
Location

The analysts of a site's location focuses on the time-
distance relationships between the site and common
origins or destinations. It also is concerned with the
location of the parcel in relation to heavily traversed
thoroughfares and/or intersections. Due to the limited
number of sales, it is extremely difficult to produce a
"matched pair® that would prove a quantitative
adjustment for location. However, qualitative analysis
can be accomplished by considering the relative
importance of certain areas for certatn actlvities (based
on the principle of conformity).

Size

The sizes of the comparables are adjusted for superiority
or inferiority to the subject. It has been observed that
there is typically an optimum size for parcels, logically
related to its utility for the intended use. Parcels that are
outside of this range, whether larger or smaller, typically
sell for lower unit prices. For substantially larger parcels
this probably reflects the limited market (capable buyers,
available financing); for substantially smaller parcels this
probably reflects the decreased utility of the parcel.
Proving a quantitative basis for such an adjustment
would require statistical analysis of an adeguate
database; sufficient data 1s not available. Qualitative
considerations can be based on any deviations from mean
parcel sizes.

Shape

The shape of a property defines what improvements may
be constructed on a parcel of land. A rectangular or
square property is ideal for wmost commercial
construction. A triangular or wedged property may
inhibit construction of specific improvements. If the
reductlon in usable area can be clearly calculated, a
quantitative adjustment can be applied based on the
percentage reduction in usable area.

Topography

Adjustments for a parcel's topography are based on the
land's contour, grades, natural drainage, soil conditions,
view, and general usefulness. On the istand of Guam, the
topography ranges from gently sloping to an extremely
steep cliff. This may drastically hamper the construction
of an improvement as well as drainage, view, and soil
conditions. A quantitative adjustment can be made if the
cost of avercoming such physical challenges is known,

Access

Access involves the manner by which vehicular traffic
and utility easements enter onto the property. Some
examples are curbcuts, medians, turn lanes, traflic signal
turn arrows, shipping docks, airport runways and docks,
water, and gas line taps. Quantitative adjustments would
be difficult to make, unless based on "matched palrs”.
Qualitative considerations can reasonably be based on
relative differences in road importance or width.

Zoning

Guam’s zoning law provides for eight zones ranging from
zone "A" - Rural, the "lowest®, to zone "H" - Hotel, the
"highest”. Each zone has permitted uses, conditional
uses, limitations, and restrictions. Parcels within
"higher" zone typically allow all uses in *lower" zones, as
well as additlonal uses; therefore, they have ncreased
utility. Adjustments for difference in zoning are rarely
made, as comparables should be selected based on similar
highest and best use. In cases where potential rezoning is
considered highly probably and would result In a similar
highest and best use, a quantitative adjustment could be
made based on the estimated cost (money, time) of such
rezontng.

Page 26

o

]

- —

LB B B.B-5-5-

.




L

Utilities

This addresses the availability of basic utilities, such as,
water, power, gas, sewer, and storm drains at or near the
sites analyzed. These necessities cannot be deferred when
the site is developed and any differences between the
comparables and the subject represent an expense which
will matedtally affect the Investment value of the
property. Adjustments for this category are typically
quantitative, related to the cost of providing equal utility
avai]ab}lity.

--7 748771

Site Valuation Chart

Alter comparable data are collected and categorized, and
the comparable properties are examined and described,
sales data can be assembled in an organized, logical
manner. Sales are commonly arranged on a market data
grid. such as the Site Valuation Chart. (Quantitative
adjustments between the subject property and the
comparable properties, based on differences in
characteristics of the comparable as related to the subject.
A superior comparable characteristic will yield a negative
adjustment to the valye of the comparable. An inferior

comparable characteristic will yleld a positive adjustment
to the value of the COmParab]e.

Lage 27




Land Transaction No. 1

Legal Description:
Location:

Date of Transaction:
Seller:

Buyer:

Document/Recordation:

Nominal Price:

Terms of Sale:

Cash Bquivalent Price;
Property Righis Conveyed:

Conditlons of Sale:

Expenditures lmmediately After Purchase:

Size:

Unit Price:

Lot 5-PART-7, Municipality of Talofolo

PaduaLane, Ipan
November 29, 2004

Wells Pargo Financial Guam, Inc.

Richard Brett Cornelius and Jeif Dean Nielsern

Quitclaim Deed, recorded in the Department of Land Management, Government of

Guam, as Instrument 701143
$110.000

All cash to seller
$110,000

Fee Simple

See Comments

None known

10,969.00 Square Meters
118,068.12 Square Peet
2.71 Acres

$10.03 Per Square Meter

£0.93 Per Square Foot
$40,583.35 Per Acre

Page 28

B )

3

-

(LY T

- b

)

E™




y . ; ,
-- 748771

Zoning: A - Rural

Topography: Basically level on 90% of site, with remaining portions sloping upward at rear of site.
Approxlmately 3/4 acre of slopinig area according 10 agent.

Shape: : Rectangular

Access: Paved/Dirt

Utilitles: Power & water about 300" away.

Use At Bme of Sale: Vacant and idle

Current Use: Vacant and idle

Highest and Best Use: Residential Development

Confirmation: MLS 04-2219

Commenits: According to Listing agent, Kishin Advani, seller seemed somewhat motivated to sell
{ast and took the highest of 3 offers presented within ihe 51 overall days the property
was listed in MLS. Agent felt that property would most likely have sold one to two
dollars higher (per square meter) i{ seller had continued to list property for a longer
period.. Although located in Ipan, the immediate vicinity of the property is developed
with average quality single-family dwellings along with farming being done on vacant
parcels in the vicinity.

' NS

AV PR
a- ww MLEY

i "W an

: e o " B
PR L) . .
B4hoae - -
EE ’
a
8 AS=LOT- 8w PARY
- Lgms awfa “:' 3311_‘.—! R A
LOT 5 —PART -8 E veo ames o Eawet &
ARE4 o 44,188 % 15 F* il LT §-P
I TEI LS« sf™ Lo - PART = 7
K : AMEA " . &, 3T £ 36 r
. . = i, L .
¥ Lt R » 1z, - Lt :
hitd u T _./—\y_l . g3ty . ! 5‘:3“ “-l
I1Y A o o bf A AR
T [T T S . . * :
- rdy g L) ., .
- " o T : 'a“ - e
it b T w‘.' T
- « LET B -PAAT-RE-R/WL =
ART -9 tl. po A T CL A -
- el . ' L AREELES M '
ART-9 % LOT 8- PART-10 Caaser AN -
: AMEA ® 151 - . : i ta
s283u ¢ . "",::‘;‘ : :g: Lo 5= PART- RIO Jar 15 e
. ASGA v %A 4¥3E 34.°T - re -
N R YT . -
Ty ’
l. 494 21 [ XXM T 0 3
= n - - . A . e e
; ’ - - :':; I e
. 3 —walr
ks wr ipaaer BESRE SAs R AR
A . - Lt "' +F laagsy SNE Mg
R . ez
erexs g
LI PR ch T
- r : . -
Ly ke Th R L I e B 1 m
Page 29




Land Transaction No., 2

Legal Description:
Location:

Date of Transaction:
Seller:

Buyer:

Document/Recordation:

Noeminal Price:

Terms of Sale:

Cash Equivalent Price:
Property Rights Conveyed:

Conditions of Sale:

Lot 225-1, Municlpality of Piti

One lot west of Nimit;z Hiii Estates.
December 27, 2004

Leo Okamura and A.S.L., Inc,
Joseph W. Duenas

Warranty Deed, recorded in the Department of Land Management, Government of
Guam, as Instrument 702009

$177,400

All cash to seller.

$177,400

Fee Simple

Unusual conditfons. Seller couldn't exercise the option to purchase the property fom
awners because of financial difficultles. They had to sell property quickly to recover
their non-refundable down payment when they entered into a purchase agreement

with owner within past year. The option to purchase the property expired at the end
of 2004.

Expenditures Immediately Aiter Purchase: None known

Slze: 20,000.00 Square Meters
215,276.00 Square Feet
4.94 Acres

Page 30

i -

el

i -

ey

Rr—

a

. pumpn : B

E“
i,




Unit Price:

Zoning:
Topography:
Shape;
Access:
-
i
Utilittes:
Use At Time of Sale:
Current Use:
Highest and Best Use:

Conlirmation:

Comments:

L. 748771

$8.87 Per Square Meter

$0.82 Per Square Foot

$35.895.98 Per Acre

A -Rural

Gradual stoping from south and west toward northeast.

Ireegular

Undeveloped 50" wide easement requires some earthwaork to permit vehicular access. '
All available approximately 450’ to south.

Vacant and idle

Vacant and idle

Executive residential

Public records, buyer

Appraised by Carlos/MAA on December 2, 2004. Property sold significantly below
market value. According to Carlos/MAA, the buyer's partner (Joe Quinata) said that

the cemetery and the access to the property weren't an lssue. The buyers felt they
‘were getting a good deal on the property.

LOT 225 -R/W

Page 31



Land Transaction No. 3

7

-.‘. L

e

B

i

I

E Y ] -

-

.
.
|
"
|
i
i
|
X
i
:
i
i
I
l‘
I

Legal Description: Lot 5357-5, Municipallty of Mangilac
Location: One ot east of Adacao Road
Date of Transaction: Decemnber 28, 2004
Seller: Calvo Enterprises, Inc. by Leonard Calve - AR,
Buyer: Ho Nam and Yue S.P. Chung
Docament/Recordation: Warranty Deed/Mortgage, recorded in the Department of Land Management,
Government of Geam, as Instrurnent 702052/702054
Nominal Price: $120,000
Terms of Sale: All cash to seller
Cash Bquivalent Price: $120,000
Property Rights Conveyed: Pee Simple
Conditions of Sale: No unusual conditions noted
Expenditures Immediately Alter Purchase: Noneknown
Size: 9,440.00 Square Meters
101,610.27 Square Feet
2.33 Acres
Unit Price: $12.71 Pex Square Meter
$1.18 Per Square Foot
$51,443.62 Per Acre
Page 32




‘ o

|

| X . . . . 5 | . . . . . I K - » ; -
- K ] ] k ! !

| : A ki

J -1 748771

Zoning: A - Rural

Topography: Level

Shape: Slightly irregular; bisected by 40 foot easerment

Access 40 foot easement connecting to Adacao Road; currently covered with growth

Ttilitles: Power, water available,

Use At Time ol Sale: Vacant and idle

Curren: Use: Vacant and idle

Highest and Best Use: Subdivision into resldential use

Confirmation: Pablic Records, loan officer

Comments: Frank Cruz/MAA spoke with Janice Ogo/USDA verilled sale on 4-11-2005. The lot
area of the property is 9,440 SM net of right of way easement (10,305 SM tatal).

Page 33




Legal Description:
Location;

Date of Transaction:
Seller:

Buyer:

Document/Recordation:

Nominal Price:

Terms of Sale:

Cash Equivalent Price:

Property Rights Conveyed:

Conditions of Sale:

Expenditures Inmedtately After Purchase:

Size:

Unit Price:

Land Transaction No. 4

Lots 151-2-6, 151-2-7 & 151-WEST-R9, Municipality of Merizo

Fronting Route 4, Bile Bay
January 27, 2003
Kinoshita Guam, Inc.
Healy, John & InHul Yo

Warranty Deed/Mortgage, recorded in the Department of Land Management,
Government of Cuam, as Instrument 668159/60

$240,000

All cash to seller

$240,000

Pee Simple

No unnsual condittons noted
None known

20,664.00 Square Meters
222,423.16 Square Pect
5.11 Acres

$11.61 Per Square Meter

$1.08 Per Square Foot
$47,002.30 Per Acre

Page 34




.
——

Zoning: A- Rural & R-2 Multi-Family residential
Topography: Varled
Shape: Ircegular; two inland parcels separated from beachfront parcel by Route 4
Access: Paved, Route 4
[tilities: AH available at site
Use At Time of Sale: Vacant & idle
Ld
L4
Current Use: Vacant & dle
Highest and Best Use: Develop inland portion with executive class single-familly home which beneflts from
the ocean and mountain view.
Confirmation: Public Records; MLS 960787; interview with buyer
Comments: Lot 151-2-7 slopes up steeply above Route 4; this lot can only be accessed by vehicle
through Lot 151-2-6; buyer plans to parcel out an access strip along 151-2-6, leading
up to 151-2-7 and building a home which can benefit from the ocean and mountain
view. Buyer's gurchase price was the price he felt all three parcels were worth, He did
not have a unit price in mind for each separate parcel. Lot 151-West-R9 Is an ocean
frontage parcel. The perimeter fence swrrounding the Red Rice aka Ryoma
restaurant, encroaches orto Lot 151-2-6. Site area Is the estimated net usable area
leas the right of way for future taking.
koo s ad’
m.aw
[t T4
1. 6%
MO 3 :
2% 88 57" ‘
' wvaa’alnu
{udsdnye
=
Page 35




Wbyt Mo Tuluiody - Mowggtinn Mo
Doacarnl Croibabalas Dol Wiarrsoty Doob Warrmiy Nesd/Adecigagn ‘Warsaly Dunl: Mongus
Ioalrumend TOEMY Tora0e 051 TII0Y ALY MY
Duir of bt | Lowtt of Vilar: et 0F Nov-0b K04 Doe-t Ina-83
18 10,00 USS 177400 248 430008 RS 20D
Shant | Sqpurare bbebira) | 20 #3000 Sagry: Matern Ty, w4k inbed LXK S bty
- - i Sk Pk P S oy - $ina) SRy 11kT4 - B ILAE
| oot Fropulf Paglw Coomired_ | TSy Foc Sl Tl Tos Sghe P fanple
Compulsn Raponad Price I Ses Sysirabent ol Byl Tl
Aol % o L3 %
Al tala Price Pow Sues Miviar $ 1043 LD 1LY $iLEl
Thmaring Terms | 'k Byubrabeicy Al v il Al v polbir. Al o vollor AN vl vo oviler
mpurp; B il Bl Baund
Miparacd 23 o .3 o
> ot P ,' 30h - Ll 31271 £ 1L&E
mmum;:smm
Comtntems of Sale [PPSRV PL aronss bucwme o Ananciel dic.dies. e " T ——
iy i rib e s, pRymont i
Uy srviried a0 & e ik e v, v
Comphrm ol Irnevhor el Eanal
Adpurtraent L3 ey o [
I Sl tabum Prwn Por Squary Wk’ - + [ 11 RETTE] 1104
i Svls e diely e
Parch I Homa bz Lt ] Mot kwrw Mt hraerm
Cocpirin. S Baunl Taol Egal
Adetaoin m [ o %
Aot s Prios A+ S Moy + L0V L *I2F SHAM-
Mdricad Cumiiriany I L of Ve jun-08 il - ot Mk h
Cogpirio Eaeal ] Exonl Mgy
Aulfarica AL [ Wk ~¥ir
" Ahaso ks Prica P g idutar $EN01 [T ST $T2T
At ettt R sott Chtanerisiton
Lavuiian hariae Fachus Lt L L o Aol Bike Doy
Compurim Supcrier Suprior Suprriar Roued
1% -1 -15% %
St 1 144k 3.000 Spumrs Mrhars. 1154900 Sovars bicrs - 20, 1
Camad Tnferiar Bl Tkt
Adurtarant L) 0 0 . 08
il g Kot e ol ot e PN o e N
Topagraghy oot Y I e il bkt Py [ Ll Vuned
o I o G ik &
Comparieon Tyank Sugerior Suparier Inkriar
Aovns L3 5% -l )
ok R Adureo
A Hinderclapol oot Bwrolant: . - vy Peved Houw 4
Craguptarmy Supericr Sgml Equal Sunpartar
1% o " -2
Zoning Adarel APl A-Rush A-Nurd Ar orel &R-3 Winl-Fuioily redeitial
Compreon Cawt Eaoal [ Suptiet
Aipastsant " o v -10%
b T Yiew Meme N MHeiw Otrmn ¥irw
Indreie Tnlerior Inkerive [
1 1 T e
Het - 0478 180 -L5.0% 5.0%
Tiawk Adurted Prioe Por Sacra hcter 908 £10.7¢ 41081 1071
Pigpe 36

£
-

il

"
- oer &

L IL ]

N A T
S *




L naduace) Prica Rangs F1E L BEA]

Al ustad Hrice Riogd S503mi 188
Arorge A P $10.1

 Wekied Aven Salmren a2k

Coagpirible 4
Lo Numbar Lot 4405 Lot S2ANTT Lo 1241 [PEITTR] Lo 15124, 181074 LS1-WRSTRY
Muakciity et e it ‘T ) ki
Vil ek Frice der-Sacomr Maiwt #1008 [T TR - 5kl
Ayt Price Py Sauare Wiker : . [ £l T 5 AT
N 1-lm 5LM $1.91 5091
“Totul Adj\touan. Goo % St P 15.0% SR
R Tot Adhuzants, Nek e nse 150 s
15.0% 07 350

The weighting is based on a distribution that gives
greater weight to sales with lower adjustment levels, as
they are more similar overall

Conclusion

We conclude a value of $10 per square meier, applied to
the estimated net usable site area, for a rounded value
conclusion of $105,000.

The estimated exposure for the property at its appratsed
value is 6 to 9 months; the estimated marketing time is 6
to 9 months.

Addenda

General Assumptions and Limiting Conditions

The appraisal is based on the present condition of the
economy and the present purchasing power of the dollar,

Legal descriptions, including leases, information, maps,
signed or unsigned surveys, estimates and opinions
furnished or made available to the appraiser and
contained in this sindy were obtained from sources
considered reliable and believed to be true and correct.
However, no responsibility for accuracy and legality of
such items furnished can be assumed by the appraiser.

Many of the figures presented in this report were
generated using computer models that make calculations
based on numbers carried out to three or more decimal
places. In the interest of simplicity, most numbers
presented in this repart have been rounded to the nearest
tenth. Thus, these figures may be subject to small
rounding errors in some cases.

This appralsal assumes no responsibility for the validity of
legal matters affecting the property. The ownership
history reported in this appraisal is based on the
appraiser’s research of public records, which are assumed
to be accurate and complete, It is not the intent of the
appraisal to offer a legal opiuion of title. It is further
assumed that the property has good title, responsible
ownership and competent management. Any liens or
encumbrances which may now exist have been
disregarded.

The Americans with Disabililes Act {ADA) became
effective January 26, 1992. We have not made a speciflc
compllance survey and analysis of this property to
determine whether or not it is in conformity with the
various detailed requirements of the ADA. It is possible
that a compliance survey of the property, together with a
detailed analysis of the requirements of the ADA, could
reveal that the property is not in compliance with one or
more of the requirements of the ADA. 1fso, this fact could
have a negative effect upon the value of the property.
Since we have no direct evidence relating to this issue, we
did not consider noncompliance with the requirements of
the ADA in estimating the value of the property.

This appraisal assumes that the Fee Simple interest in the
subject property is marketable.

Any maps or plot plans reproduced and included in the
report are intended only for the purpose of showing
spatial relationship. They are not necessarily measured
surveys or measured maps, and we will not be responsible
for topographic or surveying errors. The appraiser has
made no survey of the property. No liability will be
assumed for soil conditions, bearing capacity of the
subsoil or for engineering matters related to proposed or
existing structures.

Puge 37




It s assumed that there s full compliance with all
applicable federal and territorial environmental
regulations and laws unless noncompliance ls stated,
defined, and considered in this appraisal report.

When the study contains a valuation relating to an estate
in land that is less than the whole fee simple estate, the
value reported for such estate relates to a fractional
interest only in the real estate involved, and the value of
this fraclonal interest plus the value of ali other
fractional interests may or may not equal the value of the
entlre fee simple estate which is considered the whole.

When the appraisal report contains an allocation of the
total valuation between land and building improvements,
such allocation applies only under the existing program
of utilizatlon. The separate valuations for land and
puilding cannot be used in conjunction with any other
appraisal and will be invalid if so used.

It is assumed that all applicable zoning and use
regulations have been complied with, unless a
nonconformity is stated, defined and considered in the
study. It is also assumed that all required licenses,
certificates of occupancy, consents, or other legislative or
admintstrative authority from the territorial or federal
government or private entity or organization have been
or can be obtained or renewed for any use on which the
value estimate contained in this study is based.

No information was furnished to the appraiser regarding
the presence of Radon seepage in the subject site or that it
has ever been used as, or part of, a sanitary landfill or
toxic waste dump.

Unless otherwise stated in this report, the existence of
hazardous materials, and gases and other noxious
emissions which may or may not be present on the
property, were not observed by the appraiser. The
appraiser has no knowledge of the existence of such
materials or gases affecting the property. The appraiser,
however, is not qualified to detect such substances. The
presence of asbesios building materlals, urea-
formaldehyde foam insulation, poly-chlorinated biphenyl
filled transformers, aluminum based electrical wiring, or
other elements of potentially hazardous materlals not
currently recommended by the Uniform Building Codes
may affect the value of the property. The value estimate
is predicated on the assumption that there is no such
material on or in the property that would cause a loss In
value. No responsibility is assumed for any such
conditions, or for any expertise or engineering knowledge
required to discover them. -

Information provided by informed local sources, such as
government agencies, financial institutions, Realtors,
buyers, seller and- others, was weighed in the light in
which it was supplied and checked by secondary means;

however, no responsibility is assumed for possible
misinformation.

Possession of this report, or a copy thereof, does not carry
with it the right of publication. This report may not be
used by anyone except the client, and then only with
proper qualification.

The appraiser is not required to give testimony or
attendance in court by reason of this appraisal, with
reference to the property in question, unless

" arrangements have been previously made.

This report shall not be conveyed in whole or In part to
the public through edvertising, public relations, news,
sales, or other media without the written consent and
approval of the author. This applies particularly to
written conclusions, the identity of the appraiser or firm
with which he or she Is connecied, and any reference to
the Appraisal [nstitate.

The delivery and acceptance of this report completes this
assignment.

Appraiser's Certifications
We certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief:

s The statements of fact contained in this report are
true and correct and no important facts have been
withheld or overlooked,

¢  The reported analyses, opinions and conclusions are
limited only by the reported assumptions and
limiting conditlons, and are our personal, unbiased
professional analyses, opinions, and conclusions.

+« The undersigned has no present or prospective
interest in the property that is the subject of this
appraisal.

s  We have no personal interest with respect to the
parties involved.

+ We have no blas with respect to the property that is
the subject of this report or to the parties involved
with this assignment,

¢ We engagement in this assignment was not
contingent wupon developing or reporting
predetermined results,

= Our compensation for completing this assignment is
not contingent upon the development or reporting of
a predetermined value or direction in value that
favors the cause of the client, the amount of the
value opinion, the attatnment of a stipulated result,
the approval of a loan, or the occurrence of a

Paye 38

™ oW W W oW W

o F

i

e ™

L

.

~

P

k=



v

y ' L]
Curriculum Vitae: Mark F, Gruber, MAL SRA, CCIM, ASA

= 487771

+

Experience

Appraisal and consultation experience includes vacant tand, commercial, hotel/resort, multi-family residentlal, industrial,
special-purpose properties and business valuations. Qver 3,500 appraisals conducted over the past 15 years.

Geographic areas covered include Guam, Commonwealth of the Northem: Mariana lslands, Federated States of Micronesia,
Republic of Palau, American Samoa.

Appraisal and consultation circurnstances include financing, leasing. acquisition, condemnation, foreclosure disposition,
insurable replacement value, and [itigation support. Qualified as expert wimess in the Superior Court of Guam and Superior
Court obthe Northem Martara Islands. '

Clients Include lenders (FDIC and non-domestic), government agencies of Guam and the CNMI, attorneys and private .
property owners. Work product accepted by every lender within the reglon.

Work History |

October 1991 to Present: Micronesian Appraisal Associates, Inc. President and Chief Appraiser. Real estate appraisals and
consultation. '

April 1994 to Present: Micronesian Appraisal Associates, Saipan, Inc., Vice President and Sentor Appraiser. Real estate
appraisals and consultation.

October 1990 to September 1991: Micronesian Appraisal Services, Principal. Real estate appraisal and consultation.

August 1990 to August 1991: Ginza [nvestment (Guam) Inc, Assistant Vice President, Real Estate. Real estate analysis and
development.

April 1985 to july 1990: D.G. Hodgson & Co, (subsequently acquired by Micronesian Appraisal Assoclates, Inc.) Staff
Appraiser. Commercial and residential veal estate appralser.

1988 to 1989: Bank of Hawaii, Guam Residential Services Center (Residential Mortgage Department). Assistant Vice
President and Manager. Management of full-service residential mortgage department with PHA, VA, FHLMC and portfolio
ARMs.

1986 to 1988: Bancorp Finance of Hawall-Guam, Inc. Loan Officer. Origination and underwriting of residential and
commercial mortgage loans.

1982 to 1984: Northwest Mortgage Co.. Inc. Flanders, NJ. Mortgage Underwriter. Underwriting of residential mortgages,
including FHA, VA, FHLMC and FNMA.

Licenses and Cextifications

Guam, Certified Real Estate Appraiser, CA-2004-002, Expiration February 20, 2006
Commaonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands, Certified Real Estate Appraiser for Federally-Related Transactions,
REA-003-03, Expiration April 30, 2006
Hawail, Certilled General Appraiser, License CGA-649, Explration December 31, 2005
Nevada, Certified General Appraiser, License 04365, Expiration September 30, 2006
Appraisal Qualifications Board {AQB) Certified Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Standards (USPAP)
Instructor. Instructor ID 10033, Expiration June 30, 2005.

«  Cornell University, School of Hotel Administration, Certification in Real Estate, Development. and Hotel [nvestment,
Professional Development Program, 2003.

-Pagel-




L ' ! ) .J

Curriculum Vitae: Mark F. Gruber, MAIL SRA, CCIM, ASA

Organizations and Professional Affiliations

»  Designated Member, The Appraisal Institute
¢ Member, The American Society of Appratsers
+  Member, CCIM Institute
¢ Past President and Charter Member, Pacific Association of Professional Real Estate Appraisers
*  Member, Committee on Housing Task Force, 25° Guam Legislature
*  Member, Technology Subcommittee, Appraisal Jostitute, 2003
*  Chalrman, Board of Directors, Guam Housing Corporation, 2003 to present
’ Designations
s  MAI Member Number 11675, Appraisal Institute.
= SRA, Appraisal Institute
e CCIM, Member Number 10211, CCIM Institute
*  ASA, Accredited Senior Appraiser, Real Property-Urban, Member Number 008359, The American Society of Appralsers
Professional Education
The Appralsal Institute
Courses
e  Capitalization Theory & Techniques, Parts A & B, 1990
& Principles of Real Estate Appraisal, 1991 (Challenge)
+  Basic Valuation Procedures, 1991
¢  Standards of Professional Practice, Part A, 1991, 1995, 2001
¢  Standards of Professional Practice, Part B, 1991, 1995, 2001
¢  Case Studies in Real Estate Valuation, 1992
¢  Report Writing and Valuation Analysis, 1992
s Highest and Best Use and Market Analysls, 1993
+ Litigaton Valuation Overview, 1999
+  Standards of Professional Practice, Part C, 1999
+  Advanced Residential Form and Narrative Report Writing, 2001
¢  Separating Real and Personal Property from Intangible Business Assets, 2002
¢  Sales Comparison Valnation of Small, Mixed-Use Propertles, 2002
+ Litigation Appraising: Sepcialized Topics and Applications, 2002
+  Advanced Sales Comparison and Cost Approaches, 2003
+ 7 Hour USPAP National Update Class, 2003
s Business Ethics and Practices, 2003
+  Condemnation Appraising: Basic Principles and Applications, 2003
¢  Condemnation Appraising: Advanced Topics and Applications, 2003
Continuing Education Seminars

+  Rates, Ratios and Reasonableness, 1989
Discounted Cash Flow Analysis, 1989
Feasibility Studies and Highest and Best Use Analysis, 1989
Appraising Leased Fee Interests, 1993
Appratsing Leasehold Interests, 1993
Appraising the Tough Ones, 1993
Understanding Limited Appraisals/Reporting Options: General, 1994
Understanding Limited Appraisals/Reporting Options: Residential, 1994
Maximizing Your Appralsal Practice, 1995
Current {ssues and Misconceptions, 1995
The Appraiser as Expert Witness, 1995
Demonstration Appraisal Report Writing Seminar, Non-Resldential, 1996
New Industrial Valuation, 1997, 1998
" Highest and Best Use, 1997
Special Purpose Properties In Limited Markets, 1997

* & & & 0 & & » 0 0 8 8 &8

-Page2 -



o y) ; ! * -

Curriculum Vitae: Mark F. Gruber, MAL, SRA, CCIM, ASA

-
L

Valuation of Detrimental Conditions in Real Estate, 1998

Eminent Domain and Condemnatlon Appraisal, 1998

Valuation 2000

Real Estate Fraud, 2001

Real Estate Disclosure, 2001

Appraisal Review: General, 2001

Appraisal Standards For Federal Land Acquisitions, 2002

Small Hotel/Motel Valuation: Limited-Service Lodging (Online}, 2002
The FHA and the Appraisal Process (Online), 2003

Appraisal Consulting: A Solutions Approach for Professlonals, 2003

s % & B & & & & B b

Instructor Leadership and Development Conference
»  (eneral Seminars, 2002

e  Appraisal Principles, Appraisal Procedures, Residential Highest and Best Use and Market Analysis,

2004

The Appraisal Foundation

o  Conceptsand Principles of the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice: An Insteuctor's

Application, 2002

CCIM Institute

Financial Analysis for Commerclal Investment Real Estate (Challenge), 2001
Market Analysis for Commetcial Investment Real Estate, 2001

User Decision Analysis for Commercial Investment Real Estate {Challenge). 2001
Investment Analysis for Commercial Investment Real Estate (Challenge), 2002

. " & @

Cornell University, School of Hotel Administration

+  Property Asset Management, 2002

+ Fundamentais of the Hotel Investment and Financing Decision, 2002
¢ Hotel Planning and Design, 2003 :
e  Computerized Hotel Market Studies and Valuations, 2003
o  Advanced Hotel Investments, 2003
The American Soclety of Appraisers

e Business Valuation I (BV201), 1997

International Right of Way Association

«  The Appraisal of Partial Acquisitions, 1997

University of Hawaii, Extension Program

e  Real Estate Appraisal, 1986
s  Standards of Professional Practice, 1991

Pacific Association of Professional Real Estate Appraisers

+  Residenttal Property Construction and [nspection, 1995

American Institute of Banking

+ Commercial Loan Documentation

Mortgage Banker's Agsociation of America correspondence courses:

e  Understanding Real Estate Appraisal

»  The Residential Mortgage Secondary Market
+  Regulatory Compliance

¢  TheForm and Content of a Mortgage

Federal Housing AdmInistration

»  Direct Endorsement Underwriter's Seminar, 1988

-Page3-

748771




.
L
"

4 ) b
Curriculum Vitae: Mark F, Gruber, MAL SRA, CCIM, ASA

W i

Teaching Credendals

Appraisal Institute, Faculty:
*  Basic Appraisal Principles, Assoclate Instructor
Basic Appraisal Procedures, Associate Ipstructor
Residential Market Analysis and Highest and Best Use, Associate Instructor
7 Hour National USPAP Course, Associate Instructor
15 Hour National USPAP Course, Associate [nstructor
Business Practlces and Ethics, Assoctate Instructor
_Appraisal Consultation: A Solutions Approach for Professionals, Instructor

a%e & @ » @

Appraisal Poundation: Appralser Qualifications Board (AQB) Certified USPAP Instructor. Instructor ID 10033, Expiration
June 30, 20035,

e w

University of Guam, CCEOP, Adjunct Professor

Teaching Fxperience

University of Guam, College of Continuing Education. annd CNMI Board of Prolessional Licensing (Qualifing Education):
Real Estate Appraisal Methods

Basic Income Capitalization

Real Estate Appraisal Applications

Standards of Professional Practice

Foundations of Real Estate Appraisal

Appraistng the Single Family Restdence

=

.- . s e

Pacific Assoclation of Professional Real Estate Appraisers (Continuing Education):
Understanding Limited Appralsals/Reporting Options: Residential
Appraisal Regulations of the Federal Banking Agencies
Discounted Cash Flow Analysis

Highest and Best Use Applications

Appraisal of Leased Pee Interests

1Tano'-ta: A Valuation Perspective (Co-instructor)

Two To Four Family Residential Properties

USPAP 2000

USPAP 2002

7 Hour National USPAP Update Course, 2004.

15 Hour Nattonal USPAP Update Course, 2004

[T

3 H

American Institute of Banking Seminars:
»  Real Estate Documentation
+  Home-Equity Lending -
«  Real Estate Finance l

Westpac Institate of Management:
«  Understanding Real Estate Appratsals. 2003 ';
« Fundamentals of Real Estate Appraisals, Part [, 2004 i

¢  Fundamentals of Real Estate Appratsals, 2004
Publications l l

“Financial Feasibility of Lodging Properties in Remote Locations: An American Samoa Case,” Paper presented at the Pan
Pacific Congress of Real Pstate Appralsers, Valuers and Counselors, Taipei, Taiwan, October 2004.

"
LA
"For What It's Worth”, Guam Real Estate Today, column. [3'4

-Paged -




\ Curriculum Vitae: Mark F, Gruber, MAI, SRA, CCIM, ASA

Co-author, Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands, Board of Profﬁsional Licensing, “Local Knowledge Test”.
Designed for administration to appraisal license/certification applicants from outside the CNML

Education

1978 to 1982: Bachelor of Arts in History, New York University, NY NY joseph H. Park Hooor Soclety, 1982.
Departmental Honors, History Department, 1982,

1982 to‘1983: Graduate study in Histary, Columbia University, NY, NY.
L 4

1984 to 1985: Master of Arts in Intercultural Studies (Cultural Anthropology). Biola University, La Mirada, CA.

Honors.

Select Client Listing

Govermment

.......‘........l..

Guarn, Department of Public Works, Rights of Way
Guam Economic Development Authority

Guam Waterworks Authority (fka PUAG)

Port Authority of Guam

CGuam Telephone Authority

Guam Airport Authorlly

University of Guam

Superior Court of Guam

Guam, Department of Land Management

"Guam Housing Corperation

Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority

CNMI Northern Marianas Housing Authority (fka MIHA)
CNMI Departruent of Public Lands {{ka MPLC)

U.5. Small Business Administration

US Rural Economic Development Authority

US Department of Agriculture

Republic of Naurn

United States Alr Force

United States Navy, Housing Office

financial

....’...............‘....

Deutsche Bank

ANZ Amerika Samoa Bank

Bank of Hawaii: Guatn, Saipan, Palay, Amertcan Samoa
Bank of Guam: Guam, Saipan, Rota, Tinlan
First Hawailan Bank: Guam, Saipan
Hongkong Shanghai Bank: Guam, Saipar:
Guam Savings & Loan: Guam, Saipan, Palau
First Savings and Loan: Guam, Saipan

First Hawaitan Creditcorp

GE Capilal Guam

Finance Factors

Hawalian Trust Company

Citlzens Security Bank

Citibank

Union Bank: Guain, Saipan

Community First Guam Federal Credit Union
Norwest Financial

Pacific Financlal: Guam, Saipan

Metrobank

Century Bank

Allied Bank

First Commercial Bank

Asahi Bank: Guam, Saipan

Kyowa Saitama Bank

Long Term Credit Bank of Japan

Allen Matkins Leck Gamble & Mallory
Carbullide, Berdallo and Brooks
Arriola, Cowan and Bordallo
Baumann and Hull

Carlsmith, Wichman, Case and Ichiki
McCully, Lannen, Beggs and Melancon
Keogh and Butler

Klemm, Blair, Sterling and Johnson
Cunliflz and Cock

Phillips and Bordallo

Mair, Mair, Spade and Thompson
Ching Boertzel Clville Dooley and Roberts
Del Priore and Gumataotao

Zamsky and Cohen

Butler and Teliord Butler

Teker, Clville, Torres and Tang
Gorman and Gavras

l..............'.g
]

Business/Private

- Marriott Hotels
LG Engineering
Agana Shipping Center
Archbishep of Guam
Japan Airlines
Duty Free Shoppers
Pacific International Company: Guam, Saipan
FIE Corporation: Guam, Salpan
Toyo Real Esiate
Hakubotan Enterprises
Fletcher Pacific Construction
Calvo Enterprises
Kawasho Corporation
M S V Enterprises
Joeten Enterprises
Taisei Corporation
Mobil Qil: Guarm, Salpan, Palau
Exxon Corporation
Shell Corporation
Baba Corparalion
Ada's Inc. ’
Sgro Investment Corporation
Triple ] Enterprises: Guam, Saipan
Ottoville Development: American Samoa
Haleck Enterprises, [nc.
Physicians Diagnostic Lab
Nissan Motors Corporation

% 4 B 8 P A B B % B RS S SRS S b

High

-Page 5~




Curricrlum Vicae: Mark F. Gruber, MAl SRA, CCIM, ASA IE'

i «  Mitsui Trust and Banking s Texas A&M University :
, *  Emstand Young s United Overseas Investment Corporation A .J
| +  Deloitte & Touche +  Korean Consulate o

¢ PriceWaterhouseCoopers ¢  Wendy'sGuam

»  KPMG Peat Marwick »  Zurich Insurance

»  Mortgage Plus »  National Office Supply

»  Bank of the Pederated States of Micronesia ¢ T&NN International ﬁ

¢  Lehman Brothers ¢ PRICIA (Talofolo Golf Resort) i

s B&lILending o Towa Reef Hotel

»  Allied Mortgage Capital Corporation *  (Oxford Properties & Finonce Lud.

» UB.S,Investment Bank «  Haseko Corporation u

- wm e

»y

-Page6 -



Professional Qualifications: Vance L. Reklai

Proflessional Experience

Guarn General Certifled Appraiser - CA-04-031, Expiration Date: Pebruary 6, 2006

Appraisat experience Includes vacant tand single family residential, multi-family residential, and commercial.

Geographic areas covered include Guam and Republic of Palau.

Appraisal";ircumstances include financing, leasing, acquisition, foreclosure disposition, and insurable replacement value.

Clients tnctude lenders (FDIC and non-domestic), attorneys and private property owners. Work product accepied by most lender within the
regton.

Work History
October 2000 to Present: Palau Appraisal Associates, Inc., Vice President. Eeal estate appraisals and congultation,
May 1999 to Present: Micronesian Appraisal Assoclates, Inc. Real estate appraisals and consultation. ‘

August 1998 to May 1999: Salomon $mith Barney, Investment consulting firm.

Organizations and Professional Affliations

«  Pacific Assoctation of Professional Real Estate Appraisers
+  Appraisal Institute, Residential Associake Member

Professional Education

The Appraisal Institute
2-4 Units Case Study: Restdential R3, 1999
Appraisal Methods, 2000
Appraisal Standards, 2001

Advance Residential Form and Report Writing, 2001
Basic Income Capitalization, 2003

*» % & & &

International Right of Way Association
«  The Appraisal of Partial Acquisitions, 2000
University of Guam

s  TReal Estate Investment Analysis, 1998
«  Real Estate Finance, 199%

Education

1992 to 1999: Bachelor of Business Adminlstration in Finance and Economics University of Guam, Guam.



' 3 Fl ' +

| a - 746771

Chief Appraisals

P.0. Box 3082
Hagatna, Guam 968932 _
Phone:671-649-2755 ~ Fax.671-649-0917

November 14, 2005

oo KWR RECEIVED

P.O. Box 8780 |
Agat, Guam 98928
w2295
RE:  Property: Lot 440-5 |
Merizo, Guam 96915 Time: o
Name: N/A :
File No. A-2039 |
Case No.

Dear Mike Sabin,

in accordance with your request, | haﬂife personally inspected and prepared an appraisal report of the real
property located at: i

Lot 440-5

The purpose of this appraisal is to est!_imate the market value of the property described in the body of this
_ appraisal report. i _
Enclosed, please find the appraisal réport which describes certain data gathered during our investigation

of the property. The methods of approach and reasoning in the valuation of the various physical and
economic factors of the subject property are contained in this report.

An inspection of the property and a study of pertinent factors, inciuding valuation trends and an analysis of
neighborhood data, led the appraiser {0 the conclusion that the market value, as of October 8, 2005

is:
$ 81,000

The opinion of value expressed in thiis report is contingent upon the limiting conditions attached to this
report. i ;

It has been a pleasure to assist you. lfI may be of further service to you in the future, please let me know.

Respectfully submitted,

o S

Richard T. Gutierrez
License No. LA-04-027, Expires May 5, 2006




S} enderrclient  Trans World Radio - KTWR Address P.Q. Box 8780, Agat, Guam 96928

| SUBJECT PROPERTY COMPARABLE NO.1 COMPARABLE NO.2 COMPARABLE NO.3
Address Lot 440-5 Lot 5-PART-7 Lot 1032NEVW-1-R1 Lot 2355-2-R1
Meri Talofofo Barrigada Barrigada
Proximity to Subj : & 8.5 Mi Mil 18 Mil
Sales Price $ N/, 110.0 12
Prico $ N/ s 1100 $ 1 ; 85,000
Data Source Inspection/Client MLS 19/0.0.M. 51 days MLS LOM. MLS 04-417/D.Q.M, 141 days
Date of Sale and DESCRIFTION DESCRIPTION i DESCRIPTION ot DESCRIPTIQN Adent |
M Time Adjusiment N/A 12/01/2004 0 11/20/2004 003/22/2004 (20%) +17.000
W Location Merizo/Avq Talofofo/Gd(-} -10.000_Barrigada/Gd(+) -20,000 Barrigada/Gd{+) | -20.000
Nl Site/view 10.4683sm/Gd 10,969sm/Avg +15.000  8.200sm/Avy +20.000 _7.355smfAvg | +30.000
Zone/Topo Agr/Sloping Aarfl.evel -10,000 _R-1/Fairly Leve! -7,500 __R-1/Sloping 0
JPower/Swr__| Wir/Pwr 250 linear Water/Power -15.000  Water/Power -15.0000 Water/ -15.000
58 Un lo oohie Paved/Dirt -10.000 Paved -15.000 Paved -15,000
ha Irreqular | Rectanqular 0 irreqular 0 e 0
Sales or Financing None None 0 None 0 None 0
Concessions Non None 0 None 0 None 0
Met Adj.(Total Pius | X [Minus -30 Plus| X | Minus Plus { X |Minusis  -3.0
Indicated Value
of S 80 8 i § 82000

UL ESTIMATE THE MARKET VALUI EFINED, OF SUBJECT PRORERTY AS OF QOctober 8 2005 tobes 81.000
Appraiserts) % ) % Review Appratser (If appicable)

! LAND APPRAISAL REPORT 74677 1
File No, _A-2039

Bomower NJA, Census Tract 6601095531 Map Reference Merizo

Property Address Lot 440-5

cy Merizo County Merizo State Guam Zip Code 96915

Legal Descripion Lot 440-5

Sale Price $ N/A Date of Sale N/A_ LosnTerm ____N/A  yrs. Property Rights Appraised Fos | |Leasshokd |__|De Minimis PUD
Actuat Real Estate Taxes § N/A {(y) Loan Charges tobe paid by selar§ __ NJA_ Other Sales Concessions  N/A

Oceupant Vacant appraiser - _ Richard T. Gutierrez  tstructions to Appratser _Estimate “fair market value” for the

ubiject pro as thou nt for government lease & the private purpose of the client only.
Location Rural Good A
Built Up ? Under 25% Employment Stabikty [ ]

Growth Rate D Fully Dev. :] Slow Convenlence to Employment
Property Values :] Daclining Convenenics to Shapping
Demand/Supply Oversupply Convanience o Schools
Marketing Time Qver 8 Mos, Adequacy of Public Transportation
PresontLand Usa 50 %1 Family _2 %24Famiy 0 %Apts _2 %Condo _3 % Commercial | Recreational Faciities

_0 %iIndustriat % Vacant % Adequacy of Utllites
Change In Present Land Use Not Likely Likely(*) [ ] Taking Place ("} | Property of Compatibiity

{*) From Vacant To Residential | Protection from Detrimental Conditions

Predominate Ocoupancy Owner [ Jrenant 5 % Vacant Police and Fire Protection
Single Family Price Range $ __75.000_ tos _350,000 Predominantvatues 165000 | GeneratAppearance of Properties
Single Family Age New _wsto _ 32 ys.  Predominant Age 10 yrs | Appeal to Market

Gomments including those factors, favorable or unfavorable, affecting marketability (e.9. public paks, schoals, view, noise):__Subject is located North & West of
Route 4 in izo where ther acant iopable sites re mos i mily dwelli

improvements in the neighborhood with some 2-4 family dwellings with mixed design and construction. Downtown
Adgana business district is approximately 1 iles away.

Dimensions See attached property map. = 112.624+/-sf Sq.Ft orAcres | |comerLot

Zoning Classificaion Aqricultur Present Improvements | X Jdo [ do not conform to zoning regulations
Highast and best use Present use Othef(spedfy) gmment 1a adio 2 s to surrounding lots having sh nae
Public Gther (Describe) OFF SITE IMPROVEMENTS Topo Moderate Slope - Sloping

@

HEEREEEN

OO g

HNERERREEEEE

0 Y 3 B S P P B B

]

far

I SH

5O Lin.Mlrs. | Shape [Frequilar
ic || Private | view Qcean/Valley (-)

san Sewer| |  Septic Tank Storm Sewer Drainage Appears adequate
Uncletg'oundEhect.&TeI. | Sidewalk Is the property located in a HUD identified Special Flood Hazard Area? No DYes

Comments {favorabla or unfavorable inchuding any apparent adverse easements, encroachments or other adverse conditions); Subject is located in Fio
Panel #6 01-0102C dated 06/08/98.

250 Linear Feet |Maintenance

The undersigned has recited three recent sales of properties most similar and proximate to subject and has considerad these in the market analysls. The description includes
a doflar adjustment reflacting market reaction to those tems of significant variation between the subject and comparable properties. If a significant item in the comparable
properly Is superior o of more favorable than the subject property, a minus (-} adjusiment is made thus reducing the indicated velue of subject; if a significant em in the
comparable I inferior to or lass favorable than the subject property, a plus {+) adjustment is made thus Increasing the indicated value of the subject.

-1

Comments on Market Data: of re i arms ! : sales -] 5 1513 [ha ;: o - 1s
4 var si nths ol of ales is over s old. O mparable is

ingle-family residential). Therefor
located in similar market locatio subject lot & three comp. les are | ad in superior areas than the subject area of the island.
Comments and Conditions of Appraisal; rai s nt lo dy to eveloped to it's highest an t use. i

raisal is_for m leas: the_private purpose of the client only.

Final Reconciliation: __ The mean of all four sales in opinion, best re ents rket Value Estimate for the subject by the
ales Comparison Approach. The estimat ite value is $81 00; sa nded to the nearest thousand
81 .0 ee ch ddendum fi re ments he fin nciliation.

+” Richard T. Gutferrez
. / (TJoia [ Joid Not Physically Inspect Property




-~ 748771

EXTRA COMPARABLES 4-5-6 Fite No. A-2039
Borrower  IN/A
Property Address Lot 440-5
City Merizo County Merizo State Guam Zip Code 96915
=~ LenderClisnt Trans World Radio - KTWR Address P.C. Box 8780, Agat, Guam 95928

The undersigned has recited three recent sales of properties most sknilar and proximate o subject and has considered thaga in the market analysis. The description includas
a dollar adjustment refiecting market reaction to those Rems of significant variation batwesn the subject and comparable properties. If a significant item In the comparatie
property is superior (o or more favorable than the subject property, a minus (-} adjustment is made thus reducing the indicated value of subject; If a significant tem in the
comparable is inferior 1o or Jass favorable than the subject property, a plus (+) adjustment is made thus increasing the indicated value of the subject.

l SUBJECT PROPERTY COMPARABLE NO.4 COMPARABLE NO.5 COMPARABLE NO.&
Address Lot 440-5 Lots 151-2-6/-2-7-WEST R9
M Meri Merizo
g Proximity 1o Subject 1.5 Miles _
=B Sales Price $ N/A 5 240.0
N Price $ N/A e s 240,000 ¥
E Data Source inspection/Client MLS 96-0787/Agent
&3 Date of Sale and DESCRIPTION DESCRIPTION | agysisent DESCRIPTION___ | agusioent DESCRIPTION | s |
&l Time Adjustment N/A 01/27/2003 0
'ﬁ“\ Location Merizo/Avg Merizo/Avg 0
Py siterview 10,463sm/Gd 22 885sm/Exc | -130,000
| Zone/Topo Agar/Sloping Agr/Sloping 0
4 Wir/Power/Swr | Wir/Pwr 250 lingar feet| _ Wir/Electric -15,000
Y Access Undeveloped/Boonie, Paved -15,000
Shape Irreqular Rectanqular g
Sates or Financing None None 0
Concessions one pne 0

Net Adj.(Total

[ pws [ Xwous s -160.0001 0
Indicated Value el T "

of Subje : - $ 0
Comments on Market Deta Comparable #4 was submitted to bette ort th timated m t value of the subject and was

used due to the fact that it is located within the subject's village of Merizo. Comparable #4 was not adjusted for time
due to the fact that the average market decline from late 2002 to early 2004 and the average market increase from mid

2004 to todays market have offset each other, therefore no adjustment appeared to be necessary to bring it inline with
the subject.

L-HZMEIQO




S | L -~ 746771
COMMENT ADDENDUM File No. A-2039

Borrower N/A

Property Address Lot 440-5

City Merizo County Merizo Stats Guam Zip Code88815
Lender/Ciient Trans World Radio - KTWR Address P.C. Box 8780, Agat, Guam 96928

ADDENDUM TO APPRAISAL REPORT PAGE |

This a Summary Appraisal Report which is intended to comply with the reporting requirements set forth
under Standard Rule 2-2(b) of the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice for a Summary
Appraisal Report. As such, it might not include fuli discussions of the data, reasoning, and analyses that
were used in the appraisal process to develop the appraiser's opinion of value. Supporting
documentation concerning the data, reasoning, and analyses is retained in the appraiser's file. The
information contained in this report is specific to the needs of the client and for the intended use stated
in this report. The appraiser is not responsible for unauthorized use of the report.

To develop the opinion of value, the appraiser performed a complete appraisal process, as defined by
the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice. This means that no departures from

Standard 1 were invoked.

SCOPE OF THE APPRAISAL: In compliance with paragraph 1 of the Appraiser's Certification, the
appraiser has researched the market using general data including information on social, economic and
environmental factors influencing the subject property value. Specific data such as information gathered
about the subject property and the comparable sales are used. The collection and evaluation of the data
relies heavily upon the appraiser's education and experience. Data which could not be verified by a
reliable source is not used. Sources of information include but not limited to public records, parties to the
transactions, lenders, Realtors, appraisers and others,

SUBJECT: Subject is a three acre Government of Guam owned Agricultural zoned lot located in
Merizo, in which majority of the surrounding properties are also government owned. All of the
surrounding lots a re leased government owned properties and are leased to non-profit and privately
owned businesses that install radio antennas for various uses. The neighborhood is developed with a
small portion single-family dwellings of mixed design and construction. A portion of the area consists of
vacant land with opportunities for development. The subject lot is irregutar in shape with moderate slope
to sloping topography. The subject is not located in a flood zone as per the flood map. Utilities hook-up
are approximately 250 linear feet via the legal access/utility access with the power poles, telephone, and
water lines located approximtely 250 linear feet. The subject's access as well is undeveloped and due to
~ the nature of the soil in the area a tayer of coral base is required inorder to be passable by a typical

vehicle.

HIGHEST & BEST USE: Defined as the use that is reasonably probable, legally permissible, physically
possible, financially feasible and results in the highest value as of the effective date of the appraisal.
The immediate neighborhood is developed with mostly single family dwellings. There is potential for
further development in the surrounding area where there are vacant, developable sites. The subject's
highest and best use would be to lease and install radio antennas due to the fact that the
surrounding/adjacent properties have radio antennas installed as well.

SALES HISTORY: There are no known listing or sales activity within the past three years due to the
fact that it is a government owned property. -

NEIGHBORHOOD COMMENTS: Majority of the area is vacant with the immediate surrcunding
properties have commercial size radio antennas installed on them.

ADDITIONAL SITE COMMENTS: Electric, water, and telephone hook-ups are located approximately
250 linear feet away from legal access/utilities right of way.

PRESENCE OF HAZARDOUS WASTE: See Limiting Conditions Addendum addressing this topic.

SEE ADDENDUM PAGE Il

ClickFORMS Real Estate Appraisal Sofwere by Bradford Technologies (800} 622-8727



o o . dsTTLl
COMMENT ADDENDUM File No. A-2039

Borrower N/A

Property Address Lot 440-5

City Merizo County Merizo State Guam Zip Code96915
,Lender/Client Trans World Radio - KTWR Address P.O, Box 8780, Agat, Guam 96928

ADDENDUM TO APPRAISAL REPORT PAGE Il

COMPARABLES: There is a very limited supply of current 3 acre sales island wide, thus resulting in the
use of three sales with superior locations and one sale with similar location, All four sales used are over
six months old and were used due to the lack of more recent sales with very large site areas. One sale
used is located within the subject village with similar market appeal and location. Comparables #1 thru
#3 were adjusted upwards for inferior locations. Comparable #3 was adjusted for time and Comparables
T #1 & #2 are superior in topography. All four comparables were adjusted for views, utilities, and access.
Comparable #4 is located within the subject village, however a it Is twice as large as the subject in size
and a portion of the property is ocean front with superior view amenity.

NET ADJUSTMENTS EXCEED 15% OF THE SALES PRICE: Net adjustments exceed acceptable
limits on Comparables #1, #2, & #4. This is primarily due to the size, location, view, topography,
utilities, access, and time adjustments.

GROSS ADJUSTMENTS EXCEED 25% OF THE SALES PRICE: Gross adjustments exceed
acceptable limits on all four comparables. This is primarily due to the size, location, view, topography,
utilities, access, and time adjustments.

ADJUSTMENTS: Comparables #1 thru #3 were adjusted downwards for superior locations and were
based on the fact that the most southern areas of the island such as Merizo have typically sold for less
than more central areas such as Comparables #1 thru #3's areas over the past few years. The
adjustments for time on Comparable #3 were based on the average increase of sales from early 2004 to
todays market for vacant land sales. Comparables #2 thru #4 were adjusted upwards & downwards for
size, which is based on the average sales price differences between acre, half acre, quarter acre lots,
and minimum sized lots. Comparables #1 & #2 were adjusted downwards for superior topography and
was based on the sales price differences between level, level to sloping, and sioping sales over the past
few years. Ali four sales were adjusted downwards for utilities & access and the adjustments for both
amenities were based on the average cost estimate to develop the legal access and the average cost
estimate for water & power to be located to the front of the subject property.

FINAL RECONCILIATION: In the opinion of this appraiser, the estimated market value of the fee simple
property identified as Lot 440-5, located in Merizo, Guam 96915 as of October 8, 2005 is:

Eighty One Thousand Dollars

( US$81,000.00)

Appraiser: W Date: November 14, 2005

"Richard T. Guifrrez, LA-04-027, Expires May 5, 2006

CHIEF APPRAISALS

ClickFORMS Real Estats Appretsel Software by Bradford Technologies (B00) 622-8727




o L -~ 748771
DEFINITION OF MARKET VALUE: The most probable price which a property should bring in a competitive and
open market under all conditions requisite to a fair sale, the buyer and seller, each acting prudently, knowledgeably and
assuming the price is not affected by undue stimulus. Implicit in this definition is the consummation of a sale as of a
specified date and the passing of title from seller to buyer under conditions whereby: (1) buyer and seller are typically
motivated; (2) both parties are well informed or well advised, and each acting in what he considers his own best interest;
(3) a reasonable time is allowed for exposure in the open market; (4) payment is made in terms of cash in U. S. dollars
or in terms of financial arrangements comparable thereto; and (5) the price represents the normal consideration for the
.property sold unaffected by special or creative financing or sales concessions* granted by anyone associated with the sale.

*Adjustments to the comparables must be made for special or creative financing or sales concessions. No adjustments
are necessary for those costs which are normally paid by sellers as a result of tradition or law in a market; these costs
are readily identifiable since the seller pays these costs in virtually all sales transactions. Special or creative financing
adjustments can be made to the comparable property by comparisons to financing terms offered by a third party
institutional lender that is not already involved in the property or transaction. Any adjustment should not be calculated
on a mechanical dollar for dollar cost of the financing or concession but the dollar amount of any adjustment should
approximate the market's reaction to the financing or concessions based on the appraiser's judgment.

STATEMENT OF LIMITING CONDITIONS AND APPRAISER'S CERTIFICATION

CONTINGENT AND LIMITING CONDITIONS: The appraiser's certification that appears in the appraisal report is
subject to the following conditions:

1. The appraiser will not be responsible for matters of a legal nature that affect either the property being appraised or
the title to it. The appraiser assumes that the title is good and marketable and, therefore, will not render any opinions
about the title. The property is appraised on the basis of it being under responsible ownership.

2. The appraiser has provided a sketch in the appraisal report to show approximate dimensions of the improvements
and the sketch is included only to assist the reader of the report in visualizing the property and understanding the
appraiser's determination of its size.

3. The appraiser has examined the available flood maps that are provided by the Federal Emergency Management Agency
(or other data sources) and has noted in the appraisal report whether the subject site is located in an identified Special
Flood Hazard Area. Because the appraiser is not a surveyor, he or she makes no guarantees, express or implied, regarding

this determination.

4. The appraiser will not give testimony or appear in court because he or she made an appraisal of the property in question,
unless spegific arrangements to do so have been made beforehand.

5. The appraiser has estimated the value of the land in the cost approach at its highest and best use and the improvements
at their contributory value. These separate valuations of the land and improvements must not be used in conjunction with

any other appraisal and are invalid if they are so used.

6. The appraiser has noted in the appraisal report any adverse conditions (such as, needed repairs, depreciation, the presence
of hazardous wastes, toxic substances, etc.) observed during the inspection of the subject property or that he or she became
aware of during the normal research involved in performing the appraisal. Unless otherwise stated in the appraisal report,
the appraiser has no knowledge of any hidden or unapparent conditions of the property or adverse environmental conditions
(including the presence of hazardous wastes, toxic substances, etc.) that would make the property more or less valuable,
and has assumed that there are no such conditions and makes no guarantees or warranties, express or implied, regarding
the condition of the property. The appraiser will not be responsible for any such conditions that do exist or for any
engineering or testing that might be required to discover whether such conditions exist. Because the appraiser is not an expert
in the field of environmental hazards, the appraisal report must not be considered as an environmental assessment of

the property.

7. The appraiser obtained the information, estimates, and opinions that were expressed in the appraisal report from sources
that he or she considers to be reliable and believes them to be true and correct. The appraiser does not assume responsibility
for the accuracy of such items that were furnished by other parties.

8. The appraiser will not disclose the contents of the appraisal report except as provided for in the Uniform Standards of
Professional Appraisal Practice.

9. The appraiser has based his or her appraisal report and valuation conclusion for an appraisal that is subject to satisfactory
completion, repairs, or alterations on the assumption that completion of the improvements will be performed in a

workmanlike manner.

10. The appraiser must provide his or her prior written consent before the lender/client specified in the appraisal report
can distribute the appraisal report (including conclusions about the property value, the appraiser's identity and professional
designations, and references to any professional appraisal organizations or the firm with which the appraiser is associated)
to anyone other than the borrower; the mortgagee or its successors and assigns; the mortgage insurer; consultants;
professional appraisal organizations; any state or federally approved financial institution; or any department, agency,
or instrumentality of the United States or any state or the District of Columbia; except that the lender/client may distribute
the property description section of the report only to data collection or reporting service(s) without having to obtain the
appraiser's prior written consent. The appraiser's written consent and approval must also be obtained before the appraisal
can be conveyed by anyone to the public through advertising, public relations, news, sales, or other media.

Freddie Mac Form 439 (6-93) ClickFORMS Real Estate Appraisal Software by Bradford Technologies (800) 622-8727 Fannie Mae Form 1004B (6-93)




-~ 746771
APPRAISER'S CERTIFICATION: The Appraiser certifies and agrees that:

1. | have researched the subject market area and have selected a minimum of three recent sales of properties most similar
and proximate to the subject property for consideration in the sales comparison analysis and have made a dollar adjustment
when appropriate to reflect the market reaction to those items of significant variation. If a significant item in a comparable
property is superior to, or more favorable than, the subject property, | have made a negative adjustment to reduce the
adjusted sales price of the comparable and, if a significant item in a comparable property is inferior to, or less favorable
than the subject property, | have made a positive adjustment to increase the adjusted sales price of the comparable.

2. | have taken into consideration the factors that have an impact on value in my development of the estimate of market
value in the appraisal report. | have not knowingly withheld any significant information from the appraisal report and |
believe, to the best of my knowledge, that all statements and information in the appraisal report are true and correct.

3. | stated in the appraisal report only my own personal, unbiased, and professional analysis, opinions, and conclusions,
which are subject only to the contingent and limiting conditions specified in this form.

4. | have no present or prospective interest in the property that is the subject to this report, and | have no present or
prospective personal interest or bias with respect to the participants in the transaction. | did not base, either partially or
completely, my analysis and/or the estimate of market value in the appraisal report on the race, color, religion, sex,
handicap, familial status, or national origin of either the prospective owners or occupants of the subject property or of the
present owners or occupants of the properties in the vicinity of the subject property.

5. | have no present or contemplated future interest in the subject property, and neither my current or future employment
nor my compensation for performing this appraisal is contingent on the appraised value of the property.

6. | was not required to report a predetermined value or direction in value that favors the cause of the client or any
related party, the amount of the value estimate, the attainment of a specific result, or the occurrence of a subsequent event
in order to receive my compensation and/or employment for performing the appraisal. | did not base the appraisal report
on a requested minimum valuation, a specific valuation, or the need to approve a specific mortgage loan.

7. | performed this appraisal in conformity with the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice that were
adopted and promulgated by the Appraisal Standards Board of The Appraisal Foundation and that were in place as of the
effective date of this appraisal, with the exception of the departure provision of those Standards, which does not apply.
| acknowledge that an estimate of a reasonable time for exposure in the open market is a condition in the definition of
market value and the estimate ! developed is consistent with the marketing time noted in the neighborhood section of this
report, unless | have otherwise stated in the reconciliation section.

8. | have personally inspected the interior and exterior areas of the subject property and the exterior of all properties
listed as comparables in the appraisal report. | further certify that | have noted any apparent or known adverse conditions
in the subject improvements, on the subject site, or on any site within the immediate vicinity of the subject property of
which | am aware and have made adjustments for these adverse conditions in my analysis of the property value to the
extent that | had market evidence to support them. | have also commented about the effect of the adverse conditions on

the marketability of the subject property.

9. | personally prepared all conclusions and opinions about the real estate that were set forth in the appraisal report. If |
relied on significant professional assistance from any individual or individuals in the performance of the appraisal or the
preparation of the appraisal report, | have named such individual(s) and disclosed the specific tasks performed by them
in the reconciliation section of this appraisal report. | certify that any individual so named is qualified to perform the tasks.
I have not authorized anyone to make a change to any item in the report; therefore, if an unauthorized change is made to the

appraisal report, | will take no responsibility for it.

SUPERVISORY APPRAISER'S CERTIFICATION: If a supervisory appraiser signed the appraisal report, he or she
certifies and agrees that: | directly supervise the appraiser who prepared the appraisal report, have reviewed the appraisal
report, agree with the statements and conclusions of the appraiser, agree to be bound by the appraiser's certifications
numbered 4 through 7 above, and am taking full responsibility for the appraisal and the appraisal report.

ADDRESS OF PROPERTY APPRAISED: Lot 440-5.Merizo, Guam 96915
APPRAISER: SUPERVISORY APPRAISER (only if required)
Signature: % _/9 Signature:

Name: Kichard T. GutierréZ_ pyd Name:

Date Signed: November 14, 2005 Date Signed:

State Certification #: State Certification #:

or State License #: LA-04-027 or State License #:

State: Guam State:

Expiration Date of Certification or License: 05/2006 Expiration Date of Certification or License:

[ Joid [ _] DidNotInspect Property

Freddie Mac Form 439 6-93 ClickFORMS Real Estate Appraisal Software by Bradford Technologies (800) 822-8727 Fannie Mae Form 10048 6-03




~< 748771
EXTRA SUBJECT PHOTO ADDENDUM File No. A-2039

Borrower N/A
Property Address Lot 440-5
city Merizo County Merizo State  Guam Zip Code96915
Lender/Client Trans World Radio - KTWR Address P.Q, Box 8780, Agat, Guam 96928
VIEW OF SUBJECT'S
WESTERN BOUNDARY
VIEW OF SUBJECT'S
SOUTHERN BOUNDARY

OCEAN/VALLEY (-) VIEW
FROM SUBJECT PROPERTY

ClickFORMS Real Estate Appraisal Software by Bradford Technologles (800} §22-8727




v

N o . 748771
‘ EXTRA SUBJECT PHOTO ADDENDUM File No. A-2039

.S

Borrower N/A
Property Address Lot 440-5
city Merizo County Merizo State Guam Zip Code969156
Lender/Client Trans World Radio - KTWR Address P.O. Box 8780, Agat, Guam 86928
OCEAN/VALLEY (-} VIEW
FROM SUBJECT PROPERTY

OCEAN/VALLEY (-) VIEW
FROM SUBJECT PROPERTY

OCEAN/VALLEY (-} VIEW
FROM SUBJECT PROPERTY

ClickFORMS Real Estate Appralsal Software by Bradford Technologies (800 622-8727




IR --  m4BTTY

‘ EXTRA SUBJECT PHOTO ADDENDUM File No. A-2039
Borrower NfA
Property Address Lot 440-5
City Merizo County Merizo State  Guam Zip Code86915
Lender/Client Trans World Radio - KTWR Address P.O, Box 8780, Agat, Guam 96928
VIEW OF UNDEVELOPED
LEGAL ACCESS
VIEW OF SUBJECT'S

NORTHERN BOUNDARY

VIEW OF SUBJECT'S
EASTERN BOUNDARY

CiickFORMS Real Estate Appraisal Software by Bradford Technalogies (800) 622-8727




BORROWER:

[ ADDRESS: - ' | LOT 440-5 _
[ VILLAGE: MERIZO  ~ MUNICIPALITY:  MERIZO STATE: GUAM  2IP CODE: 96915

[ LENDER: : TRANS WORLD RADIO-KTWR

PHILIPPINE SEA

COMPARABLE # 1

LCOMPARABLE # 3

PACIFIC OCEAN
R PR

.

UBJECT LOCATION /% - "\ COMPARABLE # 4

Pnrrte ARRRATARAL O




[ BoRRoWER:

ADDRESS: LOT. 440-5
| VILLAGEMERTZO MUNICTPALITY R 120 srargCORY 9691
 iTENT: TRANS WORLD RADTU-KTWK

b

§

Py

/

&
%% .
_\_\
‘?;,
gf
AT
.-", ;’r
\\':

-

Y

-~
oop g SR || by R

: |
A
8L oary s W
. # a7 |
|
i
L
sttt
"E' §1727.5101
- "
NOT TO SCALE
HOTE: .
SPECIML vmmm.wwruo-?—mm
1. W REVART TO PL Z7-118. A
et




BORROWER:

© S0%

-
-

-

¢ L o
- 74811
ADDRESS: LOT 440-5
VILLAGE: MERIZO MUNICIPALITY: MERIZO STATE: gyaM ZIP CODE: 494915
LENDER.: TRANS WORLD RADIO KTWR
- —
W o ‘
o =
%5% < o
'15,))
) .
"?‘hﬂfrrmrrrm-rn,mn




ADDRESS:

LOT 440-5

vILLAGHERLZO

MONICIPALYTHERIZO

STATEAM

z1p copHadls

-

LENDER

TRANS WORLD RADIO-KTWR

I B .
3f .0 ‘;_. T — =
—_— a T
43 T Tl
st . - ,“Q
0 "
-
wher f s
:nbﬁ.‘d&é',
ELCer ity
emOt- L
. -t : u’
- F R A
ThagT 1933 F
[} [t - ) L Fn
- 1] 1 LXK ey
LA iz 3
4 [ I e d ard |
ey | ~ RS el S 2y wora s
T\ 2 ¢ ] hd g B gy LT S
. . 3 ) - by g Yo
=03 13X ¥yl - 049
- -
A 21l T -4 £ L
v x4 i - lote o3 Y by y
$fhaf) h X ] e i a1 1064 ry T
'y W o - A/ A e
o jn ks feof1 9 yiors N W T ‘é-' A 041
AORED s [3]2 ey Sy e Ir x 23 f g peetlin .
e Uil i I:f: Yol tE ferr
Iuln w|sde v e B - - o P RA -3 4! i i
Y
Wt e - N pay L] | B
| |aef o3 - afrfe 9 ots T 3
- T I3 14k g T
- s |y |ma=t |4 -~ ) .
) ., .
weons @ [TIs s 2 B o : fia fow
‘b . 2 ETemI TR | ' 0 Jend Tore-t
g f 1086 -a T 1 I . ¥ b
w[sfe ofs | v " -4
LLLLZ ¥ T Lo unTaybu R
wle Jyee Gl e 9Eed
“".: il AN “:‘=! o] g VSEMOOLy : ‘...-
. Iy s wd - - - '—_oa. 0 - L3 LN N ]
ot Y L0, e
oo Ilen " )
o B AN %4 .0 3 ..la of e
194513 ' JyAr
=11 : -1 Sz 'Ot
~ 4 983 -t [L{T ] 1403 F “‘-‘f
ens -t . fat 303 .
s M 4
R = N R e Ay .
) .
| {1 3 I ¥et 1940
1P R, 3 AT ¥ I 0; ” 1010 > >
(L1 g = -4 oy Y LT .
=T Ak ¥ -;_ > - P ] st ;
K
0l =R 3 LE1] ~heg .} T, Q Sl T vy
3 Wro ey sy ¢
Ry AL I — A .
¥ o g AN Ry PR e oot et .
o = (1930 Y : -l
- hat Loy pr Ay “fous £s ; ' - ot
w3 - A T = MY¢
i B a1 ! 10 4 /'; ' — s
i+, W 1OWT ) w0 . 7Y Wy -
Sona] = Lt [ fos caen3 oy e d AR AL
£333 2 p M e L oy & —
R -t Tk N N -ty iy
1383 ' 1994 41 B ]
. 13 3 lost g TioFTs 999 . sl
* S o alliove-t AN v 57 ry ]| 01s 1
T133.3 1313-42 - - * 3 " ARy =
me | # NN X XA\ [f
- Sl feNl Y RO ) = N
: T\ [ J % LN I
. ] 013 L > o
o =AY [] fend 1 L1 oo
A " s V! [P NI wneor
ore  |a % £ 4 W
m s :u:o Al '::‘ M =)
: " 1084 [109+ 2 v
:' . ) |t 115 wladrd
- LR )
133343 TXT RN et L — " .
- , LA L (-2 KR T L ‘ ' Pyt ]
j —— rant Jgua al
P33t . e . whadfBed sy - Aedal wl !
$133 -3 53113 t13e? J'uu Eﬂl el ._.. - TR}
o ! ) mm =  108Te9
i I
1 x P !
1 nﬂ hd L =
: iy i I 1301
-
-3 ’ - ; \
3331 i game? of me.y |
* -
: - b.ﬂ.
! 4
\ : H
| - PR IR L]
~ | e ? '
. '
11
23E
el [-*%
-3 ’.
! L - me -3
- [] Iy Y e . x ..——-l' .
ﬁ,L’) 1 H L -
L e [P
o T —
’ . - b I 3
: - SEPLATIANT ‘ol SENIGATIN
i - o
1 e, — e
' h
“ LA
. — 1300 !-"""--;:4 b .
o * AR E:.l.nﬂ’. F’I l“l-ﬂ.i
[ B - .
o rg ELEW(WTLAT / F—-Hll 70 L_.‘ b
é 1 - $Emaid, :"1 3, L o .l 1 —T_.—-:..—-- _-.:-.N-—
s . IEE PN N e T : -
- e e h,
. P —W




ADDRESS: LOT 440-5
VILLAGE: MERIZO MUNICIPALITY: MERIZO STATE: cyay ZIP CODE: gogy:
LENDER: TRANS WORLD RADIO-KTWR

a
«0@*". 2
.0

\ ' «"_

o

4L

.
(/

,...,,,.......




. ; ‘ L B N
. .’ N N
BORROWER :
ADDRESS:
RESS LOT- 440-5
- -
VILLAGEMERIZO MUNICIPALITHERIZO STATEGUAM

TRANS WORLD RADIO-KTWR

ZIP CODE:96915

2272/ I e
- 1

. RN =R

-1 H -l
nae = e, i

=3 - _lr
. T canhil 169} !
A 1 2266 . ELENENTARY

/ i-2 -4 -3 SEHOOL, “m |
\ BB e iy |
NN I D - s I NENAGE S
/\\ d Y 23ez t3es-ay ff 2\ :

\ L)

) : mag-R4 -3 | -RZ 2382 a4 2 [
. 2 - Y 286 ts
200 A 2 {2300 A N -RE whithe T
Soan 15 & ] -Ri13 Natl)

RV Y AN 8 . ol P & i
,/ F . R _lz’;u 1364 -6 Mia.xi LR . 1
:_’, -2 i ) 2363 ~i=low k4 - 5 =78
n 1) M
Pr—— - "-" A 23461 ! A "))
A Y (N i/ R4
N / o8 ot e
Y. V.
. 2364 2 !
- wi- AID < A i
B 263 2264
r =
z384-A2 3
2\ 2380
) B H - 4
[ & 2360-RZ \ ¢
Fa ¥ Rt [HT[ 14T \d 2360 ' o ," :
s |a3 =2 SaN VI *
1 -2 " RABLE 3 SCHOOEEU \0 |
- 38y i
% s ::s
=1-3 -::n.
< S, =i :I£= 363
- 2363 Py -i-3
2335 sh-1-2 fo14 L3z
2359 .3 ’ i
- - | [ YU |
2 % 2368 !
2359-2 3 Al e
N 2. - ¥
T\ E—_—-'"‘ 124 |-2 " i
-3 ek 24 -3 g XY j 6 i
1358 .| 2332 LI T o
e 2.5 25333 STy e ns 234
) ot e -3 343 e
sy ay Typa P o~ A 23-7 {3 B
= ik 3. R3-5 {4 4w, .
2ise . - 3414
23548 0031307 [3
358 f2338 i ey - Nl4nt [2348 —
bact foiTs [aase 2 S R ¥t laaan
X P
B4
342
2333 +2]
23
2331
.
se T /2370 !
tH -3 i
1
2380-3
L] 1
1
2328
2388
[238% N
R [-R iy




BORROWER:
ADDRESS: LOT 440-5

LENDER:

TRANS WORLD RADIO~-KTWR

Blle

40,000 M




g‘ « Mo
BORROWER: | LOT 440-5
ADpRESS MERIZO  MERIZO GUAN 96915
S -
VILLAGE MONICTPALETY "o RADTO §ifRe: ZIP CODE:

PANEL 660001 0102C
T o

HAPREJISED:JUEEB,HQB o 74é;771
_ — TS

FOWMIE Mt




Island of Guam, Government of Guam
Department of Land Management Office of the Recorder

File for Record is Inslmmc;t No. 74 67 7 1
On the Yearg&?_ﬂ_ﬁ{omh[ LS Day—z Time ?ZZ

Recordsy - | ....._____{ Receipt No.

Deput: i copge- . %«/{ W h
1% :




2608328

LEASE AGREEMENT

This agreement authorized by Public Law 13-134 is herein entered
by and between Govermment of Guam, hereinafter referred to as the "LESSCR",
and Trans World Radio Pacific, a Guam corporation, hereinafter referred to
as the "LESSEE".

WITNESSETH:

The parties hereto for the consideration hereinafter mentioned
covenant and agree as follows:

1. The LESSOR hereby leases to the LESSEE and the LESSOR hereby leases from
the LESSOR the following described premises to wit:

A portion of Govermment land containing an apea

of not more than twenty (20) acres within Lot No.

440, Municipality of Merizo. A map delineating

the description of the premises shall be prepared

by the LESSEE at his expense, subject to the

approval of the LESSOR.
2. TERM - To'have and to hold the above-described premises together with
all rights appurtenant thereto belonging to the LESSEE for a term beginning

July 1, 1976 ard ending June 30, 2026 at midnight

upon the terms, covenants and conditions hereinafter set forth.

3. RENT - The LESSEE shall pay to the LESSOR as rental to the premises six
percent (6%) per annum of the fair market value of the premises at date of
execution; the LESSCR herein agrees and accepts as fair market value of the
premises established by the appraisal report prepared by Ralph M. Shiyama,
an appraiser for Realty Research Corporation, a copy of which is attached
marked Exhibit "A". The value established thereby shall be applied in the
computation of rental herein above agreed. It is further agreed that the
per annum rental shall be campounded every ten (10) years at the rate of ten
percent (10%). The LESSEE through its facilities and activities shall from
time to time or at LESSEE's initiative, cooperate with the LESSOR to propagate
to its audience Guam's identity including but not limited to geography,
population, culture, climate, economy, society and politic. The LESSEE
further agrees to make available its broadcast facilities and capabilities
to the LESSOR in cases of national emergency, and before, during and after
natural disasters subject to the determination of the local Civil Defense

Office.



<DVO%O

TA1) fentals shall be paid IfDnthly in advance on or before the first day

of each lease month.

L. OPTION TO RENEW ~ LESSEE shall have the right and option to renew this
lease for ancther thirty (30) years upon the same terms and conditions
contained herein except the payment of rent which shall be negotiated upon
notice to exercise this option. The LESSEE shall give ninety (90) days
prior notice to the LESSOR by registered mail of LESSEE's decision to
exercise option.

5. The LESSOR shall deliver to the LESSEE physical possession of the demised
premises upon the execution of the lease. The LESSEE shall deliver to the
LESSOR physical possession of the demised premises upon termination of this
lease or any renewal thereto.

6. LESSEE covenants to save harmless and indemnify LESSOR from and against
all causes of action legal or equitable arising by reason of the actions or
neglect of the LESSEE or of the failure by the public or any persons whamso-
ever which may be asserted against the LESSOR for and upon said cause of
action.

7. QUIET ENJOYMENT - The LESSOR covenants and warrants that the LESSEE upon
paying the rental and performing the Icovenants of this lease may quietly
have, hold and enjoy the demised premises during the term of this lease or
any renewal thereto. The LESSOR further represent and warrant that LESSOR
is the owner of the leased premises and has the right to make this lease to
wit:

a) Lot No. 440, Merizo, is registered under the Govermment of
Guam, as per Guarantee Claim No. 4021.

b) The leased premises are now free from all encumbrances.
8. LESSEE shall pay all utility charges including water, sewer, electricity,
and telephone assessed against the demised premises during the term hereof
and any renewal thereto.
9. ASSIGNMENTS, MORTGAGING AND SUBLETTING RIGTS - The LESSEE may not
assign this lease in whole or in part or mortgage or sublet all or any part
of the demised premises but shall remain liable to the LESSOR for the payment

of rent and of the terms, conditions, and covenants of this lease.



200828

' 10. CONDITION - If at any time during the term hereof the whole or any
substantial part of the premises shall be taken for any public or quasi
public use under any statute and by any right of eminent domain then and

in such event when possession of the premises shall have been taken there
under by the condemning authority. The term hereby granted and all rights
of the LESSEE hereirmunder shall immediately cease and terminate and the rent
shall be ratably as of the date of such temmination and any rental thereto-
fore paid by the LESSEE to the LESSOR shall be promptly refunded by the
LESSOR. In such event the LESSEE shall be entitled to interpose and prosecute
in any condemnation proceedings claim for the value of the improvements
situated thereto. The LESSOR shall in any event, however, be interpose and
prosecute in any condemnation proceedings claim for the value of the improve-
ments situated thereto, and shall in any event be entitled to receive the
award for the full value of its remainder in the premises. If only a part
premises shall be so taken or condemned the award shall be described in the
same manner and this Lease Agreement shall not cease or terminate but shall
continue in full force and effect to that portion of the premises not taken
or condemned except that the rental shall be as of the date of such taking
reduce ratably in proportion to the extent the premises is so condemned and
taken. Provided, however, in the event such condemnation or taking shall
decrease the premises or the improvements thereto to an extent materially
affecting the LESSEE's use of the premises and the improvements theretc and
activities of the LESSEE conducted in connection therewith then the LESSEE
may elect to cancel and terminate this Lease Agreement as of the date title
possess to that part of the premises so condemned which election shall be
made within sixty (60) days fram the date of such taking or possession by
written notice to the LESSOR.

11. LESSEE shall pay an additiocnal rent as that becomes due and payable
and before they become due and payable all taxes, assessments and other
public charges levied upon or assessed against the leased premises or arising
by reason of the occupancy, use or the leased premises or the business
carried on of the activities carried for which are or may become a lien
during the term of the lease of which are hereinafter collectively referred
to as taxes. LESSOR shall promptly forward to LESSEE all bills received by
LESSOR for taxes which LESSEE is required by the provisions of this lease

to pay and shall be assessed or levied against the premises.

-



269828

' 12. USE CLAIMS WITH LAWS AND RESTRICTIONS - LESSEE shall have the peaceful
and quiet use of the leased premises only as authorized by Public Law 13-134
without hindrance on the part of the LESSOR and LESSOR shall warrant and
defend LESSEE in such peaceful and quiet use against the lawful claims of

all persons claiming by, through or under the LESSOR. LESSEE shall not

breach or suffer to breach of any of the conditions, covenants and restrictions
of record affecting the leased premises and shall hold the LESSOR harmless
from any and all consequences of any such breach. LESSEE shall comply to all
present and future laws and regulatbns of duly constituted public authorities

in any manner affecting the leased premises. LESSEE shall have the right to

contest the validity of any laws or regulations adversely affecting the use
of the leased premises and shall held the LESSOR harmless from the violation
of any such law or regulation.

13. IMPROVEMENTS - LESSEE shall throughout the term of this lease at its
own cost without any expense to the LESSOR keep and maintain the premises
including all belongings and improvements of every kind which may be a part
thereto including the towers and broadcasting or transmitting facilities and
such other belongings and facilities including dwellings as may be essential
to the facility and effective use of the property and all appurtenances
thereto in good sanitary and neat order, condition and repair. Upon termina-
tion or expiration and renewal thereto of this lease, all improvements
constructed or situated on the demised premises shall remain thereon and
shall revert to the LESSOR except those facilities and equipment directly
used for transmitting and bracdcasting and which can be removed without
impairing the improvement remaining therein.

14. LESSEE shall prepare at his expense a fifty (50) foot public right-of-
way severance map depicting access to the demised premises and submit said
map with due haste to the LESSOR for its approval and adoption pursuant to
the terms and conditions of this agreement. LESSEE shall thereafter develop
and construct a twenty-two (22) foot wide coral base road at his expense
and shall continue to maintain said road until such time as the LESSOR

releases in writing the LESSEE from this obligation.

T



269828

" 15, The LESSEE may terminate this agreement at any time by giving written
notice by registered mail to LESSOR ninety (90) days prior to the effective
date of termination.

16. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES - The following events shall be termed to be
events of default by LESSEE under this lease:

a) LESSEE shall fail to pay any installment of rent hereby
reserved or shall fail to pay any taxes or other charges
required to be paid by LESSEE under the terms of this lease
and such failure shall continue for a period of thirty (30)
days from and after written notice expressing such failure
is delivered to LESSEE.

b) LESSEE shall fail to comply with any term, provision or
covenant of this lease other than the payment of rental, taxes
or other charges and shall not cammence to remove or correct
such failures within thirty (30) days from and after the date
written notice such failure is delivered to the LESSEE or
having commenced to renew or to correct such failures within
sixty (60) days, LESSEE thereafter fail to proceed with
reasonable diligence to completely remove or correct such
failures.

17. RIGHTS OF SUCCESSORS - The covenants, conditions and agreements contained
herein shall bind and enure to the benefits of the LESSOR and the LESSEE
and their respective heirs, distributees, executors, administrators, and

SUCCEsSs0rs.

"LESSOR"

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Attorney % eéé

Date: JUN 1 5 1976

¥




269828

'REALTY RESEARCH CORPORATION

vzluatmn and conveyance of real estate

KRalph M. Shivama
Vice President

P. O. Box 1485
Agana, Guam 96910
472-8566f472-6998

Don Voronaelf - MAI
President

676 Elepaio Street
Honolulu, Hawaii 96816
80B-7531332

March 1, 1976
pavid Arthurs
TRANS WORLD RADIO
P. Q. Box 3518
- Agana, Guam 96210

Re: Lot 440
Merizo

Dear Mr. Arthurs:
The appraisal fee for the-above captidned is $100.00

Sincerely,

éﬁﬁtadkﬂ,IJGCW-c;:zfiljfm,‘;ﬂxxﬁw,

Ralph M. Shiya

RMS :pbp

Exhi b4 AT
Hawaii -~ Guam - California - foi(;rado - Nevads . m




269828 |

LMo » VLI ACHL L AT CAC it oD e BLHLT M RAL Qi G0 AR LTtk ViealLb —
. * 1
et o HOGF DoONS DRy
.."‘3 ST IMPROVLIMOATS YO GARALT CONNTION (e ...
i -
TP ., =y _I e m i o N
Ladeliun PPoar o v Sout o, 1 | tOSariy
Loament g ool wm‘s it Linalion i { | i % { T '| I| Conamtion of Latenor .o i : ' T
- . - M ' T - e
o 1o A@vers Influences ! ; Py F ;J'Co::c;::cn of Inicnar ' ; : P
5 a0 MTeTG e LGEsTinh ! 1 ! i h I| AdChutetinral ALTIShiveness 4 ' !
¢ Sehpol Facikles ' 1 x i I i Layoul no liity H | i
1 —— - -
Cacw o1 Shoamay Fahihhies i ix b | ' 1 Guatty wt Wor A A ) vt ;'
e auety O Transaxtauan ; x ! f : ; ! In Qualsly 2 (4;“1\!-]‘.‘ Gl O gismest 1ot ' i H
autiead Ay OF Putisd Ulindms i x | H ! j Lol 900 Vindnaluis H i § 3
. . —_—— i { fia s - -—
Leve 3l Faan o Sowcin Anenmenn La b 1 3 jirsesst oy e b d
Lewsr He3MVRAS T Any Aalng detow MAverage’, No public transportation
VA LAY o o..\_.n .O..
P Sales ol Compirdide PG lize that Fliva C2on 1R eoshigdicd 300 Sonidesca
MARRCT DATA APPROACH ({n Acrwing 4t 1w Mar el Valte Grlimotad Bviow. e ALLaChmenty of NEeLrc.
ADDAZSES . NG, ™o, e o, Saicf :’-ﬂah‘ Ad, st ELSM LT
fims., Ko, Ciatns e Lo (*+) . Wb
x 5 +
PO - 3 e v — 1 _—
AL OV B J—
.
. ey . . BGlla, L;calaun. Fung  onst Uiilay, Conditinn, C1€. wAd 1Ly Cath Thu. .r.uun:\
Exsiznation of Adwusmenis: ( ot Cunsidbration Rectwad Oy tha %el'ar,
5
. -
-
Eutbvated Vilue by Woswe: Doia Agpprosch &
oosT APP{&OJ’«.C_H Prices Paid in tho Market 1or Zaqdivslent Lend, it Vicint, Atoie Ssmes sne E
Esmetes Land Viluo Compare to Subjegt on & Fronl Fooi.Scuare Foul or Per Sie Buaus :
' . "

. a——
' T First £z, of Lend Vatue SL 77T
Emunaied Rtpreduction Conms — New — Of Imprevoments: : o .‘ ".' : ' Letroeme I o
Siruttoral {Mégzuremenis x No, Stezles = Sa. FL x €3t Ficier = Cout Now) | e L )
GFost Living Ardd (Enclude Dimi., tlnashon'area): - 5 . .- . . o -
AN IUTEmLALE No, Slofies sg. Ft. ' i ' T Lt :

x = x . . . T e Wl

» x P - . EE - - ‘ ST e ek - - - . . * LA

x b O .- ) B . - ’ N ’

Tozal Gross Living Aréd s s e e FT- M Syl ] -5 )
R e T T T S N T . . q. 1. @ - n o .
S $5. 60, © -

Eaifas (hast) -, '
- " -
A N . X

TOTALCOSTNEW o o & o 4 o 0 o o 2 4 o s o+ o n & o o o 3

e Agjusimenii—AlLLYEeE o T. 4 4 ¢ 4 4 e

ra
.
.
-
-
L}
.
*
-

DB esiales Woiut of Siruciural IFIDrovements © 4 o 4 = » & & 4 . & v = w4 a v .

Tt E31imatod VAIUC 6y (hE COSEAPRIEVAl . . 4 . . 4 s e a e e e e e e e

EATIMATED VALUE SF THE CO3T APPRGAIH .. ..

OMUITIONS:  The Ajoraisal i Mide Subjett 1o ihe Follawing Resairs, Atiesstiens o Othor Cansilipni.

s

SUIIZARY ARD CORRELATION GF APPROACHES TO VALUL

PR

See attached sheet
IMPADVIMENTL

- MAAKET VALUZ EETEATE rAnes fiedors Requiied Absve HIve Leia Samp. 0160

1 2Cetily LAIS | Rave #8340 3R TOHOWES Laf IRt ueiions, sniCHtalish 310 S35 08NS TOATEnad 1A 1A SR310000 fads,
oreend Of Lonitmpluled, In the Srodifiy 5505028 LR3 TN fa TG CRLRIL Y TWIAE bl M nd 3203 ARD 3L, NAT the v,
votut ©f Whe Brosctiy, L IGfiRes Corbity i0a% 1 Ravd DofsCadiy ifLLIdies R o2y, SLih RO 468 ool DAL el piograen
whE B, Wb Malaesatl AN anfsimaniLn LN Tavt ROL RSSO RN LA R i mSes
Crifety BRLL wil CODDILRAL SOG HMHLAG CLOEAWR, ofg (6 -‘:;_\'.u..-:, b G TIAGE 2D I TR P TN

ot ay el e 23E0 coy ar . _EFebruary T o

Y RLTUIL My Srde 3A4 Carrect, aid TR33 3
LF RS0 L M QLo 13 e N

, '54(3
DITEH 1. SHIYAKA, REAL FSTATE APPRAISTR - N Ny 2




» [

o %s.m.m')\"l:u — Davig Arthurs SELLER
I PAOMIRTY ADDUESS _ ; _ ADDARESS: : .
= harv_Merizo . COUNTY cIry : STATE 2
W ETAVE Guam z:» coo: _96216 arpraisza _ Ralph-M. Shiyama
3-. :LEGhn_ DESSRIATION: {Uia attachmant if accessary} Lot 440 :
3 : -
S JTYUE OF LITATE TO 85 APPHMSED (Fon Simple = Leusehold, cic.) Fee smiple
T . ' KEIGHINORKO0D
Cad LT Generan Arga 23 *% Immaalate Arca - . Nughha oot Contormily Averade

+ wiee ol FoODerlict v Immudizte Nulgnboarhood Residential; school .
L Pravarty valug Range £ 20,000 - tes 40,000 Age Rangs From u.c, yri. to 25 yrs,

it . D NUIEAOIIRIOE Up Zoning Traasiilen {IT any) None
CGuknosney: Oweers Q8. % Temants 2. % viant _5__% Scetial Amenities oF Opjoctionadio Inflyeaces  Hone

Poamanis, |

- SITE
; b TN TR R R x x x « 55 M 989,17 s.m, Grada [Tooogtapny) Level and hilly
tu,enns, . NO . Zontng A __ Polico and Fire Protustion Average

! Sireet Jmprovements [Saceity Typo) Roadway Coral cwb __ None :
_ Sewak None .. siormscwer__ NOme streot Lighis None ' Aucy . Done _ .
VidbluRir Eesticiny __N_.C_’.l'l_Q_,._..._.____ {Underground-Overnead), Sat None
: Tyse of Water Supply Public Sewerags System Private system
D.iince 101 {Bins. or M) Malor-Buslass Distret iles  wuichoorhood Shoaping 1 Mile churengs L Mile
Put: Transporiztion _ NOD@ _  Elemerlory Senoers _PGjacent Hign schoon 30 Biles.oon puses nearby
Atcoas Ly, Pupils Stroets _ Yeg Alley . NO Private Easement UNKnown Oinar )

Adg Bawaint Bssaments, Encrozebmonts? ___Unknown r
Drieei f5, Nuitanges, Ocors or Ouher Acverse Influences «~ Doscribg ans Comments ___None
'

L
! Commants:
. 0
t
]
AP ROVENENTS N/ !
L]
i T ree Cesign No. of Dvrtlling Units "
: Taterioe Waks i e e, FOUNDATION | Raof __ )

¥ Bathshat e b Flaining, G &CYS

!t Numuet af STosics -, Ded Rooms

“worrs Bat, Remaining Econsmic Life Years £, Monthly Rentzl Value {Uatur} &

Arsrouinste Anl of Stracivn

-y : Lixy w3 =t space 3t &N Level
.- VOUT: Lict g sBa0 3t &N Levels (Entrlas, Halls, SKETCH EXTERIOR DIMCNSIONS

Ronms, Porchas, Uity Ete) = ML I N ST DR S R RIS
Lt B3 AL GF rOoem 51265 are batow sverdas furnlsh L Ll I I R R IR ] R S T R T
- I T e e T
+ 1007 D3n suctch with room gimonsions)s P e T T T
L . L L P A 3 LR TN T ) - R A N L
¢ Ea.1rwenl Saot M B N I T A R R P AT R E
‘:‘.;x.-'.cntI-‘misnud.rloomu R RN RS B a .........i........
T e BT
. - P T T Y . ..v.---..o.:..-.....
s Floor i
1 e T T e e TR
f“'rq"-‘!ooc M IR R I s m M koo os e I A - -.-{-......o.
b L ] PR T T I e ) ., -.-}..-oo...
- P I A I A EP R IR I P
e . b4 e ey aa + a ok moa s oa B sk a4 m oA . ...1........
_..“-_.;qofs;“—gl\-j;c,lnlngSugots P b k4o oaoaw R . PR e s e om o
F T T e f e e i e e e
. wrenesiveTfrevsieasea]iranieiaed}e. e e et
. :
. - a % F a2 x4 LR R L A ® 4 s a0 s ate --oloono-!nuo-----
R L | L N L N R R A R e R R I
. e s b e e T
! c e e e [ LT T T T T T T e Y
. ke r ow oo e ks ow o e e o P I T T I e
. em e bk T T T T I S B A S ISR PR
. “ e e e m P I T T T U S
. cen e N e N s
[ - : 1
T NEZew, FLOORS WALLS EATHIS: FLIMUER FLOORS WAINSCOT. NG
GALEYENT . . P OSCHENT B
LI LEvEL . . 4 — Y LEVEL
It eI L - PR I o L A -
PHER R IRL LEVE L
Tt e 2 ; - - -
e D W SATTR UL WEALLG Py i DM HT 1 [IYRE, 5 2E) . FUEL
SVl TGN WALLS fotot THT T - TYPI Wik DOWn .
AT AL DTS e WO LAVMORY TAVYE FIRDPLACES [(NO.)
BT PR T ) ALCGULICY . e ATy Fucl
£l
cotd LI TEONNG: Tyne Y (¥ . T 1. 1T 3% nge
:--..'. PR TONLT, ShuatlyY L e Quanlty P = . Anc: Adtual C!fvsiive
eaTe R LU DT Cuainy Quaniity At Actual Tlicgiive
Sl AsEOR D:sPoLAL VENT FANS {FfLL) Teserieg Qradr Extrs Sonivoang

211
—_ : =

N . — - - . - ca -




COMPARABLE SALES (SITE)

' Price or SM Land Indicated Site Subject Indicatea
Lot Numbe; tInstr, ‘Date Lease Value Area SM Price Adj. SM Price
310-2 .~ Agreement:  6/75 $51,335 | 4,667 $11.00 .40 $4.40
310-1. D '4/75 62,000 9,334 6.64 .40 $2.65
294 D 3/74 228,027 i 91,210.68 2.50 .90 $2.25
488-5 o 13,000 3,895 3.34 .60 $2.00
259-1 D 11/73 125,000 - 26,611 - 4.70 .60 $2.82
261-1 o /75 12,000 4,213.66 2,85 .60 1.71

Comparables no. 1 & 2 are located in Agat. Comparable No. 3,

in Talofofo. Comparables 4,5 & 6 are in the vicinity of subject
property. Based on the foregoing information, it is my judement
that subject property has a fair market value of $2,25/s.m. on
February 23, 1976, : :

Therefore: 55,989 s.m. @ $2.25

$125,975

Rounded © $126,000

’ggkéécﬁﬂgda;,ulg;%;;g,¢wﬂuu__¢2
Ralph M, Shiyama <
Appraiser '

;839693

W
Y ¥
.??




e |

N \; -




269828

David Arthurs
Lot 440
Merizo

SUBJECT PROPERTIES

3/4



269828

David Arthurs
Lot 440
Merizo

. SUBJECT PROPERTIES

© A ke U e

e b T
e e e 80 T

YRR

~a

T v i

TR ey S i

315




P A
/ RACT_ 3821
CURVE DATA
A ;‘;.T.;;,, e
A= Q448 35" Y
Re=155.240 | z::.«—
P 16.566 ; ! RACT 261
G20 431 : 5 A e -
CHE= 5682805 W 3 ' \W
h O\ 52
1993 | GRID | \1
- > 530
-~ 4 Ot'f‘;%_
] . o / { /VO
s 'h'L‘ﬂ ‘mm‘ {‘;(_M‘.ﬁ".}’: v . . X
i Yoo wtses o Lapadd, Moty . : GON 2288 R { O ; i "
i T B A "R 0 00
. ) / 37 GRAPHIC SCALF : 1 INCH == 60 METFRS o '
b g TROT Id'l,_,.,.—.mﬂ"iﬁfﬁh [ / ‘ r::;(:,eg / “ i
"y : | i &:; £ 1. vamr WAS BASED ON FOUND CORNERS AS SHOWN.
B NG Ao R T : / '0.9¢ 9% ’ e .2. ALL DISTANCES ARE IN METERS UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.
o : / | ) f 3. BRARINGS AND DISTANCES WITHIN PARENTHESIS ARE RECORD,
NV o / i /o 5 ALL OTHERS ABE 1993 VALUBS,
o Beatbos B Q £4, SUBIECT LOT (8) IS/ARE ZONED "A" AGRICULTURAL AS OF APPROVAL OF THIS MAP.
o e / o / 16, SURJECT LOTS ARE/ARE NOT WITHIN THE GROUND WATER PROTECTION ZONE (GPZ).
Ol / | / 16. AS~BUILT OF EXISTING STRUCTURE AND CORAL ROAD WAS DIGITIZED FROM ORTHOPHOTO
& / o p £ MAP NO. 8, PREPARED DY PERRY & ASSOCIATES FOR THE DEPARTMENT OF LAND
< : ] ;o “ MANAGEMENT AND BURFAU OF PLANNING, GOVERNMENT OF GUAM. PHOTOGRAPHS
A 43@/\ /o o - § TAKEN 1992 THRU 1984,
RN / @ i/ - DEFERENCES:
e & : / 5“' / il ~ 33, pwe, # 6087, LM. CHECK # 026-FY 07, PARCELLING MAP OF LOT 440-R3, PREPARED
WV (5“\ - % : s " P ‘g-}?, } RY PLR 33, DOC. # SHOLAY,
37§ : /./ ! ;o s\ EXISTING CORAL ROAD -
R L ;o A\ STING CORAL — | yeunoLs:
: / A :
,/ . i B / ‘o LOT 440-6 ; X G.GN. STATION
r<<, / o iy ,.r"‘{yf" / s - : @  FOUND #6 REBAR SET BY UNKNOWN, DOC. NO. 580187.
sV x &4 AREA = 18525+ SQM. s @ FOUND #4 REBAR SET BY UNKNOWN, POSITION ACCEPTED,
Ay Ei‘ll 5.8 / i PLACED PLASTIC CAP MARKED DLM,
NG 2 NN Ay @ BET NO. 4 REBAR WITH PLASTIC CAP MARKED DULM.
/I OF 4404 | f..-’& /" LOT 440-2-R/W (50 F1. WIDE) © FOUND #4 REBAR WITH PLASTIC CAP ILLEGIBLE.
B &/ AREA = 70.477 SQ. M / }'}"” T PUBLIC ACCESS & UTILITIES RIGHT OF WAY LOT 440-7-RIW _ AREA =730 SQM, /23 & CONCRETE POWER POLE
q A A i NOC. NO. 519240 T e e e e e e v 63 i
M SR ; 0,754 M. WIDE PLUBLIC ACCESS & UTILITIES 4 2 : i
B g DOC. f 560187 ' | S LOT 4405 RIGHT OF WAY 2% & §
Y | Y S AREA = 10463 SQM. e “‘ TGATIONS $HD APFRGYALS
/ GON 2716 & / : SRES o 5 i SATISFACTORY TO AND APPROVED BY :
d ol . I i -y - - ~ LV J E . ..
& | NT753000R8 | ../ /SSerI2E. 51056 (FORLEASE PURPOSES ONLY) L Q / 3 Pl M ot
~ % b A7 8554 CRY A Y& 4 mm 4 ‘r‘.g oy, /“’3 D8
- iy PG : ! / ¥ o ! i e
‘ G NOB36 , - § G e e
' 9 «M"‘..' | S JUSEPH M, Hﬁﬁ% : DATE,
) "' .;2'5)/ (NO5'4Z E; 1“;\”)1"“ 2350 ‘155-??’1) 2L i Dﬁmmo Dﬂmi}mmm OF LAND MANAGEMENT
N2EIB00W  60.916 V4 (3.144) NG, s‘i h A — LOT 439 Vet T S I
(NIB32'36"W ™ 60.950) ™~ (NS 7 i C.T. # 38799 F 5??5%’ i CHECKED BY : ) : ! -
| \. Naj‘f?o " - 156, / : o & )/’?/ A cn gy O f )MQL( \/(;W-r.&_\ Jﬁ 2
o \ / (Nﬁ"’ﬂ? 3 ‘r) S R DATE {
N 1/];3 541 g/?? ““““““““ s . 0 q“ 5q? L. N q. .&&UM NNER D{M
£ 91544.2684 W (@1.440) g.144 Sk ok el VX AT AL
0% \ QT 4,‘?;%3 | Ry N haesste L Ay
2,0, A A tes ACRES éi LOT 440-6 S CARTOGRAPHIC SUPERVISOR, M
eX g\_) CAN (FUR LF;:\).‘;!!:I ‘::uwmw; ARERM = 18525+ 5CQ.M.™ S OOERTIETCATION lj_y-;‘ 57 *13,-3; SEITRR DY 4 .“‘%FD
e BT %%%} 2 “‘*mazxzﬁsan-_r;mAL_ROAD - APPROV GYAM CODE ANNOTATED, CHAPTER 62, SUBDIVISION LAW.
ggu %\ l%‘il‘;:,‘ % iw(:)'r 440”.*'{7 ._: aﬁf {,ﬁ fNT T? {?}7 7{ » L] l-l- /; ;}(y
& PR A . s ; ; YA
7 DN AREA = 35803£5Q.M. ~. S /i COb
o =7\ . CARLOS R. tm'm,m DATE
Q. L2\ 1. . . ACTING GUAM CHIEF PLANNER B S .
. B, SEE "DETAIL”" GGN 2290 | CHRTIFICATION OF GUAM CHIWF SURVEYOR/CHIEF 0OF CADASTRE
% g i‘po 2 it £ U B sty B signactt A P ;
tr 5 §§5'25£’£;..W ......... [ N 1751683.4823 J THIS MAP HAS BEEN EXAMINED FOR CONFORMANCE WITH TITLE 21, GUAM CODE ANNOTATED,
Z, BRI UL B A N : (mpma so,ﬂmcm 5, USIFORW mmrmmm SYSTEM AND KEGUIATIONS THEREUNDER
= ] T . _! ,«"I e [ \.}1 7? /. \)1 (.)’1 "“ T MY n? ......,.:fﬁ/: ,«49&;
[ ; " eL...I
\ : Mﬂjﬁf I
| |)f T/\II N C GUAM rm SURVEYOR / CHIEF OF CADASTRE (AC“]"{NG)
oo z.ea@mﬁ_. M NOT T (REVISONS|  DESCRIPTION | BY |APPROVED BY DATE
NT/SI65ABZS NN ] OT TO SCALE a
\ £ 917275101 QA e e
NG L i : i
| : SPECIAL NOTE: RE-SUBDIVISION SURVEY MAP
H
. X 1. OPENING OF AN ACCESS ROAD WITHIN LOT 440-7--R/W SHALL _
- __ BE AS PURSUANT TO P.L. 27-118. 2’ LOT 440--R4
% % R 4 : :
PN ROAD LOT "A” R/W, TRAGT 3821 (50 FT. WIDE) i (Fgﬁ%h%gim_’?g gsﬁén??%\’)
-"c;,“é» LOT 440-R7 .- PURLIC ACCESS & UTILI MES RIGHT OF WAY SATISFACTORY T0O: b LAND SQUARE NO. __3_&._ ) " ) SECTION NO..
) \(_\__.) i..l,; AN o N ._\f,.,..»' AS PER MASTER PLAN NOC, NGO, 461444 h ': . P
&, - AREA = 358034801 M. N “URVF‘Y DATA 'z':mrs:t_f_‘ mzfr DATA
S E) NN e L Lrer Mo, Mo o
J‘(’ (E?s\ “E’-’Q ‘?E;\ \ W \\ ‘r:“:/:’ . ” ,;.f""f"!::é"::.‘. . , _"m L. . T o e 1. Tobe < AR . .,..‘,;"w,_.:..."... P TR AU SN N : m‘!“g_ﬁm?. 'rlm No 403 e v e
LN Tn 7 N CHARLES "€ WHITE, STATIIN MANASER 'JM?‘ E y ERT/ZISN  05/13/05 | REGISTERED ON Aucmr 30, 1931
- {)} ) \\\ /.." "l_,F.‘SSEE TRANS WORLD RADIO PACIFIC DOC. NO. 550373 A s e e L F TA No_ P
Pj‘ - \ g \‘\\ ” REFERFNCE LEASE AGREEMENT DO, NO. 2685828 / .[N ‘F’E[F NAME O'F
A N LS ' 05/1.5/05
7y /& N HIC SYSTRM AS SuoWN|
/oS co L GOVERNMENT OF GUAM
At A . 1, PAUL L. SANTOS, HERERY CERTIFY THAT 'THIS MAP ugE gmgmm) EBY {
| UE O UNDER ot DO SUPKHVISION. THAT NF I8 BASED ON £ FELD
/H Nk wm?mr MADE ON MAY 05 , 2008 IN ACCORDANCE WITH  ALL 3 LM. CHECK NO. 184 FY 2005
/09 o W ; Tm; m*nm OF 'WHE DATA AND INFORMATION SHOWN HEREON. | ALSO
PAACSE LR | CRRYIFY THAT ALL TIF MONUMENTS &RE  OF THE CHARACTER AND
) b.;:,%éw «@3 S . 0CCUPY THE POSIT}GNE INDICATED ON THIS MAP.
e O o / : FAAPSLD AR PN ET R R e
v()g t// ...... R / (-;, ./_/ iy \" - LEE R AR AT v cees o b A g
e s BOATELAAEET NI TR R RS T A T pr Ty
i PAUL 1. SANTOS DATE

LAND SURVEY DIVISION
I)IB]"%ION AGRAMEN““A T&N()

PROFESSIONAL LAND SUBEVEYOR NOQ. 68

b ';; - . "I,
AR




Bill No. 182-38(COR)



AL/ ~ ~_/ _JJ] '~

BILL 182-38 Transfer of CLTC property to the NG _ : Fégend

Lot 527-R1 Merizo ; Bile Bay
| Approximatly 980,605 sqm+ "~ Feature 1

Lujan's Point

Merizo Bell Tower

Merizo Mayor's Office
Priest's Pool

Trans World Radio Guam

®Priest's Pool

,‘o s
£ © 2025 Maxar Technoldjd8}
ef6)2025 Airbus W \




I Mina'trentai Ocho Na Lieslaturan Gughan

THE THIRTY-EIGHTH GUAM LEGISLATURE I Mina'trentai Ocho Na Liheslaturan Gudhan
8l HISTORY BILL STATUS

9/2/2025 10:48 AM

Eulogio Shawn Gumataotao AN ACT TO AUTHORIZE THE TRANSFER OF THE TITLE OF OWNERSHIP AND)| 9/2/25
ADMINISTRATIVE JURISDICTION OF LOT 527-R1 IN MALESSO’ FROM THE| 9:26 a.m.
182-38 (COR) CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION TO THE GUAM NATIONAL GUARD FOR|

‘THE DEVELOPMENT OF TRAINING AREAS AND FACILITIES.

CLERKS OFFICE- “Referred Version Page 1



O o0 1 3 B N -

S
™ b AW N = O

9/2/259:26 a.m.
eju

I MINA'TRENTAI OCHO NA LIHESLATURAN GUAHAN
2025 (FIRST) Regular Session

Bill No. 182-38 COR)

Introduced by: Eulogio Shawn Gumataotao E{ DW

AN ACT TO AUTHORIZE THE TRANSFER OF THE

TITLE OF OWNERSHIP AND ADMINISTRATIVE

JURISDICTION OF LOT 527-R1 IN MALESSO’ FROM

THE CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION TO THE

GUAM NATIONAL GUARD FOR THE DEVELOPMENT

OF TRAINING AREAS AND FACILITIES.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE PEOPLE OF GUAM:

Section 1. Legislative Findings and Intent. / Liheslaturan Gudhan finds
that the Guam National Guard (GUNG) has requested approval from the Chamorro
Land Trust Commission (CLTC) to transfer or lease Lot 527-R1 in Malesso’ for the
development of training areas and facilities. In a letter to CLTC dated November 6,
2024 (GUNG letter is attached hereto as Exhibit “A”), the Adjutant General stated
that GUNG requires a local training area to enhance and maintain its proficiency for
land defense of Guam, the Commonwealth of the Northern Marianas Islands, and
other areas of responsibility, and to ensure its overall combat readiness in support of
our nation’s defense.

[ Liheslatura further finds that 10 GCA § 63602 provides that subject to
regulations promulgated by the Adjutant General, GUNG facilities may be used for
reasonable and legitimate civilian activities so long as such activities do not interfere
with their military purposes.

Based on information CLTC received regarding the request by GUNG to

transfer or lease of Lot 527-R1 in Malesso’, the Guam National Guard proposes to

1




o 00 1 Oy i B W R =

[ T 0 I o T ' T 5 TR % T N N 1 R S S e e e o S e o B e
1 N n R W N = O O 0N DY s W= O

develop the area to support both military training and to make the area available for
use by the community including our local public safety and law enforcement
agencies. Priority of use will be given to the Guam National Guard during their
monthly weekend drills and annual training exercises. Moreover, GUNG has
committed to shouldering all costs associated with developing Lot 527-R1 in
Malesso’ for its training requirements, including cadastral surveys to define property
boundaries. The Guam National Guard will also be responsible for securing all
environmental assessments and approval required for its training activities at no cost
to the Government of Guam.

Consistent with the intent of 10 GCA § 63600, which requires the Government
of Guam to maintain adequate armories, shops, ranges and sites suitable for training,
assembly, maintenance, storage and other purposes as may be required for each unit
of the Guam National Guard, I Liheslaturan Gudhan through this Act intends to
provide GUNG with much-needed public property for the development of training
areas and facilities in support of their critical national security mission. Accordingly,
this Act authorizes the transfer of the title of ownership and administrative
jurisdiction of Lot 527-R1 in Malesso’ from the Chamorro Land Trust Commission
to the Guam National Guard.

Section 2. Transfer of Lot 527-R1 in Malesso’ from the Chamorro Land
Trust Commission to the Guam National Guard Authorized. Notwithstanding
any other provision of law, Lot 527-R1 in Malesso’, consisting of approximately
980,605 square meters, is hereby transferred from the Chamorro Land Trust
Commission to the Guam National Guard for its use as it so determines including,
but not limited to, military training areas and facilities which shall be made available
for use by Government of Guam public safety and law enforcement agencies and the
public, consistent with the requirements of 10 GCA § 63602 and applicable Guam

National Guard policies. Nothing in this Act prevents the Guam National Guard and




(S N e ]

O 00 ~1 v o B

10
11

the Malesso’ Municipal Planning Council from entering into a Memorandum of
Agreement guiding the public’s use of GUNG training areas and facilities on the
subject property, including revenue that may be available by GUNG to support
community projects prioritized by the host village of Malesso’ including, but not
limited to, the expansion of or improvements to community centers, public parks,
sports fields, and public gathering areas.

Section 3. Exemption. § 2107 of Chapter 2, Title 2, Guam Code Annotated,
and the Standing Rules of I Mina'trentai Ocho na Liheslaturan Guahan relative to
the appraisals of land, shall not apply to this Act.

Section 4. Effective Date. The provisions of this Act shall be effective upon

enactment.



EXHIBIT "A™

DEPARTMENTS OF THE ARMY AND THE AIR FORCE
GUAM NATIONAL GUARD
430 ARMY DRIVE
BARRIGADA, GUAM 96913-4421

November 6, 2024

Mr. Joey Cruz

Chamorro Land Trust Commission

733 ITC Building, 590 S. Marine Corp Drive
Tamuning, GU 96913-0000

Dear Mr. Cruz:

The Guam National Guard is requesting the Chamormro Land Trust Commission's
consideration in support of transfer/lease of Lot 527-R1 at Malesso, Guam as depicted in the
attached map. The subject site will be used as a local training area for the Guam National
Guard in accordance with Chapter 75 (CLT Act), Title 21 (Real Property) of the Guam Code
Annotated.

The Guam National Guard (GUNG) requires a local training area to enhance and maintain
its proficiency for land defense of Guam, Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands, and
other areas of responsibility; and ensure its overall combat readiness in suppert of our nation’s

defense. Specifically, the GUNG needs an area to accomplish the following training
requirements and activities:

» Dismounted personnel maneuvers areas for up to company size light infantry units.

¢ Cantonment areas to support units such as restrooms, bleachers, parking, and all-
weather access road.

* Bivouac areas for up to battalion size units with motorized and trailer mounted
equipment

e Storage of non-sensitive training aids in a fenced area.

+ Pre-positioned concrete overhead and pads for bivouac sites

= Facilities for training simulation devices

+ No live fire ranges will be built in the property

The Guam National Guard proposes to develop the area to support both military training and
to make the area available for use by the community and the Territory of Guam. Priority of use
will be given to the Guam National Guard during their monthly weekend drills and Annual

Training exercises. The concept on this proposal will be based on the foliowing:

e The GUNG will shoulder all costs of developing the area for its training requirements,
including cadastral surveys to define the property boundaries.

* The local training area will be made available to the public or other law enforcement and
response agencies with proper coordination with GUNG.



« Priority of use of the property is given to the GUNG.

« GUNG will be responsible to secure all environmental assessments and approval
required for its training activilies at no cost to the Government of Guam.

We request for your support in facilitating this matter. Point of contact is MAJ Peter J.
Guerrero, Deputy G3 (Operations and Training) at (671) 344-1062 or email

peteriesse.b.guerrero. mil@army.mil or Ms. Alma S. McDonald at (671) 344-1122 or email
alma.s.mcdonald.civ@army.mil.

Sincerely,

MICHAEL W CRUZ
Brigadier General (GU), Guam National Guard
The Adjutant General

Enclosure
Map of Lot 527-R1, Malesso, Guam



AGRICULTURAL SUBDIVIBION MASTER PLAN

l*—ldl-—JL&—-d':u

1 b S e T

o

e . L

LOT 510

Y
1 dage

—

$oTe4

i e VL v T ey I V3 10

m
n-ﬂ- e e

I.ﬂ‘l S2T

]
LA Pl s - D
—

-

LOT 527

A
FRE——

PARCEL A

-
e

sk Thac off (Fsamy
- P e T A |

LTI ST

o .

lamemay

iy

B s W
RS TR e s A
R e |

aer ‘3

et
o i

e . i
L R s o 44 BB e Tk
A ol W T T s =
AT N A ik e P2 A 1 0
R ] B A T A V) T R i s
TR e s
P L | T VSR B A T ol D
el
T s Sekariprmu s b i ST (4 R
Dy . o

L s T T gk
g A e 0 A 1 ) Gt

A A VT AN I o ]
e et

i 2

s e

ar s-c-- ﬂ-:_;“ - ..wi- e -

TR R T e
W ] T e al e W a

uo-m -y

LS M o Rasina e B

[ mrvEwEs W
., IRATCE
[ afalr
e e
Jorr— ‘ﬂ'r
WAl Py y
cnff sy 0q
= A2
L T | B Tl L
[T b2p
CALARRBIE Lot 43 Ak
u-mw.wm.mmum SLASTER PLAN
LOT 827
cmsaMR sy
bR, gy PEEELRA

iy AF W wm ik

£} "
" o e
m.—»wrumr ot
- e
by -
T St

BN L TNy

e e s
.
AT e g Camil -
o Trmsan vy ot
e

i i
i T N P,




A

[

WL FARCE:D A

L272-R18

L527-R1

.1
&
i
o
n
-t




LOT 510
GWA

] % 2
1&-1 LOT 527-R1 5 o
AREA=980,605SM i

\ .

<]
F. 3
: ;
"' iz,
; f - I:-‘ . il
W » 4 é I
o L. ‘

A ﬂ' /

} f

» N {

¢ s ;f

| ﬂy ‘_r'

;. &
¥ 5
. [ . . \
Ny iy
L R =




OFFICE DF SENATOR

Eulogio Shawn Gumataotao

38th Guam Legislature | Mina'trentai Ocho Na Liheslaturan Gudhan
September 15, 2025

The Honorable V. Anthony Ada

Vice-Speaker and Chairman

Comumittee on Land, Environment, Housing,
Agriculture, Parks, and Infrastructure

38 Guam Legislature

Sent via: vicespeakertonyada@ guamlegislature.gov

Subject: Bill No. 182-38 (COR) - CLTC Malesso’ Property for Guam National Guard
Training Facilities

Dear Vioe—SpeMda, w

Hafa adai! Please be informed that Brigadier General Michael W. Cruz, the Adjutant General of
the Guarm National Guard (GUNG), through a Jetter my office received via email this afternoon,
requested to defer legislative action on Bill No. 182-38 (COR) referenced above. The Adjutant
General wrote that based on a thorough review of the bill and in consultation with his Command
Staff, additional discussions and consultations are necessary before moving forward with the

proposal.

Accordingly, 1 respectfully request that the Committee on Land, Environment, Housing,
Agriculture, Parks, and Infrastructure postpone scheduling any public hearing on the bill until
my office receives an update from GUNG regarding their additional review.

Bill No. 182-38 (COR) was introduced at their request. This letter does not alter my commitment
to support public policy meeting GUNG’s training requirements once the organization updates
and/or revises their internal planning process for the project in Malesso’ and other related
activities.

Please contact my office at 671-647-1409/1411 if you have any questions or wish to discuss this
matter further.

Si Yu'os ma'age’!

S OTAO

Chairman

Committee on Public Safety, Emergency Management, and Guam National Guard
Anichmens: GUNG letter received by Senator Guinatootao's Office via emil on 9.15.25

cc: Members. Committee on Public Safety, Emergancy Managemerd, and Guam Nationaf Guard
The Honorablc Franklin Charmpnco. Mayor, Municipality of Malesso®
Mcmbers, Chomorro Land Trust Commission

120 Father Duenas Avenue, Capitol Plaza Building. Suite 103, Hagdtha, Guam 96910
Phone: (671) 647-1409, (671) 647-1411 - email; office.senatorshawn@guamiegisiature.gov



GOVERNMENT OF GUAM
DEPARTMENT OF MLITARY AFFAIRE
(DIPATTAMENTON ASUNTON MILITAT)
430 Army Drive * Building 300, Suite 123 + Barrigads, Guam 96913
Tel: (671) 647-9150 » Email: pdmin@dma guam. gov

September 11, 2025

The Honorable Senator
Eulogio Shawn Gumataotao

[ Mira'trentai Ocho na Liheslaturan Guéihan
163 Chalan Santo Papa Juan Pablo Dos
Hagétfia, Guam 96910

SUBJECT: Request for Deferment of Bill No. 182-38 (COR) and Initiate Discussion on Guam
National Guard Real Estete Requirements

Héfa Adai, Hororable Senator,

This is to respectfully request a deferment of legislative action on Bill No. 182-38 (COR). This bill
pertains to the authorization of the transfer of title and administrative jurisdiction of Lot 527-R1 in
Malesso' from the Chamorro Land Trust Commission to the Guam National Guard.

Following a thorough review of the bill, additional discussions and consultetions are necessary. These
conversations will focus on the compliance requirements for the Guam National Guard and to ensure
that we serve the best interest of the community.

Thank you for your consideration. Si Ya’os Ma’dse’

BG MICHAEL W. CRUZ
The Adjutant General



PUBLIC COMMENTS



M G Mal I Dexter Tan <dexter.tan@cltc.guam.gov>

GICC Bill 135-38
11 messages

vshelly <vshelly@nissanguam.com= Tue, Sep 2, 2025 at 8:41 AM
Reply-To: clic.admin@cltc.guam.gov

To: "chic.admin@cltc.guam.gov" <cltc.admin@clic.guam.gov>

Cc: Barbara Burkhardt <iaerieD5@gmail.com>, "frank.blasjr@gmail.com” <frank.blasjr@gmail.com>

To the Administrator receiving this email. You are kindly requested to provide a copy of this email, along
with my testimony attached, to all commissioners as well as Mr. Cruz. Upon receipt kindly confirm this has
been done. Thank you.

ATTN: Chairwoman Ms. Arlene Bordallo , Joseph Cruz, & all CLTC Commissioners,

Attached please find my testimony given to the Legislative committee held on July 22, 2025. | respectfully
submit this testimony to the CLTC for your Sept 18, 2025, meeting which | will unfortunately be off-island
and unable to attend.

Additionally, please note that | have sent several messages (all unanswered) to be advised anytime there is
intent to discuss the GICC Solar Farm Bill. Much to my dismay, | was told a private meeting was held
lasting some 5 hours where the ianguage of bill 138-35 was discussed for the CLTC to supportit. If true |
find this completely out of order as no opposition to this bill was invited to attend this private meeting!

| am asking and providing by this email, authorization, and permission for Ms. Barbara Burkhart to verify my
testimony has been received and read by all commissioners, as well as discuss my testimony for the Sept
18 meeting as needed, and speak on my behalf for any other meeting that may be held during my absence.

Thank you,
Van

Once again, kindly confirm receipt of this email.



N Vvan Shelly

NISSAN

v Executive Transition Consultant

Nissan Motor Corporation in Guam

INFINITE e 671-647-7222
Email: vshelly@nissanguam.com
Website: www.nissanguam.com
Follow us:
i
.3_3 scan.pdf

2482K



Testimony for Legislative Hearing on GICC
July 22, 2025
Submitted by: Van R, Shelly, President Guam Municipal Golf
To: Speaker Frank Blass & Senators
Points against GICC solarfarm

GICC was failing at properly managing this golf course prior to Covid. They have
deliberately failed the upkeep and presented a false claim they can’t make rent or
be profitable as a golf course. If that’s the case, then why is CCP presently so
successful?

. GICC sold all their golf course equipment so they can’t properly maintain the
course even if they wanted to. They clearly don’t. The plan now is to make the
refurbishment of the course not financially viable, so in the end they believe they
win in the long run. Please don’t aliow it.

- During the last public hearing the GICC management, along with their hired
consultant, failed to abide by Guam law and clearty state their financial gain should
this bilt pass. Please don't allow them to viclate Guam law again. Make them
clearly state the complete financial gain they will all each receive should this bill
regrettably pass.

. Ifit smells rotten, trust what you smell! Senator Taitague had it correct, why was
the deal done secretly? Who truly benefits from this hill? It’s clearty not the
homeowners who live adjacent to this property. They will have to suffer not only

increased heat exposure on a daily basis from these solar panels, but also a
substantial loss in the value of their homes which has been statically proven. A
large portion of the housing in this area is GURA housing, and I'm guessing many of
them don't even have Air conditioning. Even if they do, who is going to pay the likely
500% + increase in power they will need to pay just to live comfortably? This is
simply not the Chamorro way to harm other neighbors for the benefit of a few lining
their pockets.

- Again Senator Taitague had it correct, assuming a Solar Farm was a valid concept,
why then for this property (which we don't believe it is}), the CLT never bothered to

put out an RFP for the best proposal. They simply moved forward to award a
company already failing at managing a golf course with this project. Quite frankly, if
| was a member of the CLTC board, not only would | mandate an RFP went out to
ensure the best possible outcome for Guam along with knowing this was actually
an honest bid the public could trust. But I'd also prevent GICC from bidding on the



10.

11.

12.

project based on their horrible performance in the current lease agreement with
the CLTC which should have been cancelled years ago for multiple areas of failure
to perform.

There has not been an environmental impact study complsted. Senators, | urge you
at a minimum not to even entertain this bill until such a study is complete. At the
moment we are aware of at least 3 endangered species which call GICC their home
(Marianas Moorehens, Fruit Bats, & 8 Spot Butterfies).

In addition to the endangered species, | have also learned from the Environmental
groups there are endangered trees and plants that are native to Guam that will also
be killed.

While the benefits of commercial solar farms is now being questioned in many
states, if in fact the legislature and the CLTC is sold on its benefits, why not tell the
GICC management and others to provide the same up front rent fees for a different
piece of land, notin a residential area, more importantly not aver the top of Guam’s
primary water lens, and not over a moral & community welfare facility built for the
benefit of our entire community? The CLTC has thousands of acres at their
disposal. Again, why ruin our only municipal course? Place the farm in a non
residential area, and not over our primary water lens.

The proponents of this bill want to tell you these solar panels are completely safe.
Well, I've attached a long Power Point presentation by an expertin this field Dr,
Richard G Geyer Ph.D., | hope ali Senators witl take the time to read it. But for this
hearing | will read one page of this presentation everyone needs to fully
understand....Again, | urge all of the Senators in the strongest terms not to allow a
commercial solar farm over our primary water lens.

There are multiple reports of severe damage to commercial solar farms in
Hurricane/Typhoon conditions. So as Senators, when a severe Typhoon arrives on
Guam (and many of them will}, who’s conscience is it goingto be on when one or
more of these panels crash through a sliding glass door of a nearby home, and/or
hits, hurts, maims of even kills a resident including a child who is in the wrong
place at the wrong time, all because a commercial solar farm was allowed to be
built within a Residential area?

Property owners in Dededo surrounding the golf course were never made aware
that statistically their homes and land lose value once a commercial solar farm is
built near them. Again, its simply not the Chamorro way to harm others for benefit
of a few.

No appraisal was carried out for use as a private solar farm. if the existing lease
with discounts to serve as a municipal golf course is left in place, then the investors
end up stealing even more funds from the people of Guam with a substantial



13.

14,

15,

16.

discount for land use. If the land use is changed from a Morale & Welfare facility to
a for profit facility, then the appraisal and lease rent needs to be substantially
increased far above the 2% increase the proposal wants you to believe is some sort
of generosity on the part of the investors pushing this bill.

The investors continue to state they will allow a portion of the GICC buitding for use
as offices. Well, If ’m not mistaken, at the conclusion of the initial lease for the
GICC property, the CLTC already owns the building. So should the lease be
cancelled on numerous breaches of contract by GICC, the building and ownership
belongs to the CLTC. So once again | believe the investors are misrepresenting
actual facts as they have continued to do over the course of these discussions.
Based on our previous testimony, | see Senator Augustin has attempted to add
decommissioning performance bond verbiage to the new bill. | find the language
grossly inefficient and vague at best. The EPA to date has no direct disposal plan
performance mandates once panels usefulness has expired. Again, you have to
ask yourself if the panels are truly non-toxic, why is it the EPA has yet to put written
disposal performance guidelines in place? The cost to dismantle and dispose of
both the batteries and panels, along with restoring the land to its original condition
will result in multi-millions of dollars. A few million dollars put up as a performance
bond won’t even begin to cover the complete expense of restoring the land. Despite
what you're being told, the investors are only in this for the 30% cash rebate they
will receive from the Federal Gov't after one complete year of operation. if you don’t
believe me, ask them to turn over the full 30% rebate to the CLTC to be placed as
the performance bond. They won’t walk away, they will run away!!!

In addition to a Tourism Recovery projectin the near future, there is also an
additional 40+ thousand Military, Family and Federal employees schedule to arrive
on Guam in support of the new Camp Blas. As GVB correctly stated, where will the
local and military folks have an affordable place to play a game s0 many love?
When tourism recovers, the golf courses built for tourism will cater to the tourist as
they rightfully should. Only the locals will be left with no affordable place to play
Last but not least, GEDA, GVB, The Dededo Mayors Council and the Attorney
General have all stated they DO NOT support this bill. We ask that that you please
listen to them and not support this bill.

Thank you

-



M Gma il Dexter Tan <dexter.tan@cltc.guam.gov>

Bill No. 182-38 (COR) transferring Chamorro Land Trust Commission (CLTC)
property in Malesso' to the Guam National Guard (GUNG)

Jessica Nangauta <jessica024@gmail.com> Thu, Sep 4, 2025 at 2:09 PM
Reply-To: cltc.admin@cltc.guam.gov

To: "Joey Cruz Jr." <joey.cruz@cltc.guam.gov>, earl.garrido@cltc.guam.gov, fabrienne.respicio@cltc.guam.gov,
jeremy.rojas@cltc.guam.gov, joseph.cameron@cltc.guam.gov, cltc.admin@cltc.guam.gov

Cc: Senator Shawn Gumataotao <office.senatorshawn@guamlegislature.gov>

Hafa Adai Chamorro Land Trust Commissioners and Board members

| am writing in opposition of Bill No. 182-38 (COR) transferring Chamorro Land Trust Commission
(CLTC) property in Malesso' to the Guam National Guard (GUNG)

The Chamorro Land Trust Commission (CLTC) was created with a sacred purpose: to return land
to the people of Guahan for homes, farming, and cultural survival. Today, that promise is
threatened by efforts to use CLTC lands for military expansion, training, or resource extraction.

We must remember:

+ Over 8,000 applicants—families, farmers, and future generations—are still waiting for their
promised lots, some since 1995.

o The proposed 242 acres by the Guam National Guard could provide roughly 60 plots, far
short of meeting the real demand of CLTC applicants.

« Instead of fulfilling its mission to house and empower CHamoru families, CLTC lands face
pressure for limestone mining, training grounds, and outside use.

The Department of Defense already controls nearly one-third of our island, much of it taken

by eminent domain. If more space is needed, the DOD must first learn to better utilize and share
the land it already holds, not demand more from the limited areas set aside for Chamorro
families.

Every acre of CLTC land is more than soil. It is a promise and a legacy—a foundation for homes,
food security, cultural practice, and the survival of our identity. To give it away for anything other
than its intended purpose is to break faith with our people and future generations.

We call on leaders and our community to stand together: Protect Chamorro lands.

Jessica Nangauta

Daughter of Malesso



M Gma il Dexter Tan <dexter.tan@cltc.guam.gov>

Bill 182-38 (COR)

1 message

Kallen Perez <perezkallen@gmail.com> Wed, Sep 17, 2025 at 10:27 PM
Reply-To: cltc.admin@cltc.guam.gov

To: earl.garrido@cltc.guam.gov, fabrienne.respicio@cltc.guam.gov, jeremy.rojas@cltc.guam.gov,
joseph.cameron@cltc.guam.gov, cltc.admin@cltc.guam.gov, joey.cruz@cltc.guam.gov

Cc: office.senatorshawn@guamlegislature.gov

Hafa adai Commissioners and Senator,

| am writing in opposition to this bill, which proposes to give 242 acres of land in Malesso to the Army National Guard for
training.

The military controls 1/3 of Guam’s land already, with a huge amount of pristine limestone forest having been bulldozed in
the last few years for Camp Blaz alone.

Home ownership on Guam is already cost prohibitive for many locals, and this bill would make Guam’s extreme housing
crisis even worse.

The military should share the land they already own to let the Guam Army National Guard train using existing facilities
within their footprint. Otherwise, soon Guam will just be one big base and nothing else.

Na para’ hamyo! Enough already.
Esta,

Kallen Perez
(Mom, Voter, Resident of Sinajana)



	ADPFFA1.tmp
	Qualifications/Requirements:
	Special Qualifications:
	Essential Functions:
	Knowledge, Skills & Abilities:
	Key Competencies:
	Supervisory Responsibility:
	Work Environment:
	Physical Demands:
	Other Duties:

	DR 9182025 (1).pdf
	Directors Report 9182025
	Bill No. 176-38 (COR) Commercial Lease Extension for Tenants in Good Standing
	MOA GPA
	CLTC - Lot 7055 Yigo Mayor Request
	PL 24-62
	DPAC CLTC lease renewals
	global 1
	global 2
	Global Recycling 


